Public Document Pack

P

DISTRICT COUNCIL
NORTH OXFORDSHIRE

Committee: Executive

Date: Monday 4 July 2011

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA

Membership

Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Norman Bolster

Councillor John Donaldson Councillor Michael Gibbard

Councillor James Macnhamara Councillor Nigel Morris

Councillor D M Pickford Councillor Nicholas Turner
AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the
meeting.

4, Urgent Business

The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business
being admitted to the agenda.

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA
www.cherwell.gov.uk




Minutes (Pages 1-10)

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2011.

Strategy and Policy

Response to Department for Transport Consultation on High Speed Rail
(Pages 11 - 120) 6.35 pm

Report of Strategic Director, Planning, Housing and Economy
Summary

To enable Members to agree the proposed responses to the seven questions posed
in the Department for Transport’s consultation upon High Speed Rail with respect to
both the proposed national high speed rail strategy and on the recommended line of
route for an initial London to West Midlands section of the railway.

Recommendations
The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To agree that the Council should make representations in response to
Consultation questions 1-3 objecting to the national high speed rail strategy
in general accordance with the comments expressed in Section 3 of this
report , those made by the “51M” group to the Transport Select Committee,
and subject to the agreement of the Lead Member for Planning, in
accordance with the “51M “ group’s further comments on this matter

(2)  To agree that the Council should make representations in response to
Consultation questions 4-6 expressing severe concerns about the paucity of
information and concerns about several details of the scheme as consulted
upon in general accordance with the comments contained in sections 4-6 of
this report, and subject to the agreement of the Lead Member for Planning in
accordance with any further representations made on behalf of “51M” as a
critique of the Appraisal of Sustainability

(3) To agree that the Council should make representations in respect of
Consultation question 7 in accordance with the comments in Section 4.33-
4.34 of this report

(4) To delegate to the Strategic Director of Planning Housing and Economy , in
consultation with the Lead Member for Planning, the final wording of the
consultation responses to be made in general accordance with
recommendations 1-3 above

Armed Forces Community Covenant (Pages 121 - 130) 6.50 pm

Report of the Chief Executive and the Corporate Strategy and Performance
Manager



Summary

This report provides an update on the Oxfordshire Armed Forces Community
Covenant and Cherwell District Council’s response to it.

Recommendations
The Executive is recommended:
1) To note the importance of the Armed Forces Community Covenant and

request that officers work across all Council services to ensure there are
clear plans in place to deliver the aspirations of the Covenant.

Service Delivery and Innovation

Horton General Hospital and Health Sector Changes
(Pages 131 - 142) 6.55 pm

Report of Strategic Director Environment and Community

Summary

To consider the progress and current position regarding the implementation of
alternative service models for the Horton General Hospital. To consider also the
radical changes in the health sector and the latest position in changes locally.
Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To note the good progress in implementing sustainable service delivery
models at the Horton General Hospital.

(2) To urge the Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals Trust to implement as soon as
possible the revised model for maternity and gynaecology.

(3) To support the establishment of a Community Partnership Network with

membership drawn from local health and social care service
commissionaires and providers plus relevant stakeholders.

Value for Money and Performance

Value for Money Review of Economic Development
(Pages 143 - 158) 7.10 pm

Report of Strategic Director Planning, Housing & Economy, Head of Planning Policy
& Economic Development and Improvement Project Manager

Summary

To consider the findings of the Value for Money Review of Economic Development
and the recommendations arising from the report.



10.

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1)

(2)

3)

To note that the Value for Money Review concludes that Economic
Development Service is a top performer, making a real difference to
Cherwell’s businesses and residents affected by the downturn.

To adopt the Economic Development Service Vision to 2016 which sets out a
forward looking framework, drawing on the Council’s contribution to the
emerging Economic Development Strategy.

To accept gross savings of £35,000 with immediate effect, as a contribution
towards the Council delivering its Medium Term Financial Strategy,
recognising this reduces the flexibility of the service to undertake economic
development activity in the future.

2010/2011 End of Year Finance and Medium Term Financial Strategy Update
Report (Pages 159 - 192) 7.20 pm

Report of the Head of Finance

Summary

This report summarises the Council’s provisional Revenue and Capital performance
for the financial year 2010/2011 and reports on performance against the
procurement action plan. The figures are still subject to further validation work to
ensure compliance with statutory requirements and proper accounting practices.
The report also considers the process and timetable for refreshing our Medium
Term Financial Strategy

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

1)

4)

5)

To note the provisional revenue out-turn position for 2010/2011 detailed in
Appendix 1.

To note the continued improvement in accuracy and reliability that the
Council has made in projecting the year end position through the embedding
of the Corporate Dashboard.

To note the provisional capital out-turn position for 2010/2011 detailed in
Appendix 2a.

To agree the balances on capital schemes which have slipped in 2010/2011
to be carried forward into the 2011/2012 capital programme as set out in
Appendix 2b

To note progress against the Councils Procurement Action plan — Appendix 3
and savings achieved Appendix 4.

To note the Medium Term Financial Strategy Update.



11.

12.

13.

Performance Management Framework 2010/2011 End of Year Performance
Report (Pages 193 - 248) 7.35 pm

Report of Chief Executive and Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager

Summary

This report covers the Council’s performance in 2010/2011, as measured through
the Corporate Performance Management Framework.

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

1)

2)

4)

To note that, despite tough performance targets and a challenging economic
environment, the Council has met or made satisfactory progress on 97% of
the performance targets in the Corporate Scorecard (the basket of priority
measures) and met or made satisfactory progress on 95% of the
performance targets in the Corporate Plan which sets out activities and
targets under each of the Council’s four strategic priorities.

To note that the Council has delivered a challenging programme of
improvement projects and value for money reviews. Of the 22 projects and
reviews scheduled for 2010/11 21 were completed with good or satisfactory
outcomes and only 1 delayed due a changing government policy. The
improvement programme has directly contributed to the delivery of savings
and efficiencies to balance the Council’s budget.

To note the progress in delivering the Council’s strategic objectives and the
many achievements referred to in paragraphs 1.4 and 1.5

To request an update on the issues highlighted in paragraph 1.6 in the first
quarter report of 2011/12.

Urgent Business

Urgent Business

Any other items which the Chairman has decided is urgent.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following report(s) contain exempt information as defined in the following
paragraph(s) of Part 1, Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972.

3— Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

Members are reminded that whilst the following item(s) have been marked as
exempt, it is for the meeting to decide whether or not to consider each of them in
private or in public. In making the decision, members should balance the interests of



individuals or the Council itself in having access to the information. In considering
their discretion members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers.

Should Members decide not to make a decision in public, they are recommended to
pass the following recommendation:

“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded form the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on
the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph(s) 2 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”

14. Value for Money Review of Tourism (Pages 249 - 276) 7.50 pm
Report of Strategic Director Environment and Community

Summary

To consider the findings of the Value for Money (VFM) Review report and the
recommendations arising from the report.

Meeting scheduled to close at 8.05 pm

Information about this Agenda

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or (01295)
221587 prior to the start of the meeting.

Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. The definition of personal
and prejudicial interests is set out in Part 5 Section A of the constitution. The Democratic
Support Officer will have a copy available for inspection at all meetings.

Personal Interest: Members must declare the interest but may stay in the room, debate
and vote on the issue.

Prejudicial Interest: Member must withdraw from the meeting room and should inform
the Chairman accordingly.

With the exception of the some very specific circumstances, a Member with a personal
interest also has a prejudicial interest if it is one which a Member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.

Local Government and Finance Act 1992 — Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget



setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Queries Regarding this Agenda

Please contact James Doble, Legal and Democratic Services james.doble@cherwell-
dc.gov.uk (01295) 221587

Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest
available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones

Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Sue Smith
Chief Executive

Published on Friday 24 June 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Cherwell District Council
Executive

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held at Bodicote House, Bodicote,
Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 23 May 2011 at 6.30 pm

Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman)
Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack
Councillor Norman Bolster
Councillor John Donaldson
Councillor Michael Gibbard
Councillor James Macnamara
Councillor Nigel Morris
Councillor Nicholas Turner

Also Councillor Colin Clarke

Present: Councillor Kieron Mallon
Councillor Leslie F Sibley
Councillor Andrew Beere
Councillor Patrick Cartledge

Apologies Councillor D M Pickford
for
absence:

Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive
lan Davies, Strategic Director - Environment and Community
John Hoad, Strategic Director - Planning, Housing and Economy
Karen Curtin, Head of Finance / Section 151 Officer
Nigel Bell, Solicitor and Interim Monitoring Officer
Gillian Greaves, Head of Housing Services
Paul Marston-Weston, Head of Recreation & Health
Ed Potter, Head of Environmental Services
Alison Davies, Project Manager
Claire Taylor, Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager
Shona King, Planning Officer
Craig Knight, Strategic Housing Facilitator
Richard Mcintyre, Senior Housing Options Officer
Philip Rolls, Recreation & Health Improvement Manager
Martyn Swann, Strategic Housing Manager
Helen Town, Strategic Housing Officer
James Doble, Democratic, Scrutiny and Elections Manager

Page 1



Executive - 23 May 2011

Declarations of Interest
Members declared interests in the following agenda items

6. Commissioning of Advice, Volunteering and Voluntary Car Driving
Schemes in Cherwell.

Councillor G A Reynolds, Personal, as a County Councillor.

Councillor John Donaldson, Personal, as a management board member of
CCBS and WRVS.

Councillor Ken Atack, Personal, as a board member of Oxfordshire Rural
Communities Council and CCBS.

Councillor Michael Gibbard, Personal, as a County Councillor.
Councillor Nicholas Turner, Personal, as a County Councillor.
Councillor Norman Bolster, Personal, as a County Councillor.
8. Local Development Framework (LDF) - Next Steps.

Councillor Barry Wood, Personal, due to persons known to him having a land
interest in land outside but in the vicinity of Eco-Bicester.

Councillor G A Reynolds, Personal, as Drayton Parish Clerk.

Councillor Nicholas Turner, Personal, due to interest in Drayton Manor Golf,
should this issue arise a prejudicial interest will be declared.

Councillor Nigel Morris, Personal, due to interest in a site within the report.

Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting

The Chairman confirmed there were no petitions and that he had agreed to
Councillors Beere, Cartledge and Clarke to address the meeting.

Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.
Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2011 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 2



Executive - 23 May 2011

Commissioning of Advice, Volunteering and Voluntary Car Driving
Schemes in Cherwell

The Head of Housing Services submitted a report to consider a
commissioning exercise to deliver a consistent and equitable approach to the
funding of advice, volunteering and volunteer driving services in Cherwell and
to consider the implications for a potential countywide Dial-a-Ride service.

Councillor Cartledge addressed the Executive as a ward member and officers
agreed to provide further details to him on the issues he raised.

In the course of the debate the Leader of the Council confirmed that he would
like the Council to look hard at the relationship between the council and
Banbury Community Transport and additionally he would like Overview and
Scrutiny to help ensure the engagement of all councillors on this issue.

Resolved

(1) To signify a likely cessation of existing funding arrangements for
organisations funded through the Council’s Voluntary Sector
(Community Development) Grants Programme and Community
Transport Grants Programme as from 31 March 2012.

(2) To commence a commissioning process to fund strategically
relevant Advice, Volunteering and Volunteer Car Driving services
across three geographical areas within Cherwell.

(3) To note ongoing officer discussions with Oxfordshire County
Council regarding County Council proposals to develop a
countywide Dial-a-Ride Service and how this might serve District
residents most in need of this service.

(4) To receive a further report on the outcome of this exercise as part
of the 2012/13 Service and Financial Planning process in the
Autumn.

Reasons

This proposal marks a shift from grant funding organisations to commissioning
strategically relevant services. We are in a time when it is important that the
Council funds services which target those most in need, are delivered on an
equitable basis and support the Council to deliver its statutory responsibilities.
This proposal sets out to do this in the context of a national agenda of
Localism and Big Society.

Options

Option One Continue current arrangements. This would not
deliver the 24% savings nor provide an opportunity to
target funding at services which support the Council’s
statutory responsibilities and improve cost
effectiveness and a more equitable distribution of
resources.

Page 3



Executive - 23 May 2011

Option Two Delay the proposed commissioning arrangements
until the County Reviews for both Community
Transport and Advice Services are complete. It
should be noted though that the risk of entering into a
county procurement exercise are a) further delays, b)
significant officer time, c) potential compromise
between county and district priorities.

Option Three o To cease existing funding arrangements for
organisations funded through the Council’s
Voluntary Sector (Community Development)
Grants Programme and Community Transport
Grants Programme as from 31 March 2012 — as
listed in Appendix One

e To commence a competitive commissioning
process to fund a strategically relevant Advice,
Volunteering and Volunteer Car Driving Service
across three Community Advice Centres in
Cherwell.

e Through undertaking the above achieve an
efficiency saving.

Planning Obligations Draft Supplementary Planning Document

The Strategic Director, Planning, Housing and Economy submitted a report to
report back on the progress of the Planning Obligations Draft Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) and to approve the use of the draft SPD as
informal guidance with immediate effect. The Strategic Director, Planning,
Housing and Economy drew members’ attention to the Planning Obligations
Draft Supplementary Planning Document, which had published separately

Resolved

(1)  That the use of the draft Supplementary Planning Document (annex 1
to the minutes as set out in the minute book) as informal guidance with
immediate effect be approved.

Reasons

There is an urgent need to replace the now outdated current guidance
‘Planning Obligations — Interim Planning Guidance 2007’. The draft SPD can
be used as a practical and up to date basis for development control
negotiations whilst the document is finalised and formalised through the LDF
process. The draft SPD replaces and supersedes all previous documents
relating to planning obligations including the Affordable Housing Code of
Practice Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 2004 (with addendum
2007) and the Residential and Amenity Open Space Provision SPG (2004
and revised adoption procedures 2006)

Page 4



Executive - 23 May 2011

Options

Option One To approve the use of the draft SPD as informal
guidance for development control purposes with
immediate effect.

Option Two To approve the use of the draft SPD as
informal guidance for Development Control purposes
following amendment.

Option Three Not to approve the use of the draft SPD as informal

guidance for Development Control purposes.

Local Development Framework (LDF) - Next Steps

The Head of Planning Policy and Economic Development submitted a report o
agree to undertake an informal consultation on locally generated population
and household growth projections, a responding development strategy and
other revisions to the Draft LDF Core Strategy.

Resolved

(1)  That a revised development strategy as set out below be agreed and to
include the PPS Eco-Town Standards as a new policy element of the
Core Strategy also be agreed:

“‘Work be undertaken regarding revisions to Policy RA2 (Distribution
of Housing in the Rural Areas) in the Draft Core Strategy. This
option incorporates all of the proposed strategic sites in the Draft
Core Strategy:

Eco-Town NW Bicester 3000 dwellings - during plan period
Canalside Banbury 1200 dwellings

Bankside Phase 2 Banbury 400 dwellings

Bretch Hill Banbury 400 dwellings

This gives a total development programme on identified sites of
5000 dwellings to set against projections which show a potential
need of approximately 5600. The balance (c600) would be met
within the rural areas and Kidlington.

Neighbourhood planning initiatives will be encouraged in rural
locations. This, combined with the expectation of acceptable
planning application proposals, will deliver sufficient new village
housing and ensure that there is some scope for continued rural
development.

Page 5



Executive - 23 May 2011

No further strategic employment land allocations are proposed
other than land included in the Eco-Town proposal.”

That it be agreed to progress an informal public consultation on a
Revised Draft Core Strategy which incorporates locally generated
population and household growth projections and a revised
development strategy set out in this report and:

That the preparation of the detailed wording of the Revised Draft Core
Strategy and any consultation material to the Head of Planning Policy
& Economic Development be delegated in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing.

That the Head of Planning Policy and Economic Development in
consultation with the Lead member for Planning be delegated to agree
the presentation and apportionment of the housing numbers for
Kidlington and rural areas within the ceiling as set out in the report.

Reasons

The preparation of the Local Development Framework is a statutory
requirement. However, the Government has proposed that changes to the
statutory procedures for the preparation of Local Development Frameworks
will be introduced in April 2012. These changes are expected to include
greater responsibility for local planning authorities in assessing their local
housing needs.

Options

Option One To agree the recommendations as set out in the
report.

Option Two To amend the recommendations

Option Three Not to agree the recommendations.

Use of Natural Resources Project

The Head of Environmental Services submitted a report that considered the
progress of the Use of Natural Resources Delivery Group and the overall
progress of the Council in responding to climate change and energy efficiency
within its own operations.

Resolved

(1)

(2)

That the achievements of the Use of Natural Resources project be
noted.

That Cherwell’'s Carbon Management Plan (annex 2 to the minutes as
set out in the minute book) reducing 22% of the Council’'s carbon
emissions by 2014/15 through improving the energy efficiency of its
own operations be supported.

Page 6



Executive - 23 May 2011

(3)  That the Energy Policy (annex 3 to the minutes as set out in the minute
book) which sets out the how the Council will use energy efficiently be
approved.

Reasons

A co-ordinated cross-service approach has been employed to take action and
to drive forward and support Cherwell’'s Carbon Management Plan reducing
22% of its carbon emissions by 2014/15. The strategic themes of the Carbon
Management Plan will derive largely from the Use of Natural Resource
Delivery Group and its work streams. A new Energy Policy will help further the
success of carbon reduction work as part of the Carbon Management Plan.

Options

Option One To approve the proposed Carbon Management Plan
and Energy policy, and agree the 22% target
reduction in CO, emissions by 2014/15

Option Two To reject the proposed Carbon Management Plan
and Energy policy and rely on improvements in
energy consumption and carbon emissions made to
date. This is forecast to cost the council £1,000,000
more by 2015.

Option Three To ask officers to modify the proposals to set a lower
emissions target, recognising that this would conflict
with public and national government expectations

Bicester Multi-Sport Village

The Strategic Director Environment and Community submitted a report o
provide an update on the development of the Bicester Multi-Sports Village
project, to award the contract for the construction of Phase 1 (construction of
grass pitches and landscaping) and to consider the revenue implications of
the project when it becomes operational in 2014.

In the course of consideration the Executive noted the exempt annex to the
report.

Resolved

(1)  That a contract for the construction of Phase 1 of the Sports Village,
subject to planning consent for the outstanding reserved matters, be
awarded to Agripower Ltd.

(2)  That Bicester Town Council be requested to consider funding for the
revenue implications from 2014/15.

Page 7



10

Executive - 23 May 2011

(3) That the design of Phase 2 be progressed and funding opportunities
investigated to deliver the full scheme.

Reasons

The Sports Village development is soon to begin the construction phase and a
realistic timetable to deliver the project has been established. The project is
being progressed in three phases, Phases 1 and 2 would ensure that planning
obligations are met with Phase 1 commencing this summer. Phase 3 will only
be progressed if the relevant funding can be secured.

Options

Option One Award the contract for Phase 1 and continue to
investigate options for the delivery of Phases 2 and
3.

Option Two To consider alternative schemes which, because of
planting seasons, would delay any work on site until
June 2012.

Option Three Not to progress the project but to provide a reduced

scheme that would only meet the needs of the
Kingsmere Development meeting the legal
obligations of the Section 106 agreement.

Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme

The Strategic Director Environment and Community submitted a report to
consider a review of the first year of the Brighter Futures Programme in
Banbury and the proposed emphasis in the second and subsequent years.

Councillor Clarke addressed the meeting at the discretion of the Chairman as
the former portfolio holder with responsibility for Brighter Future in Banbury.

Councillors Beere and Cartledge addressed the Executive as ward members
and officers agreed to provide them with further details on the issues they
raised.

Resolved

(1)  That the very good progress made in the first year of the Brighter
Futures Programme be noted.

(2)  That the areas of emphasis and proposed activity in 2011/12 be
supported.

(3)  That further reports be received as appropriate on progress.

Reasons

Page 8



11

Executive - 23 May 2011

The proposals in this report are about making a difference to those families
and individuals in greatest need. They include continued effectiveness of
multi-agency working, helping those in greatest need, having a common
purpose and understanding, taking a long-term approach, making best use of
current and anticipated reducing resources and engaging with local people
and communities in Banbury.

Options
Option One Adopt the recommendations as set out
Option Two Amend/add to the areas of focus for 2011

Review of Reserves

The Head of Finance submitted a report to seek endorsement from the
Executive, following a review by the Head of Finance — in association with the
Portfolio Holder for Resources — of the Councils revenue reserves, to
determine whether they are set an appropriate level with regard to purpose,
anticipated timing of need, degree of risk and level of potential expenditure.

Resolved
(1)  That the contents of the report be noted and endorsed.

(2)  That the transfers between earmarked reserves and the creation of 1
new reserve detailed in annex 4 to the minutes (as set out in the
minute book) be approved.

(3) That the Head of Finance, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Resources, be delegated to transfer sufficient funds from earmarked
reserves to general fund balances as part of the closedown processes
for 2010-11 to avoid general fund balances falling below the minimum
amount stated in the medium term financial strategy.

Reasons

Cherwell District Council is required to maintain adequate financial reserves to
meet the needs of the organisation. The purpose of the reserves policy is to
set out how the Council will determine and review the level of general fund
reserves. The Council’s general fund is where all the revenue income and
expenditure of the Council is accounted for. It does not include specific funds
such as the collection fund or the housing revenue account. Sections 32 and
43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 require local authorities to have
regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future
expenditure when calculating the budget requirement.

Options

Option One To endorse the review of reserves undertaken and
the proposed adjustments.

Page 9



12

13

Executive - 23 May 2011

Option Two To reject the recommendation above.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Resolved

That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.
Community Led and Self-Build Housing

The Head of Housing Services submitted a report to update the Executive on
work on community led and self build housing development opportunities
following the approach agreed in a report to January Executive on “Housing in
Cherwell and the Current Economic Climate”.

Resolved

That the resolutions as set out in the exempt minute be approved.

The meeting ended at 9.04 pm

Chairman:

Date:

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Executive

Response to Department for Transport Consultation
on High Speed Rail

4 July 2011

Report of Strategic Director, Planning, Housing and Economy

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable Members to agree the proposed responses to the seven questions posed
in the Department for Transport’s consultation upon High Speed Rail with respect to
both the proposed national high speed rail strategy and on the recommended line of
route for an initial London to West Midlands section of the railway.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To agree that the Council should make representations in response to
Consultation questions 1-3 objecting to the national high speed rail strategy in
general accordance with the comments expressed in Section 3 of this report ,
those made by the “51M” group to the Transport Select Committee, and
subject to the agreement of the Lead Member for Planning, in accordance
with the “61M “ group’s further comments on this matter

(2) To agree that the Council should make representations in response to
Consultation questions 4-6 expressing severe concerns about the paucity of
information and concerns about several details of the scheme as consulted
upon in general accordance with the comments contained in sections 4-6 of
this report, and subject to the agreement of the Lead Member for Planning in
accordance with any further representations made on behalf of “561M” as a
critique of the Appraisal of Sustainability

(3) To agree that the Council should make representations in respect of
Consultation question 7 in accordance with the comments in Section 4.33-
4.34 of this report

(4) To delegate to the Strategic Director of Planning Housing and Economy , in
consultation with the Lead Member for Planning, the final wording of the
consultation responses to be made in general accordance with
recommendations 1-3 above

Page 11



Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

Introduction

The Executive considered a report on 7 March 2011 informing them of the
Department for Transport’s then recently commenced consultation. The
Executive resolved to:

(i) Agree to join with other local authority along the preferred route to
campaign against the proposals.

(i) Agree to make available up to £50k from the Planning Control Reserve

a) as a contribution towards the fund being formed to campaign
against the proposals.

b) to fund ancillary work required to assist in the detailed
assessment of the impact upon individual properties and
amenities

c) delegate to the SDPHE and portfolio holder the final distribution of
the funding.

(i) to ask the Planning Committee to steer the detailed assessment of
impact and to make the Council’s representations thereon

(iv) to require the SDPHE to bring a further detailed report to the Executive
towards the end of the consultation period to enable consideration of
the Council's formal response to the consultation.

This report seeks to cover (iii) and (iv) above. The Chairman of Planning
Committee has agreed that consideration of this report by the Planning
Committee would be repetitious and superfluous.

The Department of Transport issued copious amounts of documentation to
assist in considering the consultation.

These are listed and explained at para 2.1 below.

They can be viewed on the library pages of the DFT website
(http.www.highspeedrail.dft.gov.uk.) and a full hard copy set is available in
the Members Room.

Conclusions

e Based on the analysis undertaken by the “51M” group of Councils
your officers consider that the economic case for the London-
Birmingham and Y network proposed is seriously flawed and that the
Council should object to the proposals

e There are substantial concerns about the impact of these proposals
upon communities and individual properties in the District as set out
in Sections 4-6 of this report. Furthermore the Consultation lacks the
level of detail necessary for precise impacts upon individual
properties to be ascertained. As a result the Consultation is seriously
flawed

Page 12



Background Information

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Department of Transport has issued a suite of documents to support and
explain their case for the proposition of a high speed rail network in the UK
and for the specific first phase of the construction of HS2 from London to the
West Midlands. The documents are:

(i) the main consultation document which sets out the case for the national
high speed rail network and the national high speed rail strategy in Part 1
and explains the government’s proposals for HS2 London-West
Midlands.

(i) a consultation summary document (which is attached as Appendix 1)

(iii) the economic case for HS2 (the Y network and London — West Midlands).
This deals with passenger demand, the benefits, costs and economic
impact of the proposed Y network, presents an economic appraisal and
the case for a new conventional speed line and tests their assumptions.

(iv) the London-West Midlands Appraisal of Sustainability (AOS). This
consists of a main report (in two volumes) which provides a scheme
description, explains the process policy drivers, sustainability baseline,
and looks at a wide variety of sustainability issues ranging from
archaeology and biodiversity impacts to noise and vibration and waste
generation. The AOS also has six separately bound appendices dealing
with 1) the appraisal process, 2) Greenhouse gas emissions, 3) socio-
economic report, 4) associated assessment reports, 5) technical reports
and 6) preferred scheme and main alternatives. There is also a non-
technical summary which | have attached as Appendix 2.

(v) HS2 Route Engineering Report which describes the proposals section by
section of the line. At Appendix 3 | provide the four pages dealing with
the section through Cherwell’s area. There is also a general description
of the proposed railway construction.

(vi) HS2 Strategic Alternatives Study which provides an explanation of the
London to West Midlands rail alternatives and is also an update to the
Economic Appraisal.

In October 2010 the Council resolved that:

“This Council notes the Government proposal for a high speed rail route from
London to Birmingham and that the publicised route impacts on villages in
this District. This Council believes that there is an insufficient business case
for this proposal. This Council therefore instructs officers to prepare a report
to the Executive setting out how the Council will campaign with like minded
neighbouring Councils to stop HS2".

In March 2011 a report was presented to Executive. As noted at 1.1 above
the Executive agreed to the Council joining a grouping of Councils all along
the line whose aim was to oppose the proposal. This group is nhow known as
“61M”. The name derives from the cost of this proposal to every constituency
in the United Kingdom of £51m. Oxfordshire County Council is not a part of
this grouping, but they have recently resolved “to oppose the proposals on the
grounds that over £750m will apparently be spent on developing the scheme
when that money could provide better value for money by implementing

Page 13



24

2.5

2.6

2.7

schemes already worked up that will deliver economic growth across South
East England and Oxfordshire”. The Spatial Planning and Infrastructure
Partnership (SPIP) are also considering their position, and are likely to have
concluded similarly by the date of the Executive.

Given the complexity of assessing the business case, which needs specialist
transport economic knowledge, and the complexity of assessing some of the
technical aspects of the case which are common to all the authorities
conjoined as “51M”, the group has instructed a range of consultants to
prepare reports that provide a critique of the business case, and enable a
cogent argument to be deployed. Consultants will also provide the group with
other technical reports assisting in the overall consultation response.

Alongside the governments’ consultation the House of Commons Transport
Select Committee is also looking at the governments’ high speed rail
proposals. The work of the consultants instructed by “51M” has been first
used to make a submission to that Committee. | provide at Appendix 4 the
covering letter and main arguments which have been submitted by 51m on
this Council’s behalf (with the Lead Member’'s agreement.) to the Transport
Select Committee. These arguments were supplemented by a 200 page 15
chapter document.

Further work is underway to add to the above document to complete “51M”’s
submissions to the DFT consultation. It is hoped that this will be available
during June to enable the Executive to endorse that document as
representing this Council’s position on the part one questions posed in the
consultation. It is also hoped that 51m will provide a critical analysis of the
Appraisal of Sustainability in the same timescale.

It will be seen on page 23 of the consultation summary (Appendix 1 of this
report) that the government seeks views upon the consultation under seven
headings/questions.

1.  This question is about the strategy and wider context:

Do you agree that there is a strong case for enhancing the capacity and
performance of Britain’s inter-city rail network to support economic
growth over the coming decades?

2. This question is about the case for high speed rail:

Do you agree that a national high speed rail network from London to
Birmingham, Leeds and Manchester (the Y network) would provide the
best value for money solution (best balance of costs and benefits) for
enhancing rail capacity and performance?

3. This question is about how to deliver the Government’s proposed
network:

Do you agree with the Government’s proposals for the phased roll-out of
a national high speed rail network, and for links to Heathrow Airport and
to the High Speed 1 line to the Channel Tunnel?

4. This question is about the specification for the line between
London and the West Midlands:

Do you agree with the principles and specification used by HS2 Ltd to
underpin its proposals for new high speed rail lines and the route
selection process HS2 Ltd undertook?

Page 14



5. This question is about the route for the line between London and

the West Midlands:

Do you agree that the Government’s proposed route, including the
approach proposed for mitigating its impacts, is the best option for a
new high speed rail line between London and the West Midlands?

6. This question is about the Appraisal of Sustainability:

Do you wish to comment on the Appraisal of Sustainability of the
Government’s proposed route between London and the West Midlands
that has been published to inform this consultation?

7. This question is about blight and compensation:

Do you agree with the options set out to assist those whose properties
lose a significant amount of value as a result of any new high speed
line?

The Case Against a New High Speed Rail Network

3.1

3.2

The economic case for HS2 is made in the consultation document of that
name referred to in para 2.1(iii) above. It concludes that there is a strong
case for a high speed rail network based on the Y configuration. They say
that a cautious strategic level assessment of the Y configuration shows a
Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) of 2.6. BCR represents the level of benefit per
pound spent by government e.g. if a scheme generates £2 for every £1 spent
that gives a BCR of 2.0. The London — Birmingham section as a stand-alone
proposition falls down to 2.0 (still offering a positive economic case). By their
own figures if one excludes wider economic impacts (which are highly
unpredictable and difficult to measure) this falls even lower to 1.6.

“51M”s experts however fundamentally disagree with this conclusion. In
their analysis the following issues arise:

a) There are much cheaper incremental alternatives, which can best
meet the forecast demand but in a quicker and more responsive
manner.

b) Demand forecasts are optimistic.
c) The rail industry has a poor record of passenger forecasting.

d) The level of service provision proposed is over optimistic and
undeliverable.

e) High speed rail will not achieve modal shift from air and therefore
will not achieve the climate change benefits ascribed to it.

f)  The benefits assumed are too high.

g) The scheme will have little impact upon rebalancing the current
regional economic imbalances.

h) It will have negative impacts upon existing rail users in many
cases.

i) Little or no justification proven for the Heathrow or HS1 links
proposed.

Page 15



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

i) HS2 is critically different to the European examples that DfT rely
upon to justify their regional economic case.

In the following paragraphs | seek to expand upon each of these
issues/criticisms. More detail can be found in Appendix 4 and even more in
the source document of “51M” ’s full submission to the Transport Select
Committee.

The DfT’s economic analysis is based upon an unrealistic “do-minimum”
comparator to test the business case for HS2 against. There are better
alternatives that could have been used as comparators. The chosen
approach is contrary to the basic principles of undertaking a business case
analysis and has lead to a distorted picture as to the need for and benefits of
HS2. Issues about the level of passenger growth and the value of time
saved are open to subjective judgement. Huge increases in capacity can be
produced on the relevant parts of the network with relatively simple and far
cheaper steps than HS2, which will address current overcrowding issues
earlier than the 2026 opening of HS2. These incremental steps include the
impact of Evergreen 3 on providing alternative and almost as quick journeys
between Birmingham — London as on the main line, thereby relieving
pressure on Euston; changing configuration and lengthening West coast
main line trains; managing peak demand through ticket pricing; and
undertaking infrastructure capacity improvements at pinch points. These
measures could produce over 200% capacity improvement at substantially
lower cost (see para 13 and Table 1 in Appendix 4).

Demand growth — The DfT have used assumptions of growth derived from
extrapolating forward for 35 years a level of growth for long distance rail
travel over the last 15 years which has been unprecedented. Forecasting is
inherently uncertain but to take a period of exceptionally high growth is
certainly not a conservation approach. A significant error of this type in
growth forecasting undermines the Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) which would fall
to a level below the normal test for government supported projects.

Furthermore, the rail industry has a poor record of forecasting demand for
major rail projects. For example on HS1 it was predicted that by 2006 25
million passengers would be using that system, whereas the true figure is
only 9 million. It would appear that lessons have not been learned from that
mistake. It is considered that the international examples that DfT utilise are
not reliable comparisons as they sit differently in high speed and classic rail
contexts and should not be used to base assumptions about traffic growth.

Service provision — The business case is based on being able to operate up
to 18 trains per hour in each direction, and is said to be based upon
technological improvements to signalling systems. Based on experience in
other countries the maximum realistic capacity is 12-15 trains per hour. A
reduction of this order, together with the use of some of the train paths for
trains to/from Heathrow and to enable connection to HS1 will significantly
reduce the available range and frequency of HS2 services between London
and West Midlands. This reduction in train numbers will have a major impact
on the business case. Concern is also expressed about the reliability of the
service when high speed trains are entering the system having been utilised
for part of their overall journey on the classic rail network further north. This
is likely to result in these trains being late causing severe issues for the high

Page 16



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

speed service.

Modal shift — There are no air services from Birmingham to London. Whilst
Manchester is served from London other air routes are from further north.
Therefore in Phase 1 (London — West Midlands) it is highly unlikely to
achieve any shift, and even on the Y only Manchester really represents a
possibility as the journey time savings from further north are not significant.

Benefits — In the economic case the DfT have assumed that time spent on
trains is wasted for business travellers. They have taken no account of
modern technology which allows such travellers to use their time on the train
productively. This assumption seriously undermines the benefits assigned to
HS2 in their business case. £18bn of the £44bn benefits are said to be from
the benefit of shorter journey times, of which £14bn is based on business
traveller’'s time. If this benefit is removed the BCR is seriously undermined
still further (potentially to less than 1.0 for Phase 1 and 1.2 for the Y system).

Rebalancing the national economy — The DfT emphasises the desirability of
rebalancing the economy and reshaping the economic geography of the UK.
However it is well established in academic literature that the benefits of high
speed rail between regional centres and a dominant capital city are likely to
go to the capital rather than the regional centres. Therefore whilst the
regional centres may gain something from the new network a significantly
greater benefit will be seen in London.

Impact upon existing rail users. Considerable research has been undertaken
by Christopher Stokes (a consultant acting for “51M”) into the service
disbenefits of HS2. In the main documentation submitted to the Transport
Select Committee (supporting Appendix 4 to this report) a large number of
individual impacts upon West Coast main line services, the West Midlands
suburban network, Midland main line, East Coast main line and Great West
main line are itemised. As far as Cherwell is concerned it is predicted that
there will not be any negative impacts upon the Chiltern Rail service,
although | think it can be envisaged that there may be a small diversion of
current trade onto HS2, dependent upon the pricing structures of the two
lines.

Justification/impacts of HS1 and Heathrow links. The DfT proposal involves
linking HS2 to Heathrow and to HS1. The passenger forecasts are far too
low to make this an economically viable proposition. Train paths made
available for trains going to and from Heathrow and to and from HS1 (i.e.
through trains to/from continental Europe) will detract from the number of
London — Y network and West Midlands trains, to the detriment of the
business case.

It is recommended that the above comments in Section 3, be used as the
Council’s responses to the first 3 questions in the consultation, together with
the endorsement of the 51m comments which will be reported upon when
received.

Anticipated Impact Upon Cherwell

41

The second part of the DfT’s consultation concerns the specific proposals
concerning the HS2 proposal between London and the West Midlands and
seeks opinions about the principle and specification chosen, the route

Page 17



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

selection process, the specific route, and about mitigation measures.
(Questions 4 and 5 in para 2.7 above).

At Appendix 5 | attach plans showing the alignment being promoted by DfT.
Travelling south to north the line would first enter the district for a short
section to the north of Godington. The proposed line is generally following
the former Great Central railway line, but north of Godington it will deviate
further north on new viaducts (approx 3 metres high) over the Padbury Brook.
It is assumed, but not confirmed, that the former railway embankment and
bridge will remain in situ and thereby shield the village of Godington to some
extent.

The route then passes back into Aylesbury Vale DC’s area passing the
village of Chetwode before passing back into Cherwell to the east of the main
part of Newton Purcell village. The line would travel on a raised embankment
parallel to, and just to the north of, the former railway embankment. It is not
clear if the former railway embankment adjacent will stay or go. The line
would then pass over the existing A4421 just to the north of the existing
redundant railway bridges and abutments. No information is available
whether these former structures will stay or go. The plans submitted with the
consultation show a diversion of the A4421 to the north west of the current
alignment to pass over the new rail line (8 metres above the new rail height.
Long embankments to north and south lift the road to that level.
Accommodation works to the existing roadway are needed so that the
existing road can still function as the access to houses north and south of the
HS2 line and to serve the end of the Barton Hartshorn Road.

Proceeding north-westwards the proposed HS2 line regains the Great
Central alignment (albeit in wider cutting) and travels in low cut to the A421.
A new bridge to take the A421 across the railway would be needed. The line
continues north westwards in increasingly deep cutting passing between
Warren Farm and The Oaks Farm. Just short of the Mixbury Lodge to
Fulwell Road the line would start to deviate north eastwards from the former
railway line remaining in deep cutting as it passes under that road and north
of Tibbetts Farm. To the north-east of Mixbury the line would need to come
out of cutting and pass over a short viaduct to cross the deep valley of a
small brook flowing eastwards to the Great Ouse River at Fulwell. The line
would then pass back into deep cutting for 300-400m (8 metres deep approx)
before re-emerging onto embankment and viaduct (10 metres high) as it
crosses the Great Ouse River heading onto Aylesbury Vale again to pass
between Westbury and Turweston and hence into South Northamptonshire
Council’s area to the north-east of Brackley.

When trying to assess the impact of a new engineering project of this scale
there are a whole range of issues that have to be looked at. The proposal
will need a full Environmental Assessment (EA) to be undertaken upon it
before it is able to proceed to a Hybrid Bill stage. This EA has yet to be
done. Consultees are restricted to the information available from the
engineering and line drawings, and from the Appraisal of Sustainability
(AOS). The AOS, whilst containing some useful information, is lacking the
impact information which would be available with an Environmental
Statement. This provides the Council, and local residents, with a difficulty. It
is not possible to be definite about the degree of impact upon residential
amenity, biodiversity etc. without the fuller information. Therefore you will
see in the following paragraphs that a repeated statement that more

Page 18



4.6

4.7

information is needed and that therefore an objection has to be raised at this
time.

Section 2 of the AOS provides HS2 Ltd’s overview of the potential impacts
(attached as Appendix 6 to this report). This report will now provide relatively
brief comments upon the range of impact issues as they affect Cherwell
communities and individuals and environment, before addressing the issues
of specification, route selection and mitigation. The issues to be covered are:

Landscape impact

Noise and vibration

Biodiversity

Cultural heritage i.e. listed buildings, conservation areas,
archaeology

Water resources and flooding

Highway issues (including footpaths)

Residential amenity

Community integrity

Air quality

Soil and land resources

Local economic impacts upon farms and businesses

VVVVVVY VVVY

Landscape Impact — The Council’'s Landscape Planning Officer has
commented as follows

I have visited all the points at which there is public access to the proposed line and
also Fringford and Cottisford due to their association with Flora Thompson.

The line dissects a relatively small area on the eastern side of Cherwell district and
although the route physically only occupies 5.5km the visual impacts extend well
beyond this.

The landscape character is one of unspoilt undulating arable and pasture land with
good hedgerow and associated tree cover. In places there are small to substantial
blocks of woodland. A number of small villages are relatively sparsely located within
5km of the line.

Accessible points

1. Godington Footpaths. The line will be on a viaduct at this point as it travels through
the valley. From the Cherwell side approaching from Godington there will be some
screening provided by the disused rail track which | estimate to be 6m high and has
some scrub cover making the screen higher. The power line gantries are likely to be
visible. The existence of a disused line very close to a new one may well have the
effect of making the area look quite degraded visually as there will be an area of
dead ground between the two lines. It would be preferable to remove the original line
and utilise the spoil in constructing the new line. Visual Impact substantial

2. Newton Purcell. A sizeable part of the village is within the 500m examination zone
of the line. The line is 3.5m above grade with a bridge over track plus power lines.
This will necessitate a considerable bridge and engineering works which will be
intrusive on a small village which is very close. | would assume that some properties
will be too close to be retained as the ground re-modelling required will be
considerable. Substantial impact +!

3. Footpath at 627 319 The track is almost at grade here where it runs along the line
of the disused railway. Here the impact will be caused by the overhead power lines.
The existing track at this point is currently well screened by vegetation but it is not
clear if it will be possible to retain this. | think possibly on one side of the track but not

Page 19



the other as there will be some cutting which there is not at present. Impact moderate
to substantial.

4. Footpath at 624 325. the track will be slightly cut in here. Again due to the
earthworks required it may not be possible to retain all the existing screening. Impact
moderate to substantial

5. A421. The proposed line crosses the A421 by way of a bridge. The landscape is
relatively flat and the approach to the bridge along a long straight road. The bridge
will rise above the A421 creating a large structure over the road. Substantial impact.

6. Featherbed lane. The line will be in cut, not significantly visible at this point but a
new bridge will be required with associated earthworks. Impact moderate to
substantial

7. Mossycorner Lane. In cutting as it passes directly past Mixbury with a small length
of viaduct before passing into cutting again. Unlikely to be visible in summer due to
intervening vegetation. Likely to be visible in winter. The village is just outside the
500m examination zone. Moderate visual impact, possibly substantial in winter.

8. Fringford. The periphery of Fringford is approx 2.7km from the proposed route. |
don't think that it will be visible due to intervening vegetation.

9. Cottisford. The periphery of Cottisford is approx 3.7km from the rail route. Due to
the topography and intervening tree cover | don't believe the line will be visible from
the village.

The line ploughs through valleys and raised ground, from cut to viaduct and back,
completely dissecting the landscape and interrupting the landscape pattern.

There will be considerable localised impacts wherever there are substantial sections
of cut or fill. In Cherwell the maximum extent of these is 10m. Allowing for 1:5 slopes
this could mean cutting or filling for up to 50m either side of the rail corridor. At this
stage none of this has been identified and considered. Much less any mitigation of
the scars.

There will be very significant earth moving required in the construction process.
Roads in the vicinity of the line are narrow country lanes unsuited to heavy traffic.
Construction impacts will be considerable due to noise, dust, traffic and visual
scaring.

The visual impact of the line will be much greater than shown on the sections as
these just illustrate the impact for track levels and does not include the overhead
power lines which add further 9-10m of structure above ground. There are also the
possibility f noise baffles to reduce the sound impacts creating a landscape impact
which will require mitigation in itself.

Mitigation of landscape and visual effects is most effective if it is designed into a
project at inception stage as this gives opportunities to avoid, reduce, offset and if
possible remedy the effects of the development. Adding on cosmetic measures such
as screen planting is likely to be least successful.

The landscape is very sensitive to this development because of its nature and scale.
The distribution of visual receptors and the extremely limited scope for mitigation.
Accommodating a development like this without a detrimental effect to the landscape
character of the area is impossible in my opinion.

It is difficult to assess the scheme at this stage due to limited information. It would be

very useful to have the Zone of Visual Influence identified at this stage. The
Appraisal of Sustainability Technical report Appendix 5 assumes a ZVI of 3km from

Page 20



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

the 100m route corridor. This is a blunt instrument and very much depends on
topography. This must be included in the EIA.

This is a major project in terms of size and scale. It will create a significant artificial
linear structure in landscape and visual terms and a resulting substantial adverse
impact with few if any benefits. Protection and enhancement of the landscape is one
of the objectives of the Transport Analysis Guidance. | cannot see how this project
achieves these aims.

All of the area of Cherwell through which the line passes is a locally
designated Area of High Landscape in the adopted Cherwell Local Plan.
This is not recognised in the AOS at all. As described in paras 4.2 to 4.4 the
line will be in a mixture of cutting and embankment. The new construction
will be a raw feature in the landscape which on-site planting will do little to
alleviate in the short to medium term. The impact is not only from the new
engineering structures of the line (embankments, cuttings and viaducts) but
also from the view of the trains themselves and the overhead gantries. In
addition one has to consider the structures that will carry roads and footpaths
across the line. In our area the over bridge at Newton Purcell will be
particularly obvious as will the viaduct across the Great Ouse River. Of
lesser visual significance will be the A421 over bridge and the Padbury Brock
viaduct but these are still substantial new structures in the AHLV. With
regards to the cuttings if cannot be established, on the basis of the submitted
drawings, what the land take will be as some are quite deep around Mixbury.
It is therefore difficult to assess the true impact. The Council will need to
seek mitigation of these impacts both on and off site.

A further significant consideration in landscape impact terms is the loss of
tree cover. The existing cuttings and embankments provide strong linear
features containing established trees. Where the existing alignment is being
re-used or the line runs close to and parallel to the former line, it is
considered that most of these landscape features will be lost. This will cause
significant harm. In addition between Newton Purcell and Mixbury the line
would run adjacent to and through two plantations. These would be severely
affected as landscape features. North east of Mixbury the line has to cross a
sharp sided valley on a viaduct between two deep cuttings. This is likely to
be a significant feature when viewed from the footpath which runs north from
Beaumont Lodge.

A final potential concern relates to the possibility of a site in the district being
used as a power take off point. It is known that the HS2 will be electrified
and will need connection to the National Grid with suitably located
transformer compounds. No information is available about the location of
these sites which will also need road access for maintenance. To the east
and north of Mixbury an existing high voltage pylon-line crosses the proposed
railway and then runs along the former Great Central railway line. At least
one pylon would need to be relocated to facilitate the building of the railway.
This is at the point where the Mixbury Lodge to Fulwell road crosses the line,
and therefore is road served. From seeing such power take-off compounds
in Kent when viewing HS1 it is considered that this feature would also be
harmful to the visual amenity of this part of the countryside which is classified
as being of high landscape value.

Noise and vibration — the AOS identifies 3 or 4 properties at Newton Purcell

Page 21



412

4.13

as potentially experiencing high noise levels, with further housing nearby
potentially eligible for noise insulation (implying relatively high noise levels).
The same plans show four properties in Godington, all the remaining
properties in Newton Purcell and five outlying properties (Cross Farm,
Widmore Farm, The Oaks Farm, Warren Farm (4 properties), Tibbetts Farm,
and Beaumont Lodge) as potentially experiencing a noticeable noise
increase. It is not explained why the The Oaks Farm, which is located
immediately adjacent to the line is not categorised as experiencing high noise
levels. Two areas, close to the railway at Newton Purcell, and around
Warren Farm are also annotated as “preliminary candidate areas for
mitigation”.

In your officer’s initial view there are two other potential areas for concern.
Firstly as mentioned in para 4.9 above to the north east of Mixbury the line
crosses a short viaduct between two cuttings. It is thought likely that high
speed trains crossing this at full speed will send a pulse of noise up and
down the valley to each side, with properties at Mixbury and Fulwell likely to
experience this sudden repetitive noise event. This could have a significant
detrimental affect. To a lesser extent Fulwell may also experience noise from
the much longer viaduct across the Great Ouse River. The AOS recognises
the potential for noticeable noise in Westbury, but not in Fulwell.

The Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Manager comments:

In their Appraisal of Sustainability document at Appendix 5.4 the HS2
organisation sets out the criteria it proposes to assess the impact of noise
and vibration generated by the planned high speed rail project.

In the opening paragraphs of the report the case is made for the use of the
LAeq unit of noise measurement to assess and quantify the noise levels
produced by trains. A time period of 18 hrs has been chosen as the
appropriate averaging period over which the LAeq is to be applied. The 18 hr
time period is defined as ‘daytime’ between 06:00 and 00:00 (midnight). It is
suggested that the LAeq measure ‘correlates best with the annoyance
caused to humans by noise’

Whilst it is accepted that LAeq is a commonly used noise measurement the
claim that it correlates as an index of annoyance is to be questioned
particularly in the case of rail noise where individual noise events typically
involve large amounts of sound over short periods of time followed by periods
of time when the ‘nuisance’ is entirely absent. In these circumstances the use
of a maximum event noise level such as LAmax may more accurately reflect
the noise impact. Equally the LAeq measurement does not accurately reflect
the additional impact caused when for example a train emerges from a
cutting or tunnel and a nearby sensitive receptor is suddenly exposed to a
significant volume of noise. This effect is in part addressed later in the report
when the issue of tunnel boom is considered. It is felt that due to the depth of
some of the cuttings to be employed this effect or elevated levels of noise
could be a problem in these locations.

In addressing ground borne vibration mention is made of the variation in
effect that can arise as a result of the underlying geology. Whilst the report is
by nature general in its terms it is felt that this point is significant and should
have been addressed in more detail with reference being made to specific
rather than general local conditions.

Page 22



4.14

4.15

4.16

Another significant omission is an appraisal of noise impacts on non
residential receptors as the affect of noise on the ability for individuals to
work productively and effectively should not be under estimated.

In predicting noise levels that are likely to be generated by the HS2 rolling
stock reference is made to quantitative noise measurements obtained from a
survey of operation of TGV rolling stock. These trains typically operate at
speeds up to 300 km/hr yet the aspiration for HS2 is for trains to operate at
360 km/hr or faster. The report does concede that data for aerodynamic
noise from trains travelling at 360 km/hr or faster is not currently available
and as a consequence modifications to the Calculation of Rail Noise
Methodology cannot be made at this time. This shortcoming does call in to
question any use of an unmodified model for predicting noise levels.

Noise from the operation of the high speed railway originates from a number
of sources:

Mechanical noise from motors, fans and ancillary equipment
Rolling noise from wheels

Aerodynamic noise from airflow

Catenary noise from the power pick up from the overhead lines.

VVYVYY

The documentation does not provide noise contours so it is not possible to
make any accurate assessment of the noise impact upon individual
properties. This is a significant failing. We are told such information will not
be available until the Environmental Statement is published. This is
considered unacceptable. It is worth remembering that the operational times
of the railway are proposed to be from 5am to midnight and would ultimately
be carrying 18 trains per hour (at peak) in each direction. There will be a lot
of noise events and they will start early and run into the night time.
Maintenance to the track will take place at night, and may be the occasional
source of yet more noise nuisance.

Whilst noise mitigation is referred to in the AOS no specific proposals are
given, and no assumption can therefore be made of the effectiveness of such
measures. In your officer’s opinion it is considered that lowering the height of
the line may assist further around Mixbury/Finmere, with perhaps the use of a
“green” (cut-and-cover) tunnel to avoid the deep cuttings. This would have
the added advantage of lowering the viaduct over the Great Ouse River.
Particular concern is also expressed about the noise impacts at Newton
Purcell. As the line is elevated relative to the nearest properties, noise
barriers would be the only technical solution, but it is not possible to assess
their effectiveness on the basis of the information currently provided.

Biodiversity. The Council’s Ecologist has reviewed the records of species and
habitats likely to be affected and comments as follows

We have the following records of species and areas of ecological/
biodiversity interest within 500m either side of the proposed line within
Cherwell District:

Protected Species:
o Water vole (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as

Page 23



amended)

e Badger (Protected under Protection of Badgers Act 1992)

e Grass snake (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
against killing and injury)

e Common Lizard (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
against killing and injury)

BAP Priority/ Section 41 Species and notable species:

o Water flax beetle — Nationally Notable invertebrate
Small Heath - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Cinnabar - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Wall - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Shaded Broad-bar - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Basil Thyme - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Wood White - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Dingy Skipper - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Grizzled Skipper - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Small Blue - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Four-spotted - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Figure of eight - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Cuckoo - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species
Lebia chlorocephala (ground beetle) — Nationally notable
Stenus butrintensis — Nationally notable
Psallus albicinctus — Nationally notable B
Kingfisher — amber list bird

The route passes within close proximity to a number of large ponds and
lagoons (close to Finmere and Godington). There may therefore be issues
with amphibians, most notably Great Crested Newts to be addressed, which
could be using areas to be affected as terrestrial habitat. The lagoons may
also be important for water birds which could be impacted by disturbance.
The route also appears to pass through or directly adjacent to a couple of
plantation and woodland areas near Finmere. There may be important
nesting birds or roosting bats in these areas which would need to be
surveyed for.

Bats — there are no specific records for bats but they are likely to be foraging
along the watercourses and hedgerows throughout the area as well as the
old LNER railway as this forms a major vegetated corridor across the wider
landscape and therefore could be important for commuting and foraging bats,
which may be difficult to mitigate for.

We have records of water vole throughout the district and it is likely they are
present on some of the other watercourses to be affected (I identified 9
crossings of watercourses of various sizes) in addition to on the River Great
Ouse where we have specific records from surveys. Similarly Otters may be
present on any of these watercourses.

Badgers are likely to be widespread.

Impacts:
For all these species the principal impacts both during construction and in the
long-term when trains are running will be

e direct destruction and loss of habitat

e direct and indirect disturbance due to noise, lighting and habitat

Page 24



417

4.18

destruction/modification

e fragmentation and loss of connectivity of habitats

e isolation of populations

e potentially direct injury and killing of individuals both during
construction and when trains are running

Protected habitats:

There is only one specifically highlighted habitat in our records namely a
District Wildlife Site — the Old LNER railway LN2/3. This was previously of
LWS value but has been downgraded due to loss of ecological interest. It still
contains Lowland Calcareous grassland of BAP priority habitat quality and is
important for butterflies and likely to be important for other invertebrates.
There would be direct land loss of this area. BBOWT suggest there is a
second area in proximity but | do not have records of this.

The proposed route would necessitate the loss of a number of hedgerow
sections which are also likely to be BAP priority habitat and similarly a
number of woodland areas which may qualify under lowland deciduous
woodland.

The closest LWS is Spilsmere wood 850m to the West. | would not foresee
any impacts on this however there may be disturbance from noise if it travels
that far.

Likely mitigation required:

Creation of new habitats as a replacement for those lost, potentially fencing
during construction and removal of reptiles/amphibians to receptor sites.
Replacement bat roosts and bird nesting opportunities. Timing restrictions on
work to avoid or coincide with breeding/hibernation times. Bridge designs to
cater for bats, otter passes efc...

Attention has already been made above (in para 4.9 above) about the loss of
tree cover. There is a potential for further hedgerow loss as well. The
Council should be concerned that the level of information provided is
currently poor. We will need to ensure that the Environmental Statement is
based on current and up to date survey information to ensure compliance
with the EEC Directives on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild
flora and fauna.

Cultural Heritage — As a generality the AOS significantly underplays the
significance of local designation such as conservation areas. Mixbury
Conservation Area should have been recognised as a heritage asset.
Mixbury also has a Grade II* listed building and the Beaumont Castle
Scheduled Monument. Given the distance and intervening land form it is not
considered that the impact upon the listed building and Conservation Area
is likely to be significant. It is assumed that English Heritage have been
asked for their comments upon the setting of the Scheduled Ancient
Monument. Grade |l buildings are recorded, but in our opinion an
assessment of their significance should be made and so should an
assessment of the impact of the proposal upon them. There are two Grade Il
listed building in Godington, 8 in Newton Purcell and 4 in Mixbury which

Page 25



4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

should be taken into account.

Archaeology. Impact information is awaited from OCC

Water and flooding — Detailed consideration will need to be given in the
development of the project concerning:

» River crossings

» Vulnerable flood risk areas

» Impact upon aquifers and compliance with the water directive
» Impact upon rivers, streams and ponds

Whilst the AOS maps the flood plains (Padbury Brook north of Godington, the
River Great Ouse north of Mixbury/Fulwell, and its small tributary running
from Fulwell towards Mixbury) and comments briefly on the aquifer situation
the documentation is short on detail information and impact assessment.
This will of necessity follow in the Environmental Statement. However, with
particular regard to the protection of water quality this makes assessment at
this time difficult. This part of Cherwell, together with the adjacent areas of
Aylesbury Vale and South Northamptonshire is a high water quality area by
virtue of its position at the top of the river catchment area. Article 4.7 of the
Water Framework Directive states that there can be no diminution of that high
water standard from high to good as a result of development without meeting
the provisions of that Article.

Highways and footpaths — Progressing from south to north the following
highway crossings are affected by the proposals:

a) Bridlepath north of Godington — currently passes under Great
Central line by underbridge — would need to be accommodated
under the new viaduct.

b) A4421 Newton Purcell Road currently passes under Great Central
line with redundant bridges still in place. Proposal appears to be to
leave underbridge but stop through traffic under new line (?). New
overbridge with lengthy approach embankments and diversion of
line of A4421 to west proposed.

c) Bridlepath from Home Farm Shelswell to Finmere crosses line of old
railway. No accommodation works shown. Bridge would be
required.

d) Bridlepath from Widmore Farm to Finmere crosses line of old
raiway. No accommodation works shown. Bridge would be
required.

e) A421 near Warren Farm. Relatively recent diversion of road south
of old bridge point on embankment. Old bridge works remain. New
bridge proposed still further south. Unclear what happens to old
bridge works.

f) Footpath from Tibbetts Farm to Warren Farm alongside (north) of
former railway line. Will need accommodation works associated
with (g) below.

g) Roadway from Mixbury Lodge to Fulwell. Current overbridge over
dismantled railway will need to be replaced.

h) Bridlepaths north from Beaumont Lodge and north east from
Mixbury Lodge meet and continue to Westbury. The meeting point
will be at a deep cutting point on new line. Will need overbridge.

Page 26



4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

It is considered important to ensure that all existing footpaths/bridlepaths are
properly accommodated during construction of, and after the opening of, any
new railway line. Members may recall that during the M40 construction,
another government promoted scheme, a large number of footpaths were
truncated or had significant diversions made to them. These were never
replaced satisfactorily Objections should be raised if assurances are not
forthcoming that this will not be repeated as a function of this scheme.

Of particular concern are the proposals relating to the routeing of the A4421
across the proposed railway at Newton Purcell. Rather than take the road
under the railway as currently the proposal is to divert the road over the line
further to the west. No explanation has been given as to why it is not
possible to continue with an underbridge. Because of the height of the line
relative to surrounding land levels the bridge has to be approached via
lengthy and high embankments. These would be harmful to the character
and appearance of the landscape. The embankments will also have a
significant impact upon the amenity of the two houses on the western side of
the Ad4421 at this point. Indeed it must be questioned whether these will be
viable houses after this construction, particularly that one to the south of the
railway line, Station House, which will be dominated by the new railway and
road infrastructure and suffer high noise levels. The raising of the road will
also have the effect of raising the road noise source and may have an effect
upon the amenity of the houses in the vicinity. The plans available do not
make it plain whether the existing roadway under the railway will remain
open; presumably not. This will impact upon community integrity - see later.

The amenity of rural footpaths and bridleways will be fundamentally affected
by the proposal. The footpath north of Godington has a particularly remote
and tranquil feel to it. This will be lost completely. Similarly the two
footpaths/bridleways north and east of Mixbury, which form part of a well
used dog-walking loop, will have an entirely different character once the
railway is constructed. They will no longer be a source of tranquil remote
recreation, but will instead be subjected to the frequent passage of trains
travelling at maximum speed. Again similar expressions of concern should
be expressed about the footpaths which cross or are close to the line
between Mixbury and Newton Purcell.

Residential amenity — The impact of the new railway upon residential amenity
is greater than the imposition of noise nuisance at whatever level it is
experienced. It is also the affect upon the tranquility of a rural location, or the
interruption of a rural landscape by modern transportation infrastructure. This
impact affects communities/properties such as:

» Godington — A remote village accessed off of a dead end lane. The
village which contains 15-20 properties, is tranquil and unaffected by
road noise. It will in the future, if this proposal goes ahead, have
significant train noise albeit that the trains will not be visible.

» Newton Purcell — A small village astride the A4421 and suffering train
the noise/disturbance and division by a road carrying relatively high
volumes of HGV and other traffic transiting from the A34/M40 to
Milton Keynes and the M1. The imposition of frequent train noise is
an unreasonable extra burden.

Page 27



4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

» Warren Farm/The Oaks Farm — A secluded group of former farm
buildings and working farm north of the A421. The proposed line
charges between them in low cutting. The noise, visibility of the
overhead lines/tops of trains and the accommodation works to ensure
that the private access road is maintained will have a significant affect
upon the whole group, especially The Oaks Farm which will be very
close to the line.

» Mixbury — A Conservation Area, which is predominately an old estate
village. Despite the relatively close proximity of the A43 and A421
roads the village is relatively tranquil. The train noise which will be
apparent will detract from this heritage asset and the residential
amenity of villages.

» Fulwell — A remote hamlet in a secluded and tranquil location.
Concern is expressed that sudden noise events will result from the
proposed track configuration near Mixbury, and longer noise
occurrences from the River Great Ouse viaducts which are both up-
wind of the hamlet.

Community Integrity — This is an issue where a community is sub-divided by
transport infrastructure. It is considered that this is a significant concern in
two locations. Firstly, at Newton Purcell. The few properties to the north of
the proposed railway line will be segregated from the remainder of the village
if the existing route under the Great Central Railway is to be blocked and a
long and circuitous journey by foot or vehicle is necessary to get from these
properties to the Church, public house, or other houses. This is unfortunate
and at the very least consideration should be given to providing a footpath
connection under the line.

The second location of concern is at Warren Farm/The Oaks Farm north of
the A421. These isolated properties form a small integrated grouping. The
railway will split them apart, and unless the accommodation works for the
access is well done they will feel dislocated from one another, and the
Warren Farm set of properties will be further removed from the main road.

Soil and land resources — None of the affected land is Grade 1 or Il so this
issue is not significant in Cherwell’s case. Some concern needs to be
expressed however about the relationship of the proposed line to the
Finmere Quarry landfill site. Information will be required to ascertain if there
will be any impact upon the usefulness of the cells of that landfill which are
nearest to the line. Impacts by reason of vibration or affect upon water table
would need technical assessment. This matter will have to be covered in
detail in the Environmental Statement. Impact upon the use of cells may
have a wider impact upon the landfill resource of the County.

Local economic impacts — In much the same way as a motorway it is possible
that a new railway line may cut off one part of a farmer’s land from the rest of
his land or his farmstead. It has not been possible to establish this type of
impact, but it is known that in some locations the farmers make use of the
former railway to transit between parts of their holdings. It may be necessary
to consider if further accommodation bridges or underbridges are necessary
to ensure the continuation of those farm enterprises without detriment to their
viability. Such bridges may of course add to the visual harm of the railway by
introducing yet more transport infrastructure into open landscape.

Page 28



4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

There are storage activities being undertaken on the old station site at
Newton Purcell. It has not been possible to establish what these are (or
indeed if they have planning permission!) but the proposed alignment and the
overbridge for the A4421 seems to eliminate this as a business enterprise.

The proximity of the line to the farmhouse at The Oaks Farm seems to call
into question it’s viability as a dwelling. It is believed that this is the only
house associated with this farm business. If this enterprise cannot function
without a dwelling it may be necessary to fundamentally change the farming
enterprise, or consider the construction of a replacement dwelling further
from the line.

Mitigation

Question 5 of the DfT’s consultation also seeks comments upon the intended
approach to mitigation. This is dealt with in 5 paragraphs and one figure in
the AOS (Section 9 — which | attach as Appendix 7). This is an
understandable and appropriate approach, trying to avoid the need for
mitigation as a first step and then proceeding down a hierarchy of minimising
impact, abating impact, repairing and compensating.

The AOS contains some generic information about mitigation methods and
implementation. There is nothing specific to individual locations. As with
other areas this lack of information is unhelpful in formulating opinions about
the impact of the proposal upon communities and individuals. Significantly
more information, specific to locations is necessary in any next step towards
a Hybrid Bill.

Principle and Specification

5.1

5.2

Question 4 of the DfT’s consultation seeks opinions about the principle and
specification chosen for the proposal. | comment below about the
consideration of alternatives but it is also considered worth seeing if the
lessons of the protracted consideration of the HS1 route through Kent are
being utilised in this proposal. A fundamental criterion in Kent was that
existing transport corridors should be utilised (the HS1 line closely follows the
M2 along much of its length). HS2 does not follow this desirable criterion.
Whilst the route through Cherwell roughly follows the alignment of the former
railway, this has been disused for over 50 years, has largely become re-
integrated as part of the rural landscape, and was of course of a much
simpler and smaller form of railway engineering. The land taken for HS2 of a
minimum of 22 metres with additional width needed for cuttings,
embankments and landscaping will create a new strong feature through the
landscape. This is unfortunate. However, in Cherwell’s case care has to be
taken in how strongly this view is expressed as another alignment, say
parallel to the M40, could have significantly greater impact upon the District
especially in the Cherwell Valley past Banbury.

Aspects of the specification which may require comment relate to:

Speed

Operating hours
Frequency of trains
Infrastructure design

YVVVY

Page 29



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

The speed chosen for the operation (up to 250 mph — albeit max speed of
225 mph upon opening) has a significant effect upon the horizontal and
vertical alignment of the railway proposed in that at such speeds the
tightness of the radii of corners and the gradients suitable are restricted. The
line therefore has to be as straight as possible (free of sinuous bends) and as
flat as possible. The scheme has already been amended from that first
published in March 2010 to seek to avoid settlements and to minimise the
height of viaducts. A lower design speed would facilitate greater sinuosity,
allowing greater avoidance of property, but would affect the basic offer of
journey time reduction. It is unlikely that any reduction of speed that we
encouraged would change the impact of the proposal if they are seeking to
generally follow this alignment through Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and
Northamptonshire.

As noted above when discussing noise nuisance the operating hours of 5am
to midnight do give us cause for concern. Both early hours operation and
evening/night operation will be at times when the background noise level is
low and the consequent impact of the noise generated by the trains will be
higher and more harmful to the quiet enjoyment of nearby houses. It is
suggested that we make representations to shorten the operating hours.

Noise nuisance is also a function of the frequency of the noise events — the
number of trains per hour and per day. The 18 trains per hour in each
direction which is proposed at peak hours i.e. 36 trains (less than 2 minutes
between each noise event potentially) is considered excessive and
unreasonable to endure for the occupiers of nearby properties.

The visual impact of the railway upon the countryside can be reduced by high
quality design of bridges and noise mitigation. No information has been
provided on this. We will require the highest standards to be utilised so that
whenever possible the infrastructure that cannot be hidden from view is
attractive and with high quality materials.

The Appraisal of Sustainability

6.1

6.2

Question 6 of the DfT’s consultation asks for comments upon the Appraisal of
sustainability. In a number of places comments in Section 4 above included
criticism of the availability of information and the need for an increased level of
work needed in an Environmental Statement. This lack of information is
considered to be a fundamental flaw in the consultation. Whilst seeking the
public’s and stakeholder's comments upon the economic case and upon the
route published insufficient information is available to truly assess the specific
impact upon individual communities or properties. If the Minister, after
considering the consultation responses, gives the go ahead for a Bill to be
formulated the route will have become further fixed and it is unlikely that
anymore than cosmetic changes will be able to be made subsequently, and
yet other than objecting because the impact cannot be quantified how is an
individual, (or the Council looking to act in the best interests of its residents)
meant to be able to respond?

Consultants acting for 51m have been instructed to provide an overall critique

of the AOS. It is hoped that this will be available before the Executive
Meeting.

Page 30



Compensation Proposals

71 The final question in the DfT consultation relates to the compensation
proposals which are set out in Annex A to the consultation (not included in
the consultation summary). This makes the following statements:

If, following public consultation, a decision is taken to proceed with the
high speed line, at the point the Secretary of State for Transport
confirmed the line of the route the next step would be to safeguard the
line. The safeguarding of land is an established process within the
planning regime in which the Secretary of State directs local
authorities to safeguard portions of land for a particular development
For home owners, the safeguarding area would be the first formal
indication of where the land and property might need to be
compulsorily purchased in order to build a new line

Statutory blight provisions would become available to qualifying
property owners within a safeguarded area from the date of which any
safeguarding directions are made.

Under Part 1 of the Land Compensation Act 1973 people would be
entitled to claim for loss of value on their property due to the impact of
physical factors from the operation of any new high speed rail line.
Physical factors mean noise, dust and vibration, smell, fumes, smoke,
artificial lighting, and the discharge of substances onto land.
Compensation is available for owner-occupiers of residential
properties, small businesses and agricultural units.

Claims could be submitted once the railway had been open for one
year — this allows the actual impact to be understood, and gives time
for the impact to be reflected in the property market. It is typical for
affected property prices to recover somewhat during this period — as
the uncertainty effect disappears.

Generalised blight is a term used to describe the impact on the
property market in a certain area as a result of the perceived impacts
of a proposed or planned new development

Blight of this kind is strongly associated with fear of the perceived
impacts from a future development before the actual impacts are
known, often coupled with uncertainty as to what property owners
who do experience impacts once a development is built would be
entitled to claim in compensation.

The Government recognises that the proposals for a new high speed
rail line have inevitably given rise to generalised blight in some areas
along the proposed line of route. Experience of past major
infrastructure projects has shown that the effect of blight is strongest
at the point of most uncertainty and least definitive information

At this formative stage of the high speed rail proposals there is
understandably a considerable amount of fear and uncertainty within
communities about what impact a line, if built, would have on the
areas along the route, the blight situation in these areas would be
expected to improve over time as more became known about plans
for any new high speed rail line and more detailed measures were
developed to mitigate impacts such as noise. But the Government is
aware that if a decision is made to go ahead with a new high speed
line, blight may well continue to have a detrimental effect upon the
property market in areas along the proposed route.

Page 31



e Because of this, the Government is considering whether additional
support arrangements for property owners may be appropriate, if a
decision is taken to go ahead with a new high speed line, in addition
to those already provided under the statutory blight and compensation
provisions.

7.2 The Government is considering the following issues with regard to the need
for discretionary support arrangements namely:
» Assisting those whose properties lose significant value
» Enabling the normal functioning of the property market
» Reassuring now that fair compensation will be paid
» Enabling people to stay in their homes and communities
» Avoiding the government owning large numbers of properties
This will be the subject of further consultation early in 2012 if the Minister has
indicated that he wishes the process to continue towards a Hybrid Bill.
7.3 Initial comments should be made that the statutory blight provisions (only
available to those whose properties are actually on the line promoted) are
very restricted and apply to very few, whilst statutory compensation is only
claimable once the line has been open for one year i.e. 2027 or thereabouts.
7.4 Given the potential generalised blight that may occur and the significant
impact this will have upon the local operation of the housing market and the
likely depression of house values of properties perceived to be affected it is
vital that some discretionary support arrangement is put in place as soon as
possible. This needs to be as generous and easy as possible to enable
those who need or want to move can do so without financial loss.
Implications
Financial: Nothing directly arising out of this report. If the proposal
continues forward it may be necessary for the Council to
instruct consultants to act for it in assessing the details of
an Environmental Statement. The “51M” group is likely to
continue to oppose the proposals at each stage, and the
Council may therefore be asked to make further financial
contributions.
The Council has an earmarked reserve of £50,000 set
aside to meet any costs related to making representations
in relation to HS2. At present there has been no
expenditure incurred.
Comments checked by Joanne Kaye, Service accountant
01295 221545

Legal: Nothing directly arising out of this report. It is known that

“51M” is likely to consider a judicial review of the Ministers
decision to proceed if he reaches that conclusion

Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Team Leader Planning
ands Litigation 01295 221687

Page 32



Risk Management: Nothing directly arising out of this report

Comments checked by Claire Taylor Corporate Strategy
and Performance Manager, 01295 221563

Wards Affected

Fringford

Corporate Plan Themes

A safe and healthy Cherwell
A cleaner, greener Cherwell

Executive Portfolio

Councillor Gibbard
Lead Member for Planning and Housing

Document Information

Appendix No Title

Appendix 1 Consultation summary document

Appendix 2 Non-technical summary of Appraisal of Sustainability
Appendix 3 Extract from HS2 Route Engineering Report

Appendix 4 Summary of “51M” submission to Transport Select Committee
Appendix 5 Route plans

Appendix 6 Overview of potential impacts

Appendix 7 Mitigation section of AOS

Background Papers

Department for Transport consultation papers as set out in para. 2.1 of report

Report Author Bob Duxbury, Development Control Team Leader
Contact 01295 221821
Information bob,duxbury@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 33




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



) Department for
Transport

High Speed
Rail: Investing
in Britain’s
Future
Consultation Summary

February 2011




While the Department for Transport (DfT) has made every effort to ensure the information in this document is accurate,
DfT does not guarantee the accuracy, completeness or usefulness of that information and it cannot accept liability for
any loss or damages of any kind resulting from reliance on the information or guidance this document contains.

The Department for Transport has actively considered the needs of blind and partially sighted people in accessing this
document. The text will be made available in full on the consultation website. The text may be freely downloaded and
translated by individuals or organisations for conversion into other accessible formats. If you have other needs in this
regard please contact the Department.

Department for Transport
Great Minster House

76 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DR
Telephone 0300 330 3000
Website www.dft.gov.uk

© Crown copyright Queen’s Printer, 2011, except where otherwise stated

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not including logos or third-party material) free of charge in any format or medium,
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/
open-government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU,
or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

To reproduce third-party material you need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

To reproduce maps, contact Ordnance Survey via their website www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/oswebsite/business/
licences/ or write to Customer Service Centre, Ordnance Survey, Romsey Road, Southampton SO16 4GU.

To order further copies contact:

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future, consultation orderline
Tel: 0300 321 1010

Web: http://highspeedrail.dft.gov.uk

ISBN 978 1 84864 118 1

Photographic acknowledgements:

Alamy Images: p 19; Alvey and Towers: p 6, 10; Rail Images: p 13

«%;ﬁ Printed in Great Britain

Page 36



Summary

The Government believes that a national high
speed rail network offers a once-in-a-generation
opportunity to transform the way we travel

in Britain.

High speed railways were first built in Japan
in the 1960s, and now span countries across
Europe and Asia. The pace of development
shows no sign of slowing, and China, France
and Spain, amongst other countries, are all
pressing ahead with ambitious plans. Britain
cannot afford to be left behind. Our current
railway system dates back to the Victorian
era and will not be sufficient to keep Britain
competitive in the twenty-first century.

A new high speed rail network would transform
the country’s economic geography. It would
bring our key cities closer together, enable
businesses to operate more productively,
support employment growth and regeneration,
provide a genuine alternative to domestic
aviation, and create a platform for delivering
long-term and sustainable economic growth
and prosperity.

A Y-shaped national high speed rail network
linking London to Birmingham, Manchester and
lLeeds, and including stops in the East Midlands
and South Yorkshire, as well as direct links to
the HS1 line and into Heathrow Airport, would
cost £32 billion to construct, and would
generate benefits of around £44 billion, as well
as revenues totalling a further £27 billion.

It would deliver a huge increase in rail capacity
to meet rising demand for long-distance rail
travel, and ease overcrowding on existing
railways.

It would slash journey times between cities,
bringing London within 49 minutes of Birmingham,
and to within 80 minutes or less of both
Manchester and Leeds. Travel times between
regional centres would be cut equally sharply,
so that Birmingham would be only around

50 minutes from Manchester and just over an
hour from Leeds.

By linking the high speed network to the
existing East Coast and West Coast Main
Lines, London would be brought within around
three and a half hours of both Glasgow and
Edinburgh — significantly reducing the demand
for internal UK flights. Short-haul aviation could
be reduced further by international high speed
rail services from cities across the country using
a direct link via the High Speed 1 line to the
Channel Tunnel.

The Government’s proposed network also
includes a direct link to Heathrow, which would
bring Manchester and Leeds city centres within
around 70 and 75 minutes of the country’s
main hub airport respectively.

High speed rail also has the potential to play
a central role in promoting long-term and
sustainable economic growth. The first phase
alone of a national network would support
the creation of around 40,000 jobs and
contribute to major regeneration programmes
in Britain’s inner cities.

New high speed links would enable the UK’s
key urban economies to improve their productivity,
attract new businesses, and access more
directly the economic strength of London and
the South East.




Consultation Summary

Edinburgh

Current
4 hrs 30

Current

4 hrs 30

Current
2hrs 08

Current i spoed W o South Yorkshire
2 hrs 10 } g
East Midlands

Current

2hrs 09
= = e irmingham Interchange
Current peed (Birmingham Alrport)

Thrzda S
B CENE Crossrail Interchange
Birmingham Interchange [ f, {(Old Oak Commin)
e e e e ; Sy
Culrte (e ' Heathrow @

Airport “ Eyston

High speed network s Existing lines for maps  Heathrow Express
(Phases | &I} direct services

Figure 1 — Journey time savings to and from London by train

Page 38



The Government believes that a high speed rail
network would be a transformational investment
in Britain’s future and help to bridge the north-
south divide. This consultation document sets
out the basis on which the Government has
reached that view, and seeks your views on its
proposed way forward.

Part 1 of this summary document sets out
the Government’s proposed high speed rail
strategy, and describes:

¢ the wider context in which high speed rail
has been considered;

¢ why additional rail capacity is needed:;

» the options for providing additional capacity
and the case for high speed rail; and

 the Government’s strategy for delivering a
national high speed rail network, including
links to Heathrow and to the Channel Tunnel.

Part 2 explains how the Government’s
recommended route for an initial high speed
line from London to the West Midlands has
been identified. It describes the core principles
underpinning this work, and sets out the
proposed route in detail, including its sustainability
impacts. It also explains the main alternatives
considered and why these were rejected.

Part 3 sets out the questions on which the
Government is seeking views through this
consultation process, and explains how
to respond.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

PART 1 - THE CASE FOR
HIGH SPEED RAIL

The Fast Track to Prosperity

The Government is committed to providing
a strong basis for long-term and sustainable
economic growth by creating the right
environment for private enterprise to flourish
and by re-balancing our economy.

High speed rail can play a key strategic role in
delivering these objectives.

For Britain and its major cities to compete
effectively in the 21st century, it is vital that the
right infrastructure is in place. Infrastructure
helps promote competitiveness — by boosting
productivity, reducing costs and increasing
efficiency, and expanding business and labour
markets.

The National Infrastructure Plan sets out

the Government's strategy to deliver the
infrastructure our economy needs to compete
in the modern world. Investment in transport is
a core element.

The UK’s transport networks provide the crucial
links that enable firms to operate efficiently. The
business sector consistently underlines the
importance of reliable transport systems, with
an October 2010 survey finding that 95 per
cent of companies agree that the UK'’s road
and rail network is important to their business
and its productivity.

The central role played by the country’s rail links
cannot be overstated. Rail commuter networks
support the deep labour markets that underpin
the productivity of the UK’s cities. Inter-city lines
have an unrivalled capacity to enable rapid

and direct journeys between central business
districts — avoiding traffic jams and the
difficutties of finding parking space. And the rail




Consultation Summary

freight industry is playing an ever stronger role commuting from places such as Milton Keynes,
in ensuring goods and raw materials get to the  Northampton, Peterborough and Kettering.

right place at the right time.
If demand carries on rising in this way, it is

The Capacity Challenge clear a substantial long term expansion in
capacity will be needed to enable the rail

Britain’s rail network is seeing a continuing network to respond

pattern of steeply rising demand. As a result,
rail capacity is under increasing strain and
services are growing more crowded.

Between 1994/95 and 2009/10, total
passenger miles travelled rose from 18 billion

to almost 32 billion. The fastest growth of all
has been in demand for long distance travel,
which continued to rise even through the recent
recession. The total number of long distance
journeys made more than doubled in the period
from 1994/95 to 2009/10.

Standing room only

As capacity on the network becomes ever
more intensively used, the scope to meet rising
demand by running additional services and
longer trains is becoming increasingly limited.
This means that some of the country’s key rail
routes are forecast to be completely full in peak
hours in the next 20 years.

High levels of crowding are already being seen,
particularly in the peak, across a growing
proportion of the network. Many services on
the West Coast, East Coast and Midland Main
Lines are already extremely full. Despite the
capacity increases provided by the West Coast The Long-Term Challenge
Route Modernisation programme, long distance
services on this route are regularly overcrowded.
Almost half of all long distance Midland Main
Line trains arriving into St Pancras International

in the peak have passengers standing. Some of the highest levels of future demand
o . . ) growth are anticipated on the West Coast Main
This picture of rising demand is underpinned Line. Network Rail forecast that demand on the

netfeRIAy oW M merCIMIETE) Blinalss London-Manchester route will grow by around
very significant increases in long-distance 60 per cent by 2024

Industry and government forecasts show that
these patterns of growing demand for rail travel
are set to continue.

Page 40



High levels of demand growth are also
expected on the East Coast and Midland Main
Lines, on both of which Network Rail predicts
overall long-distance growth of more than 70
per cent in the period from 2007 to 2036. Even
higher levels are forecast over the same period
on specific routes including from London to
Nottingham, Sheffield and Leeds.

The Government is currently investing heavily
in projects to enhance the capacity of the
network, for instance through the Thameslink
project and the electrification of key intercity
and suburban lines.

In the longer-term, however, the scope to
increase capacity on the main routes out of
London will be increasingly constrained and
eventually exhausted, with Network Rail
recently concluding that by 2024 “the West
Coast Main Line, particularly at the southern
end of the route, is effectively full and subsequent
additional capacity could only be provided by
exceptionally expensive infrastructure solutions.”

Whilst the capacity challenge is most severe on
the West Coast Main Line, forecasts of demand
growth carried out for HS2 Ltd indicate that
over the coming decades all three main north-
south routes out of London will become very
highly congested, particularly in peak hours.

This would lead to unprecedented levels of
crowding, worsening reliability and a
deteriorating travel experience.

The Government's view is that significant investment
will be needed to tackle the capacity challenges
set out above. Because major rail infrastructure
projects take many years to develop and implement,

1 Network Rail, Draft West Coast Main Line Route
Utilisation Study, December 2010; available at
www.networkrail.co.uk

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

decisions on how such investment should be
taken forward cannot be postponed or delayed.

The Government believes the priority should be
the main north-south inter-city routes out of
London — beginning with the West Coast Main
Line corridor.

Enhancing Network Performance

Rising demand for travel and increasing
overcrowding are not the only challenges facing
Britain’s rail networks.

Experience on the West Coast Main Line
following the completion of the route
modernisation programme indicates the value
placed by travellers on reducing journey times
and improving reliability.

But maintaining current levels of reliability is
likely to become increasingly challenging as
more services are accommodated on the
network, and enhancements to transport and
communications networks are leading to ever
rising public expectations about the speed and
convenience of travel — particularly as other
countries are seen to invest in improving
connectivity.

High Speed Rail

High speed rail has provided a highly effective
answer to these challenges in countries across
Europe and Asia. It has improved the capacity,
speed and reliability of rail journeys, with
demand rising sharply as a resuit. Significant
shifts away from aviation have been achieved.

International experience also shows that high
speed rail can be a powerful tool for supporting
city economies and drawing in new investment.




Consultation Summary

Lille has seen increasing demand for office
space and growth in urban tourism as a result
of its location at the centre of the European
high speed rail network. And in Zaragoza high
speed rail links have supported a major
programme of regeneration and contributed
1o the city’s success in hosting Expo 2008.

The Government believes that Britain cannot
afford to be left behind; cannot afford to ignore
the benefits offered by high speed rail.

-Britain needs a rail network which matches its
growing ambitions:

¢ enabling rising numbers of journeys to be
comfortably accommodated;

e improving the speed, convenience and
reliability of links between our big cities and
international gateways;

e supporting sustainable growth - given the
UK’s Climate Change commitments; and

¢« keeping pace with developments in other
countries.

The following sections set out the basis on
which the Government has reached this view.

The Case for a National High
Speed Rail Network

Britain’s road network cannot offer an effective
solution to the rail capacity issues described
above. The unreliability and delay caused by
congestion in cities, and particularly in central
London, make road travel an unattractive
option for the journeys into city centres which
are seeing the highest levels of demand growth
on the rail network.

Therefore the Government has focused on
reviewing the costs and benefits of the key
strategic rail options for meeting the capacity

challenge. These include new lines — both high
speed and conventional — and upgrades to
existing infrastructure.

Its assessment is that a new high speed rail
network would generate significantly greater
benefits for travellers in terms of capacity,
connectivity and reliability than any of the other
options considered, as well as offering valuable
potential to support the Government’s wider
strategy to promote long-term and balanced
economic growth.

The strategic case for high speed rail

The Government believes that high speed rail
can play an important role in promoting valuable
strategic change in the economic geography
of Britain, supporting sustainable long-term
growth and reducing regional disparities.

By bringing the major cities of the Midlands and
the North closer to the capital, and by ensuring
that capacity is available to handle high levels of
demand growth, high speed rail could benefit
thousands of businesses by improving access
to the huge and internationally-competitive
markets of London and the South East — just as
service sector firms in Lyon have benefited from
enhanced access to Paris. And by bringing the
major regional conurbations closer together,
boosting productivity and enabling greater
economic specialisation, high speed rail could
put them in a strong position to compete
effectively in those markets.

High speed rail would also act as a catalyst for
regeneration, as has been seen in cities across
Europe, such as Lille, where the arrival of high
speed rail drove the development of the major
Euralille complex. A British high speed ralil
network could contribute strongly to regeneration
in our major cities, for example at Old Oak
Common in West London and in the Eastside
district of Birmingham. A London — West Midlands

Page 42



line alone could support the creation of around
40,000 jobs.

Successive governments have sought to bridge
the north-south divide — a national high speed
rail network could provide a unique opportunity
to finally ensure it happens.

Assessing costs and benefits - high
speed rail

The Government favours a Y-shaped high
speed rail network, comprising a line from
London to the West Midlands and onward legs
to Manchester and Leeds. This network would
cost around £32 billion to construct, and would
deliver very significant benefits for rail travellers,
including unprecedented increases in capacity
and reductions in journey times, as well as
making a major contribution to economic
growth, job creation and regeneration. These
benefits are set out in more detail below:

* Increased capacity: A national high speed
network would transform rail capacity
between London and the major cities of the
Midlands and the North. New high speed
lines would enable 14 or more additional
train services per hour and be designed to
accommodate larger and longer trains able
to carry up to 1,100 passengers.

¢ Transferring long-distance services to this
network would also enable capacity to be
released on the West Coast, East Coast and
Midland Main Lines, which could be used to
increase the number of services to other
important destinations. HS2 Ltd’s modelling
suggests, for example, that enough capacity
could be released to increase service levels
to Milton Keynes to as many as 12 trains
per hour.

< Faster journeys: Speeds of 225 miles per
hour (and potentially faster in future) would

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

transform journey times, bringing Birmingham
within 49 minutes of London, and Manchester
and Leeds within 80 minutes. Travelling from
Birmingham to Manchester would take
around 50 minutes and to Leeds just over
an hour.

Stops in the East Midlands and South Yorkshire
would provide reductions in travel times for
cities in these regions. And links back onto
the West Coast and East Coast main lines
would enable through running services to
reach Liverpool, Newcastle, Glasgow and
Edinburgh — cutting journey times from
l_ondon to Scotland’s major cities to around
3 hours 30 minutes.

Enhanced integration: Links to urban
transport networks (such as Crossrail at
Old Oak Common) would further reduce
end-to-end journey times - bringing Leeds
and Manchester within 1 hour and 40
minutes of Canary Wharf.

Modal shift: This enhanced capacity and
connectivity could see as many as 6 million
air trips and 9 million road trips a year shift
onto rail.

Improved Reliability: High speed rail can
deliver high levels of reliability. The High
Speed 1 line to the Channel Tunnel has an
annual average of just 6.8 seconds delay per
train due to infrastructure incidents.

Wider economic benefits: The additional
capacity and connectivity created by new
high speed links would generate valuable
wider economic benefits, for instance by
contributing to increased business
productivity. A London — West Midlands fine
alone would deliver benefits of this kind
worth approximately £4 billion.




Consultation Summary

The construction of a Y-shaped network linking
London, Birmingham, Manchester and Leeds,
as well as the Channel Tunnel and Heathrow,
would cost £32 billion. In total, and on
conservative assumptions, it would generate
estimated benefits with a net present value of
around £44 billion, plus fares revenues with a
net present value of approximately £27 billion.

A national high speed rail network could deliver
these very significant benefits whilst remaining
broadly carbon neutral, despite a significant
increase in passenger miles. At best, high
speed rail has the potential ultimately to deliver
valuable carbon reductions, depending in
particular on the level of modal shift achieved
from aviation.

Over a 60-year period, which is the standard
approach to appraising major transport
infrastructure schemes, its net present cost
to the public purse (calculated as capital and

operating costs with a net present value of
£44.3 billion less fare revenues with a net
present value of £27.2 billion) would be

£17.1 bilion. The net present value of benefits
generated over the same timescale would total
£43.7 billion. This results in a benefit:cost ratio
(BCR) of 2.6.

This BCR is important, but it is not, by any means,
the whole story. The Government believes that
high speed rail would deliver significant non-
monetised benefits, such as its contribution to
job creation and regeneration and its potential
to promote sustainable and balanced economic
growth. It is these non-monetised benefits which
underpin the strategic case for high speed rail.

There are also, however, important non-
monetised costs which must be considered,
particularly in relation to high speed rail’s
potential impacts on the local environment
and communities.

10

Page 44



HS2 Ltd’s proposed London — West Midlands
route, for example, would generate noticeable
noise increases in a number of areas, as well as
having an impact on the landscape, including
in the Chilterns Area of QOutstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB). The redevelopment of Euston
Station would require the demolition and
replacement of a significant number of homes
in four local authority blocks. A more detailed
summary of these impacts and the Government's
planned approach to mitigating them is provided
in Part 2 of this document.

Although such impacts cannot be eliminated
entirely, HS2 Ltd’s recent work to review and
improve its proposed alignment demonstrates
that sensitive route design and refinement can
substantially reduce them. Work on assessing
the opportunities for noise mitigation, for
example, has seen the number of homes
potentially affected by ‘High Noise’ levels fall
from 350 to around 10.

Taking account of these non-monetised costs
and also the significant non-monetised benefits
that have been identified, the Government
considers that the overall case for high speed
rail is strong.

Assessing costs and benefits - alternatives
to high speed rail

New conventional speed lines would not be
able to offer the same value for money as high
speed rail. They would not be significantly
cheaper to construct and operate than high
speed lines, and any reduction in environmental
impacts would be relatively small, but they
would generate far fewer benefits and revenues.
In respect of a London — West Midlands line,
HS2 Ltd estimate that reducing line speed would
deliver only a 9 per cent cost reduction, whereas

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

fare revenues would drop by 24 per cent and
overall benefits by 33 per cent.

With regard to enhancements to existing
infrastructure, the Government has commissioned
a strategic analysis of three enhancement
scenarios on the key north-south inter-city
routes out of London.? These aim to deliver
longer trains, high frequency services and
reduced journey times respectively.

The capacity and journey time benefits which
these scenarios would be able to deliver are in
alt cases much smaller than those from high
speed rail, and the works required to deliver
them would be very substantial, affecting all
three main north-south routes out of London.
As a result, only the higher frequency scenario
would generate benefits in excess of its costs.

The net present cost to the public purse of this
scenario, calculated over 60 years, would be
£7.7 billion (£18.7 billion capital and operating
costs less £11.0 billion fares revenues). The
transport benefits from this scenario have a net
present value of £10.9 billion — less than a quarter
of those potentially delivered by a new high
speed rail network. This results in a BCR of 1.4.

In addition, whilst they would have lower
impacts than new infrastructure in respect of
factors such as visual impact, land take and
noise, the level of disruption caused to travellers
as a result of enhancements on this scale to
existing lines would be extremely high. Although
the works on any individual line would not be
as substantial as those carried out under the
recent West Coast Main Line route modernisation,
the network is now being used much more
intensively, which would increase the level of
disruption caused.

2 High Speed Rail Strategic Alternatives Study:
Strategic Alternatives to the Proposed Y Network.

11



Consultation Summary

The Government’s view therefore is that such
enhancements cannot provide a strategic value
for money alternative to high speed rail.

A National High Speed
Rail Sirategy

Delivering a national high speed rail network
The previous section set out why the Government
supports a Y-shaped core high speed rail
network, which would link the UK’s largest
conurbations, enhancing capacity, transforming
journey times and promoting growth.

The Government proposes that this network
should be delivered in phases, beginning with
an initial London-West Midlands line. This is for
four reasons:

¢ First, phasing the project would help to
ensure rapid and early progress in developing
high speed rail in the UK. Under the previous
Government, initial work was commenced
on the London-West Midlands line, which
could now be taken forward.

e Second, the parliamentary process for
securing powers is likely to be complex and
lengthy. Seeking powers at a later stage for
the subsequent legs of the network would
help to reduce the scale of the task and
speed up the commencement of construction.

« Third, as developing a major piece of
new infrastructure on this scale involves
significant cost, the impact on the public
finances would best be managed by a
phased approach to construction.

¢ Fourth, the task of constructing the network
would also be best managed through a
phased construction programme.

The initial London-West Midlands phase could
be operational by 2026, with the second

12

phase to Manchester and Leeds opening
in around 2032-33.

Whilst work was underway on designing and
constructing the two phases of the Y, the
Government would expect to work with the
Scottish Government and others to identify
and evaluate options for developing the
network further.

Connecting to international gateways

The Government considers that there is a
strong strategic case for linking a UK high speed
rail network to the country’s major international
gateways. Future patterns of economic activity
are likely to depend increasingly on international
connectivity. The Government also believes that
we should be seeking alternatives to flying,
which high speed rail is well-suited to deliver.

For this reason, the Government commissioned
HS2 Ltd in June 2010 to provide advice on the
options for direct links to Heathrow and to the
High Speed 1 line to the Channel Tunnel. This
section sets out its preferred way forward.

Heathrow

The Government considers that a direct link
between the high speed rail network and
Heathrow would have important strategic
advantages:

¢ Releasing capacity at the airport through
mode shift from short-haul aviation to rail
would provide an opportunity to boost its
resilience and potentially to develop its
route network.

e A direct link would transform the accessibility
of Heathrow from the Midlands and the North.
This could generate valuable economic
opportunities for these regions, making them
more attractive locations for investment.

Page 46



¢ It would also contribute to Heathrow’s future
development as a multi-modal transport hub,
further boosting demand for high speed rail
access to and from the airport.

The Government favours serving Heathrow
by a spur from a main London-West Midlands
high speed line. Such a spur would retain the
flexibility to be extended to form a loop back
onto the main line in future, enabling through
services via the airport to London. The
Government proposes to work with BAA and
others to determine the optimal location for a
station at the airport, and HS2 Ltd has been
commissioned to develop route proposals for
a spur by the end of 2011.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

As with the main network, the Government
prefers a staged approach to connecting
Heathrow to a high speed rail network. Whilst
only the London-West Midlands line was
operating, the station at Old Oak Common
would be the most appropriate option for serving
Heathrow, given likely passenger demand.
Passengers could change here for frequent and
fast Heathrow Express services into the airport.

A full Y-shaped network would be likely to
generate additional mode-shift from aviation.
Demand to access Heathrow would be
expected to grow accordingly, and so it is at
this stage that the Government favours the
construction of the direct link to Heathrow. To
anticipate this development and reduce potential
disruption to a new London-West Midlands line,
the junctions for the spur from the main line
would be constructed as part of the first phase.

High Speed One

At present, services on HS1 and the Channel

Tunnel are relatively inaccessible for those
outside London and the South East. By providing
direct access to the wider European rail network
for services from Manchester, Birmingham and
other cities, a link between a national high
speed rail network and the current HS1 line
could address this.

The Government favours a direct rail link
between HS2 and HS1, which would run in
tunnel from Old Oak Common to the North
London Line and then use existing infrastructure
to reach the HS1 line north of St Pancras
International.

This would enable direct high speed services
from across Britain to European destinations via
the Channel Tunnel. An indirect link ~ such as
improving the interchange connectivity between
the respective London termini of the two lines
—would come at a lower cost than a direct link

13



Consultation Summary

but would not deliver the same strategic
benefits, particularly in terms of reduced
dependency on aviation.

It is not possible to adopt a staged approach
to linking HS2 to HS1. For technical reasons,

it would be necessary to complete construction
of a tunnel linking Old Oak Common to the
North London Line before services became
operational. Therefore, any link between HS2
and HS1 would be constructed as part of
Phase 1, the line between London and the
West Midlands.

Other international connections

The Government will also explore the case

for high speed rail links to other international
gateways. The Birmingham Interchange station
would bring Birmingham International Airport
within 40 minutes of central London, and HS2
Ltd is considering the case for stations serving
Manchester and East Midlands Airports as part
of its current work on route proposals for the
legs to Manchester and Leeds.

Next steps

The Secretary of State for Transport will
announce the outcome of this consultation
process and the Government’s final decisions
on its strategy for high speed rail before the
end of 201 1.

The Government proposes to seek the
necessary powers and consents for constructing
any new high speed lines via the hybrid Bill
process. This was the approach adopted for
both the HS1 line to the Channel Tunnel and
for Crossrail, and allows those affected by the
proposals to petition Parliament directly to seek
amendments to the proposals or assurances
and undertakings.

Subiject to the outcome of this consultation, the
Government’s intention is that the necessary

14

preparations, including a full Environmental
Impact Assessment, should be carried out in
time to introduce a hybrid Bill for the initial
London-West Midlands phase of the proposed
network in October 2013, with a view to
achieving Royal Assent at the beginning of
2015. On this basis, construction of a new

line could begin early in the next Parliament.
The construction process would be expected
to last in total approximately seven to eight
years (although on most parts of the line,
construction would only be underway for a
period of two years or so), and would be followed
by a period of testing and commissioning, with
the proposed line opening by 2026.

In respect of the proposed second phase to
Manchester and Leeds, following receipt of
detailed advice from HS2 Ltd later this year,
which will include assessments of route and
station options, the Government’s intention
is to consult on its preferred way forward and
subsequently to introduce a second hybrid
Bill in the next Parliament. The Government
expects that construction could commence
on this basis in the mid-2020s, allowing the
lines to open by 2032-33.

Property impacts

The Government and HS2 Ltd would ensure
that timely and full information is made available
to those affected by proposals for any new
high speed line. Minimising uncertainty and
protecting the legitimate interests of private
property owners would be of paramount
importance.

If the Government decides, following consultation,
to go ahead with any new high speed line,

it would aim to safeguard land from future
development. Details of the statutory provisions
on blight and compensation that would apply
for any new high speed line are set out in an
annex to the main consultation document.

Page 48



The Government is also considering what
additional measures may be appropriate to
help those whose properties would be unlikely
to need to be compulsorily purchased in order
to build a new line, but who may still experience
a significant loss in the value of their property
as a result of its proximity. For the purposes of
this consultation, the Government has identified
a range of approaches that it is considering
applying to any additional discretionary
arrangements and these are also set out in

the annex to the main consultation document,
along with some options for how such
arrangements might operate.

Conclusion

A national high speed rail network would deliver
unprecedented improvements in rail capacity
and connectivity, as well as supporting job
creation, urban regeneration and business
productivity. Such a network could also
promote longer-term strategic changes to
Britain’s economic geography — with potential
to enhance economic growth and help to
bridge the north-south divide.

The network would be delivered in two phases,
with the first phase being a high speed line from
London to the West Midlands, including links

to Crossrail and HS1, and connecting back to
the West Coast Main Line in order to provide
improved journey times to a wide range of cities
on that corridor.

Part two of this document explains the work
that HS2 Ltd has undertaken to identify and
consider route options for that initial line, and
then sets out the Government’s proposed route
and its potential impacts in detail.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

PART 2 - HS2: LONDON TO
THE WEST MIDLANDS

Developing a new high speed line

The Government’s proposed route for a new
high speed line from London to the West
Midlands, and the first phase of a national high
speed rail network, is based on work carried
out by HS2 Ltd over the past two years.

The focus has been on developing proposals
for a safe and reliable railway, using proven
European standards, technology and practice.
Key aspects include:

¢ Speed: A line capable of up to 250 miles
per hour but with a maximum train speed of
225 mph assumed at opening.

» Capacity: Up to 400 metre long trains with
as many as 1,100 seats, and up to 14 trains
per hour in each direction; developments
in train control technology are expected to
see that increase to 18 trains per hour on a
wider network.

¢ Minimising impacts on the environment:
For instance, by following existing rail or
road transport corridors, using deep cuttings
and tunnels, and avoiding sensitive sites
wherever possible.

e Controlling Cost: Balancing cost and the
other design aims.

15



Consultation Summary

Birmingham - Glasgow

Current
3 hrs 57

Current

| Glasgow g 41rs 02

'\
N
West Coast ‘ East Coast

Main Line " Main Line "

Birmingham ~Manchester

South Yorkshire
East Midlands

Current
1 hr 30

Birmingham € Birmingham Interchange

(Birmingham Airport)

Birmingham Interchange
- Crossrail Interchange

Current
N/A

£

== High speed network

¢ Existing lines for
(Phases | & II) direct services

Figure 2 — Journey time savings to and from Birmingham by train

16
Page 50



Designing HS2

The economic case for HS2 relies heavily on
ensuring that decisions are informed by the
journeys that people want to make. Route
design focused mainly on city centre station
locations with high quality onward transport links.

Sustainability issues have been addressed in
detail through an Appraisal of Sustainability
(A0S) covering the four principles of sustainable
development:

e reducing greenhouse gas emissions and
combating climate change;

e protecting natural and cultural resources and
enhancing the environment;

e creating sustainable communities (including
noise); and

e achieving sustainable consumption and
production.

The full AoS, together with a non-technical
summary, has been published to inform
this consultation.

In sifting route and station options, HS2 Ltd
considered cost and engineering feasibility,
demand (i.e. how well they would serve

the journeys people want to make), and
environmental impacts. More than 90 options
were considered for stations and line of route
sections during the selection process.

Recommended and alternative routes were
submitted to Government by HS2 Ltd in
December 2009, and were published in
March 2010.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

Additional advice was provided between
September and December 2010, including on
options for environmental mitigation, and the
Government has now identified its preferred
route for consultation.

The Government’s Preferred Route
for HS2 (London - West Midlands)

HS2’s London terminus would be a redeveloped
Euston station serving both high-speed and
conventional lines. The station would need to
be extended to the south and the west and the
platforms would be built two metres below the
current level, allowing new development above
them and the opening up of east-west routes
across the site, which is largely occupied
currently by a Royal Mail shed.

Leaving Euston, the route would descend into
tunnel for about four and a half miles, surfacing
at a new interchange station at Old Oak Common
in west London. Passengers would be able to
interchange here with Crossrail, the Heathrow
Express, the Great Western Main Line and
other local public transport. A direct link to HS1
would also run from the main high speed line at
Old Oak Common.

From Old Oak Common towards the M25, the
route would run along the Chiltern Line corridor
to West Ruislip and then cross the Colne Valley
on a two-mile long viaduct. Junctions for a
future connection to Heathrow would be
provided in this section.

Immediately before the M25, the line would
enter a six-mile long tunnel, emerging just
north of Amersham. It would continue towards
Aylesbury, largely in tunnel or cutting, along the
A413 corridor. Beyond Aylesbury it would
broadly follow the disused Great Central Line
corridor to Calvert, and pass to the east

of Brackley.

17



Consuitation Summary

The line would head north-west towards the
gap between Kenilworth and Coventry, before
curving north to Coleshill. A new interchange
station would be constructed where the line of
route passes the National Exhibition Centre
(NEC) and Birmingham Airport.

North of the interchange station the route would
pass west of Tamworth to Lichfield, where it
would join the West Coast Main Line for services
to Manchester, Liverpool and Scotland. A
junction at Water Orton would provide a link
into Birmingham city centre, which would follow
the existing rail corridor and terminate at a new
high speed station at Curzon Street.

Protecting the Environment and
Promoting Growth

Mitigating the impacts of HS2 (London -
West Midlands)

Since recommending the route to Government
in December 2009, HS2 Ltd has identified
refinements to around half its recommended
route, including more than a mile and a half of
“green-tunnels” 1o maintain local access and
minimise noise and visual impacts, lowering
large sections of the proposed line and
reducing the number of viaducts, while some
changes to the alignment have moved it further
away from settlements and important heritage
sites. HS2 Ltd’s analysis of the sustainability
impacts of its refined route is set out below.

Sustainable Communities

HS2 stations could act as a catalyst for major
regeneration in London and the West Midlands.
The proposed station at Old Oak Common

in West LLondon would contribute to the
regeneration of the surrounding area and would
support planned employment growth of up to
20,000 jobs. HS2 could also support growth in
employment of more than 8,000 jobs in the
West Midlands around the proposed Curzon

18

Street terminus and the interchange station near
to Birmingham International Airport; and it could
support a further 2,000 jobs around Euston.

Released capacity on the West Coast Main
Line could provide additional fast commuter
services in and out of London and Birmingham,
supporting major growth areas, such as
Northampton, Rugby and Milton Keynes.

HS2 would, however, require a number of
property demolitions, particularly around Euston
where around 200 mainly local authority owned
homes would need to be demolished and
replaced with new, high quality, social housing.
HS2 Ltd intends to work closely with the
London Borough of Camden and the GLA with
the intention of agreeing a joint strategy for the
Euston area, including through engagement
with local people, businesses and community
representatives.

Around 30 dwellings would need to be
demolished to make way for the proposed
rolling stock maintenance depot at Washwood
Heath in Birmingham. Elsewhere, property
demalitions, although significant to those
people directly affected, would be relatively
low in number.

HS2 Ltd’s work on mitigation has substantially
reduced potential noise impacts. Around 10
dwellings would be likely to be affected by
high noise levels, with around 150 additional
properties likely to experience levels of noise
which would qualify for noise insulation under
Noise Insulation Regulations, and around 4,700
properties potentially experiencing some
noticeable increase in noise levels.

Page 52



Experience from HS1 and other high speed
railways shows that significant effects from
vibration and ground-borne noise in properties
over tunnels can be avoided. The engineering
design of HS2 will build on this experience and
it is not expected that there will be significant
effects on properties above tunnels.

For the construction phase, HS2 Ltd would
develop and implement a code of practice
for its contractors to reduce impacts to a
practicable minimum and protect the
environment and the amenity of people along
the proposed route.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

Landscape, townscape and Cultural Heritage
The Chiltern Hills would be crossed
predominantly in tunnel and deep cutting with
short elevated sections on embankment or
viaduct to the south of Wendover where the
proposed route is in close proximity to the A413
and Chiltern Railway. Extensive tree planting, as
well as the creation of planted earth mounds
or ‘bunds’, carefully blended into the natural
contours of the land, would help to reduce
noise, screen views and integrate the railway
into the landscape. Overall HS2 Ltd expect to
plant more than two million trees along the
proposed line from London to the West Midlands.

19



Consultation Summary

No Grade | or Grade II* buildings would be
demolished, although a number of Grade ||
buildings would need to be demolished or
relocated. The route would pass through three
Registered Parks and Gardens, and two
scheduled monuments would be directly affected.
HS2 1td would work with relevant partners to
ensure these effects were minimised. Although
no internationally protected sites of ecological
interest would be adversely affected, partial
landtake would be required from one site of
special scientific interest (SSSI).

Sustainable consumption and production
The proposed new railway would make good
use of fand that has had a previous industrial

or railway use, although some productive
agricultural land would be lost. Construction

of the proposed scheme would generate and
consume large quantities of excavated materials
and opportunities would be taken to re-use
spoil as part of embankments and landscaping.

If the scheme is taken forward, further detailed
consideration would be given to mitigation

and how this is best developed, refined and
incorporated into the design and into the way
that HS2 would be built and operated, with
tailored solutions for the specific characteristics
and challenges of each section of the route.
Appropriate local mitigation would be discussed
and agreed with local authorities and
communities through additional targeted
consultation processes.

Alternative Routes and Stations

HS2 Ltd considered a number of alternatives to
the key elements of its recommended scheme.
Two main alternatives were considered to the
recommended option for a single-deck
extended station at Euston: a double-deck
solution on a smaller footprint at Euston was
found to cost more to construct, would be very

20

intrusive in the local area and would impose
unacceptable disruption to existing services
during construction, while an alternative
location on the Kings Cross Lands would
have serious impacts on developments
currently underway.

HS2 Ltd identified two main alternative lines of
route, plus a later consideration of a further
route via Heathrow.

¢« The Government considers that there is a
compelling strategic case for being able to
link the high speed network to Heathrow.
HS2 Ltd's Route 4, which follows the West
Coast Main Line corridor more closely
through the Chilterns, would make this
impractical. It would also cost more and
mean longer journey times, and therefore
lower benefits.

¢ The alternative route through the Chilterns,
Route 2.5, would create an entirely new
transport corridor through the Chilterns Area
of Outstanding Natural Beauty and would be
very intrusive in the Hughenden Valley. It
would cost more and lengthen journey times,
reducing overall benefits.

¢ The alternative route via Heathrow would be
substantially more expensive and its longer
journey times would lead to reduced
benefits. Although it would have less direct
impact on the Chilterns AONB, it would
adversely affect other sensitive areas.

In Birmingham, HS2 Ltd considered a new
station at Warwick Wharf, but the Curzon Street
site was found to have less effect on local
conservation areas and would require fewer
demolitions. HS2 Ltd also considered an
approach along the Coventry (West Coast Main
Line) corridor, but the Water Orton corridor
performed better in terms of sustainability.

Page 54



in addition to the above options, HS2 Ltd

and the Government reviewed the proposed
site put forward independently by Arup for an
interchange near Iver in Buckinghamshire,

with a light rail link to Heathrow. Routing the line
via this site shared many of the disadvantages
of a direct Heathrow route without offering the
benefits of an on-airport station.

Conclusion

The Government’s view is that the route
recommended by HS2 Ltd, following its
additional work on mitigating environmental
impacts, appropriately balances the benefits
and impacts of such a line, and provides a
better solution than any of the alternatives
considered.

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

For this reason, the Government believes that
this route for an initial London-West Midlands
high speed line should be taken forward, as the
first phase in the development of a national high
speed rail network.

Part 3 explains the questions on which the
Government is seeking views on both its high
speed rail strategy and on the proposed route
described above, and sets out how to respond
to this consultation.

21



Consultation Summary

d Central Edinburgh - City Of
London (Liverpool Street) |

Current  Aviation [ ]
4hrs50 3 hrs 40 ff b

* aNewcastle
Central Manchester - . £ . I
34 : ] West Coast + — ; S
London West End est Coas ~ East Coas Leeds - Canary Wharf

Main Line Main Line ‘AN
Current  Aviation

HSR
2 hrs 58 4 hrs 25 SR Tg<i]

‘;: South Yorkshire
; EastiVlidiands

Current  Aviation

2hrs 29 3 hrs 50 m
Manchester L

[Liverpoo g

.Central Birming_ham -
Heathrow (direct) €55 © Birmingham Interchange

Current Car HSR (Birmingham Airport)
2hrs 27 2 hrs 09 ¥ \

Crossrail Interchange
(Old Oak Common)

,:LOndon'

I T
Heathrow|
Airporti

Birminghani -
Canary Wharf
Current Car

2hrs 2 hrs 45 BElilEle

®mm  High speed network = Existing lines for
(Phases | & iI) direct services

Reading - Manchester

Current Car

HSR
3hrs 28 3 hrs 50 1]

Heathrow Express

Crossrail 3% e
Thames Interchange Stratford
Valley =

Bristo!

5, 7mms 9 'rﬁ"fh'sg 12 mins.

"

b g o e

Cardiff 11 mi et k
A Paddington Bond St Tottenham Farringdon Liverpool Whitechapel
Heathrow
Atport Ct Rd St

Canary Wharf

Figure 3 — Journey time savings via Crossrail interchange

22
Page 56



PART 3: RESPONDING TO
THE CONSULTATION

This consultation seeks views on the proposed
national high speed rail strategy described in
Part 1 and on the recommended line of route
for an initial London-West Midlands line set out
in Part 2.

The questions on which the Government is
seeking views are set out below. In each case,
the Government is interested in whether or not
you agree with its proposals and why, as well
as in any additional eviderce that you feel it
should consider in reaching its final decisions.

1. This question is about the strategy and
wider context:

Do you agree that there is a strong case for
enhancing the capacity and performance

of Britain’s inter-city rail network to support
economic growth over the coming decades?

2. This question is about the case for high
speed rail:

Do you agree that a national high speed rail
network from London to Birmingham, Leeds
and Manchester (the Y network) would provide
the best value for money solution (best balance
of costs and benefits) for enhancing rail
capacity and performance”?

3. This question is about how to deliver the
Government’s proposed network:

Do you agree with the Government’s proposals
for the phased roll-out of a national high

speed rail network, and for links to Heathrow
Airport and to the High Speed 1 line to the
Channel Tunnel?

High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain’s Future

4. This question is about the specification
for the line between London and the West
Midlands:

Do you agree with the principles and
specification used by HS2 Ltd to underpin its
proposals for new high speed rail lines and the
route selection process HS2 Ltd undertook?

5. This question is about the route for the
line between London and the West Midlands:
Do you agree that the Government’s proposed
route, including the approach proposed for
mitigating its impacts, is the best option for a
new high speed rail line between London and
the West Midlands?

6. This question is about the Appraisal of
Sustainability:

Do you wish to comment on the Appraisal of
Sustainability of the Government’s proposed
route between London and the West Midlands
that has been published to inform this
consultation?

7. This question is about blight and
compensation:

Do you agree with the options set out to assist
those whose properties lose a significant amount
of value as a result of any new high speed line?

You can provide your answers online via
the consultation website at:

http://highspeedrail.dft.gov.uk
or you can send written responses to:

Freepost RSLX-UCGZ-UKSS
High Speed Rail Consultation
PO Box 59528

LONDON

SE21 9AX

Responses must be received by:

Friday 29 July 2011.




24

Page 58




Non Technical S
A Report for HS2 Ltd




HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

Contents
1 PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL OF SUSTAINABILITY REPORT .....ooveeeeeeereneenn.. 1
2 REFINEMENTS OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME............cco oo 1
3 OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME’S POTENTIAL IMPACTS ....cccc.e...... 2
4 DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME ..........ccooomiieieircnsieeee e eeeeeseeeensens 7
5 THE APPRAISAL OF SUSTAINABILITY (AOS) PROCESS........cccoveeereceeereese 12
6 THE AOS AND CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVES ......cooooeeieeeeeveeeee s 13
6.1 Strategic and route @erNatiVES ...........oouiiiiii e e 13
6.2 AeS suppernt toeption devVeld PMent smusmranumsm sy S 13
7 MUTIGATING IMPACTS ... ssccie e er e crrere s sae s re s bast s s s sae e s e s e near e s s s s s emmeeene s 14
HS2 AND CLIMATE CHANGE ...ttt seere s s e e s sser e e e e e s e emesenean 15
8.2 ResiliEnce e Elimale/ChaNg 8. wrmrmmmsmsmeesmssmmsmsmremmse s R 15
8.3 GreENNOUSE GASES ....ciiiiiiiie ettt sttt e e e e e e e e s 15
9 HS2 AND THE NATURAL AND CULTURAL ENVIRONMENT ....ccoovriirieereeeeeenens 16
9.1 Landscape, townscape and cultural heritage .............cooooeeiiiiieeeoc e 16
9.2 Wildlife @and DIOAIVEISItY .......oiii et 18
9.3 Water and flooding .....c.ooei e e 19
10 HS2 AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES .......ooooeceieviceiissceeene s ee e 22
10.1  IMPACES ON PrOPEMIES c..veiieeiee et eaes 22
10.2  Environmental impacts On PEOPIE ....oiveeiiiiiiiiiie e 24
10.3  AcCeSS 10 PUDIC ITANSDOIT . vuvo ssusasmasinmsimsis s i o i s s s 24
10.4  Health and Well-DEING .. .ueiieeiei e e 25
T0.5  ECONOMIC IMPACES coiiiieiieeiissceeeriiie e ettt e s s e e e e st eeee e e e e e s snneeeeeeeeseranees 25
11 HS2 AND SUSTAINABLE CONSUMPTION AND PRODUCTION ......coccveeeereenneen. 27
12 FURTHER MITIGATION AND MONITORING..........cccoeeinimiiiccineeeee s eseee s sssenes 28
boazBeo. ¢,

Page 60



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

booz8ea. reupie

Purpose of the Appraisal of Sustainability report

This document summarises the HS2 Appraisal of Sustainability (AoS) report, which
describes how the proposed new high speed railway between London and the West
Midlands would support objectives for sustainable development. Sustainable development
embraces considerations of economic development and job opportunities, and effects on
communities, as well as environmental considerations such as landscape, natural
environment and climate change.

The Government’s preference for the proposed route described here is based on how well
it would fulfil a number of considerations when compared with other alternatives: its
achievement of wider transport and economic objectives, its construction costs, its
operational requirements, the practicalities of building it and its sustainability performance,
including its environmental effects.

The proposed scheme has been developed by HS2 Ltd, a company set up by the
Government. It has been developed since 2009, but now accommodates design changes
from the route published in March 2010 that were made to reduce further the effect of the
railway on local communities and the natural environment.

This non-technical summary, prepared by Temple Group Ltd and Booz and Co. (UK) Ltd,
who undertook the AoS on behalf of HS2 Ltd, describes the proposed route at this stage of
development, how sustainability issues have been considered and incorporated to assist
decision making, and highlights the key sustainability impacts — both beneficial and adverse
- that are envisaged at this stage.

Refinements of the proposed scheme

The Government’s proposed route follows the same corridor as the scheme published in
March 2010. It has however been modified in response to the Government’s request to
investigate some additional options, considering in particular how London Heathrow Airport
might best be served. The Government’s proposed strategy for a national high speed
network includes a direct spur to Heathrow to be constructed as part of the second phase.
Therefore HS2 Ltd has made provision in its plans to allow for the addition of a connection
to the airport at that point.

The proposed route now also includes a direct connection to HS1 and it includes changes
that mitigate particular impacts in response to the early discussions undertaken by the
Secretary of State. In particular the design has been altered wherever practicable to move
further away from towns and villages, and other sensitive sites. The proposed route has
been lowered along much of its length to reduce its environmental impacts. Many new
cuttings have been incorporated that would help to screen views of the new railway and
integrate it better into the landscape. Potentially high structures such as viaducts and
elevated road bridges have been avoided where possible. Some new ‘green bridges’
(where the alignment is lowered, covered over and re-planted) have been introduced; this
would help to maintain the local outlook, reduce noise and maintain access for people and
animals.

Page 61



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

3.1l

3.1.2

Green bridges like this one on HS1 would help to provide local mitigation for settlements [a.p;

&

Should the scheme be taken forward, opportunities to make further reductions in the
environmental impact of the proposed scheme are expected to arise as the design
progresses. Public consultation provides local people, local authorities and interest groups
with the opportunity to put forward their views which, amongst other things, may assist the
development of the raiiway’s design and further mitigation. Local engagement would
continue as the design, approval process, construction and operation are progressed. At
each stage HS2 Ltd would seek to ensure that the scheme would be constructed and
operated so as to overcome or minimise adverse environmental effects locally; and would
work with other organisations to realise or enhance the transport and regeneration benefits
regionally and nationally.

Overview of the proposed scheme’s potential impacts
HS2 would have a number of sustainability impacts - some beneficial, some adverse.

The proposed HS2 route and stations and the new transport opportunities that the
proposed scheme would create would enhance economic competitiveness, support wider
economic growth and bring about enhanced employment opportunities. In supporting
economic competitiveness, the benefits to businesses which would arise directly from the
faster journeys potentially enabled by HS2 are valued at some £11.0 billion over 60 years.

Further economic benefits would accrue by HS2 effectively bringing cities closer together
and by encouraging businesses (as well as workforces) to cluster around HS2 and,
particularly, West Coast Main Line (WCML) stations. These businesses would operate
more efficiently and competitively by being closer to one another. Such benefits could be
worth a further £3.0 billion over 60 years. By opening up areas to the effects of wider
competition and wider markets, the proposed scheme would be expected to deliver a
further £1.0 billion of benefits. There could also be economic benefits due to transport
improvements encouraging more people to work, although these would be relatively minor.

313
boozB00. 1eupie

A/ vrarriemiet-4

Page 62



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

& i 110}

%
bovzdeo. 1y

HS2 would also be expected to benefit people making commuting, leisure and other
personal journeys. Over 60 years this is estimated to be worth some £6.4 billion of
additional benefits. In total, when all of these factors are added together and benefits from
fewer road accidents and better air quality are taken into account, economic benefits for the
wider UK community from the London to West Midlands phase of the project are estimated
to be £21.8 billion over 60 years.

The new railway stations would be the catalyst for new commercial enterprise and, over
time, would stimulate opportunities for businesses to relocate and prosper at Euston as part
of the over-site station development; at Old Oak Common where an interchange station
would influence the development of the Park Royal Opportunity Area; in the West Midlands
where the interchange station would support the development and connections with the
National Exhibition Centre (NEC) and airport, and at Curzon Street in central Birmingham
where HS2 passengers would have immediate access to the city centre’s new proposed
commercial quarter as well as its existing facilities.

Overall, it has been forecast that HS2 could attract some 30,000 jobs from the planned
growth in employment for London and the West Midlands to the areas around the proposed
HS2 stations. The scheme is also expected to provide 1,500 permanent operational
employment opportunities, many of which would be new jobs. An estimated 9,000 jobs
would also be created during construction. HS2 would displace a number of businesses
and associated jobs, for example at Washwood Heath and Old Oak Common. However, it
is likely that many of these displaced jobs would be re-established elsewhere. Close
working between HS2 Ltd, local councils and local businesses would be undertaken to help
to reduce the potential for adverse impacts on those affected.

As HS2 replaced some of the existing fast services on the WCML, space would be created
on the WCML to allow new services for towns and cities between London and the West
Midlands and additional commuter, local and regional services as well as opportunities for
freight services. This would offer further stimulation to business.

Both HS2 and new services on the WCML would offer opportunities for a low carbon form
of transport. The extent to which CO, emissions would be reduced, however, would
crucially depend on how carbon-efficient electricity generation becomes in the future. It
would also depend on any reduction in the number of flights (due to people switching to
high speed train services) being maintained, as well as on the resulting available take-off
and landing slots remaining vacant.

The redevelopment of Euston station has been recognised by the Mayor of London and
Camden Council as a potential catalyst for the regeneration of the Euston area as a whole.
But, in order to achieve this, substantial property demolition would be required, including
some 190 dwellings on the Regent’s Park Estate and some 25 further dwellings. The
immediate effect of this upon the local community at Euston would be significant. HS2 Ltd
would be committed to working closely and at an early stage with the London Borough of
Camden and the GLA and with community groups, residents’ associations and affected
residents generally to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to meet the housing
needs of those affected by demolition of these dwellings, and to help to address wider
impacts on the local community. At Washwood Heath in Birmingham, the construction of a
new train depot would require the demolition of around 30 dwellings and the loss of a
number of commercial premises. A similar approach to Euston, involving close working
between HS2 Ltd and Birmingham City council and with local residents and businesses
would be undertaken to help to minimise disruption to this community.

Elsewhere property demolitions, although significant to those people directly affected,
would be reasonably low in number given the scale of the scheme.

Page 63 °



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary




HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

3.1.11  There would be some localised disruption along the route during construction. The main
centres of population are in the greater London and greater Birmingham areas. The route
would also pass in the vicinity of a number of more dispersed villages, hamlets and isolated
farmsteads in the countryside. For the purposes of construction HS2 Ltd would develop
and implement a code of practice that would contractually bind the companies building the
route to reduce impacts to a practicable minimum.

3.1.12  Similarly, during operation, railway noise would affect some people living along the
proposed route. Further appraisal work has made assumptions about what could
realistically be achieved through additional mitigation, such as noise barriers. On this
basis, ‘high’ noise levels would affect fewer than 10 dwellings. Approximately 150
properties would be likely to experience levels of noise which would qualify for noise
insulation payments under existing statutory compensation arrangements. There would be
up to 4,700 dwellings identified on the proposed route corridor that would be likely to
experience a noise change of 3 decibels or more (3dB being a just perceptible change in
total noise over an assessment period) that results in a daytime noise level of 50 decibels
or more (referred to in this document as a ‘noticeable’ noise change).

3.1.13  Experience from HS1 and other high speed railways shows that potentially significant
effects from vibration and ground-borne noise (audible vibration) in properties over tunnels
can be avoided. HS2 Ltd is committed to ensuring that no significant effects occur over
tunnels through London and the Chilterns.

Cuttings, like those used on HS1, would help to screen views {Arup]

3.1.14 The proposed route between London and the West Midlands would include some 225km of
new railway, passing through a variety of metropolitan, suburban and rural areas. Surface
sections have been located alongside existing railways and roads over some 55km.
Tunnels, totalling some 29km, would be provided to pass through hilly ground and to avoid
the densest population in London. The proposed route has been lowered in places and
90km would be in deep or very deep cutting. Some 2km of cutting near to certain villages
in rural areas would be covered for environmental benefits to form ‘green bridges’.

et
_S.
booz8e0, 1rmpe

Page 65 °



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

3.1.15

3.1.16

3147

3.1.18

S 1IC)

3.1.20

3.1.21

3.1.22

3.1.23

Elsewhere, approximately 85km of the proposed route would be at ground level or on
embankment and 21km would be on viaduct.

The Chiltern Hills, much of which is designated as an area of outstanding natural beauty
(AONB), would be crossed predominantly in tunnel and deep cutting with short elevated
sections variously on embankment and viaduct to the south of Wendover where the route
would be in close proximity to the A413 and Chiltern Railway. Some visual impact would
be inevitable but of the 20.5km of railway through the AONB, all but 2km would be either in
tunnel, in cutting and/or alongside the A413 main road. Extensive tree planting, as well as
the creation of planted earth mounds or ‘bunds’ would help to further screen views and
integrate the railway into the landscape.

Refinements to the proposed route have ensured that no Grade | and II* listed buildings
would be demolished, although the setting of three Grade II* buildings would be likely to be
affected. Fifteen Grade |l listed buildings would need to be demolished. Some listed
structures in the Euston area would need to be relocated and the design of Euston Station
and its associated over-site development would need to take into account the setting of
Euston Gardens and the northern part of the Bloomsbury Conservation Area.

Three Registered Parks and Gardens would be physically impacted. However in each
case further route refinement has been undertaken to limit the landtake and effects upon
the settings of these features.

Two protected sites of archaeological importance would be physically impacted. These
scheduled monuments, Grim’s Ditch in the Chilterns and a Roman villa site in the vicinity of
Edgcote would be subject to prior archaeological investigation and academic study, in line
with Government guidance.

The proposed new railway would present a significant opportunity to reinforce and enhance
biodiversity. It would provide a green corridor to be colonised by plants and animals, and
could link with and form connections between existing habitats. There would, however, be
adverse effects at a number of sites.

No internationally protected sites of ecological interest would be adversely affected and
impacts to nationally protected sites would be restricted to a small number of locations.
Partial landtake would be required from two sites of special scientific interest (SSSI). A
number of locally designated sites and important habitats, such as ancient woodlands,
would be physically impacted. Where sites of ecological interest and local importance are
considered likely to be affected, further work would be undertaken during more detailed
design, and management plans would be drawn up and implemented to help minimise the
adverse effects on biodiversity.

Where the proposed route would cross rivers it has been designed to take account of future
flood risks by the inclusion of structures to bridge these areas. In some places, the
proposed route would pass in tunnel through important ground water resources.
Construction techniques would be implemented to reduce such risks to a practicable
minimum.

The proposed new railway would make good use of land that has had a previous industrial
or railway use. However, some productive agricultural land would be lost. Although the
most important Grade 1 land would not be affected, the proposed route would pass across
Grade 2 agricultural land for some 20km. Further work would be undertaken during later
design stages to seek to reduce agricultural landtake and severance.

Construction of the proposed scheme would generate and consume large guantities of
materials. HS2 Ltd would seek to re-use as much of this as possible within the scheme
design, for embankments and landscape proposals. Opportunities would be sought to use
any surplus spoil within other schemes and proposals; disposal to landfill would be used as
a last resort.

boo&co.

Page 66 T



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

4

Description of the proposed scheme

Travelling from London to the West Midlands, the proposed scheme would run from a new
and expanded London Euston station to a connection with the WCML, allowing high speed
trains to join the existing network near Lichfield. Central Birmingham would be accessed
via a spur into a new terminus station.

There would also be new interchange stations at Old Oak Common in west London and on
the eastern outskirts of Birmingham. The station at Old Oak Common would allow people
to transfer between HS2 and services to Heathrow (via Crossrail and Heathrow Express)
and South Wales and the west of England (via the Great Western Main Line).

Between Euston and Old Oak Common the scheme would be in tunnel and would require
three emergency intervention and ventilation shafts, one approximately every 2km. These
would service the HS2 tunnels, as well as the HS1 link which would run broadly paratlel
with them. The line through Old Oak Common station would be in an open box structure
and would then follow the Northolt corridor, a 14km stretch between Park Royal (just
beyond Old Oak Common) and West Ruislip Station. The route would be on the surface
alongside the existing London Underground Central Line to Ruislip. It would follow this
route as far as West Ruislip having now also converged with the Chiltern Line corridor.
Beyond West Ruislip station, the proposed scheme would diverge north-westwards across
the Colne Valley towards the Chilterns.

Junctions at Northolt, West Ruislip and at a location between the Colne Valley and the M25
would be included in the designs where the proposed route passes to the north of
Heathrow. These would allow the extension of a direct spur to Heathrow to be constructed
as part of the second phase of the Government'’s proposed strategy for a national high
speed network.

The proposed scheme would be in tunnel under the south-eastern part of the Chilterns,
entering just to the east of the M25 and emerging to the west of Amersham. It would follow
the A413 corridor mostly in cutting before passing to the south-west of Wendover and
Aylesbury. The surface route would continue across Buckinghamshire and the north-east
corner of Oxfordshire into Northamptonshire, passing to the east of Brackley.

The scheme would pass to the east of Banbury and to the south-west of Southam and
between Coventry and Kenilworth before passing to the north-east of Balsall Common to
join the M42 corridor near junction 6 (A45).

An interchange station on the outskirts of Birmingham would provide a connection to the
NEC and to Birmingham International Airport. At Water Orton (north of Coleshill), a
junction would provide the spur into central Birmingham. The spur line would follow the
existing rail corridor into central Birmingham where a new terminus station would be
provided at Curzon Street. It would also provide access to a train maintenance depot in the
Washwood Heath area.

The main HS2 line would continue north from Water Orton passing to the west of Tamworth
and to the east of Lichfield before linking into the WCML.

Page 67 !



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

Proposed Route

Surface tN
Y ===cr Tunnel .
- e Green Tunned Lichfie

+HS51 Connection Bels, W, T
Rolling Stock Depo
(Peashwood Heatb) |

~ HS1 Connection
- WOML

*  Towns albong the ioute

i

TaSpectn
=y Birmingham

Keniiworth

., 85

i D

* Coventry..

outham

- \\\
| a
| Brackvey:\
1
Bicester =
503 Bk Gomman Stang
| B : S e
» Wendover
B \)oAmershay‘n i
=1 ~ 4 - e . ] g
5 105 4 961201 030 SRS S AT Tl
| LR S, e e “by
{ PRk Lo e sweon e
: | ) |
3 i {
s _W.J Heathrow Airport
T
8 2000000 Temee

Page 68



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

Aerial view of proposed Washwood Heath depot site sz Lo

Birmingham City Centre

booz8oo. 1eypee

Page 69



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

10

Changes incorporated within the proposed route from that published in March 2010

The proposed scheme incorporates a number of changes to the one published in March 2010
that help to reduce its environmental impacts.

* Minor changes on the route in the Northolt area would help to reduce landtake from properties
next to the route and to avoid the need to reconstruct one of the road bridges over the railway at
Hanger Lane, a major road junction between the A40 and the North Circular Road (A406). A new
surface proposal in this area would see the HS2 tracks pass under the Chiltern Line junction, which is
to be remodeled as part of the Chiltern Line upgrade (Evergreen 3 Scheme). The new Chiltern Line
would pass over HS2 on a low viaduct.

. Between Old Amersham and Little Missenden, the cutting would be covered to form a green bridge
so allowing continued access over the railway and minimising visual impacts. It would also now
largely preserve the landscape and wider setting of the historic stately home of Shardeloes. The
short tunnel north of Little Missenden would be lengthened slightly.

® Past South Heath in the Chilterns, the proposed route has been lowered by about 5m and covered
by a 900m long green bridge, screening the most densely populated part of the village from noise,
maintaining views south of the village, avoiding raised bridge structures over the railway and
‘mitigating noise and visual impacts on a number of dispersed farms and houses.

. Near Aylesbury the proposed route past Hartwell House has moved eastwards by 75m to 85m to
reduce impacts on views from the stately home. This route would avoid some of the more mature
trees and would be easier to integrate into the landform. he realignment would bring the line
slightly closer to the outskirts of Aylesbury.

e  The proposed route has moved eastwards away from Mixbury to pass in deep cutting east of
Turweston and further east of Brackley and Greatworth. It would be a little closer to Radstone but
in deeper cutting. This would help to reduce noise and visual impacts at Mixbury, Turweston,
Brackley and Greatworth and would avoid the proposed development area north and east of
Brackley. It would, however, now affect a SSSI on a disused railway that was previously avoided.

. Between Greatworth and Wormieighton the proposed route has moved some 100m north-east,
thus avoiding the impacts on the Grade | listed Edgcote House and its ornamental lake, but now
physically impacting the site of a protected Roman villa. A new green bridge at Chipping Warden is
now also proposed.

° The proposed route has moved eastwards away from the village of Ladbroke to a position halfway
between Ladbroke and Southam. It avoids the flood plain and with it, the need for a lengthy
elevated viaduct across the open valley. Although now closer to Southam, the surface alignment
would be easier to screen using earth bunds that better fit this rural location.

o Near Kenilworth, the proposed alignment has been lowered by some 5m to 10m and moved slightly
westwards. This would greatly reduce severance of the historic parkland at Stoneleigh and maintain
the outlook of the protected monument of Stare Bridge. The route moves further away from
Stoneleigh Village, but closer to the eastern edge of Kenilworth and Cubbington, requiring more
detailed noise and landscape mitigation. The proposed route now avoids the historic hamlet of
Stareton and reduces landtake from Long ltchington and Ufton Woods SSSI. It would, however,
demolish a listed building; and it would have a bigger impact on the Stoneleigh Park Exhibition and
Conference Centre.

e At Burton Green, a lowered alignment and the introduction of a green bridge would reduce impacts
on the village and provide noise and visual mitigation.

° Between the village of Hints in Staffordshire and HS2's connection with the WCML, the proposed
route has been moved eastwards, further away from Lichfield. This would reduce potential noise
and visual impacts. The proposed connection of HS2 with the WCML has been moved some 1.5km
northwards.

o

boordeo, rempLs

Page 70



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

Aerial view of Stoneleigh Park s 11q)

-Stonéleigh Vg]age

W -: -

e
boozBe0.  1eppe

Page 71

11



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

The Appraisal of Sustainability (AoS) process

To determine the extent to which the proposed scheme may be considered a sustainable
development it was necessary first to define ‘sustainability’ as it is relevant to high speed
rail. The AoS process has adapted for its own use the four sustainable development
priorities from the UK Sustainable Development Strategy: Securing the Future’. These
have formed the overarching structure for considering sustainability impacts.

The AoS then used a series of increasingly more detailed issues, objectives and criteria
that further defined the concept of sustainability and helped to appraise the impacts and
benefits of the scheme. The four main sustainability headings and their underlying issues
and objectives are shown below. These were discussed and agreed with government
departments and key environmental bodies at the commencement of the AoS.

f Key sustainability Sustainability objective
issue

1. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions and combating climate change

Climatic factors and ¢ Improve resilience of rail network against extreme weather events
adaptability
Greenhouse gases » Contribute to the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions by

facilitating modal shift from road and air to rail

* Reduce relative contribution made by rail to greenhouse gas
emissions by promoting energy efficient technologies

2. Natural and cultural resource protection and environmental enhancement

Landscape and townscape | ¢ Maintain and enhance existing landscape character
+ Maintain and enhance existing townscape character

Cultural heritage ¢ Preserve and protect archaeological assets
¢ Preserve and protect historic buildings
¢ Preserve and protect historic landscapes

Biodiversity ¢ Maintain and enhance biodiversity

Water resources = Protect surface water resources
+ Protect groundwater resources

Flood risk e Conserve and enhance the capacity of flood plains

3. Creating sustainable communities

Air quality ¢ Maintain and enhance local air quality

Noise and vibration ¢ Maintain and enhance the local noise environment
¢ Maintain the local vibration environment

Community integrity +« Maintain and enhance community integrity

Accessibility e Maintain and enhance pedestrian access
¢ Maintain and enhance access to public transport
¢ Maintain and enhance public transport interchange

Health and well-being + Maintain and improve mental well-being
+ Maintain and improve physical health
+ Reduce health inequalities

! Securing the Future, produced by the previous Government, provided the policy framework for consideration of sustainability issues
throughout the course of the HS2 scheme design.

12

.T.
boor8co.  1rmpie

Page 72



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

Key sustainability Sustainability objective
issue
Security and safety ¢ Contribute to the reduction of road traffic accidents

o Protect against crime and fear of crime

Economic prosperity e Support economic competitiveness and make efficient use of
public funds

¢ Support wider economic growth and maintain and enhance
employment opportunities

Economic welfare e Support wider economic welfare growth
e Support planned developments
¢ Maintain and enhance regeneration

4. Sustainable Consumption and Production

Soil and land resources ¢« Maintain and enhance land resources
= Encourage the use of brownfield sites

Waste generation

Prevent and minimise waste production

Resource use ¢ Conserve and protect primary material resources

The AoS and consideration of alternatives

Strategic and route alternatives

The Government considers that increasing demand will create a need over the next twenty
to thirty years for additional capacity to cater for inter-city journeys between L.ondon and the
major conurbations in the Midlands and the North. It does not, however, believe
transferring rail demand to road travel or domestic aviation to be an appropriate solution. It
also considers that the benefits of a new high speed rail network would be significantly
greater than those offered by any other option. These matters are described in more detail
within High Speed Rail Strategic Alternatives Study: Strategic Alternatives to the proposed
Y Network.

The Government’s proposed scheme is the product of some two years of work by HS2 Ltd
to examine a large number of possible alternative routes and stations. This preference
reflects its strategic transport and economic merits, its operational capabilities, the
practicalities and costs of building it, its sustainability performance and its overall
environmental impacts. The main alternatives that have been considered are reported in
the consultation document, High Speed Rail: Investing in Britain's Future.

AoS support to option development

A large number of possible options were developed for HS2, including termini in London
and the West Midlands and approaches to these, lines of route between them, and stations
in between. Work on HS2 culminated at the end of 2009 in the identification of a scheme
between London and the West Midlands, which HS2 Ltd preferred because of the clearest
overall benefits it was considered to offer. A number of possible alternatives and additions
to this scheme were also proposed.

However, to get to this stage, a detailed sifting of options was required. This involved a
successive reduction in the number of options over three stages, marked by a series of
‘gates’ at which HS2 Ltd agreed on options which merited further appraisal.

3
TEMPLE 13

Page 73



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

14

Gate 1 Gate 2 Gate 4
Long Intermedliate Short preferred Finalise and
list list list option and

% recommend

alternatives

The AoS has provided input to the development and evaluation of options at each stage by
highlighting their relative performance against the stated sustainability objectives.

It was important to feed in appraisal information to the design at the right level of detail and
at the right time. At the outset, designs amounted to a large number of possible line
options. The AoS provided fundamental information about environmental and community
features along the notional routes and gave information about the relative importance of the
main features and the impacts on them. As a result, sustainability considerations
contributed to the decisions about which routes and station options should be taken forward
for further appraisal.

At the next stage more detailed designs were developed showing more precisely where
route options passed, whether these were on embankment, viaduct, cutting, tunnel or at
grade. This supported a more detailed appraisal of most of the sustainability issues where
information was available.

Following publication of the HS2 Summary Report in March 2010, HS2 Ltd has undertaken
several rounds of further design work and option comparison, prompted by requests from
both the previous Government and the current Government. Sustainability impacts have
continued to be a key consideration in this work, and indeed have prompted much of this
work in the first place.

Mitigating impacts

During the options sifting process, the AoS process helped to bring about specific changes
to certain options; for example: speed considerations on the approaches into London to
limit noise impacts; avoidance of properties and key features such as listed buildings and
SSSils along the line of route; and through the Chilterns where route options were modified
to reduce possible adverse impacts on landscape. It is expected that continued refinement
would enable these and other impacts to be reduced further.

If the proposed scheme is taken forward, the design would be developed further. This
would allow more detailed mitigation proposals and confirmation of specific construction
techniques. Such mitigation options cannot be identified in full or committed to at this
stage, since they rely on design detail that has not yet been developed. However, such
mitigation options, examples of which are given in the main report, are all measures that
have been applied successfully on other rail schemes, including HS1. HS2 Ltd would look
to build on experience and best practice both on HS1 and other more recent rail projects.

The next four sections summarise the main sustainability effects of HS2 under the
headings of climate change, natural and cultural resources, sustainable communities and
sustainable consumption and production.

B
boor8co. ;i upis

Page 74



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

HS2 and climate change

The appraisal considered climatic factors in two ways: the impact that a changing climate
might have on HS2 and the impact HS2 itself might have on climate change.

Resilience to climate change

The future climate in Britain over the next 50 years or so, when HS2 could be in operation,
is likely to be different from now — with generally hotter, drier summers and warmer, wetter
winters combined with a possible increase in extreme weather events. To help ensure the
climate resilience of HS2, it would be designed, built and operated to take account of
projected impacts of climate change over the scheme’s operational lifespan. In particular,
in areas already likely to flood now and increasingly so in the future, HS2 would be
constructed on viaduct. Additional protection would be given to particularly vulnerable parts
of the network such as tunnel entrances and electricity supply locations.

Greenhouse gases

The rail sector is a relatively small contributor to greenhouse gases and gives rise to some
of the lowest per-passenger CO, emissions compared with other transport modes. The
impact of HS2 on climate change would depend on the amount of CO, it would produce,
both from construction and operation, compared with the amount it would save by attracting
people away from more carbon polluting forms of transport. This is very difficult to predict
as it relies heavily on other factors beyond the control of HS2. Relatively modest CO,
savings would be likely to come from people moving from road to rail. However, the
biggest CO; savings would come from attracting air passengers to HS2, as air domestic
travel gives rise to very high CO, emissions. Because of the faster journeys that would be
offered by HS2 on the high speed leg between London and the West Midlands, some
people making journeys between London and Manchester or Glasgow would use the train
in preference to flying. A reduction in emissions would, however, only be realised if the
number of domestic flights was reduced as a result and if the tanding and take-off slots that
were freed up were not then used for wholly new international flights (i.e. not displaced
from other airports).

Were HS2 to extend further north, journeys would become even quicker which would
encourage more air passengers to switch to high speed rail. As a result the potential
carbon benefits of HS2 would be expected to be greater.

The way that electricity used to power the trains would be generated is also a
consideration. The Government has ambitious plans to increase the contribution of
renewables and nuclear generation at the expense of burning fossil fuels, such as coal and
gas. Depending on how successful this is, it would have a significant influence on how
much CO, HS2 produces.

Taking all of these into account, HS2 could result in either an increase or a decrease in
CO.. Atworst, over 60 years HS2 could result in an overall increase in CO, emissions of
24 million tonnes; at best it could result in an overall decrease of 27 million tonnes.
Whichever scenario takes shape, the contribution of HS2 would be insignificant when
compared to other transport, especially conventional road vehicle emissions in the UK.

TEMPLE 15

Page 75



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

16

HS2 and the natural and cultural environment

Landscape, townscape and cultural heritage

Along the proposed route of HS2 between London and the West Midlands there are areas
of dense urban development including historic quarters and suburbs. And there are areas
of countryside, including the broad valley of the River Colne, the Chiltern Hills, the
agricultural expanse of the Vale of Aylesbury, the Northamptonshire Uplands that extend
north from the Cotswolds and the wooded farmland of Dunsmore and Arden around
Coventry.

A key landscape impact from HS2 would occur in the Chiltern Hills, much of which are
designated an AONB. These extend for some 75km between Hitchin in the north and the
River Thames in the south. Any direct route between London and the West Midlands
would inevitably need to pass through this area. Considerable work was undertaken
initially to ensure any adverse changes to this nationally protected landscape would be
minimised. As a result, some 6.5km of the proposed route would be in tunnel, over 5km
would be alongside the A413, and over 9km would be in cutting, which would reduce views
of the scheme.

Cuttings would help to integrate HS2 into the landscape (anp

- —

E——

i
i
z

A number of refinements to the scheme design have further reduced potential impacts; for
example lowering the proposed route so that it sits more within the landscape, and
introducing ‘green bridges’ at Little Missenden and South Heath. Overall, of the 20.5km of
railway through the AONB all but 2km would benefit from being in tunnel, cutting and/or
existing transport corridor. Extensive tree planting, as well as the creation of planted earth

-
boor8co. 1 upis

Page 76



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

914

9.1.10

9.1.11

bunds, carefully blended into the landform, would help to screen views and integrate the
railway into the landscape.

Within the Chilterns a protected Iron Age bank and ditch known as Grim’s Ditch would be
directly affected. Further north-west, near Banbury, realignment of the scheme to reduce
its impacts on the Grade | listed Edgcote House has resulted in the route impacting the
protected site of a Roman villa.

Impacts on townscape would generally be avoided with few areas of particular note
potentially affected. At Euston a large new station would involve a major change within an
area where numerous listed buildings and conservation areas reflect the area’s long history
of settlement and its importance as a railway terminus. A large number of demolitions
would be required and this, together with a new station building, would result in townscape
change that could affect views from conservation areas. This could result in both adverse
and beneficial change, depending on the design of any new structures and the location and
setting of the existing buildings potentially affected. With the removal of certain buildings,
such as the existing station concourse, and the implementation of high quality and sensitive
redevelopment there is potential for enhancement of the local setting.

Direct adverse impacts would include loss of some locally important features, such as the
majority of St James Gardens and six Grade Il listed buildings and structures. The Euston
Square Gardens in front of the existing station would be retained, as would the Grade II*
listed 194a Euston Road, although it would be very close to the new station and, as it is
attached to the Grade |l listed 9 Melton Street which would be demolished, would require
very careful protection during construction. The new station concourse would offer
opportunities to create a more open route through an area severed by the existing station
building.

The London Borough of Camden has set out a vision for wider change in this area and
proposes to use a new station as a springboard for local regeneration. This would be
expected to yield substantial improvements through the redevelopment of more run-down
parts around the station, and there is a clear opportunity to ensure that HS2 both develops
in harmony with these and stimulates positive townscape change.

The proposed new buildings and compounds constructed over the ventilation shafts for the
London tunnels would give rise to some visual impacts for nearby residents, but the sites
are generally amidst industrial land uses and/or close to existing railway. Over the
Chilterns tunnel, there is greater scope to vary the location of shaft site compounds. The
areas currently proposed have been selected to minimise environmental impact but further
work would be undertaken to refine these locations and layouts.

West of Old Oak Common the new surface route would run on the north side of the existing
Northolt corridor. The widening of the rail corridor would be needed in places. A focus of
recent attention by HS2 Ltd has been to reduce potential landtake as far as possible, but a
number of demolitions between here and West Ruislip would still be required.

Several protected stately homes and grounds lie near to the proposed route, and
considerable work has been undertaken to mitigate potential impacts to these. Shardeloes
near Amersham, Hartwell House near Aylesbury and Stoneleigh Abbey near Kenilworth,
would all now be protected through changes in the alignment and, at Shardeloes, the use
of a green bridge structure over the railway. At Stoneleigh, the revised alignment would
now avoid the village of Stareton, and, although closer to the listed and scheduled Stare
Bridge, the bridge would be well screened by woodland. The connection between the
bridge and Stoneleigh village would also now be maintained. However, a Grade 1l listed
building would be demolished.

A Grade |l listed barn at Lavender Hall Farm in Berkswell would be likely to be demolished,
with potential adverse impacts on the settings and context of the Grade II* listed Lavender

boaz8co. rewpi 17

Page 77



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

9.1.12

92

9.2.1

922

91213

18

Hall farmhouse. A Grade II* listed farmhouse at Hampton in Arden, is close to the
proposed car park for Birmingham Interchange Station, and construction would need to be
carefully managed to minimise potential impacts on this building. Impacts on the setting of
this building would occur however.

In Birmingham the Curzon Street terminus lies within a townscape whose immediate
character has declined in recent years. HS2 would result in a number of demolitions,
including three Grade I listed buildings, as well as some modern structures. However, the
area is subject to extensive redevelopment as part of the Birmingham Eastside proposals.
These would be significantly affected by HS2, but this could result in improvements to the
townscape were the two schemes to be coordinated; indeed the City Council has
commissioned a new Masterplan to reconfigure proposals around HS2.

Wildlife and biodiversity

Early route development has managed to avoid most potential impacts on designated
habitats and sites. No sites of international significance would be adversely affected and
impacts to nationally protected sites would be restricted to just a few locations: river
crossings at the Colne Valley and River Blythe would have small impacts on SSSIs here,
but designs would seek to minimise these. The potential impact previously envisaged at
Long Itchington and Ufton Wood SSSI would now be largely avoided through extension of
the proposed tunnel beneath them. However, south of Radstone, a realignment to take the
proposed route away from settlements results in it crossing in cutting the southern end of
the Helmdon Disused Railway SSSI. There could be minor landtake from Sheephouse
Wood SSSI.

A number of impacts on local and regional sites are also likely, including some loss of
ancient woodland in the Chilterns. As the design develops it would seek to reduce these
effects.

Landscape mitigation involving planting over two million trees, as well as other
opportunities for habitat creation and extension, would result in benefits for wildlife that
would help offset some of these adverse effects.

=
3
boor8c0, ;e

Page 78



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

933

A tunnel like this on HS1 would take the proposed scheme beneath Long ltchington and
Ufton Wood [arup;

2 F—

Water and flooding

Direct impacts on water resources such as rivers, streams, lakes and underground water
supplies (aquifers) have been avoided where possible. But these features are numerous
between London and the West Midlands and are difficult to avoid completely. It is possible
that adverse impacts may arise at locations where rivers would be crossed. Where the
proposed route could interrupt flows into rivers, river diversions would be undertaken; for
example for short sections of the Colne, the Cole, the Tame and the Rea. The necessary
protective action would be taken in order to avoid or minimise any adverse impact on water
quality.

Passage of the proposed scheme over or through aquifers or areas with vulnerable
groundwater would require careful management and mitigation in accordance with current
best practice. This would be the case in particular across the Colne Valley, and between
Brackley and Kenilworth, where there are important aquifers.

HS2 would also cross areas that are at a relatively high risk of flooding. The railway would
be raised onto low piers to ensure flood water is not impeded or diverted and that the
scheme does not increase flood risk to other areas and communities. In total the proposed
route passes across 16km of the highest flood risk areas.

s

boozB00. rempyc 19

Page 79



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

Key sustainability features along the proposed scheme (south)

-~ = s = Sets £
oman Vil at Edgeote (Schaduled Monumant)) b 5
warden i B ar

‘ : o=

v‘ Beac) mx
i,

o
Mixbury

18 2 1 Bicqgwer

o) e, -
; #Grendon and Doddershall Woods (SSS1i""
‘ et :

N g - =

= e L ;
{Chierna Boachwoods [SAC)|

it Miszendan TSAmiriaam
#* Registeivd Park aivd Gardan) s = L » A

% Tah Wygombe

" qeucon;sﬂam‘
i b

= ™
Proposed Route
Surface b

v Tunnet

(R Features of Very High tmponance

H
i3
{

Features of High lnportance

Features of very high importance include
internationally protected habitats and the most
significant features of historic and cultural
importance, including world heritage sites and ¢
Grade | listed buildings, Grade 1 registered parks.
and gardens, and European protected nature
conservation areas

Features of high impartance include other key
national designations for wildlife, landscape and
heritage conservation, such as Grade I1* Iisted
buildings, Grade II* registered parks and gardens,
888is, national nature reserves, AONBs,
cheduled monuments and historic batttefields.

04 Evston Road
Grada 1’ Lizted Buiking)i -
e -

"+, :Kensal Greon Cemolery (Grade } Registercd P,

2nd Gasden)

. ¥ @’ _' s #
Heathrow Alpart g v
- t L RifAmp

.
£

@ P e o o 9
=
et : 2
Faa b
20

Page 80

3
TEMPLE




HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability

Non technical summary

Key sustainability features along the proposed scheme (north)

e et
- i Proposed Route
3 Surface i
; , o i :
e &) BB restres of Very High impontance |
;. y 5 i Features of High Importance |
T gl y . & T »
= £ e ¥ g . “ Lelcsiae L= -
5 | Harmworth <, = s -y L -
¢ IMiddieton Pos ( P g~
- , - EomESSI(SS .
+ Wotwartrimpton . -
iy - ;@3 5 = »
& % I g 5
5 5 : 2 E . .
&
> : &
3 I
. 1 Lisd: &,
b . ~, i i o
. : ] o . H
¢ ,‘ 5 T ot . . 5
I 1 . s = L
# & g %
3 > '
-
: = | . #
: - e
P + 3 v
L, E # r
stratford-uppn-Aven S - - d L rerg o &
£
x i % .
= ] . [k T
F e . - 3 "G'&Mom‘,:q(goll:donBiss%geraiNay sssh’ g
Ay AR 7 ‘ g S =
I wagrar 7 A e ey - B t
= g ] ek ad : 2 M 3 Miton Kaynas.
.
21

boozBoo. ypipe

Page 81



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

10
10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.1.4

10.1.5

10.1.6

22

HS2 and Sustainable Communities

Impacts on properties

Private home-owners whose properties would need to be demolished to make way for the
proposed scheme would be compensated through compulsory purchase procedures. The
main area of demolition would be at Euston with approximately 190 residential dwellings in
the Regents Park Estate affected by the loss of four blocks of flats. Approximately 25
further dwellings and a community hall in the area would also be demolished and a large
part of St James Gardens would be lost. Residents of some further 170 dwellings would
have their living conditions potentially affected by proximity to the railway. People living
here are in a relatively more deprived part of the country and this is likely to make them and
the communities they live in particularly vulnerable to these impacts. HS2 Ltd would be
committed to working closely and at an early stage with the lLondon Borough of Camden
and the GLA and with community groups, residents’ associations and affected residents
generally to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to meet the housing needs of
those affected by demolition of these dwellings, and to help to address wider impacts on
the local community. Agreement of a joint ambition for the Euston area would form part of
this work, and would include, amongst other things, replacement of the open space lost at
St James Gardens.

Approximately 20 demolitions, including an estimated seven dwellings, would be required
to construct the vent shaft at Alexandra Place West.

At Old Oak Common, approximately 25 dwellings would be at risk of landtake from shallow
tunnels to the west of the railway lands, although it may be possible to avoid these. Other
communities affected by potential demolitions include those along the route between Old
Oak Common and West Ruislip where around 15 residential properties would be
demolished.

Along the route between the M25 and M42, through Buckinghamshire, Northamptonshire,
Oxfordshire and Warwickshire, residential demolitions are limited to approximately 35.

In Birmingham, 32 dwellings would be demolished for a new depot along with a number of
commercial properties, which would require close working between HS2 Ltd, the local
authority and local residential and business community. Five student accommodation
blocks would be demolished within central Birmingham to make way for the new terminus
station at Curzon Street.

In a few places the route of HS2 could impose a sense of isolation for residents where
properties become ‘islanded’ by HS2 in combination with roads and other railways,
although physical access to these areas would be maintained. Recent revisions to the
scheme design have significantly mitigated these impacts. Residual impacts remain in the
West Midlands in the Hampton-in Arden and Water Orton areas, where approximately 40
and 30 dwellings respectively would be affected. These are already subject to significant
levels of physical isolation from existing roads

&
boor8co, ;s

Page 82



MWL GGG
&

WA
J1ma)y

&
i
\'.ytx&

Sl ; 2= ( ) a 4
Ty T ST A

o D W B

R o, 23%%41(?. e

: A
.. esO}IS UONEIS 1301}

: ) e ;:&Nu- U.WMQOQQ.“
. -~ ot I \M.‘ e

3 e e gt Sl

~ IprizsHl aJIs uolels 198.g :ow,._:o tmw.omo._m Jo M

2

Alewiwins [e21UY29} UON
Auqeuresng jo jestelddy :spug(pi 1IS9AA Y3 0] UOPUOT ZSH




HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

10.2

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

10.3

10.3.1

10.3.2

Environmental impacts on people

The most densely populated areas occur in London and its north and west outskirts, and in
Birmingham and its outskirts. Other key settlements near the proposed scheme include
Amersham, Wendover, Aylesbury, Brackley, Leamington and Kenilworth. In total, some
7,400 dwellings are located within 100m of the proposed surface route. Many would be
largely unaffected by the scheme, but at this stage of the appraisal, these dwellings are
considered to be at a risk of disturbance, particularly during construction. As such HS2 Ltd
would use control measures consistent with best practice to ensure that impacts from
construction activity, such as noise or dust, were kept as low as possible.

Similarly, during operation, railway noise could affect people living along the proposed
route. Further appraisal work has made assumptions about what could realistically be
achieved through additional mitigation, such as noise barriers and bunds. On this basis
‘high’ noise levels (i.e. greater than an equivalent average of 73dB(A) ?) would affect fewer
than 10 dwellings. In addition, it is considered that approximately 150 properties would be
likely to qualify for noise insulation i.e. secondary glazing and ventilation or grant to
implement such mitigation. There are up to 4,700 dwellings identified on the proposed route
corridor that would be likely to experience a noticeable (although not necessarily
significant) noise change, meaning both a noise increase of 3dB(A)* or more and a
resultant daytime noise level of 50dB(A) * or more. Determination of significant effects
would be undertaken during formal environmental impact assessment were the scheme to
be progressed further.

Experience from HS1 and other high speed railways has shown that potentially significant
effects from vibration and ground-borne noise (audible vibration) in properties over tunnels
can be avoided. Using specially designed and mounted tracks such impacts are not
expected in residential areas in London. For the Chilterns tunnels, mitigation of potentially
adverse effects at dwellings closest to the tunnel and at certain other sensitive facilities
would be more challenging, due to the faster trains through these areas and the nature of
the chalk geology. But again, major project experience suggests that mitigation would be
possible and HS2 Ltd is committed to ensuring that no such impacts occur.

In terms of air quality, HS2 would be electrically powered and so would not directly result in
air pollution; impacts at the power stations used to generate the additional electricity for the
service would not be significant. There is a risk that, at HS2 stations, increases in road
traffic might cause more local air pollution, but this is not expected to be significant as most
stations would have good public transport links. Change in the number of vehicles on
motorways as a result of people opting to travel by train in preference to car would not be
sufficient to have any noticeable impact on air quality.

Access to public transport

As well as people in London and Birmingham, those in Liverpool, Manchester and Glasgow
would also have access to HS2 from the day of opening through connection to the WCML,
representing a significant proportion of the UK population. Other people would benefit from
the new services that are anticipated on the WCML between Lichfield and London to fill the
slots vacated by current fast inter-city services.

At Euston there would be an interchange with other surface rail, as well as with London
Underground and bus services. At Old Oak Common a major new interchange would allow
access to Crossrail and, as a result, to Heathrow, as well as domestic and international

% Total equivalent (‘average’) daytime noise levels (L Acq,18nr)
* 3dB is a just perceptible change in total noise over an assessment period.
* 50dB(A) is based on a World Health Organisation threshold, below which few people would be expected to be ‘moderately annoyed'.

24

i
-
boorBco. 1impie

Page 84



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

10.4

10.4.1

10.4.2

10.4.3

10.4.4

10.5

10.5.1

10.5.2

10.5.3

10.5.4

boor8c0.  1rmpic

surface rail and underground rail services. Birmingham Interchange would offer access to
aviation, bus and rail services. Birmingham Curzon Street would offer interchange with rail,
bus and proposed future metro services. The scheme may also offer opportunities to
improve existing interchange arrangements at HS2 stations by providing enhanced
passenger facilities, traveller information, more station staff and other aspects to improve
the interchange experience.

Health and well-being

Effects on people’s health and well-being, both beneficial and adverse, would potentially
result from other impacts — chiefly environmental impacts, property impacts and socio-
economic impacts.

Benefits would stem from improvements in accessibility (described above) and through the
economic prosperity and welfare brought about by the scheme (described below). In
addition, journeys would be expected to be more enjoyable, as they become quicker (on a
new HS2 service) and less crowded (on existing services). All of these benefits could have
secondary benefits for health and well-being.

Risks to health and well-being would stem from single issues such as demolitions or
operational noise, or where these different impacts cumulatively affect people. This risk is
considered to be highest around Euston station, where demolitions on the Regents Park
Estate would affect a community with a high level of dependencies on local services or
social infrastructure. A commitment to careful and sensitive management to ensure that
this impact is minimised would be required. Local authority plans for the improvement and
development of this area, supported by HS2, are likely to see eventual wider
improvements.

Apart from these general matters, particular risks may arise for individuals or groups at
relevant locations, such as elderly or disabled persons who may be disproportionately
vulnerable to health-associated impacts. The locations of people within these categories
cannot be known at this stage, but the risk of differential impacts would be addressed
through further stages of appraisal and assessment.

Economic impacts

HS2 would enhance economic competitiveness, support wider economic growth and bring
about enhanced employment opportunities. In supporting economic competitiveness, the
potential benefits to businesses arising directly from the faster journeys enabled by HS2
are valued at some £11.0 billion over 60 years.

HS2 would also free up space on the WCML for new rail services. This would benefit
business, especially for trips originating in London, which would give rise to a little over a
third of these benefits; about a quarter of the benefits would derive from trips commencing
in the North-west and about a fifth from trips originating in the West Midlands.

There is potential for HS2 to encourage businesses, directly and indirectly, to grow and
prosper around locations served by improved rail services. Businesses in London and
Birmingham would be able to draw on a workforce from a wider area to the benefit of both
the businesses and the workforce.

Further economic benefits could accrue by HS2 effectively bringing cities closer together. It
could also result from the clustering of businesses (as well as workforces) around HS2 and,
particularly, WCML stations, and which would operate more efficiently and competitively by
being close to one another. These benefits could be worth a further £3 0 billion over 60
years. By opening up areas to the effects of wider competition and wider markets, a further
£1.0 billion of benefits could accrue.

5
25

Page 85



NN TG ac

Page 86

yoday
[euonruIdu] weyduiunaryg

lPrizsHl g)s uoyeys abueystaiu weybuiwig pesodoud Jo msiA |eLiey

AJeuwns |eojuyos} UON
Aniigeuteisng o |esielddy :SpUBIpIA IS8 8U) 0} UOPUOT ZSH



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

10.5.5

10.5.6

10.5.7

10.5.8

10.5.9

10.5.10

10.5.11

11

11.1.1

11.1.2

HS2 would also be expected to benefit people making commuting, leisure and other
personal journeys. Over 60 years this is estimated to be worth some £6.4 billion of
additional benefits. In total, when these are added to business and other benefits to the
economy, and benefits from reduced accidents and better air quality are taken into account,
gross economic benefits for the wider UK community are estimated to be £21.8 billion over
60 years.

HS2 stations within or near areas of deprivation would bring about some local job
opportunities. But greater employment opportunities would derive from the regeneration
stimulated around the HS2 stations. These opportunities would provide greatest benefit for
residents outside the immediate station catchment rather than the existing local residents,
particularly at Euston and Birmingham Curzon Street. Enhanced commuter services on the
WCML and better connections with London and Birmingham would, similarly, support local
development around stations and the social and economic benefits that this results in.

The best regeneration opportunity would be around the proposed Old Oak Common
station, where wider access to Heathrow, central London and London Docklands through
the interchange with Crossrail, would be a particular incentive for local development and
growth.

At Curzon Street, the proposed new station and railway would conflict with developments
currently planned within Birmingham Eastside, including the major office, retail and leisure
proposals, and new facilities for Birmingham City University. However, the city council is
revising the Masterplan for Eastside to take account of HS2, which would see significant
overall benefits building on the regeneration stimulated by a new high speed service.

In supporting planned employment growth in London and the West Midlands, the potential
for some 30,000 jobs around HS2 stations (2,000 at Euston; 20,000 at Old Oak Common;
3,800 at Birmingham Interchange and 4,500 at Curzon Street) has been forecast.

The proposed scheme is also expected to provide the equivalent of 1,500 permanent jobs,
including an estimated 250 at Euston, 90 at Old Oak Common, 250 at the maintenance
depot at Calvert, 300 at the rolling stock depot at Washwood Heath and 120 at Birmingham
Curzon Street station. An estimated 9,000 jobs would also be created during construction.
For operational employment, it is not clear at this stage what proportion represents new job
opportunities in the rail sector.

HS2 would displace a number of businesses and associated jobs, for example at
Washwood Heath and Old Oak Common. However, it is likely that many of these displaced
jobs would be re-established elsewhere. Close working between HS2 Ltd, local councils
and local businesses would be undertaken to reduce the potential for adverse impacts on
those affected.

HS2 and sustainable consumption and production

HS2 would affect the land resource both adversely and beneficially. It would result in a
number of previously developed ‘brownfield’ sites, totalling at least 146 hectares in extent,
being brought back to productive use, with others potentially be to identified through more
detailed study at a later stage.

Although it would affect none of the most productive Grade 1 farmland, it would cross some
20km of slightly less productive Grade 2 farmland. Further work will be undertaken during
later design stages to examine how as much as possible of the agricultural land affected by
the proposed route could remain in production. The only significant impact to green belt is
likely to arise around the Birmingham Interchange Station, where an area would be lost to
accommodate the station and associated facilities. In terms of the waste generated by the
scheme, mostly during its construction, almost two million cubic metres of spoil would arise

P

boozBc0.  renpi 27

Page 87



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Non technical summary

12

12.11

12.1.2

28

from tunnel excavation. HS2 Ltd would seek to re-use as much of this as possible within
the scheme design, for embankments and landscape proposals. Opportunities would be
sought to use any residual spoil within other schemes and proposals; disposal to landfill
would be used as a last resort.

Further mitigation and monitoring

The mitigation of adverse impacts has been fundamental to HS2 Ltd since work to identify
and design a proposed scheme commenced in spring 2009. In the development of HS2 to
date, mitigation has focused on avoiding impacts (mostly through option selection and
through the use of tunnels and changes in horizontal and vertical alignment) and
minimising impacts; for example, through reducing the width of the rail corridor within
sensitive environments to minimise landtake. As the general alignment becomes fixed and
the design more detailed, further opportunities to mitigate would be sought through the
abatement of impacts (for example through the use of noise barriers or landscape planting),
the remediation of impacts (for example by recreating habitat that becomes damaged) or
through compensation (for example by compensating business losses following land
acquisition or by creating new habitat elsewhere).

HS2's impacts would be assessed in detail as part of the environmental impact assessment
that would be undertaken if, following consultation, a decision is taken to proceed with high
speed rail and once a preferred route is confirmed by Government. The impacts would be
monitored as part of the routine project planning process.

Page 88



High Speed 2
Route Engineering Report

High Speed 2 Limited

164 Twyford to Newton Purcell

North of Twyford, at Chetwode, the curve required to sustain 400kph speeds is
such that the Great Central corridor could no longer be directly followed. The
route would take a smoother alignment to the east.

The route would regain the GC formation at Newton Purcell, crossing the A4421,
which would have to be diverted to the north over a length of about 1.5km.

The route would then be on the GC alignment to Mixbury.

Page 89 &




High Speed 2 Limited High Speed 2
Route Engineering Report

80 Page 90



High Speed 2 Limited High Speed 2

Route Engineering Report

11 Mixbury/Bs‘ackley to Lower Boddington

1i.1 Mixbury - the End of the Great Central Corridor

The route, approaching this area from the south, could no longer follow the
alignment of the Great Central railway corridor through Brackley. The route would
therefore deviate to the east of Mixbury, leaving the GC corridor from this point
north.

Page 91 81




High Speed 2 Limited

High Speed 2
Route Engineeting Report

ERTRL

i
I B}
4 g
- ;‘w»
:
b
V‘l
H
T
T
o=
I - B
Alemtaby E ;
¢
r
ey
o Surtacs e
.- Gf..ﬂw
s Tunrel :
| r— B % .
TEIRD 5 g ek Omass Ry

82

Page 92



Dear Transport Select Committee Chair

Please find attached the submission from 51m to the Transport Select Committee in
response to the questions posed.

51m represents the following 13 Local Authorities who are aligned in their response
to the HS2 consultation:

#  Buckinghamshire County Council
* Aylesbury Vale District Council

® Chiltern District Council

® South Bucks District Council

*  Wycombe District Council

® London Borough of Hillingdon

® Cherwell District Council

* Lichfield District Council

* South Northants District Council

*  Warwick District Council

*+ North Warwickshire Borough Council
*  Warwickshire County Counci!

* Stratford-on-Avon District Council

The 51m name represents the equivalent of how much HS2 will cost

each and every Parliamentary Constituency...£51million. The group wants to
emphasise the impact this proposed scheme will have on every taxpayer in the
country for years to come.

51m are opposed to the current High Speed rail proposals as they are presently

outlined and do not believe that they are in the best interests of the UK as a whole in
terms of the benefits claimed in the business case.

Page 93



51m are not opposed to higher speed rail per se and fully acknowledge the need for
strategic improvement to the national rail infrastructure. However, we do not
believe that all the other alternatives to achieve the transport capacity, regeneration
and environmental benefits have been fully explored by the Government and with in
excess of £30billion proposed to be invested, we owe it to the nation to ensure these
are fully explored. Due to the reasons outlined above and in the enclosed report, we
cannot support the current proposals suggested by Government and are actively
working on a plan to strongly object to them.

This submission has been formatted as a single strategic response to Question 1
(What are the benefits and drawbacks of HSR) together with amplification of the
issues raised in the subsequent chapters.

Yours faithfully

\/ \
Vedbeo A (g

Valerie Letheren

Cabinet Member for Transport
Buckinghamshire County Council
County Offices

Walton Street

Aylesbury

Buckinghamshire

HP20 1UY

Tel. 01296 382690

Email. vletheren@buckscc.gov.uk

Page 94



51m RESPONSE TO
TRANSPORT SELECT COMMITTEE
ON HS2

May 2011

— S
7 : WeHAs =Y
7 i e oA SLBY :
E 2 2 ?%) i» ” 2
& ‘ A T é/ s South Bucks et
b 00 é? 2 % Chl[tern - Disteier Counsd ,'V-YCOA I-BE
T :?,.Y CQ\) 2 Fict Dende LEETRICT CHENCE,

Seuth
Nerthamptonshire
Couacit

ouncxl

Page 95



MAIN ARGUMENTS AGAINST HS2 — QUESTION 1

introduction
51m is a consortium of Local Authorities between London and Birmingham
on the HS2 route. The Group is called 51m because £51m is the cost to each

Parliamentary constituency in the UK of the HS2 project.

This document is 51m'’s response to Question One, and will set out the
overall arguments against HS2. It will cross refer to the supporting evidence,
which form the chapters of this report and which in turn cross-refer to the
TSC's questions, although not in the same order, so that the Committee can

see where we have dealt with the relevant issues.

HS2 is an enormously expensive (£30bn Net Present Value) and
environmentally damaging piece of infrastructure, which requires £17bn
(NPV) of public subsidy. Even on the DfT’s own case, the Y has a benefit cost
ratio (“BCR”) of only 2.2 (excluding Wider Economic Impacts — WEI) and 2.6
(including WEI) and this reduces to 1.6 and 2.0 respectively for Phase 1, and
these are based on some over optimistic assumptions. HS2 should only be
given the go ahead if there is a clear case in the national interest, which has
been robustly and independently scrutinised. The DfT case is fundamentally
flawed in a large number of respects and has not been

adequately scrutinised and tested.

51m is not against high speed rail per se, but it must be the right project and
properly justified. The Government should not spend £billions, simply
because HSR is a modern and glamorous form of infrastructure, particularly
where smaller and less expensive transport schemes would give far greater
benefits in environmental, social and. transport terms. As Sir Rod Eddington
said in his 2007 Transport Study;

“because-the UK is-already well connected, the key economic challenge is

therefore to improve the performance of the existing network... There are
very high returns from making best use of existing networks [with...Jlarge

Page 96



projects with speculative benefits and relying on untested technology, are
unlikely to generate attractive returns.”

The evidence shows that HS2 would largely be used by those in the highest
income brackets {(and many of those for leisure purposes). In essence HS2 is
a massive public subsidy to the well off, with at best some doubtful

economic benefits.

There is a long history of over optimistic forecasting by the rail industry,
both in terms of passenger forecasts and costs. The Committee should bear
in mind that schemes such as this are developed by those who have a

strong interest in them, as is recognised by international studies.
The issues which arise on the DfT’s case are:

a) There are much cheaper incremental alternatives, which can meet the

forecast demand, but in a quicker and more responsive manner.
b) Demand forecasts are optimistic.
c) The rail industry has a poor record on passenger forecasting.
d) HS2 service provision of 18tph is undeliverable.
e) It wont reduce overall air travel and will have no climate change benefits

f) The benefits assumed are too high, particularly as assumptions about

time spent on trains being wasted are out of date.

g) The scheme will have little impact in rebalancing the regional economy,

in contrast to local and regional schemes that offer practical benefits.
n) It creates large disbenefits to many existing rail users.
i) Major construction impacts at Euston.
i} Nojustification for Heathrow and HS1 links.
k) HS2is-critically different from the European examples DfT rely upon.

Unredalistic Comparators/Better-Alternatives— Chapters 1 &10

Probably the most fundamental problem with the DfT’s economic analysis is

that they have not used the best alternative as their comparator with which

Page 97



10.

11.

12.

to test the business case, instead using a wholly unrealistic “do-minimum”
comparator with almost no changes over 30 years. The DfT’s principal
alternative, Rail Package 2 “RP2”, fails to optimise the opportunity for
extending and reconfiguring trains; includes unnecessary and costly
infrastructure; and fails to apply a consistent approach to the infrastructure
which is needed between it and HS2. This is contrary to basic principles on
carrying out a business case such as this, and has led to a wholly distorted

picture as to the need for, and benefits of, HS2.

DfT have used different do minimum cases for their evaluation of HS2 and
their alternative RP2 which results in the overestimation of the benefits of

HS2.

Issues about the level of passenger growth, how time is spent and the value
of time saved are inevitably open to subjective judgement, and ultimately
guesswork. But it is a simple fact that huge increases in capacity can be
produced on the relevant parts of the rail network, with relatively simple

and far cheaper steps than HS2, and which address crowding issues earlier.

There are a series of incremental improvements to the existing network
which can deliver more than sufficient to meet the forecast demand. These
steps have 4 major advantages over HS2. Firstly, they can be introduced
incrementally so that if the massive demand increases forecast by HS2 do
not materialise there is no wasted investment. Secondly, they are far
cheaper than HS2. Thirdly, they can be introduced much more quickly than
HS2, so can deal with existing overcrowding issues, rather than having to

wait until 2026 (at the earliest). Fourthly, they are very low risk.

In summary the incremental ways to increase capacity over the DfT base

case are:

a) Take accountof Evergreen 3 (line speed ncrease from London
Marylebone- Birmingham), which will be completed this year and
provides journey speeds to Birmingham only a few minutes longer than

those on Virgin trains, thereby reducing demand from Euston and

Page 98



13.

b)

c)

d)

increasing capacity including at peak times. This scheme was

deliberately ignored in the DfT business case.
X

Change the train configuration on Pendolinos to change at least one
carriage from first to standard. The overcrowding issues only arise in

standard class;

Lengthen existing Pendolinos, all to 11 car and then most to 12 car. The
combination of (b) and {c) produces 9 standard cars per train, in contrast

with 5 at the moment;

Introduce “smart” ticketing and demand management, to reduce peak
demand, for example eliminating the artificial peak on Friday after 7pm

at Euston;

Carry out a series of relatively “minor” infrastructure capacity
improvements at pinchpoints, including a grade separated junction
south of Milton Keynes, to allow improved separation between fast and

slow lines.

The cumulative capacity increases of these measures over the 2008 base

case demand would be in the order of trebling (211%), see table below, at a

total capital cost in the region of £2bn. Of course these steps would not

provide the journey time improvements of HS2. But once it is understood

that the majority of the benefits from the journey time reductions are

dependent on the assumption that business people do not work on trains, it

can be seen that spending £30bn (NPV) for this gain is a very poor use of

public money.

Page 99



Interventions Daily | Daily standard % increase above | Comments
trains | class seats 2008 base

Train investment with no/little

infrastructure investment

HS2 2008 Base 59,298 Base used by DfT for evaluation of
HS2. Predates full WCML upgrade
timetable

Current timetable 286 81,924 38% Includes Voyager services (30 daily)

Evergreen 3 [68] [28,900]1 [55%)] Committed scheme — complete in
2011

Committed lengthening project 286 105,924 79% Committed scheme — implemented
from 2012

December 2013 additional 306 113,769 92% Additional hourly off-peak train

services each way

First class reconfiguration 306 134,379 127% One car converted from first to
standard

12 car sets {except Liverpool) 306 166,908 181% Major physical constraints at
Liverpool

Infrastructure Investment

Additional services 336 184,326 211% 30 additional daily trains following
investment to relieve pinchpoints

14, These improvements would cause no disruption at Euston, as opposed to

HS2’s disruption which will be massive for 7-8 years. It is also important to

stress that the alternative would cause minimal disruption to the WCML and

is in no way comparable with the WCML upgrade which took place a few

years ago.

Demand Growth’- Chapter 2

15. DfT forecast is for 102% “background” demand growth to 2043, and 209%

including the additional growth generated by HS2. The DfT describe this as

“conservative”, but that is misleading. They justify this by reference to high

' fllustrative Evergreen 3 figures assume Chiltern trains-currently 4 car class 168 units (275
seats), lengthened to 6 car class 168 (425 seats) and this capacity increase is not included

in 211%

Page 100




16.

17.

18.

18.

levels of growth on long distance rail travel in the last 15 years and a very
strong relationship between increased wealth and increased long distance
rail trips. But this must be seen in the context of overall long distance trips
on all modes per person remaining constant since 1995; no rail growth in
the period 1952-1995; and rail travel being strongly influenced by
investment (including public subsidy) post privatisation. It is wholly unsound
to assume that the factors which led to rapid growth post 1995 will

continue to 2043.

The DfT have used assumptions on growth derived from the rail forecasting
manual (PDFH) for the period up to 2043, even though this is contrary to
their own normal forecasting practice; to Sir Rod Eddington’s
recommendations and to Network Rail’s position. To take a period of
exceptionally high growth, based on very particular factors, extrapolate it
forward for 35 years, and then to suggest that this is a conservative

approach is not justified.

Forecasting is inherently uncertain, and in recognition of this DfT’s own
Guidance imposes a cap of demand growth in 2026. DfT in its original
evaluation extended this to 2033, because of the long lead in time for HS2.
However, they have now extended the forecast period to 2043 and then
capped the forecast at double the current levels. The DT has therefore
applied its high growth figures for 35 (2008-2043) years. This leads to a
highly uncertain forecast. The failure to carry out any proper sensitivity

testing exacerbates the inadequacies of the forecast.

Even if one were to take a half way point between the growth forecast by
the DfT and the work carried out on behalf of 51m, the Benefit Cost Ratio
would fall to below 1.5 (excl. WEI), and therefore fails any normal test for

Government supported projects.

Rail Industry history of poor forecasting — Chapter 3
51m’s concern that the:passenger forecasts are seriously over optimistic, is

strongly supported by the rail industry’s very poor record on forecasting

Page 101



demand for major rail projects. CTRL (now HS1) predicted demand in 2006
of 25 million passengers, whereas the actual traffic is around 9 million. The
Public Accounts Committee in 2006 reported that the DfT had told them
that they had learnt from their mistakes and next time would factor in more

severe downside assumptions, but they have notably failed to do so, on

HS2.

20. Comparisons with HSR internationally are often cited, implying that we are
a long way behind other countries, however there are fundamental
differences between virtually all HSR networks and the UK: elsewhere their
rail journey times were much slower pre-HSR than in the UK, where WCML
is a modern 125mph railway; post-HSR their journey times are all more than
halved; and with the exception of Frankfurt - Cologne the distances are
much longer. The table below sets out the impact of HSR routes on journey
times for a number of international networks.

Distance Pre - HSR Post — HSR

Tokyo — Osaka 515km 6hrs 30mins 3hrs 10mins (now 2hrs 30mins)

Madrid — Seville 472km 6hrs 30mins 2hrs 45 mins (now 2hrs 30 mins)

Paris — Lyon 431km dhrs 1hrs 55 mins

Frankfurt — Cologne 180km 2hrs 20 mins 1hr 2 mins

London — Manchester 296km 2hr 08mins 1hr 13 mins proposed (from 2032)

London — Birmingham 182km 1lhr 24 mins 49 mins proposed

21. On the face of it, the Cologne - Frankfurt route appears to be equivalent to

London — Birmingham, at essentially the same distance. However, Cologne —
Frankfurt is part of a much wider network, with almost all trains going to or
coming from somewhere else, as part of longer distance routes such as
Amsterdam — Basel and Dortmund — Munich. The HSR route also gives
proportionately much greater time savings than HS2 to Birmingham, with
Cologne — Frankfurt times of 62 minutes, compared with timings-on the

tortuous classic route of 140 minutes. But London — Birmingham is only 84

Page 102




22.

23.

24.

25.

minutes today, and Virgin Trains say that they could deliver 70 minutes on

the existing track.

The DFT has placed great reliance on international examples to support its
case, however the evidence does not support this conclusion. The Dutch
HSR has financial problems, the President of SNCF has stated that the
network is decaying as investment is focused on TGV lines, distances
between stations on TGV lines are much greater than in the UK, and in
Germany the classic network is slow and not comparable with the UK

mainlines.

HS2 Service Provision — Chapter 4

The DfT passenger forecasts are reliant upon their assumptions about the
number of trains that can be provided, their speed and reliability. However,
their entire case rests on assuming 18tph for the full network, which is a
figure that has never been achieved anywhere in the world for high speed
infrastructure. High speed rail worldwide only has 12 -15 tph maximum.
Industry experts place no reliance on being able to achieve 18tph in the

foreseeable future.

In terms of reliability, the DfT assume a very high level of reliability,
although even on the full “Y” scheme many of the high speed trains will be
coming from the classic network and will be using train paths shared with
other users. This raises major doubts over the robustness of the

assumptions about reliability.

The entire forecasting exercise is therefore based on untried (indeed un-
invented) technology and unjustified assumptions about other train

operators.

Modal Shift from Air — Chapter 11
The DfT forecast only 6% of HS2 passengers are switching from air.
Domestic demand to-ail London airports has fallen by 26% since 2004 and it

is therefore very difficult to reconcile this with DfT predictions of 128%

Page 103



27.

28.

29.

30.

31

growth to 2043. Journey times from Glasgow/Edinburgh to Paris/Brussels

will remain over 6 hours and therefore no modal shift can be assumed.

It is interesting to note that even on Madrid-Barcelona, where the high
speed rail link reduced journey times from around 6 hours to 2 hrs 40mins

hours, there remain 25 flights per day, each way, on the route.

Benefits - Chapter 2

The key benefit of HS2 in its economic case is the value of shorter journey
times, which accounts for £18bn of the £44bn benefits. £14bn of this
depends on the assumption that time savings translate into greater
productivity for business travellers. This is because in the economic case the
DfT have assumed that time spent on trains is wasted, and have taken no
account of modern technology which allows business travellers to use train

time productively. This is considered in detail in “51Im Economic Case”.

The DfT seek to rebut this by saying that if one does assume that time on
trains is used productively then that is simply recovered by the benefits of
reducing overcrowding. But this is flawed. The much cheaper alternative
proposals reduce overcrowding more than HS2 (HS2 predicts load factor of
58% in 2043, whereas the Optimised Alternative has about 52% and even
the DfT alternative RP2 has 51%), and can provide additional capacity

sooner.

Given the above concerns, if you undertake a 50% downside sensitivity test
on the benefits in the business case (between DfT's and work done for 51m)
the BCR falls to less than 1.0 (excl. WE!) for Phase 1 and about 1.2 {excl.
WEI) for the Y.

Importantly the DfT in the business case has ignored price competition from
the classic network which post HS2 will have.much spare capacity. Itis
difficult to see-why those who are getting the benefit from high speed rail -
should not be paying premium fares for thase benefits, or to believe that
this will not happen in practice. But the DfT business case rests on there

being no premium fares, and the shortfall being made up by public subsidy.

Page 104



32.

33.

34.

Without this assumption the business case would fall much further because

the passenger forecasts would reduce significantly.

Economic Rebalancing and Regeneration — Chapters 3 & 5

The DfT now places great emphasis on the desirability of “rebalancing the
economy”, and “reshaping the economic geography” of the UK. It is well
established in the academic literature that the benefits of high speed rail
between regional centres and a dominant capital city are likely to accrue
significantly more to the capital than to the regions. Essentially the
argument is that if you provide very good transport links from the hub to
spokes, there is some benefit to spokes but most benefit to the hub. So
regional centres will gain something but most of the gain will fall to London
and SE, as by far and away the strongest areas of the national economy.
Even on the DfT’s case 7 out of 10 jobs are created in the South East and

twice as many new trips are generated to, compared with from London.

If Government wishes to prioritise rebalancing the economy, and
regenerating the Northern cities, then the way to achieve this is through
significant investment in transport between the northern cities, and within
their travel to work areas. This has been the clear aspiration of those

regions as set out in the Northern Way strategy and transport priorities.

Impacts Carbon — Chapter 6

In terms of carbon emissions the DfT’s own case is that HS2 will only be
carbon neutral. Given the massive public investment in the scheme, and the
overall contribution of transport to carbon emissions it seems odd that the
Government should support a scheme with so little carbon benefit. HS2 also
generates a very large number of new trips, i.e. people who are not
currently choosing to travel, and only achieves 7% of HS2 passenger shifting
from car use: Emerging Government policy is to encourage people to travei
less; and to prioritise schemes which-achieve a reduction in carbon

emissions. HS2 does neither.

Page 105



35.

36.

37.

38.

But in any event the forecast of HS2 being carbon neutral is itself extremely
optimistic. This forecast rests entirely on high assumptions about modal
shift from air see above, and most critically on making the assumption that
airport slots which are freed up by the reduction in domestic flights would
not be re-used. In reality it is quite clear that those slots, particularly at
Heathrow will be filled with long haul flights, which are both more
profitable for the airlines and much more carbon emitting. Aviation growth
is constrained by the number of runways in the SE of England. If HS2 frees
up slots at those airports then the inevitable consequence will be a growth

in carbon emissions.

Impact on Freight - Chapter 7

The current Network Rail freight strategy does envisage freight tonnage
growing in the next 30 years with the highest growth in containerised traffic
from the ports of Felixstowe, Southampton and Thames Gateway. The
current Felixstowe — Nuneaton freight upgrade project will take some 20
trains per day off the southern part of the WCML releasing capacity for
freight growth. Other investments are being made in the freight network

including Southampton — West Midlands gauge enhancement.

Freight almost exclusively uses. the slow lines on WCML, so has little impact
on fast lines services and capacity except when it has to cross the fast lines
on a flat junction or there are short 2 or 3 track sections. This happens at
certain pinch points: south of Nuneaton, Colwich and Stafford Infrastructure
works currently being delivered or proposed in alternatives would in any

event address the pinchpoints for freight.

Impacts on the Classic Network ~ Chapters 8, 9 &10

The HS2 case is based on no investment beyond those already committed
by 2015 on the' WCML, MML or ECML, until the'completion of HS2, even
though they are predicting major-growth on these'routesin the intervening
years. This will lead to major overcrowdingissues and is an unsustainable

position. Overcrowding currently exists on the commuter route between

Page 106



39.

40.

41,

Northampton/Milton Keynes and London and will not be addressed until

2026 at the earliest when Phase 1 of HS2 is proposed to open.

a) HS2 results in the WCML only having an average load factor of 31%.
£9bn has recently been invested in this route to make it the most

modern in the UK.

b) There will be capacity and/or frequency reduction to some cities, for
example Coventry, Wolverhampton, Stoke-on-Trent, Leicester,
Chesterfield, Peterborough and Doncaster. These reductions are
included in the business case, because there is an assumed saving of
around £5bn (NPV) in operating costs. Any promises to maintain existing
service levels to these cities would have serious impact on the business

case.

¢) As Heathrow Express(HEX) trains to stop at Old Oak Common, all GWML
services will also have to stop otherwise capacity on the route will be
reduced. This would add approximately 5mins to ail journey times

to/from the West and Wales.

There will be massive disruption throughout the construction period at
Euston station, for about 8 years. The scheme involves the reconstruction
and lowering of all the existing platforms and major changes to the
approach tracks. It is inconceivable that this can be achieved without

extensive track closures.

he creation of a station at Old Oak Common will have significant impacts
on the operation of the GWML, HEX and Crossrail services. The paucity of
detail on the Old Oak Common proposals make it impossible to predict what
will happen there, but both the Crossrail services and its depot are likely to

suffer major disruption.

Links to Heathrow and-HS1 —Chapters 11°& 12

The DFT proposal involves linking HS2 to Heathrow and HS1. It is beyond any

possible doubt there is no economic case for providing such links, a view

Page 107



42.

43,

44,

45.

held by the rail industry as well — the passenger forecasts are far too low.

Further, there are no train paths available for these services in any event.

This merely provides an example of how poorly thought out HS2 is, and how
proposals for expenditure of £billions of public funds have naot been

properly appraised.

Environmental Impacts — Chapter 13

HS2 have provided little detail on the environmental costs, benefits and
mitigation (apart from saying there will be some and allocating funding) for
London to Birmingham (Phase 1). No details have been provided for the Y
(Phase 2) and the route has not even been identified, although HS2 have
indicated that this will be divulged at the end of this year after the
consultation has been completed. This is the only opportunity for the
benefits and drawbacks to be understood and considered, before the
principle is fixed. The lack of information makes any valid consultation or

assessment impossible.

Any project of this magnitude will inevitably have significant environmental
impacts and HS2 will be no different, indeed its Appraisal of Sustainability
scores all aspects negatively. Due to the lack of information and the fact
that HS2 has not offered any mitigation measure, two authorities south of
Birmingham have undertaken their own initial investigations to reach an
initial understanding of the impacts. Buckinghamshire have major concerns
about impacts upon the AONB, local hydrology, habitats, heritage assets
and the wider landscape. Similarly Hillingdon and South Bucks have
significant concerns with Eegard to the Colne Valley Park, a vital local

resource.

Given that the route goes through four other rural counties, as well as
densely populated urban areas, it would not be unreasonable to assume
that the number of adverse impacts on environmental assets would be very

substantial.

Page 108



46.

47.

48.

49,

itis also important to remember the impact on people’s lives, both in terms

of noise and disruption, but also the 100s of dwellings to be demolished.

HSR has specific noise characteristics compared with classic rail and
although HS2 have focused a lot on noise in their road shows with the noise
booth, it is clear that this does not provide a true reflection of the impacts.
They have provided little detail on the real impacts in the areas either side
of the route. Fundamental to understanding the impact of noise on

dwellings, business, schools, AONB etc is the production of noise contours.

For these reasons it is not possible to understand the real environmental

costs and benefits of HS2 as little or no information has been provided.

Government Transport and Environmental Policy — Chapter 14 & 15

In the most fundamental aspects this proposal appears to be contrary to key

parts of Government policy

a) Itinvolves a major subsidy into rail transport at a point in time when the

Government is seeking to reduce subsidy to the rail industry.

b) It encourages people to travel more, indeed relies upon them doing so,
when Government policy is moving towards encouraging less trips and

more use of alternative tachnology.

c) lItinvolves a relatively small modal shift, when Government transport

policy is supposed to be focused on sustainable development.
d) It has neutral or negative carbon impact.

e) It produces highly speculative regeneration benefits and will be far less
effective in achieving the policy objective of rebalancing the economy,
than would far less expensive regional investments. This is contrary to

the policy priorities of the Northern Regions Development Agencies.

f)  Although the capital costs of HS2 will fall outside this spending review,
£750m is to be spent in this parliament simply on achieving the Hybrid
Bill.

Page 109



50.

51

Conclusions

For all these reasons 51m is of the view that the case for the HS2 scheme
does not begin to be made. Not only are there serious doubts over the
validity of the HS2 case but there is a real practical and low risk alternative,
which can meet the need as it arises and relatively cheaply. This is not as
exciting or high profile as HS2 but far better value for money. The
Committee is asked to request the DfT to undertake a fundamental

reappraisal.

“the risk is that transport policy can become the pursuit of icons. Almost
invariably such projects — ‘grand projects’ — develop real momentum, driven
by strong lobbying. The momentum can make such projects difficult —and
unpopular — to stop, even when the benefit:cost equation does not stack up,
or the environmental and landscape impacts are unacceptable”. Sir Rod

Eddington — The Transport Study.

Page 110



-

VBPPLTIO-MYUT-00-ci-EHHROUMEIQTO\SBUIME.Q UONHIISLOD GO~ NHHG e [BWei 1100 T LS02W006HUONSPURIPHLISRI,

7 ;/‘,l. [Ty — T Ny
~— ST e, ')
; SRt N o) K
) e =SSN S
# T, e S e LI T,
.. \ .
\ .
-
) Y V\
e IR | T % B
..\( \l‘l .....
e \
’ ) \

i
BN

o

<
S
5y

-l

P i

T

~
Ry,

(3

s

<

L
LY

X

A
FAY
£y

o SO

- £

na-f\.l"{
et 54
&

x} %
/

"

5

2z

i'-;:.:
New HS2 Viaduct

| i
-l

over Flood Plain

e
T

~

-
e

+G8

ey

Chainage

Horizontal AlignmenlJ

00Z+e8

W 2 3 2 2 2 M 2 Q Q -] [ ]
E 8 8 § 8 8 ¢ 8 g g 2 g ¢
RS e e = TSI RN (S N WY S " (-
ST
Mm oo i
mm P A
. W it
L . ,‘_
gL
mw RN - ke
ol B : : \
& F: h . §
; : ; : {
5 B : 4 \
” : Y 2 |
. F g i i
3 ; : ! 3 }
3 F 3 5 i i
3 . [ 5 . Vi
| : : : {
) ; ' : : !
: ; _ : : i
L 7 - H . i
g SN T, |
2 ¥ E i |
: : ! J
5 it i
: ; !
5 E [ 1
3 : L
. i !
. T— o
g i
w : |

anent | Tlood Plain 260m

- 00E+E8

- 009+E8

-008+€8

- 006+E8

- 000+v8

Q0L+v8

- 002+v8

00E+¥8

- 00y +¥8

- 00S+v8

009+v8

-00L+v8

-008+v8

- 006+¥8

- 000+58

- 001 +S8

- OOV +E8 -
+
00S+€8 i

-004+€8 a

.
=350.0

g




134

0ast

T R GEYY pUTUDUAS U] MeTY

gty Py creery .

oo

00s1

s
s“ﬂ“g‘“ﬁ"i
sl
3 £l

4 CEe)
[ gl

T -
s '/"

Si5

uuuuuu

5,
-

UM pOOIJ J8AD
DNPRIA ZSH Moy

UOIRISAK] proYy

Amoduss ) siqresod mon
7
: {




e S— . — | ——

AT L VA " P T

- <} Tanksstattt £
; , N

o 4 \,,a.)
i

N




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



HS2 London to the West Midlangs: Appraisal of Sustainability
Main Report Volume 1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2113

215

2.1.6

The new railway stations woulg be the Catalyst for new Commercig| enterprise and, over
time, woulqg stimulate Opportunities for businesseg to relocate and prosper at Euston ag part
of the over-site station deveiopment; at Old Oak Common Where an interchange station
would infiluence the development of the Park Royal Opportunity Area; in the West Midlands
where the interchange station wouylqg Support the development and Connections with the
Nationa| Exhibition Centre (NEC) and airport, and at Curzon Street in central Birmingham
where HS2 Passengers wouig have immediate access to the city centre’s New proposed
Commercial quarter as well as jtg existing facilities.

Overall, it has been forecast that HS2 coulq attract some 30,000 jobs from the planned
growth in employment for London ang the West Midlands to the areas around the proposed

Page 115

WP



I e e e~ L 1= s e D L i = - A" 41 A

HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Main Report Volume 1

2.1.10

2.1.11

2.1.12

2113

2.1.14

2.1.15

booa80. 1 prpie

But, in order to achieve this, substantial property demolition would be required, including
some 190 dwellings on the Regent’s Park Estate and some 25 further dwellings. The
immediate effect of this upon the local community at Euston would be significant. HS2 Ltd
would be committed to working closely and at an early stage with the London Borough of
Camden and the GLA and with community groups, residents’ associations-and affected
residents generally to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to meet the housing
needs of those affected by demolition of these dwellings, and to help to address wider
impacts on the local community. At Washwood Heath in Birmingham, the construction of a
new rolling stock depot would require the demolition of around 30 dwellings and the loss of
a number of commercial premises. A similar approach to Euston, involving close working
between HS2 Ltd and Birmingham City Counci! and with local residents and businesses
would be undertaken to help to minimise disruption to this community.

Elsewhere property demolitions, although significant to those people directly affected,
would be reasonably fow in number given the scale of the scheme.

There would be some localised disruption along the route during construction. The main
centres of population are in the greater London and greater Birmingham areas. The route
would also pass in the vicinity of a number of more dispersed villages, hamiets and isolated
farmsteads in the countryside. For the purposes of construction HS2 Ltd would develop
and implement a code of practice that would contractually bind the companies building the
route to reduce impacts to a practicable minimum.

Similarly, during operation railway noise would affect some people living along the
proposed route. Further appraisal work has made assumptions about what could
realistically be achieved through additional mitigation, such as noise barriers. On this
basis, ‘high’ noise levels would affect fewer than 10 dwellings. Approximately 150
properties would be likely to experience levels of noise which would qualify for noise
insulation payments under existing statutory compensation arrangements. There would be
up to 4,700 dwellings identified on the proposed route corridor that would be likely to
experience a noise change of 3 decibels or more (3dB being a just perceptible change in
total noise over an assessment period) that results in a daytime noise level of 50 decibels
or more (referred to in this document as a ‘noticeable’ noise change).

Experience from HS1 and other high speed railways shows that potentially significant
effects from vibration and ground-borne noise (audible vibration) in properties over tunnels
can be avoided. HS2 Ltd is committed to ensuring that no significant effects occur over
tunnels through London and the Chilterns.

The proposed route between London and the West Midlands would include some 225km of
new railway, passing through a variety of metropolitan, suburban and rural areas. Surface
sections have been located alongside existing railways and roads over some 55km.
Tunnels, totalling some 29km, would be provided to pass through hilly ground and to avoid
the densest population in London. The proposed route has been lowered in places and
90km would be in deep or very deep cutting. Some 2km of cutting near to certain villages
in rural areas would be covered for environmental benefits to form ‘green bridges’.
Elsewhere, approximately 85km of the proposed route would be at ground level or on
embankment and 21km would be on viaduct.

The Chiltern Hills, much of which is designated as an area of outstanding natural beauty
(AONB), would be crossed predominantly in tunnel and deep cutting with short elevated
sections variously on embankment and viaduct to the south of Wendover where the route
would be in close proximity to the A413 and Chiltern Railway. Some visual impact would
be inevitable but of the 20.5km of railway through the AONB, all but 2km would be either in
tunnel, in cutting and/or alongside the A413 main road. Extensive tree planting, as well as
the creation of planted earth mounds or ‘bunds’, carefully blended into the landform, would
help to further screen views and integrate the railway into the landscape.

Page 116

oo



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability é\,b
Main Report Volume 1

2.1.16

2117

2.1.18

2119

2120

2.1.21

Figure 1 — Cuttings, like those used on HS1, would help to screen views jarp)

Refinements to the proposed route have ensured that no Grade | and II* listed buildings
would be demolished, although the setting of three Grade [I* buildings would be likely to be
affected. Fifteen Grade Il listed buildings would need to be demolished. Some listed
structures in the Euston area would need to be relocated and the design of Euston Station
and its associated over-site development would need to take into account the setting of
Euston Gardens and the northern part of the Bloomsbury Conservation Area.

Three Registered Parks and Gardens would be physicaily impacted. However in each
case further route refinement has been undertaken to limit the landtake and effects upon
the settings of these features.

Two protected sites of archaeological importance would be physically impacted. These
scheduled monuments, Grim’s Ditch in the Chilterns and a Roman villa site in the vicinity of
Edgcote would be subject to prior archaeological investigation and academic study, in line
with Government guidance.

The proposed new railway would present a significant opportunity to reinforce and enhance
biodiversity. It would provide a green corridor to be colonised by plants and animals, and
could link with and form connections between existing habitats. There would, however, be
adverse effects at a number of sites.

No internationally protected sites of ecological interest would be adversely affected and
impacts to nationally protected sites would be restricted to a small number of locations.
Partial landtake would be required from two sites of special scientific interest (SSSI). A
number of locally designated sites and important habitats, such as ancient woodlands,
would be physically impacted. Where sites of ecological interest and local importance are
considered likely to be affected, further work would be undertaken during more detailed
design, and management plans would be drawn up and implemented to help minimise the
adverse effects on biodiversity.

Where the proposed route would cross rivers it has been designed to take account of future
flood risks by the inclusion of structures to bridge these areas. In some places, the
proposed route would pass in tunnel through important ground water resources.

Page 117 booaBeo. +¢rpns




HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Main Report Volume 1

Construction techniques would be implemented to reduce such risks to a practicable
minimum.

2.1.22 The proposed new railway would make good use of land that has had a previous industrial
or railway use. However, some productive agricultural land wouid be lost. Although the
-most important Grade 1 land would not be affected, the proposed route would pass across
Grade 2 agriculiural land for some 20km. Further work would be undertaken during later
design stages to seek to reduce agricultural landtake and severance.

2.1.23 Construction of the proposed scheme would generate and consume large quantities of
materials. HS2 Ltd would seek to re-use as much of this as possible within the scheme
design, for embankments and landscape proposals. Opportunities would be sought to use
any surplus spoil within other schemes and proposals; disposal to landfill would be used as
a last resort.

bocaeo, 1,1, Page 118




e

HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Main Report Volume 1

9

9n

9.1.1

bomfcs, TE;%lE Page 1 19

Mitigation and monitoring
Mitigation

The AoS has established key design principles and supported the options sifting process.
It has also identified potential adverse effects and helped guide refinements in the route
alignment, as well as the introduction of specific mitigation features, such as tunneis and

green bridges.

Different general types of mitigation are set out within a mitigation hierarchy;, illustrated in
Figure 36. The different types are shown in order of preference, with avoidance the most
preferred and compensation the least preferred. The opportunity to apply each of these
types of mitigation tends to vary with the stage in the scheme life cycle. At the earliest
stages, and well before any designs are fixed, potentially adverse impacts may be avoided:;
for example by rejecting a damaging option in favour of a benign one. As scheme design
increases in detail, flexibility to change it would decrease and alternative mitigation
strategies become appropriate. In the latest stages of the project lifecycle, with any design
fixed and agreed, mitigation might only be possible by providing compensation for an
adverse impact that is otherwise deemed unavoidable. E!A would be fundamental in
helping to establish the need for further mitigation and in determining the potential form of
this.

In the development of HS2 proposals to date, mitigation has focused on avoiding impacts
(mostly through option selection and through the use of tunnels and changes in horizontal
and vertical alignment) and, to some extent, minimising impacts; for example through
reducing the width of the proposed rail corridor within sensitive environments to minimise
landtake.

Figure 36 — The mitigation hierarchy

T Designing the project so that a feature causing animpact is

Option selection
. avoided {e.g. through changes in vertical or horizontal alignment;

Preferred scheme
selection

= Designing the project sothat a feature causing an impact is
| reducedie.g. lowering alignment to reduce visual impact)

W Abating, either on siteie.g. noise barrier) or at recaptor (e.g,

Outline design : :
| screening at a property)

Detailed design

I Compensationfor loss or darmage (e.g. planting new woodland
| elsewhere, or financial compersatior: for loss of amenity)

Implementation

Since the publication of HS2 proposals in March 2010, various refinements to the design
have been undertaken. These refinements are described within the text boxes in Section
3. They have almost all been undertaken to incorporate environmental mitigation, by way
of small changes in alignment (avoidance and minimisation) or introduction of particular
mitigation features, such as green bridges (abatement). Further opportunities to abate,
repair or compensate for potential impacts would be sought in later stages of scheme
development if HS2 progresses further.

Consultation will identify additional opportunities to mitigate the impact of any scheme.
Once consultation has been completed, further design would commence and the engineers
would further refine the scheme. This work would carefully consider issues that were
raised in consultation, and would work to further reduce impacts on the environment. An
EIA would then be undertaken which would provide a further opportunity to incorporate
mitigation within the design.

129



HS2 London to the West Midlands: Appraisal of Sustainability
Main Report Volume 1

9.2 Monitoring

9.2.1 HS2 Ltd would monitor the significant environmental effects of the impiementation of the
project in order to identify at an early stage unforeseen adverse effects, and to be able to
undertake appropriate remedial action. Unforeseen effects are often interpreted as being
underlying assumptions that turn out to have been incorrect or outside the context of the
appraisal, for instance about population changes or economic growth.

9.22 In particular, EIA would identify the significant residual effects of HS2 (after mitigation
measures have been incorporated) and set in train the process by which they could be
monitored as part of the routine project planning process. This includes impacts on
landscape/townscape, historic and archaeological heritage, biodiversity, water resources,
flood risk, air quality, noise and vibration, health, security, land use, waste generation and
resource use.

9.23 HS2 could also have some national level impacts; and some of the assumptions on whick: it
is based could affect the development of future rail lines (conventional as well as high
speed) in the UK. Going forward, a monitoring programme could be established which
would address these strategic impacts and define mechanisms for dealing with them.

Page 120 ocnten

130



Agenda ltem 7

Executive

Armed Forces Community Covenant
4 July 2011

Report of the Chief Executive and the
Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides an update on the Oxfordshire Armed Forces Community
Covenant and Cherwell District Council’s response to it.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:
1) To note the importance of the Armed Forces Community Covenant and

request that officers work across all Council services to ensure there are clear
plans in place to deliver the aspirations of the Covenant.

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 Oxfordshire is amongst the first counties to launch the Armed Forces
Community Covenant, and on 20 June, Cherwell's Chairman, Councillor
Hallchurch MBE joined the County's other District Council Chairmen, and
County Council leader CliIr Keith Mitchell CBE, in signing it.

1.2  The Armed Forces Community Covenant reinforces the bond between the
local community and the armed services. It reflects the national covenant
between the military and the nation and gives local expression to how the
public, private and voluntary sectors can support the men and women of our
armed focuses along with their families and children. This includes current
service personnel, reservists and veterans.

1.3 The high level covenant is attached at Appendix 1. This encapsulates the

commitment and aspirations behind the covenant and acts as a county wide
framework for plans and actions at a local level.

Page 121



1.4

1.5

1.6

The County Council will be coordinating the covenant and in the coming
weeks asking for pledges and actions from those who have signed up to it,
including district councils and the voluntary/community sector.

Proposals

Cherwell District Council has signed up to the county wide covenant and
therefore does not need to draft an additional local version. However it is
important that the Council takes steps to ensure the commitments outlined in
the county wide covenant are met. To this end the Council will:

o Ensure that we continue to build strong links with armed forces
representatives and work with regional and local bodies to develop these
relationships.

e Ensure services support current and ex armed services personnel by
considering their needs through service planning, community
development and engagement work.

e Participate in the cross county partnership to ensure the covenant is
developed, implemented and makes a difference to the armed forces
community in the district and across Oxfordshire.

o Ensure Councillors, employees and partners are aware of the covenant its
importance and implications for the Cherwell District.

Conclusion

The Armed Forces Community Covenant is an important commitment on the
part of the District Council to support armed services personnel, their families,
children, reservists and veterans. The Council views the local military as an
important part of the community and part of the tradition within the District and
will continue to work in local partnerships and across the County to ensure
the commitments outlined in the covenant are met.

Background Information

2.1

An overview of the Armed Forces Community Covenant

The Community Covenant is a voluntary statement of mutual support
between a civilian community and its local Armed Forces Community. It is
intended to complement the Armed Forces Covenant, which outlines the
moral obligation between the Nation, the Government and the Armed Forces,
at the local level. The aim of the Community Covenant is to encourage local
communities to support the Service community in their area and nurture
understanding and awareness amongst the public of issues affecting the
Armed Forces community.

The Community Covenant complements the national Armed Forces Covenant
but enables service providers to go beyond the national commitments. It
allows for measures to be put in place at a local level to support the Armed
Forces. The Community Covenant encourages local communities to develop
a relationship with the Service community in their area; this enables support
to be tailored according to need.

Page 122



2.2

2.3

Policy Context

Nationally the Community Covenant is a new initiative and Oxfordshire has
been recognised as a front runner in signing up to a county wide document,
other leading authorities are Hampshire, Portsmouth and North Yorkshire.
The launch on 20™ June included a video address from the Prime minister
recognising the already strong local connections and important role that the
armed services play in the community life of Oxfordshire.

The national aspiration is that the community covenants reflect the local
community and are shaped by local partners to ensure that community needs
are met. To this end the covenant is flexible and will be further developed in
the coming months.

Future Funding Opportunities

The Defence Secretary has announced that £30M of central Government
funding has been allocated over the next four years to support the Community
Covenant. The details of the grant scheme have not yet been published.
However it is likely that the scheme’s aims will defined in terms of supporting
projects, at the local level, which strengthen the ties or the mutual
understanding between members of the Armed Forces Community and the
wider community in which they live.

Cherwell District Council will work with cross county partners on any projects
bids as they are developed.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1 The report highlights the importance of the Armed Forces Community
Covenant for Cherwell and outlines the steps the Council will take to ensure
that its commitments and aspirations are embedded in it work and its
partnerships.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward

Option One To approve the recommendations above

Option Two To amend or reject the recommendations above.

Consultations Not Applicable

Implications

Financial: None arising from this report. Future financial impacts will

be considered as the policy and approach develops.

Comments checked by Karen Curtain, Head of Finance ,
01295 221559

Page 123



Legal:

Risk Management:

None

Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Principal Solicitor,
01295 221687

Failure to adhere to the Community Covenant will result in
reputational damage to the Council. Failure to deliver
effective services to armed forces personnel will result in
poor performance and negative outcomes for the affected
community.

The author of this report is responsible for the
performance and risk management framework, Claire
Taylor, Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager,
01295 221563.

Signing up to the Armed Forces Community Covenant
supports the Council’'s corporate equality action plan and
priorities within the Sustainable Community Strategy for
Cherwell.

Comments checked by Caroline French, Partnership and
Equalities Officer, 01295 221586

Equalities
Wards Affected
All

Corporate Plan Themes

The Armed Forces Community Covenant covers all of the Corporate Plan themes

Executive Lead Member

Councillor Barry Wood

Leader of the Council, Executive Lead for Partnerships

Document Information

Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1 The Oxfordshire Armed Forces Community Covenant

Background Papers

More details regarding the covenant can be found at www.mod.uk/covenant

Report Author Claire Taylor, Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager
Contact 01295 221563

Information claire.taylor@cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 124




Appendix 1

(3

Community Covenant

AN ARMED FORCES COMMUNITY COVENANT

BETWEEN

Oxfordshire County Council, the District Councils of Oxfordshire,
representatives of the Armed Forces Charities and the Business
Community of Oxfordshire.

AND

The Armed Forces Community in Oxfordshire

We, the undersigned, agree to work and act
together to honour the Armed Forces
Community Covenant

Page 125



Signatories

Clir Keith R Mitchell CBE
Leader

Signed on behalf of Oxfordshire
County Council

Joanna Simons CBE

Chief Executive

Signed on behalf of Oxfordshire
County Council

Commodore Timothy Hennessey DL
BSc MA
Signed on behalf of the Royal Navy

Brigadier Neil Baverstock OBE MA
Signed on behalf of the Army

Group Captain Dominic Stamp MA
Signed on behalf of the Royal Air
Force

Clir Bob Price
Leader

Signed on behalf of:
Oxford City Council

ClIr Timothy Hallchurch MBE
Chairman

Signed on behalf of:
Cherwell District Council

ClIr Felix Bloomfield,

Chairman

Signed on behalf of:

South Oxfordshire District Council

ClIr Alison Thomson

Chairman

Signed on behalf of:

Vale of White Horse District Council

ClIr Derek Cotterill

Chairman

Signed on behalf of:

West Oxfordshire District Council

Page 126



Dr Martin Dare-Edwards
Chairman, Oxfordshire Local
Enterprise Partnership
Signed on behalf of:

The Business Community

Rt Revd Colin Fletcher OBE
Bishop of Dorchester

Brigadier Michael (M J F) Stephens
MA CEng MICE

Chairman, SSAFA Forces Help
Oxfordshire

Signed on behalf of:

The Armed Forces Charities

Michael Henderson

Oxfordshire County Chairman, Royal
British Legion

Signed on behalf of the Armed
Forces Charities

Signed on 20™ June 2011

Page 127



SECTION 1: PARTICIPANTS
This Armed Forces Community Covenant is made between:

The serving and former members of the Armed Forces and their families
working and residing in Oxfordshire

And

Oxfordshire County Council
And

District Councils of Oxfordshire
And

The Armed Forces Charities
And

The Business Community

SECTION 2: PRINCIPLES OF THE ARMED FORCES COMMUNITY
COVENANT

2.1 The Armed Forces Community Covenant is a voluntary statement of
mutual support between a civiian community and its local Armed Forces
Community. It is intended to complement the Armed Forces Covenant, which
outlines the moral obligation between the Nation, the Government and the
Armed Forces, at the local level.

2.2  The purpose of this Community Covenant is to encourage support for
the Armed Forces Community working and residing in Oxfordshire and to
recognise and remember the sacrifices made by members of this Armed
Forces Community, particularly those who have given the most. This includes
in-Service and ex-Service personnel their families and widow(er)s in
Oxfordshire.

2.3 For Oxfordshire County Council and partner organisations, the
Community Covenant presents an opportunity to bring their knowledge,
experience and expertise to bear on the provision of help and advice to
members of the Armed Forces Community. It also presents an opportunity to
build upon existing good work on other initiatives such as the Welfare
Pathway.

24 For the Armed Forces community, the Community Covenant

encourages the integration of Service life into civilian life and encourages
members of the Armed Forces community to help their local community.

Page 128



SECTION 3: OBJECTIVES AND GENERAL INTENTIONS
Aims of the Community Covenant

3.1 The Armed Forces Community Covenant complements the principles of
the Armed Forces Covenant which defines the enduring, general principles
that should govern the relationship between the Nation, the Government and
the Armed Forces community

3.2 It aims to encourage all parties within a community to offer support to
the local Armed Forces community and make it easier for Service personnel,
families and veterans to access the help and support available from the MOD,
from statutory providers and from the Charitable and Voluntary Sector. These
organisations already work together in partnership at local level.

3.3 The scheme is intended to be a two-way arrangement and the Armed
Forces community are encouraged to do as much as they can to support their
community and promote activity which integrates the Service community into
civilian life.

CONTACT PERSONNEL AND TELEPHONE NUMBERS

MOD DCDS (Pers&Trg) Covenant Team

Contact Name: Lisa Harper

Title: DCDS (Pers) Sec Covenant 1
Telephone: 020 7218 9110

Address: DCDS (Pers) Covenant Team

Zone D, 6™ Floor
Ministry of Defence
Main Building
Whitehall

London

SW1A 2HB

Oxfordshire County Council:

Contact Name: Claire Moore
Title: Partnerships Manager
Telephone: 01865 323966
Address: Oxfordshire County Council
Chief Executive’s Office
County Hall
New Road
Oxford
OX1 1ND

Page 129



THE ARMED FORCES COVENANT

An Enduring Covenant Between

The People of the United Kingdom
Her Majesty’s Government

— and -

All those who serve or have served in the
Armed Forces of the Crown and their Families

The first duty of Government is the defence of the realm. Our
Armed Forces fulfil that responsibility on behalf of the Government,
sacrificing some civilian freedoms, facing danger and, sometimes,
suffering serious injury or death as a result of their duty. Families
also play a vital role in supporting the operational effectiveness of
our Armed Forces. In return, the whole nation has a moral
obligation to the members of the Naval Service, the Army and the
Royal Air Force, together with their families. They deserve our
respect and support, and fair treatment.

Those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether Regular or
Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families,
should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration
is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given
most such as the injured and the bereaved.

This obligation involves the whole of society: it includes voluntary
and charitable bodies, private organisations, and the actions of
individuals in supporting the Armed Forces. Recognising those
who have performed military duty unites the country and
demonstrates the value of their contribution.

This has no greater expression than in upholding this Covenant.

Page 130



Agenda Iltem 8

Executive
Horton General Hospital and Health Sector Changes
4 July 2011

Report of Strategic Director of Environment & Community

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider the progress and current position regarding the implementation of
alternative service models for the Horton General Hospital. To consider also the
radical changes in the health sector and the latest position in changes locally.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

1) To note the good progress in implementing sustainable service delivery
models at the Horton General Hospital.

2) To urge the Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals Trust to implement as soon as
possible the revised model for maternity and gynaecology.

3) To support the establishment of a Community Partnership Network with

membership drawn from local health and social care service
commissionaires and providers plus relevant stakeholders.

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1. Following the intervention of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel in
2007, Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) was tasked with coming up
with a new sustainable service model for the Horton General Hospital
(HGH) jointly with the Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals Trust (ORHT). Since this
time, a significant programme of activity has been undertaken which has
been successfully concluded.

1.2. The Coalition Government announced in 2010 radical changes to the way

the NHS is structured and the way it commissions and delivers health and
social care services. This report outlines the changes and local proposals.

Page 131



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Proposals

The implementation of the new service models at the HGH is largely
complete: The outstanding appointments to maternity and gynaecology are
necessary for a sustainable service model and therefore the ORHT should
complete the recruitment process for this as soon as possible.

It's proposed to establish a new stakeholder body with its primary aim to act
as a local focal point to understand, influence and support the many
changes taking place in the health and social care sector.

Conclusion
With the successful completion of the new service delivery models for the

HGH, the focus of attention needs to shift to the wider changes taking place
in the health and social care centre.

Background Information

The Horton General Hospital

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

The Independent Reconfiguration Panel published its report on proposed
changes to services at the HGH on 20 March 2008. This report rejected the
proposals made by the ORHT and presented a number of
recommendations for taking the work forward. This included a
recommendation that the Oxfordshire PCT should carry out further work
with the ORHT to set out the arrangements and investment necessary to
retain and develop services at the HGH. Patients, the public and other
stakeholders should be fully involved in this work.’

A Better Healthcare Programme in Banbury and Surrounding Areas was
established by the PCT to deliver this recommendation. The formal
governance of this programme involved an operational Project Team, a
formal Programme Board and an advisory Community Partnership Forum.

In June 2010, a consultant delivered model was agreed to sustain
paediatrics and obstetrics at the HGH requiring substantial additional
investment. The Anaesthetics service has been running since the start of
November 2010 with consultants taking on extra sessions. No additional
appointments were needed. The Paediatrics service required 11 new posts
and recruitment to these has been completed.

The Obstetrics & Gynaecology service has proven more complicated. This
service was progressing more slowly, partly due to the national reduction in
number of trainees in this specialism. The current position is that after the
development of different service models, no decision has yet been taken on
which is most appropriate and is dependent on national direction and
Oxfordshire wide application. In the meantime, the ORHT has put in place
interim measures which provide the required level of service robustness
and quality whilst the longer term service model is finalised.

As a consequence of this overall position, the PCT’s Better Healthcare in

Banbury Programme was ceased in March 2011 and with it, the Community
Partnership Forum.

Page 132



Changes in the Health and Social Care Sector

2.6. The main changes originally proposed by the Coalition Government are as
follows:-

The National Health Service (NHS):

o Will retain its traditional values of universality and care which is free at
the point of delivery.

o Will have a clear commissioning-provider split with more autonomy for
NHS trusts.

o Will have its commissioning function coordinated nationally by a new
commissioning board.

o Will be delivered at local level by GP commissioning consortia but
there is no requirement to have co-terminus boundaries with local
government.

Local Authorities:

o Will have increased responsibilities to coordinate overall health policy
for an area, joining together in particular the work of local government,
the NHS and the new National Public Health service. The favoured
option for doing this is through a Health and Well-being Board led by
top tier local councils which in our case will be OCC. This is proposed
to incorporate the current Health Scrutiny Function.

o Will have increased responsibilities for ' health improvement '.

o Will employ the local Director of Public Health, who will be jointly
appointed by the National Public Health service.

o Will oversee a new ring-fenced budget which will be managed by the
Director of Public Health.

o Be accountable for achieving improved outcomes for the public's
health.

The National Public Health Service (PHS):

o Will have clear managerial ' line-of-sight ' from the Secretary of State
and the Chief Medical Officer down to local authorities, the local
Director of Public Health and thus to the public.

o Will be accountable for a range of activities including: health
promotion, disease prevention, health inequalities, immunisation,
screening, assessing local needs, control of communicable diseases,
emergency planning in the NHS and specialist support to the local
commissioning of organisations.

o Will bring together a number of existing bodies, including Public
Health services which are currently within the NHS, regional Public
Health Observatories and the Health Protection Agency.

These relationships are summarised in the diagram at Appendix 1 and
Appendix 2 contains more detail about these proposals.

Page 133



2.7.

2.8.

Last month, the NHS Future Forum released its recommendations of
changes needed to the Government’s health reform proposals following its
‘listening’ exercise. This was followed quickly by the Government’s
response to the recommendations which is summarised as follows:

e Wider involvement in clinical commissioning groups. A wider
range of experts will be given the power and freedom to make
decisions about health services for their local community by, for
example, including nurses and specialists on the boards of clinical
commissioning groups.

e Stronger safeguards against a market free-for-all. The health care
regulator Monitor’s core duty will be to protect and promote patients’
interests, it won't be required to promote competition as if it were an
end in itself.

¢ Additional safeguards against privatisation. It is not the
Government’s intention to privatise the NHS, and will create a genuine
level playing field to stop private companies ‘cherry-picking’ profitable
NHS business. Competition will be on quality, not price.

o Evolution, not revolution. It is proposed that allow clinical
commissioning groups take charge of commissioning when they are
ready and able, and a more phased approach to the introduction of
Any Qualified Provider.

¢ Greater information and choice for patients. The Government will
make clear that the people who make decisions about local services
have a duty to promote patient choice. And following current pilots, the
Government will make it a priority to extend personal health budgets
including across health and social care.

¢ Breaking down barriers within and beyond the NHS. A new duty
for clinical commissioning groups will be to promote joined up services
both within the NHS and between health, social care and other local
services.

¢ Whole population approach. Clinical commissioning groups will be
responsible for their whole population rather than just registered
patients.

¢ Public Involvement. Health and Well Being Boards will have a new
duty to involve users and the public.

o Transparency and Pubic Accountability. Every commissioning
group will have a governing body to oversee its decisions and its use
of funds. This body will include at least two lay members and will be
required to meet in public.

In Oxfordshire, OCC are in the process of considering the nature and
structure of the new Health and Well Being Board plus Healthwatch and the
scrutiny function and will now take the above changes into account. In
relation to the new GP commissioning consortia arrangements, GPs have
agreed a county-wide GP commissioning consortium model supported by
six local consortia of GP practices with devolved power and responsibility
for commissioning services in order to shift decision-making as close as
possible to patients. These will now be called clinical commissioning
groups. In Cherwell, this means building on the current GP practice based
commissioning arrangements and will result in two local consortia — North
Oxfordshire based on Banbury and North East based on Bicester.

Page 134



A Proposed New Stakeholder Body — a Community Partnership Network

2.9. The Better Healthcare Programme Board was advised by a Community
Partnership Forum. One of the many benefits which arose from the Better
Healthcare Programme was the effectiveness of community engagement
and involvement in the changes at the Horton General Hospital. This has
arisen largely through the work of the Community Partnership Forum in
developing a strong sense of trust between relevant health sector partners,
offering strong leadership and support in finding solutions and effective
communication during times of change and uncertainty.

2.10. Whilst the work of the Better Healthcare Programme has reached a
successful conclusion, it is clear that the health and social care sector as a
whole is about to enter a further period of change and uncertainty
particularly around new commissioning responsibilities through GPs. During
the period of the Better Healthcare Programme activities, many Forum
members and partners have developed a wider understanding of the
different aspects of the health sector and a range of skills which are
transferrable and relevant to the forthcoming changes.

211. It is therefore proposed to establish a new body - the Community
Partnership Network, to focus on these changes and in so doing, ensuring
that these local strengths are used to best effect in supporting health and
social care sector and to consolidate the work of the Better Healthcare
Programme into the new world of health and social care in North
Oxfordshire and surrounding areas. It is intended to have an initial 2 year
life from mid 2011 to 2013 following which it will be necessary to review in
light of the new health sector commissioning arrangements, the anticipated
ORHT Foundation Trust status and Healthwatch having been implemented.
This Network is not intended to cut across or replace the specific public and
patient involvement responsibilities of healthcare providers.

2.12. North Oxfordshire and surrounding areas is suggested as the correct
geographic focus for this new body as this best reflects the traditional
‘Banburyshire’ geography which is so relevant to the uniqueness of this
locality because of the Horton’s catchment and the likely influence of this on
the new GP commissioning arrangements. This geography extends into the
catchment for Bicester GPs as part of the NE Oxfordshire GP
Commissioning Consortia. It also reflects where the strength of the current
partner and community engagement functions lie arising from the Better
Healthcare Programme.

2.13. The aims of the new body are;

1) To act as the focal point for stakeholder engagement and
communication associated with changes in the local health sector.

2)  To support the ORHT in its Foundation Status

3) To support the ORHT in the development of the agreed vision for the
HGH and the new consultant delivered service models.

4)  To support the local GP Commissioning Consortia in delivering the
best primary health care locally and the seamless links to secondary
healthcare.

5) To support the County Council in developing effective local links
between social care and primary and secondary healthcare

Page 135



2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

6) To support the County Council in developing the local Healthwatch
plus the role, remit and networks for the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Network will challenge, question and understand how commissioners
and providers allocate funds and deliver health services to the communities
they serve. Whilst an appropriate level of challenge should prevail, it is
important that the three primary stakeholders of the Network — ORHT/GP
Commissioners/OCC — sign up to an ethos of co-operation, so that
meetings are more than just a talking shop, and genuinely exist to ensure
that best use is made of health and social care resources. Being innovative,
creating new and better ways of working together, encouraging
accountability and authenticity should be the accepted modus operandi of
the group, so that it is a genuine partnership model.

In order to ensure the membership numbers of the Community Partnership
Network are manageable, membership is restricted to representatives of
key local stakeholders which include the commissioners and providers of
health and social care services. However, one of the major successes of
the Better Healthcare Programme was the public access to and involvement
in almost all its activities. This approach developed trust and maintained
transparency. In order to maintain this benefit, proposed quarterly meetings
of the Community Partnership Network will be meetings in public where the
members of public attending will have the opportunity to ask questions and
to contribute to the debate and challenges of the Network’s business. The
Council’s representative will be the Lead Member for the Environment.

It is intended that Cherwell District Council will continue to host and provide
administrative support for this activity in a similar manner as it did for the
former Community Partnership Forum. All Network documents to be
available on the Council, ORHT and other appropriate websites. A new
Chairman will need to be recruited and again the Council plans to do this on
behalf of the Network.

The first meeting of the Community Partnership Network has been held
recently where there was widespread support for the arrangements as
described.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1.

3.2.

A key issue associated with the HGH is the ongoing sustainability of the
agreed service levels when the commissioning body and arrangements will
be changing. There is a perceived threat that the health sector reforms will
provide greater competition from the private sector which could impact on
the HGH. By having a stakeholder group which brings together the key
commissioners and providers i.e. GPs, ORH & OCC, there will be a local
focus and dialogue on how this works in practice and to attempt to influence
the future commissioning of services from the HRH.

A further issue relates to the extent of public involvement in the services
and the new Community Partnership Network. Each commissioner and
service provider is expected to have their own arrangements for this and it
will be important not to duplicate and have clarity of responsibility. Past
experience does indicate that there is not wide public understanding of the

Page 136



3.3.

structure and responsibilities of the current health service. In such
circumstances and with so much significant change about to happen, it is
important at the very least that the new Network does attempt to improve
this position.

The principle behind the Community Partnership Network is to have
meetings in public with managed, but considerable public participation
during the meeting. This worked well for the previous Forum and it is
intended to continue for this new body, thereby allowing wider public
participation for the sector issues as a whole.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward:

Option One To support the Community Partnership Network.

Option Two To withdraw from involvement in public engagement,

communication and changes in the health and social care
sector.

Option Three To attempt to engage partially with the health and social

care sector through individual organisations rather than a
collective stakeholder group.

Consultations

Better Healthcare The former Better Healthcare Programme Board and
Board/Community community Partnership Forum were consulted on these
Partnership Forum proposals and were supportive.

Implications

Financial: There are no financial implications arising from this report.

The support which the Council provides is hosting
meetings and the involvement of the Strategic Director
Environment & Community and is therefore provided
within approved budgets. The cost of recruiting and
engaging a Chairman is to be funded equally between
OCC, the local GP Consortia and the ORHT.

Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance,

01295 221551.

Legal: There are no legal implications arising from this report.
Comments checked by Nigel Bell Team Leader —
Planning & Litigation / Interim Monitoring Officer , 01295
221686

Risk Management: There are no notable risks arising from this report.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate Strategy
and Performance Manager (01295 221563).

Page 137



Wards Affected

Most District Wards

Corporate Plan Themes

A Safe and Healthy Cherwell

Executive Portfolio

Councillor James Macnamara
Lead Member for the Environment

Document Information

Appendix No Title

Appendix 1 Diagram summarising coalition government proposals for the
main health organisations

Appendix 2 NHS white paper July 2010 — summary of key changes

Background Papers

Report Author lan Davies, Strategic Director Environment and Community

Contact 01295 221698

Information ian.davies@cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 138




Appendix 1

Diagram Summarising Coalition Government Proposals
for the Main Health Organisations

NHS LA PHS 5
)
:
Cabinet Subcommittee for Health and Health Improvement =
L]
rv.!'li
National
Commissioning
Board
NHS GFP 0.CC. Social Care
Foundarion Commissioning
Trusts Consortia ===l e e = === -
District | |  Jointly appointed DPH 1
| | e o e = = = = = J -
Local LA - led Health and Wellbeing Board g
l | l | 1 | |2
&
Local People: better informed and empowered.
Supported by Carers, Voluntary orgamisations, and Self Care.

The diagram shows the three main ‘pillars’ of the ‘health system’ in coalition
thinking, namely the National Health Service (NHS), local authorities (LA) and
the National Public Health Service (PHS). The national level is shown at the
top of the diagram and the local level at the bottom. The known components
of each pillar are set out in boxes on the respective pillar.

The two horizontal boxes which cut across all pillars show the two main
mechanisms proposed to join-up public sector action. These are the Cabinet
Sub-Committee at national level and the Health and Wellbeing Boards at local

level.

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Appendix 2

NHS White Paper July 2010 — Summary of Key Changes

| GP Commiissioning

Devolved commissioning responsibilities and budgets to GP consortia
with full financial responsibility by April 2013

A comprehensive system of GP consortia in place in shadow form during
2011/12, taking on progressively increased responsibility from PCTs

GP commissioning to have statutory footing

Every GP practice to be a member of a consortia

Consortia to be accountable to NHS Commissioning Board.

| Local Authority / Social Care

PCT responsibilities for local health improvement to transfer to local
authorities (OCC)

New statutory arrangements in local authorities (OCC) to take on the
function of joining up commissioning of local NHS services, social care
and health improvement - to be established as "health and wellbeing
boards" or in existing strategic partnerships

Ring-fenced public health budget available to jointly appointed local DPH
including health premium for reducing health inequalities

Use of powers that enable joint working between the NHS and local
authorities to be simplified and extended

Local Authorities to be responsible for:

o  Promoting integration and partnership working between NHS, social
care, public health and other local services and strategies;

o Leading joint strategic needs assessments, and promoting
collaboration on local commissioning plans, including by supporting
joint commissioning arrangements where each party so wishes; and

o  Building partnership for service changes and priorities - there will be
an escalation process to the NHS Commissioning Board and the
SoS, which will retain accountability for NHS commissioning
decisions.

These functions to replace the current statutory functions of Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Wide consultation on options for more integrated health and social care
services

Long-term care commission to be established to report within a year
Continued work on social care law reform with the Law Commission.

Page 141




Appendix 2

| QIPP — Quality, Innovation, Productivity, Prevention

QIPP initiative to continue with a stronger focus on general practice
leadership

PCTs and SHAs to seek to devolve leadership of QIPP to emerging GP
consortia and local authorities as rapidly as possible, wherever they are
willing and able to take this on

SHAs and PCTs to be required by DH to have an increased focus on
maintaining financial control during the transition period.

| PCTs / SHAs / NHS Trusts

Separation of PCT commissioning and provider arms to be completed by
April 2011 and all community services to be provided by foundation
trusts or other types of provider

Separation of SHAs commissioning and provider oversight functions by
end 2010

SHAs to be abolished during 2012/13

PCTs to be abolished by April 2013

All NHS Trusts to become, or be part of, a foundation trust by 2013/14.
Consult on options for increasing foundation trusts’ freedoms

NHS’s management costs to be reduced by more than 45% over 4
years.

| Regulation, Inspection and Performance

Independent NHS Commissioning Board established in shadow form as
a special health authority from April 2011

Board to take over the current CQC responsibility of assessing NHS
commissioners and will hold GP consortia to account for their
performance and quality

Strengthened role for MONITOR as economic regulator by 2012.
Strengthened role for CQC as quality regulator

Health Watch England consumer champion to be placed in CQC

LINKs to become the local Health Watch ‘local authorities to be able to
commission local Health Watch or Health Watch England to provide
advocacy and support

Current performance regime to be replaced with separate frameworks for
outcomes that set direction for the NHS, for public health and social care
The SoS, through the Public Health Service, to set local authorities
national objectives for improving population health outcomes

Expanded role of NICE to develop quality standards for social care.

Page 142



Agenda ltem 9

Executive

Value for Money Review of Economic Development
4 July 2011
Report of Strategic Director for Planning, Housing & Economy, Head of
Planning Policy & Economic Development and Improvement Project
Manager
PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider the findings of the Value for Money Review of Economic Development
and the recommendations arising from the report.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To note that the Value for Money Review concludes that Economic
Development Service is a top performer, making a real difference to
Cherwell’s businesses and residents affected by the downturn.

(2) To adopt the Economic Development Service Vision to 2016 which sets out a
forward looking framework, drawing on the Council’s contribution to the
emerging Economic Development Strategy.

(3) To accept gross savings of £35,000 with immediate effect, as a contribution
towards the Council delivering its Medium Term Financial Strategy,
recognising this reduces the flexibility of the service to undertake economic
development activity in the future.

Executive Summary

1.1 The Corporate Improvement Plan 2011/12 includes a number of Value for
Money (VFM) Reviews aimed at contributing to the Council’s public promise
to save £1m 2012/13.

1.2 Economic Development has been selected for a full VFM Review as the area
is above average expenditure in comparison Cherwell’'s CIPFA family group
of similar authorities. Also, the function received additional financial support
from 2009/10 in response to the economic recession.

1.3 The Review assesses the value for money of this service since additional
Council resource was allocated, develops a vision for the service to 2016
and considers cost savings available.

Page 143



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

The Value for Money Review conclusions are attached in Annex 1 and a full
copy of the Review is in deposit in the Members’ Room and available on-line.
The Review found Cherwell’'s Economic Development Service is a top
performer, making a real difference to Cherwell’s businesses and residents
affected by the downturn and:

offered the greatest range and depth of services to residents and
businesses in comparison to other authorities

leveraged in multiple additional resources, both finance and in-kind,
to support Cherwell’s priorities

offers a high quality service, demonstrated through excellent
feedback

is helping generate positive performance in the local economy where
the service has focused since 2008/09, with additional Council
resources, especially in areas of unemployment and number of
businesses, though the overall skill level in the local economy is not
improving in-line with the national and South East regional trend

has received external validation for its efforts to make Cherwell more
resilient, as part of the Centre for Local Economic Strategies
Resilience Study in 2010

Despite similar staffing structures to comparator authorities, Cherwell
is the highest cost service per head of population; this position is
distorted by greatly differing interpretations of the CIPFA costing
definition and the significant income generated by many of the
comparator authorities who undertake commercial lettings, run
conference centres and receive government growth funding which
helps offset expenditure considerably.

A Vision to 2016 for the future Economic Development Service is set out in
Annex 2 and aims to support the new Economic Development Strategy being
developed, particularly focusing on a Cherwell that is resilient and develops
people, businesses - and Cherwell as a place.

This Review sets out a range of savings options from £20k to £200k to
contribute towards the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy; however,
taking savings may have implications on the Council’s ability to deliver its
economic development service in line with the Vision to 2016.

A full copy of the Economic Development Value for Money Review is on
deposit in the Members Room at Bodicote House and available on-line.

Proposals

To adopt the recommendations of the VFM Review in full:

¢ note the Value for Money conclusion reached by this Review

e adopt the Vision to 2016 for the future Economic Development Service

e agree to gross saving of £35,000 with immediate effect from within the
2011/12 budget.

Page 144



1.9

Conclusion

The Cherwell’'s Economic Development Service is a top performer, making a
real difference to Cherwell’s businesses and residents affected by the
downturn.

The Vision sets out a forward looking framework drawing on the Council’s
contribution to the new Economic Development Strategy, within which the
service can undertake its annual service and budget setting activity.

Agreeing to the level of savings proposed by this review assists the Council in
delivering its Medium Term Financial Strategy, but reduces the flexibility of
the service to undertake economic development activity in the future.

Page 145



Background Information

Overview of the Area

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

There is an expectation that local authorities will undertake economic
development activities within their areas. The importance placed by Cherwell
on this discretionary activity is embedded in the Council’s Corporate Plan
through its District of Opportunity Strategic Priority; specifically the objectives
for 2011/12 to “promote local economic development through business advice
and support, inward investment and the Local Enterprise Partnership” and
“work with partners to tackle disadvantage in the district’.

The Economic Development VFM Review covers a range of activities:

(i) Support and advice to Cherwell’s businesses

(ii) Oxfordshire Business Enterprises, supporting new businesses in Cherwell
(iii) The new Economic Development Strategy and actions to 2016

(iv) Job Clubs in Banbury and Bicester and other recession responses

(v) Cherwell M40 Investment Partnership (CHIP) promoting Cherwell

(vi) Local Enterprise Partnerships and Cherwell's membership of two LEPs
(vii) Economic development activity, such as information management

(viii) Partnership working — with organisations like Chambers of Commerce
and delivery of key business events in Cherwell.

The service employs just over 5 full-time equivalent members of staff and
operates a net budget of over £400k of which just over £200k represents the
controllable expenses by the service in 2011/12.

The service faces the following external issues:

a) The economic downturn has challenged the ‘resilience’ of the local
economy

b) Adjustment of strategy to tougher economic conditions with uncertainties
over whether there will be a return to growth conditions or a deepening of
problems

c) Resource constraints in the public sector, downsizing or closure of
existing services, such as regional Business Link during 2011

d) Changing regional/sub-regional structures - Local Enterprise Partnerships
(LEPs) and support for young people by the County (such as those not in
employment, education or training - NEETs) through new hub structures.

Internal issues facing the service include:

a) High political support to create a ‘District of Opportunity’ with a number of
pledges, for example, to help young people into work and training and
enable business growth

b) High profile service with the public, achieving high user satisfaction

c) Leadership of the emerging Cherwell Economic Development Strategy on
behalf of the Local Strategic Partnership (and its Sustainable Community
Strategy)

d) A clear challenge: “The catalytic elements are in Cherwell, it just needs
gluing together” from an external assessment of the service, as part of the
Centre for Local Economic Strategies Resilience Study in 2010

e) Ensuring that ‘eco-Bicester’ achieves its aims to provide new jobs in the
town

Page 146



f) Sustaining current activities within a tighter Cherwell budget and with less
external funding support (especially the recession response initiatives).

VFM Review Findings

26 In reaching a value for money conclusion, the Council has been compared
with its family of similar local authorities as defined by CIPFA and other local
authorities and regional statistics. The Review’s Executive Summary and
Recommendations are attached as Annex 1.

2.7 The Value for Money Review found the Economic Development service is a
top performer, making a real difference to Cherwell’s businesses and
residents affected by the downturn and:

o offered the greatest range and depth of services to residents and
businesses in comparison to other local authorities

e leveraged in multiple additional resources, both finance and in-kind, to
support Cherwell’s priorities

o offers a high quality service, demonstrated through excellent feedback

e is helping generate positive performance in the local economy where
the service has focused since 2008/09, with additional Council
resources, especially in areas of unemployment and number of
businesses, though the overall skill level in the local economy is not
improving in-line with the national and South East regional trend

e has received external validation for its efforts to make Cherwell more
resilient, as part of the Centre for Local Economic Strategies
Resilience Study in 2010

o despite similar staffing structures to comparator authorities, Cherwell
is the highest cost service per head of population; this position is
distorted by greatly differing interpretations of the CIPFA costing
definition and the significant income generated by many of the
comparator authorities who undertake commercial lettings, run
conference centres and receive government growth funding which
helps offset expenditure considerably.

Vision for Cherwell’s Economic Development Service to 2016

2.8 The Review sets outs a Vision to 2016 for the Economic Development
Service, attached to this report as Annex 2. The Vision sets out aims to
supporting the new Economic Development Strategy being developed,
particularly focusing on a Cherwell that is resilient and develops people,
businesses - and Cherwell as a place.

2.9 The Vision sets out a rowing back on general inward investment activity, a
preservation of current support for businesses and the Council’s response to
the recession, and a gearing up to support the Eco Bicester business growth
potential, through specific inward investment activity, and the Council’s
presence in two Local Enterprise Partnerships.

2.10 By 2016 the Economic Development Service will have contributed towards
and be able to evidence a range of strategic benefits to Cherwell:

e Increased resilience and diversity of the business community across Cherwell
e Balanced economic development and housing growth
e Gains from Eco-Bicester

Page 147



2.11

Added value through partnership working, including:
o added value to the Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme
o reduced number of young people not in education, employment or
training across the district.
o support for local people into work — such as creation of
apprenticeships and co-ordination of Job Clubs

The delivery of the Vision will be measured against local outcomes, against
baseline data, with annual targets, so that by 2016 Cherwell can show we
have contributed towards and are able to evidence:

Savings Options

212

213

2.14

2.15

2.16

This Review sets out a range of savings options to contribute towards the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy; however, taking savings may
have implications on the Council’s ability to deliver its economic development
service in line with the Vision to 2016:

o Savings to discretionary budgets within the control of the service,
ranging from £20k - £65k gross (Options 1a to 1d)

Ceasing to contribute to Bicester Vision, saving up to £15k (Option 2)
Reducing staffing, saving up to £20k (Option 3)

Cease provision of the service totally, saving up to £200k (Option 4)
Opportunities for increasing income (Option 5).

Savings are offered by this Review in recognition of the Council’s requirement
to achieve its Medium Term Financial Strategy; however, taking savings may
have implications on the Council’s ability to deliver its economic development
service in line with the Vision, particularly in the developing areas of economic
development support for “eco-Bicester” and the two Local Enterprise
Partnerships.

The savings options set out above have been framed in the context of the
scope of the current services and the vision for the service through to 2016.

A strategy is recommended to withdraw discretionary spend, preserving those
areas of spend best able to support the Vision and a rowing back on general
inward investment activity in particular.

The overall recommendation is a saving of £35k gross (Option 1b), with
immediate effect within this current financial year of 2011/12. Taking the
saving with immediate effect will generate an in-year saving from the 2011/12
budget and savings from subsequent years’ budgets.

In detail, the savings will be spread across the following business areas:-

(i) Continue to distribute the “Business Moves” magazine in electronic format
only and cease to produce the printed version. This magazine is
published by Cherwell Investment Partnership and moving across to
electronic only will save £6,000. This saving option was identified as part
of the VFM Review of Communications undertaken in 2010/11.

(i) Reducing financial support for the Cherwell Investment Partnership by
£24,000. This would reduce the money available for inward investment
activities such as advertising and exhibitions.

(iii) Reducing spending on the Economic Development Strategy by £5,000.
This has been a major piece of work in 2010/11 and is currently being
finalised. It will require being kept under review and up-to-date but limited
further expenses in the future can be taken as a saving from 2011/12

Page 148



217

2.18

onwards.

Delivery of this saving being achieved by reducing the unrestricted “supplies
and services” budgets by a gross amount of £35,000, recognising that
£20,000 has already been taken from this budget in anticipation of savings
from this VFM Review (therefore a net additional saving of £15,000 is being
offered).

Note that in agreeing to this savings recommendation, the impact would be
limited in the short-term; however, three key risks and opportunities should be
noted:

The savings offered will mean that the Council will retain a reduced degree of
flexibility to deploy initiatives and interventions as needs dictate across the
district. This reduced flexibility will not allow for significant spending on any
new key initiatives which may emerge. An example of this could be economic
promotion of eco-Bicester which may warrant a range of potentially costly
activities. Therefore, the savings offered would seriously affect the Council’s
ability to fund such initiatives in the future.

Key elements of the current Economic Development service are currently
supported financially from external sources. The savings offered are based
on an assumption that these funding sources continue and if they ceased it
would put additional burden on the reduced budget and spending priorities
would need to be re-assessed.

Cherwell’s in-house reserve fund LABGI (generated from Government grants
no longer available) is ring-fenced for economic development purposes and
stands at just under £100k of unreserved funds. This reserve offers an
opportunity to fund new initiatives or provide short-term, temporary funding for
services where external funding has been withdrawn. It is clear that this one-
off fund would not last long if required to fund multiple priorities.

Implications

Financial: The review has demonstrated that Economic Development

Legal:

service is delivering high value for its cost to the Council and,
while its staffing structure is similar to other, comparable local
authorities, it does not benefit from the significant income
streams that some others attract.

The savings contributions offered by this review will assist the
Council to deliver its Medium Term Financial Strategy.

If external agencies withdraw funds this will increase the
financial pressure on this budget and this needs to be
monitored. The Council has available a limited pot of funds
(LABGI) set aside to support Economic Development activity
which it can call on to support initiatives in the short-term while
longer term, sustainable financial arrangements are
established.

Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance 01295
221551

As this service is discretionary there are limited legal
implications, however, the Council does have contractual

Page 149



Risk
Management:

Data Quality

Wards Affected

commitments associated with hosting services.

Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Solicitor, Legal & Democratic
Services 01295 221686

The savings offered will mean that the Council will retain a
reduced degree of flexibility to deploy initiatives and
interventions as needs dictate across the district. This reduced
flexibility will not allow for significant spending on any new key
initiatives which may emerge. An example of this could be
economic promotion of eco-Bicester which may warrant a range
of potentially costly activities. Therefore, the savings offered
would seriously affect the Council’'s ability to fund such
initiatives in the future.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate Strategy and
Performance Manager 01295 221566

Base data for comparison has been the Revenue Estimates
2010/11 from the Council's CIPFA defined group of similar
authorities. In reaching conclusions, the final data used has
been augmented with contributions received direct from a
number of the comparator authorities. Other source information
has been used that follows best practice guidelines such as the
Council’'s own satisfaction surveys. Financial data/comparison
has been prepared by the relevant service accountant.

Comments checked by Neil Lawrence, Project Manager,
Improvement 01295 221801

All

Corporate Plan Themes

A District of Opportunity

Executive Portfolio

Councillor Norman Bolster
Lead Member for Estates

Councillor Nigel Mo

rris

Lead Member for Change

Document Information

Appendix No Title

Annex 1 VFM Review Executive Summary & Recommendations
Annex 2 Vision 2016

Background Papers

Full VFM Review of Economic Development (on deposit in the Members’ Room

Report Author Alison Davies, Improvement Project Manager
Contact 01295 221580
Information

Alison.davies@cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 150




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS ANNEX 1

1. Purpose of this report
This Value for Money (VFM) Review forms part of the Council's VFM Review
Programme. This Review:
o Assesses the service’s value for money (in terms of performance, quality and
cost) since additional resources were allocated due to the economic downturn
e Develops a Vision for the service to 2016
e Considers cost savings available to contribute towards the Council’'s Medium
Term Financial Strategy.

2. VFM Conclusion: Cherwell’s Economic Development Service is a top performer, making a
real difference to Cherwell's businesses and residents affected by the economic downturn:

o Offers the greatest range and depth of services to residents and businesses, against the
CIPFA family group of similar authorities, where a detailed assessment has been made.

e Isleveraging in multiple additional resources, both finance and in-kind, to support
Cherwell’s priorities, such as the Job Clubs and Oxfordshire Business Enterprises service.

o |[s offering a high quality service to Cherwell’s existing businesses, start-ups and residents,
demonstrated through excellent feedback and real outcomes from customers, businesses &
partners.

¢ |Is helping generate positive performance in the local economy where the service has
focused since 2008/09, with additional Council resources, supporting local businesses and
local people affected by the economic downturn, such that by 2010/11:

o Cherwell is the second fastest to return to its Dec 2008 level of unemployment
among its CIPFA comparators.

e Cherwell's unemployment has recovered fastest among the Districts in Oxfordshire
over the same time period.

o VAT and PAYE registered businesses have remained constant since 2008,
however, the number of businesses registered for Non Domestic Rates declined in
the early part of the economic downturn, but has made a strong recovery during
2010/11, which indicates an increasing confidence among businesses.

e However, skill levels in Cherwell (at NVQ level 3 and above) took a dip in 2008 to
2009, but by 2010 have recovered to 2007 levels. Cherwell has now returned to
being in front of the Great Britain average, but remains just behind the South East
average, and Cherwell does not building on its skill position year-on-year, which is
the regional and national trend.

e Has received external validation for its efforts to make Cherwell more resilient as part of
the Centre for Local Economic Strategies Resilience Study in 2010 which found:

“To determine resilience, the strength of relationship and level of interaction between the
private, public and social sector is key to being able to determine how a locality will react to
counter economic and environmental shocks. Cherwell as a locality can be seen as a
resilient place when integrating the findings from the statistical analysis with the interviews
that were carried out to provide a strategic insight into how Cherwell as a place functions.
However, there is still room for improvement.

‘The catalytic elements are in Cherwell, it just needs gluing together.’

This key area for improvement is addressed in the new Economic Development Strategy.

o Despite similar staffing structures to comparator authorities, Cherwell is the highest cost
service per head of population; this position is distorted by greatly differing interpretations
of the CIPFA costing definition and the significant income generated by many of the
comparator authorities who undertake commercial lettings, run conference centres and
receive government growth funding which helps offset expenditure considerably.

Page 151




3. Recommendations

(i)
(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Note the Value for Money conclusion reached by this Review.

Adopt the Vision to 2016 for the future Economic Development Service, aimed at
supporting delivery of the emerging Economic Development Strategy (focusing
on a Cherwell that is resilient and develops people, businesses - and Cherwell as
a place) and supporting key themes in the Council’s Strategic Priority of a District
of Opportunity.

Recognise that this Review offers savings arising from the Council’s requirement
to achieve its Medium Term Financial Strategy; however, taking savings may
have implications on the Council’s ability to deliver its economic development
service in line with the Vision set out in the Vision, particularly in the developing
areas of economic development support for “eco-Bicester’” and the two Local
Enterprise Partnerships.

Consider the saving options ranging from £20k - £200k and agree to:

Implement Option 1b), reducing the spend budgets by a gross amount of
£35,000

Take the saving with immediate effect generating an in-year saving from the
2011/12 budget and savings from subsequent years’ budgets.

Deliver this saving by pursuing a strategy of preserving areas of spend best able
to support the Vision and rowing back particularly on inward investment activity.
Consequently, reducing the unrestricted “supplies and services” budgets by a
gross amount of £35,000, recognising that £20,000 has already been taken from
this budget in anticipation of savings from this VFM Review (therefore a net
additional saving of £15,000 is being offered).

In detail, the savings will be spread across the following business areas:-

a) Continue to distribute the “Business Moves” magazine in electronic format
only and cease to produce the printed version. This magazine is published
by Cherwell Investment Partnership and moving across to electronic only will
save £6,000. This saving option was identified as part of the VFM Review of
Communications undertaken in 2010/11.

b) Reducing financial support for the Cherwell Investment Partnership by
£24,000. This would reduce the money available for inward investment
activities such as advertising and exhibitions.

¢) Reducing spending on the Economic Development Strategy by £5,000. This
has been a major piece of work in 2010/11 and is currently being finalised. It
will require being kept under review and up-to-date but limited further
expenses in the future can be taken as a saving from 2011/12 onwards.

Note that in agreeing to this savings recommendation, the impact would be

limited in the short-term; however, three key risks and opportunities should be

noted:

The savings offered will mean that the Council will retain a reduced degree of
flexibility to deploy initiatives and interventions as needs dictate across the
district. This reduced flexibility will not allow for significant spending on any new
key initiatives which may emerge. An example of this could be economic
promotion of eco-Bicester which may warrant a range of potentially costly
activities. Therefore, the savings offered would seriously affect the Council’s
ability to fund such initiatives in the future.

Key elements of the current Economic Development service are currently
supported financially from external sources. The savings offered are based on
an assumption that these funding sources continue and if they ceased it would

Page 152



put additional burden on the reduced budget and spending priorities would need
to be re-assessed.

Cherwell’s in-house reserve fund LABGI (generated from Government grants no
longer available) is ring-fenced for economic development purposes and stands
at just under £100k of unreserved funds. This reserve offers an opportunity to
fund new initiatives or provide short-term, temporary funding for services where
external funding has been withdrawn. It is clear that this one-off fund would not
last long if required to fund multiple priorities.

Page 153



FUTURE VISION TO 2016 ANNEX 2

1. Strategic Context:

Cherwell’'s Economic Development Service plays a key role, working with employers and
partner organisations, to support delivery of the Cherwell Community Strategy’s overall
Vision to 2030 of “a diverse economy with opportunities for all, vibrant communities
connected by a sense of pride, place and purpose”.

The draft Cherwell Economic Development Strategy to 2016, being developed by
partners across Cherwell and led by the District Council, sets out a vision for the
aspiration and needs of the local economies of Banbury, Bicester, Kidlington and rural
areas, as well as Cherwell-wide issues of:
e supporting existing companies to be successful and productive, especially in
international markets, aiming to reverse the relatively low-wage local economy
e selective encouragement of inward investment, supporting diversity
e identification of development sites for economic growth
¢ strengthening technical capacity, leading expansion of high-technology,
specialised sectors
e balancing population and business growth with infrastructure requirements
e Overall, maintaining Cherwell as a good place to live and work

Whilst intended as a Strategy delivered by many employers and partners working
together, the themes for delivering the Economic Development Strategy directly shape
much of the future leadership and delivery role of Cherwell's Economic Development
Service:

1.1 Strategy Delivery Theme A: Resilience

o A diverse and resilient economy
Strong and flexible partnerships that add value by working together
Maximise the gain from the “green economy” arising from Eco-Bicester
Responding to the challenge from the Centre for Local Economic Strategies in
2010: ‘The catalytic elements are in Cherwell, it just needs gluing together.’

1.2 Strategy Delivery Theme B: People, Business and Place

Developing People: Our people are our greatest asset in our community, we will:
e create employment
e provide access to employment
¢ enhance skills
e improve the life chances of people living in some of Cherwell’s less
prosperous areas
e ensure wages keep pace with local costs of living

Developing Business: Businesses will work with public and social partners, each
other to become stronger and more diverse, we will:
e promote business start-ups and entrepreneurship
develop local procurement and supply chains
promote business & cluster development
attract new investment
develop a “World Class” business community and develop the visitor
economy

Developing Place: So Cherwell is an even better place to live, work and play, we will:
e promote employment sites & premises
¢ manage infrastructure development
e support rural areas and urban centres.

Page 154



2. Economic Development Service: Vision 2011 — 2016

The service aims to lead and shape delivery of significant elements of the Cherwell
Economic Development Strategy to 2016, contributing to its delivery to the best of its
ability within available resources.

2.1 Strategic Benefits
By 2016 the Economic Development Service will have contributed towards and be able
to evidence a range of strategic benefits to Cherwell:

Increased resilience and diversity of the business community across
Cherwell: How the economy has become more diverse and resilient over the 5
years of the Economic Development Strategy.

Balanced economic development and housing growth: through promotion of
economic development through business advice and support, inward investment
and Local Enterprise Partnerships (Cherwell’'s Corporate Plan 2011/12)

Gains from Eco-Bicester: Demonstrable economic gain from the significant
opportunities offered by the exemplar national Eco-Bicester project of 5,000
homes and at least 5,000 jobs.

Work with partners to tackle disadvantage in the District:

o added value to the Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme (Cherwell’s
Corporate Plan 11/12).

o Work with our partners to reduce the number of young people not in
education, employment or training across the district. (Cherwell’s
Corporate Plan 2011/12).

o A programme of support for local people into work — such as creation of
apprenticeships and co-ordination of Job Clubs (Cherwell’'s Corporate
Plan 11/12).

Value added through Partnerships: The value added by the partnerships in
Cherwell that are created or remain in place.

2.2 Local outcomes, measured against baseline data, with annual targets, so that by
2016 we can show we have contributed towards and are able to evidence:

Numbers of employment opportunities created.

Increased number of VAT and NNDR registered local businesses.

Reduced number of young people not in education, employment and training
(Cherwell’s Pledges 2011/12) — both 16-18 year olds and under 25s.

Retention of the low level of unemployment, experienced in 2010.

Increased qualifications among residents of working age — particularly NVQ 3
plus.

Wage rate levels

Outcomes focused in priority areas: Bicester Eco Town and Brighter Futures for
Banbury Wards

Page 155



3. Achieving the Vision:

Taking a Strategic Lead for delivering the Economic Development Strategy:

We will champion the overall delivery of the Economic Delivery Strategy 2016
and respond to the challenge to bringing the catalytic elements in Cherwell
together.

We will commit to deliver annual plans representing Cherwell’s contribution.
We will review progress each year through the Local Strategic Partnership
which will hold partners to account for their contribution.

3.1 Strategic Delivery Theme A: Resilience

A1l. Supporting the development of a diverse and resilient economy

We will promote cohesion of the business community through close working
with organisations like the Chambers of Commerce.

We will provide a network of support to local businesses of information,
advice and guidance.

We will connect local businesses together to increase the knowledge of what
is available locally.

We will encourage local procurement and procure locally ourselves wherever
we are able.

A2 Leading or contributing significantly to Partnerships that we consider add value:

We will prioritise the following Partnerships:

Local Enterprise Partnerships — both SEMLEP & Oxford City Region LEP
Cherwell Job Club Strategic Alliance of Partners

Brighter Futures in Banbury Steering Group

Oxfordshire Business Enterprises

Bicester Vision

Cherwell Investment Partnership

Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership

Cherwell Skills Board

ONoOORWN=

We recognise the networking value associated with Partnerships, and value
this benefit in the context of supporting outcomes and delivering benefits.
We will maximise the gain for Cherwell from Partnerships to which we have
agreed to be members, such as drawing on our regional professional and
employers’ networks.

Where we lead, we will be clear of the objectives of the Partnership and its
aims for the year with appropriate, focussed forward planning and reporting
back in the Annual Report.

Future funding of OBE may become an issue as early as April 2012 and Cherwell is
already in discussions with key partners. The Council may need to look to alternative
partnership funding sources or fill the funding gap from its own resources (as it has done
previously).

A3 Maximising the economic development gains from Eco Bicester:

We will explore joint marketing with P3Eco of Bicester as the eco destination
for commercial investment.

Page 156



o We will use our unique position to promote Eco Bicester to our business
contacts, particularly new business start-ups such as to clients of Oxfordshire
Business Enterprises.

o We will support our partners to maximise their offer, such as the College’s
plan for eco skills training centres in Bicester.

3.2 Strategy Delivery Theme B: People, Business and Place

B1 Developing People
(i) Get local people back into local jobs:
¢ We will co-ordinate Cherwell’'s Job Clubs and the associated website, while
resources allow and until such time as the economic situation improves.
o We will re-focus Cherwell’s support for Job Clubs towards “special events”:
o specific employment sectors (e.g. Health & Social Care) or employers
o specific groups of clients (e.g. young people or graduates)
e We will look to Partners to increase co-ordination of “routine” elements of the
regular Job Clubs, particularly developing the offer at alternative venues such
as libraries. This will need to be actively considered during 2011/12.

Future funding for Job Club is a key issue to be addressed. The Council will need to
seek increased sponsorship, greater self help and also make more of its remaining
project budgets available to support this service. It is to be hoped that an improving
economic climate will allow a careful re assessment of the form of service needed.

(ii) Careers Advice: improving skills and access to jobs
o We will support local co-ordination of careers advice for the benefit of
Cherwell’s residents.
e We will work with partners, like JCP and local GPs, to increase resident
referrals for support in access skills and jobs.
o We will work with partners to increase local, accessible venues for careers
advice.

(iii) Employer Support:
e We will work with employers with local vacancies looking to recruit local
people.
o We will co-ordinate special recruitment events for significant opportunities.
o We will work with local employers looking to make redundancies, tailoring the
package accordingly, co-coordinating Partners to support employees.

(iv) Supporting Young People:
e We will focus our economic development activity towards supporting young
people not in employment, education and training, specifically we will:
o host Young People’s Job Clubs with our partners.
o encourage employers to take on apprentices and work-based training.
o We will employ apprentices ourselves.
o We will support mentoring schemes through the local schools and
encourage schemes such as Young Enterprise.

B2 Developing Businesses
o We will support existing businesses in Cherwell, prioritising supporting local
businesses ahead of attracting new businesses into Cherwell (inward
investment).
e We will increase the profile of what we have to offer existing businesses,
recognising the withdrawal of regional Business Link support, such as:
1. Support and advise local businesses looking to expand or relocate.

Page 157



2. Host business events & clubs to support business growth, such as the
Export Club and Cherwell Investment Partnership.

3. Support new businesses starting up with free, expert advice and
information from Oxfordshire Business Enterprises.

4. Promote Cherwell M40 Investment Partnership, its website and Working
Group as a portal for businesses to find answers to their queries and help
to invest.

5. We will maintain an up-to-date database of businesses in Cherwell and
available land and premises.

B3 Developing Place

e We will support Bicester Vision and Banbury Town Centre Partnership as
they develop the sense of place and identity of these Towns.

o Offer use of our premises to Partners if it helps our residents affected by the
economic downturn, such as Jobseeker Allowance claimants signing-on at
Cherwell’s Bicester Linkpoint and expert careers advisors from the
Government’s Next Step Service using the Council’s Linkpoints to offer free,
confidential careers advice to Cherwell’s residents.

3.3 Funding the Vision
The Vision will need to be funded from existing resources. The most significant
element of spending is staff costs and discretionary spend on “supplies and
services”. Some current activities rely on other funding (either internal funds for Job
Clubs or external funding for OBE and Job Club expenses). The continued
availability of this funding will need to be assessed on an annual basis and will be
considered through the annual budget and service planning process.

Page 158



Agenda ltem 10

Executive

2010/2011 End of Year Finance and Medium Term Financial
Strategy Update Report

20" June 2011

Report of the Head of Finance

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report summarises the Council’s provisional Revenue and Capital performance
for the financial year 2010/2011 and reports on performance against the procurement
action plan. The figures are still subject to further validation work to ensure
compliance with statutory requirements and proper accounting practices. The report
also considers the process and timetable for refreshing our Medium Term Financial
Strategy

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

1) To note the provisional revenue out-turn position for 2010/2011 detailed in
Appendix 1.
2) To note the continued improvement in accuracy and reliability that the Council

has made in projecting the year end position through the embedding of the
Corporate Dashboard.

3) To note the provisional capital out-turn position for 2010/2011 detailed in
Appendix 2a.

4) To agree the balances on capital schemes which have slipped in 2010/2011
to be carried forward into the 2011/2012 capital programme as set out in
Appendix 2b

5) To note progress against the Councils Procurement Action plan — Appendix 3

and savings achieved Appendix 4.

6) To note the Medium Term Financial Strategy Update.

Page 159



Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Introduction

Three reports relating to the 2010/11 accounts have been considered by the
Executive since the budget was approved in February 2010. This End of Year
Finance report details the provisional revenue and capital outturn as at
Quarter 4 and also incorporates the current position of the Procurement
Action Plan.

2010/11 Finance Report
Revenue Out-turn 2010/11- DRAFT

The provisional revenue out-turn for 2010/11 is set out in Appendix 1 and
shows an overspend against budget of £58,832 which is within budget
tolerances and taking into consideration the impact of IFRS adjustments is in
line with Q3 projection. This can be funded from the general fund revenue
reserve.

Appendix 1 summarises the main variances between outturn and the 2010/11
adjusted budget by directorate.

This outturn is based on the latest unaudited revenue position as at 31st May
2011 and these figures are still subject to potential change.

Capital Out-turn 2010/11

Appendix 2a provides the provisional capital out-turn statement for 2010/11
by scheme and directorate and shows that it is within approved budget
tolerances for the year.

Appendix 2b provides details of the capital schemes that have incurred
budget slippage.

Procurement

Progress against the Council's procurement action plan is detailed in
Appendix 3. A record of savings achieved is detailed in Appendix 4.

Medium Term Financial Strategy

In finalising the budget for 2011/12 the budget book referred to a refresh of
the MTFS and a plan to publish this in May 2011. Given the uncertainty about
the level of local government funding from 2013/14 onwards and the outcome
of phase 1 of the Local Government Resource Review will not be known until
end of July 2011 we will delay the review until Q3. This review and updated
forecast will then inform the 2012/13 budget process.

Page 160



Conclusion

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Our financial performance in terms of both capital and revenue within set
tolerance targets is an area we can be proud of. Our performance
demonstrates our ability to respond positively and actively to changing
economic circumstances and deliver sizeable capital programmes and
effective financial management.

The continued focus on monthly budget monitoring and introduction of the
“dashboard” has enabled more efficient use of the Council’s resources.

The provisional year end revenue out-turn against budget shows the Council
as being on target to achieve budget, after taking into account reallocations.

The variances on the revenue and capital out-turns are within the Council’s
stated tolerances. Revenue out-turn was within 2% of budget and capital was
within 3%of budget.

The General Fund reserve is adequately funded to meet the overall deficit.

The procurement target for securing ongoing cashable savings in 2010/11
was £225,000 and the end of year total achieved was £316,111. The full
detail behind the savings can be seen in Appendix 4. This has ensured that
the procurement team remains self funded for the third year running and
continues to contribute to the Council’s focus on protecting frontline services.

Background Information

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) — Accounting
Changes 2010/11

Members have been informed previously that there will be significant changes
to the Authority’s accounts for 2010/11. For the 2010/11 financial year there
are new accounting requirements which mean that the Authority must comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In order to make this transition we have to change the way in which a number
of items are treated through the accounts and this has led to implications for
the outturn.

What this means in practice is that a substantial piece of work has been
undertaken to ensure that the accounts will be compliant. Members should
note that there is no impact on the actual balances of the Authority. Further
details of the impact of implementing the new standards will be reported to
the Accounts Audit and Risk Committee on 22" June 2011 when the
Statement of Accounts are made available.

Budget Process 2010/11

The General Fund revenue and capital estimates were approved following a
robust and detailed Service and Financial preparation process. Budget

Page 161



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

guidelines were determined by the Executive and budget holders and their
service accountant prepared budget working papers, in accordance with
these guidelines from September 2009 to December 2009

Interim revenue budget reports were made to the Executive and Scrutiny
between December 2009 and February 2010. The budget position was
finalised and the Council Tax was set by the Council in February 2010.

During the course of the 2010/2011 year, a number of changes have been
made to the original 2010/2011 revenue and capital budgets. The amended
full-year budget represents the original budget, as approved by the Council,
the addition of supplementary revenue estimates approved during the year,
agreed virements to existing budgets and the utilisation of appropriate
reserves.

Budget Monitoring

During the period May 2010 until March 2011, budget monitoring using the
“financial dashboard” has taken place which has looked at variances between
actual and budget.

As in previous years there has been a detailed focus on the importance of
accurate budgeting and appropriate monitoring. This continues to be
embedded throughout the Council.

The dashboard analyses revenue and capital by Corporate, Directorate or
Service level and contains a range of cost indicators providing an easy to
understand picture of the Council’s financial position. We have actively used it
within 2010/11 to monitor progress against our efficiency targets and our aim
is to develop this further within 2011/12 to ensure that it remains
comprehensive and meets our needs for addressing all financial challenges
and pressures.

The budget monitoring information is available to budget holders and senior
management by the end of Day 1 following the period of monitoring. Budget
holders then have four working days in which to analyse the data with their
Service Accountant and populate their budget monitoring reports and
projections. This information, with revised forecasts is then reported to CMT
during Days 6-10.

This tool has significantly increased the Council’s ability to manage day-to-
day costs and is used to report quarterly to members through the quarterly
Performance Management Framework.

The Finance Scrutiny Working Group review both Revenue and Capital
Budgets throughout the year with specific emphasis on income and budget
variations.

Efficiencies
The removal of the requirement to submit Annual Efficiency Returns through
NI179 removes a minor burden but the intention is still to record and track

efficiency savings across the authority as part of sound financial management
as reported to members previously.

Page 162



3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

Planned efficiency savings from the 2010/11 budget have been achieved. The
Public Promise of £800K was successfully delivered and forms a significant
element of the 15% (£2.7M) reduction in our approved budget for 2011/12.

Procurement

Progress against the 2010/11 procurement action plan is detailed in Appendix
3.

Collaboration continues apace with Councils across Oxfordshire,
Buckinghamshire and Northamptonshire via the Strategic Procurement
Partnership for Oxfordshire, the Milton Keynes Oxfordshire and
Buckinghamshire Procurement Partnership and the former members of the
Northamptonshire Areas Procurement Service.

The following shared procurement projects have been put in place in 2010/11:

Cleansing of public conveniences (South, Vale and West)
Confidential shredding (Oxfordshire County)

Cash collection (Countywide)

Cleaning materials (Northamptonshire authorities)
Agency staff (Countywide)

Treasury management (Oxford City Council)

Bailiff and debt recovery services (Oxford City Council).

Initial consultation on procurement opportunities with South Northamptonshire
Council have identified 15 projects with particular focus being given to a
range of property maintenance contracts, telephony maintenance, the
upgrade of the financial management system, payroll and postal services.
The Officer Procurement Partnership Group appointed by the Joint
Arrangements Steering Group will review progress and focus on areas such
as sharing best practice and the harmonisation of procurement rules and
thresholds.

The procurement target for securing ongoing cashable savings in 2010/11
was £225,000 and the end of year total achieved was £316,111. The full
detail behind the savings can be seen in Appendix 4. This has ensured that
the procurement team remains self funded for the third year running.

Total cashable savings of £0.9m have been achieved from April 2008 to
March 2011 with the cumulative cashable savings total for contracts let for
more than a year over this period totalling £1.5m. Further non-cashable
savings of more than £160,000 and capital savings of some £720,000 have
been achieved over the same period.

A growing percentage of the cashable savings have been secured by
including a range of initiatives within tender documents:

e Fixed pricing for the second and third year of the contract or at least
fixing increases by 1% below the Consumer Price Index (CPI) in place
of the previously used Retail Price Index: the current CPI is at 4.5%
while RPI is at 5.2% with CPI inflation likely to rise further this year
and remain above the government’s 2% target.

o Agreeing prompt payment discounts against invoice payments — the
average being 3% but discounts offered being as high as 5%.

Page 163



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

e Requiring the contract to be made available to other local authorities
and public bodies with retrospective discounts agreed in the event that
there is an increase in expenditure over the year.

By involving potential suppliers in looking at where costs can be removed
from operations without endangering front line services savings such as the
£33,317 achieved with the insurance services tender continue to be made
even after highly effective efficiencies have already been put in place.

These savings have resulted in budget reductions in the formulation of the
2011/12 budget and have contributed to in year cost reductions.

Medium Term Financial Strategy Update

Process Update

The draft 2012/13 forecast presented in Annex 3 of the 2011/12 budget book
shows a savings requirement of £1.4m in 2012/13 and a cumulative target for
the 4 years of £5.3m.This assumes that the Council does not rely on any
investment income to balance the revenue budget and uses the provisional
settlement figure for 2012/13 and then a range of assumptions.

The Council has pledged to reduce net expenditure by £1m by April 2012 and
action plans are in place to achieve this. The Corporate Improvement
programme is also considering the use of New Homes Bonus, impact of
changes to setting planning fees and the use of investment income.

In finalising the budget for 2011/12 the budget book referred to a refresh of
the MTFS and a plan to publish this in May 2011. Given the uncertainty about
the level of local government funding from 2013/14 onwards and the outcome
of phase 1 of the Local Government Resource Review will not be known until
end of July 2011 we will delay the review until Q3. This review and updated
forecast will then inform the 2012/13 budget process.

The Local Government Resource Review (LGRR)

The government has launched the Local Government Resources Review,
which will start with a consultation on the best way to allow councils to
repatriate their business rates and the extent to which local authorities should
rely on central government grants.

The governmentis asking for views on the best way to balance funding
between councils that would raise little income from business rates and those
that would raise substantial amounts.

They are also consulting on ways to implement tax increment financing (TIF),
which would allow councils to invest in infrastructure and other developments

in their area, using funds borrowed against the likely rise in rates these
developments would generate.

The review’s terms of reference are attached in Appendix 5 and also include:

Page 164



3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

e the localisation of council tax from 2013/14, as outlined in the recent
Welfare Reform Bill

e implications that the move away from central grants might have on
other policies, such as the New Homes Bonus

o further scope for financial freedoms for local government; how future
business rate revaluation and relief should work.

This first phase of the review will conclude in July 2011 while a second phase
will be launched focusing on the rollout of community budgets.

Currently, the business rates collected locally are paid over to the
government. These are then redistributed back to individual councils through
the formula grant system. In 2011/12 Cherwell will collect £67m but only
receive back £6.6m (<10%). Of course, in a two tier system, part of the
business rate income should also benefit the County Council.

Members should be aware that the localisation of business rates is likely to be
accompanied by some form of equalisation. The disparity of business rate
income is so great between Councils that the Local Government Finance
System would fall apart without equalisation.

The indications are that ministers want to take Councils out of taxation if
possible, however any change is unlikely to be implemented until 2013/14 at
the earliest.

The outcomes from the consultation and implications on Cherwell District
Council funding will be considered in the MTFS update.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

4.1 This report illustrates the Council’s provisional performance against the
2010/2011 Revenue and Capital Budget and progress achieved against our
Procurement action plan and targets.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward

Option One To review current performance levels and consider any

actions arising.

Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above.

Consultations

Not Applicable

Implications

Financial: There are no financial implications arising directly from the

production of this report. It should be noted that the
information in this report is in the format used for budget

Page 165



Legal:

Risk Management:

Wards Affected

monitoring purposes and, although adjustments have
been made for the requirements of IFRS, it does not
reflect the various accounting adjustments that are
required to comply with the Statement of Recommended
Practice (for example the various pension adjustments
required by Financial Reporting Standard 17) nor is it in
the same format as the statutory Financial Statement. It
is therefore not a straightforward task to compare the
figures in this report with the Council’s Financial
Statement for 2010/2011 because the respective reports
are each designed to serve different purposes.

Efficiency Savings — There are none arising directly from
this report. We monitor the progress against the Council’s
targets for annual efficiency savings and report
performance through the Performance Management
Framework.

Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate System
Account, 01295 221559

The Council has a duty to prepare Financial Statements
by the 30" June.

Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Interim Head of Legal
and Democratic Services, 01295 221687

The figures in the finance report are unaudited and still
subject to adjustments before submission to District Audit.
If the audit subsequently identifies significant differences
in the out-turn position it may be necessary to consider an
alternative use of the Council’s reserves.

Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate System
Accountant 01295 221559

All

Corporate Plan Themes

The Council’s Budget covers all of the Corporate Plan Themes

Executive Portfolio

Councillor Ken Atack

Lead Member for Financial Management

Document Information

Page 166



Appendix No Title

Appendix 1 2010/2011 Revenue outturn.

Appendix 2a Capital Outturn Overview

Appendix 2b Capital Outturn Detail

Appendix 3 Procurement — action plan

Appendix 4 Procurement — savings

Appendix 5 Local Government Resource Review Terms of Reference
Background Papers

Budget 2010/11

Local Government Settlement Statement 13th December 2010

Final thoughts on the final settlement — Looking Forward to the Local Government
Finance Review (Adrian Jenkins and Neil Benn)

Local Government Resource Review Consultation Paper

Report Author Karen Curtin, Head of Finance

Karen Muir, Corporate System Accountant
Jessica Lacey — Technical Accountant

Viv Hichens — Strategic Procurement Manager

Contact 01295 221551
Information karen.curtin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 167




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



Appendix 1
Draft Revenue 2010/11 Outturn and Analysis

Background

1.1 In line with good practice budget monitoring is undertaken on a monthly basis
within the Council. The revenue and capital position is reported monthly to the
Corporate Management Team and formally to the Executive on a quarterly

basis. This is the Q4 provisional outturn report for financial year 2010/2011.

General Fund Revenue Budget

1.2 The draft General Fund Revenue budget is shown below.

Adjusted Variance %
Budget Draft Outturn
SERVICE EXPENDITURE 2010-11 2010-11
£ £ £
Services
Corporate Core 4,771,275 4,336,341 -434,934 -9%
Environment & Community 10,739,549 10,669,648 -69,902 1%
Planning , Housing &
Economy 5,656,750 5,930,656 273,907 5%
Services Total 21,167,574 20,936,645 -230,929 -1%
Capital Charges Reversed -3,278,962 -3,278,962 0
Net Expenditure Services 17,888,612 17,657,683 -230,929 1%
Reserves and Provisions 638,914 956,351 317,438 50%
18,527,526 18,614,034 86,508 0%

Investment Income -1,348,753 -1,376,330 -27,577 2%
Government Grant -10,905,340 -10,905,340 0 0%
Collection Fund -84.477 -84,477 0 0%
Council Tax -6,188,956 -6,188,956 0 0%

-18,527,526 -18,555,102 -27,576 0%
Provisional Underspend 0 58,932 58,932

1.3

1.4

1.5

The draft outturn presented above illustrates an overall overspend of £58,932
representing a budget variance of 0.3%.

There is an underspend within Service Expenditure of £230,929 - this is
shown in detail in the chart below and corresponding table. At the start of the
financial year members made it clear that as well as addressing the financial
deficit for future years, expenditure in the current year should be reduced
where possible in order to replenish general fund balances and provide
further one-off funds to deliver future savings as part of the medium term
financial strategy.

The Service Expenditure forecast Outturn throughout the year predicted the
following:-

e Quarter 1
e Quarter 2

£0.07m underspend
£0.23m underspend

Page 169



e Quarter 3 £0.36m underspend
e Provisional Quarter 4 £0.23m underspend

1.6 The provisional Outturn at Quarter 4 has moved from our Quarter 3 projection
as it takes into account adjustments required to be in line with the
requirements of IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards). The
council has had to adopt these new accounting principles within its accounts
for the first time this year. As such, adjustments have been made in relation to
accounting for Grants and Contributions received.

1.7 The underspend against budget has arisen through a variety of reasons. With
the key drivers detailed on a Directorate level in the table below. In addition
to increased income levels and reduced expenditure the movement also
represents the outcome of the completion of several value for money reviews
that have been undertaken in 2010/11 and delivered in year savings.

1.8 In 2010/11 the VFM Review Programme comprised 10 reviews which
involved re-visits of previous high cost services as well as reviews of large
areas of spend not previously subject to a review. The review areas included
Housing, Recreation and Sport, Culture and Heritage, Planning Policy,
Development Control, ICT, Urban and Rural Services, Democratic Services,
Corporate Strategy and Performance and Customer Services.

1.9 The performance by Directorate against budget can be seen in the chart
below:

Dashboard: Revenue Outturn

12000000

10000000 -

8000000 -

6000000 -

£,000

4000000

2000000

Corporate Core Environment & Community Planning Houisng & Economy
0 2010/11 Budget £,000 0 2010/11 Projection Outturn £,000

1.10 The underspend in services of £230,929 is split between directorates as
follows:

Page 170



Directorate

2010/11
Budget

2010/11
Projection
Outturn

Variance

%
Variance

Primary Drivers

£'s

£'s

Corporate Core

4,771,275

4,336,341

-434,934

-9.1%

Reduction in Court Costs
recovered — Finance £108Kofset
by Increased Rent Allowances
(£54K) / Council tax and NNDR
Subsidy adjustments (£133k)
Legal & Democratic Services —
VEM savings (salaries , Fees ,
Books and Publications etc )/
Additional grant and fee income
— net reduction (£296K)

People & Improvement —
Training underspends (£53K)
and JE underspends (£26k)
Additional External Audit fees
and bank charges £87K

Environment &
Community

10,739,549

10,669,648

-69,902

-0.7%

Reduction in Car Park income
£208K

Reduction in landscape Agency
re-imbursements, car park
contributions received and
Insurance Income (£178K).
Savings in salaries / supplies and
services and Maintenance
across Safer Communities Urban
& Rural services (£84K)
Increased landscape
maintenance and NNDR £71K
Environmental Services —
Reduction in Consultancy and
Salaries (£116K)

Health & Recreation — Increased
Sports Centre Management Fees
£91K and NNDR £40K offset by
Salary Savings/ Increase in
grants and course income of
(£132K)

Planning
Housing &
Economy

5,656,750

5,930,656

273,907

4.8%

IFRS accounting adjustments —
Eco town and Housing Planning
Delivery Grant funding. £385K
Reduction in Rental Income in
Regeneration and Estates
£279K.

Reduction in salaries and
consultancy in Development
Control and Major Developments
of (£71K) and increased fee
income of (£90K.).

IFRS accounting adjustments —
Housing - Grant Funding
(£129K).

Reduction in Salaries and related
costs (£35K) Rent Deposits
(£45K) and other efficiencies
(£48K) Housing

TOTAL
SERVICES

21,167,574

20,936,645

-230,929

-1.1%

Page 171




1.1

The variance within reserves and provisions can be summarised as follows:-

Reserves & Provisions Variance | Detail
£'000's
Net Reserves & Provisions — Created as element of 2010/11 budget — not
unused as at 31-3-2011 237 | required.
Net effect within Reserves and Provisions
IFRS transition adjustments 80 | for IFRS adjustments.
Total — (as detailed above) 317
1.12 There has been an overall net increase in projected interest receivable /

payable of £28K which is related primarily to larger than budgeted cash
balances.

Budget Mitigations

The increased focus on budget monitoring and introduction of the
“‘dashboard” has enabled more efficient use of the Council’'s resources and
enabled action to be taken to promptly identify and mitigate against economic
issues.

Investments in Iceland

Cherwell District Council is one of at least 123 local authorities that have been
affected by the collapse of Icelandic banking institutions. The Council has
three deposits with the failed Icelandic bank Glitnir totalling £6.5 million. The
bank was originally expected to confirm preferential creditor status to all UK
local authorities meaning we would see the return of the full investment plus
interest and costs during 2009/10.

However the bank’s winding-up board is treating all local authority demands
as general unsecured claims which would mean a return of only 29 per cent
of the original investment only. All local authorities that have invested with
Glitnir have been working with the Local Government Association and law
firm Bevan Brittan to resolve this issue over the last 18 months.

On 1 April 2011 the Council was successful in the Icelandic Court in securing
preferential creditor status but there remains the possibility of an appeal
against this decision to the Icelandic Supreme Court so the final position
cannot yet be stated with certainty.

The latest estimates provided by CIFPA in LAAP Bulletin 82 published in May
2011 indicate that total assets of the bank only equate to 29% of its liabilities.
Therefore, if preferential creditor status is not achieved the recoverable
amount may only be 29p in the £ indicating a potential liability of £4.6 million.

Although the Council remains confident of getting 100% of its investment
back a plan was drawn up to deal with any loss via a capitalisation request
and use of the Council’s reserves. This strategy was been built into the
MTFS.

The Council has written off £4.6million in the 2010/11 accounts — should the

decision stand and 100% recovery is made then this will be treated as
windfall income in 2011/12 accounts.

Page 172




1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

We will continue to work with the Local Government Association and Bevan
Brittan to achieve the best possible return from our investment within the
shortest possible timescales.

Summary

The variances on the revenue are within the Council’s stated tolerances and
within 2% of budget provision.

The General Fund reserve is adequately funded to meet the overall deficit.

The Council continues to make excellent progress on delivering against its
revenue budget. Our financial performance in terms of revenue performance;
in the context of the one of the most challenging economic climates of our
times is an area we can be proud of. Our performance demonstrates our
ability to be nimble in responding to changing circumstances, improved
capacity to deliver sizeable capital programmes and effective financial
management.

The information in this report is in the format used for budget monitoring
purposes and as reported to the Executive quarterly. It does reflect the
various accounting adjustments required for IFRS but not those required to
comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice (for example the
various pension adjustments required by Financial Reporting Standard 17)
nor is it in the same format as the statutory Financial Statement. These
statements will be adopted by the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee on
22" June 2010 and then subsequently approved after audit clearance in
September 2011. A detailed analysis of income and expenditure will be
included within these accounts.

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



Appendix 2a
Draft Capital Outturn 2010/11

1.1 The adjusted capital budget for 2010/11 equated to £5,981,280 which
represents the capital budget approved in February 2010 and all
supplementary estimates and capital slippage approved by , (to be approved )
the Executive during the year. The adjusted budget can be summarised as

follows: -

SUMMARY £000s
2010/11 Budget (including Supplementary) 15,650
External Funding 635
Total Slippage into 11/12 Capital Programme -10,337
Total Cancelled Projects -66
Adjusted 2010/11 Capital Programme Budget 5,981

1.2 The table attached Appendix 9c (i) provides the provisional capital out-turn
statement for 2010/11 by scheme and directorate and details the total
slippage adjustments for which approval is requested.

1.3 The summary below details at a directorate level expenditure against revised
budget and variances arising. It can be seen that, at a net 2% these are within
budget tolerances for the Capital Programme.

14 This performance against budget, by directorate, can be seen in the chart
below :-

5,000

4,500

4,000

3,500 A

3,000

£'000s

2,500

2,000

1,500 -

1,000

500

Environment & Community Planning Housing & Economy Corporate Core

Directorates

O Budget m Actual

Page 175



1.5 At a Directorate level this can be analysed as follows.

Total
Total Adjusted Final
Budget Slippage Cancelled Budget Spend
year to | External Required Projects 2010/11 2010/11 | Variance
date £000s | Funding £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s %
Environment & 2,669 0 1,200 51 1,518 1,429 -89
Community
Planning 12,880 635 9,072 0 4,443 4,377 -66
Housing &
Economy
Corporate Core 101 0 65 15 21 26 5
15,650 635 10,337 66 5,981 5,832 149 2%

1.6 The budget variance of £149,522, is within budget tolerances. This is the
second successive year that the capital programme has been delivered within
budget tolerances and this is as a result of the increased monitoring on the
capital programme during the year. The capital programme has been subject
to monthly review by Corporate Management Team and 3 reviews by the

Executive.

1.7 The capital programme has been financed using government grants, third
party contributions, capital receipts and revenue contribution and is analysed
by category below:

CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND FINANCING STATEMENT

Total Capital Programme Delivered in 2010/11

Financed by:
Capital Receipts

Government Grants and Other Contributions

Direct Revenue Financing
Use of Reserves

Page 176

Scheme Cost

£°000’s

5,832

4,509
383
333
607

5,832




Capital Summary 2010/11

Appendix 9c (i)

Total Final
Budget Total Adjusted | Spend
year to Slippage | Cancelled Budget | 2010/1
date | External | Require Projects 2010/11 1 | Variance
£000s | Funding | d £000s £000s £000s | £000s £000s
Environment & Community 2,669 0 1,200 51 1,518 1,429 -89
Planning Housing & 12,880 635 9,072 0 4,443 | 4,377 -66
Economy
Corporate Core 101 0 65 15 21 26 5
15,650 635 10,337 66 5,981 5,832 -149
Capital Detail 2010/11
Total
Total Adjusted Final
Budget Slippage Cancelled Budget Spend
year to External Required Projects 2010/11 2010/11  Variance
PROJECT date £s Funding £s £s £s £s £s
Environmental Services
Fuel Tank 0 0 1,520 1,520
Climate Change Initiatives Fund 65,929 59,003 6,926 6,926 0
Vehicle Replacement Programme 421,000 421,000 419,826 -1,174
Environmental Services Waste Mgmt IT System 38,000 1,530 36,470 36,470 0
Fleet Management System 28,000 28,000 0 0 0
Recycling Bottle Banks 25,000 25,000 23,820 -1,180
Recreation & Health
Village Hall, Recreation Play Grants 104,355 37,685 66,670 62,670 -4,000
Football Development Plan in Banbury 20,000 20,000 0 0 0
Refurb @ Willy Freund Youth Centre 34,000 34,000 34,480 480
PLAY WELL IN CHERWELL GRANT 0 0 10,420 10,420
Banbury Visitor Management Plan 4,000 4,000 4,210 210
Banbury Museum Roof and Building Fabric 4,000 4,000 0 -4,000
North Oxfordshire Academy Astroturf 0 0 3,483 3,483
North Oxon Academy Site Safety & Security 0 0 4,460 4,460
Relaying the Astroturf at Cooper School - Bicester 0 0 2,650 2,650
South West Bicester Sports Village 370,000 348,675 21,325 21,325 0
Athletics Track Refurbishment - North Oxfordshire 30,000 30,000 0 0 0
SCMP - Spiceball Car Park 350,000 248,965 101,035 101,000 -35
Customer Services and Information Systems
Uniform Modules (Various) 15,000 15,000 15,324 324
Iclipse Software Upgrade 25,000 12,533 12,467 12,467 0
Replacement Air - Conditioning in Data Centre 30,000 30,000 36,136 6,136
Sunray and Mitel Integration (supporting hotdesk) 15,000 15,000 0 -15,000
Telephone Voice Recording 35,000 35,000 0 -35,000
0
Telephony Decommissioning + Upgrades to Switches 5,000 5,000 0 -5,000
Telephony support for customer service 5,000 5,000 0 -5,000

Page 177




Total

Total Adjusted Final

Budget Slippage Cancelled Budget Spend

year to External Required Projects 2010/11 2010/11  Variance
PROJECT date £s  Funding £s £s £s £s £s
TLD Business Continuity 0 6,482 -6,482 3,235 9,717
CDC Website Enterprise License 0 0 23,410 23,410
Virtualisation 42,000 42,000 42,794 794
Data Security (Govt Connect) 25,000 25,000 20,484 -4,516
Self Service Terminals 26,000 24,280 1,720 1,720 0
Online Service Provision via Forms 43,000 20,636 22,364 17,364 -5,000
Scanning at the point of entry 20,000 20,000 12,100 -7,900
System Integration for CRM 50,000 50,000 60,083 10,083
Capita Hosted Payments System 20,000 20,000 23,681 3,681
Encrypted USB keys 17,000 17,000 18,199 1,199
Microsoft Licensing Agreement 110,000 110,000 110,618 618
Upgrade to Localview Fusion Platform GIS 35,000 35,000 12,000 -23,000
Thin Client Extension 150,000 91,469 58,531 58,531 0
Communications Review WAN 58,562 56,300 2,262 2,263 1
Uniform Kirona Mobile Working 15,000 15,000 14,800 -200
Lagan Mobile Working 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
Backup Project 20,000 20,000 21,308 1,308
Autoteller Kiosks 100,000 17,493 82,507 82,507 0
Remote Access DR Project 20,000 20,000 6,586 -13,414
Sharepoint 20,000 20,000 15,200 -4,800

0

Safer Communities, Urban & Rural Services 0
CCTV 0 0 129 129
Replacement Cabling Infrastructure for CCTV 95,000 55,000 40,000 0 -40,000
Community Intelligence Hub 0 0 0
Off Road Parking Facilities - Banbury & Bicester 87,780 23,446 64,334 64,334 0
Circular Walks DDA Works 5,000 2,328 2,672 2,672 0
Street Scene Replacement Programme 0 0 0
Christmas llluminations 51,000 51,000 0 0 0
Implementation of Banbury Residents Parking 27,000 27,000 0 0 0
Urban Centres Improvements 27,000 15,128 11,872 11,872 0
Car Park Refurbishments 25,000 24,496 504 504 0
Implementing Vehicle Parks Proposals -50,000 49,500 500 500 0
Environment & Community Total 2,668,626 0 1,199,669 51,280 1,517,677 1,429,081 -88,596
Economic Development & Estates
Banbury Pedestrianisation 320,000 20,000 300,000 268,792 -31,208
Bicester Cattle Market Car Park Phase 2 324,000 95,000 229,000 214,346 -14,654
Bicester Pedestrianisation 250,000 250,000 0 0 0
Future Regeneration Schemes Prelim. Prof Fees 100,000 100,000 0 0 0
Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment Scheme 40,000 15,000 25,000 19,970 -5,030
Thorpe Lane Depot Refurbishment Scheme 1,113,000 315,186 797,814 797,814 0
Bridge Street Upgrade 0 0 8,882 8,882
Old Bodicote House 871,000 861,000 10,000 8,452 -1,548
Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 0 0
Highfield Depot Repairs 15,000 6,000 9,000 9,152 152
Units 1-7 Thorpe Way Repairs 15,000 15,000 0 0 0
Kidlington High Street Pedestrianisation 25,000 23,000 2,000 1,834 -166
Purchase of Bodicote Park 347190 347,190 347,190 0

Page 178




Total

Total Adjusted Final

Budget Slippage Cancelled Budget Spend

year to External Required Projects 2010/11 2010/11  Variance
PROJECT date £s  Funding £s £s £s £s £s
Access to Highfield Depot 22,000 22,000 0 0 0
Town Centre Offices - Roof Repairs 0 0 996 996
Old Bodicote House Garage 0 0 3,568 3,568
Hanwell Fields Community Centre 5,727 5,647 80 80 0
Community Centre Refurbishments - Southwold 28,000 28,000 24,984 -3,016
Eco Town - Energy Saving Schemes 0 168,595 168,595 168,595 0
Eco Town - Exhibition House 0 14,549 14,549 14,549 0
Eco Town - Travel Behaviour 0 76,360 76,360 76,360 0

0

Housing Services Total 0
Choice Based Lettings 16,000 2,000 14,000 13,737 -263
Disabled Facilities Grants 575,000 375,000 950,000 951,022 1,022
The Sanctuary Acquisition Scheme 4,000 4,000 0 0 0
Acquisitions Scheme - to extend RSL Housing 578,000 99,000 479,000 479,500 500
Discretionary Grants for Domestic Properties - Es 427,000 42,000 385,000 359,742 -25,258
Housing Overcrowding Pilot scheme 30,000 30,000 0 0 0
Bicester Acquisition 2nd scheme 20,000 20,000 0 0 0
Young Persons Acquisition Scheme 352,000 217,000 135,000 135,000 0
Land Claypits Lane Bicester 187,000 187,000 0 0 0
Banbury Foyer & Banbury Youth Hub 169,000 68,000 101,000 101,400 400
Funding- Mollington & Hornton Rural Exception S 120,000 80,000 40,000 40,000 0
Purchase of Temp Acc Bryant House & Edward St 660,000 495,000 165,000 165,000 0
Orchard Way Banbury Redevelopment 1,100,000 1,100,000 0 0 0
Miller Road Youth Self Build 166,015 0 166,015 166,015 0
Planning, Housing & Economy Total 12,879,932 634,504 9,071,833 0 4,442,603 4,376,980 -65,623
Finance
Financial Ledger - Agresso 5.5 50,000 50,000 0 0 0
Budget Module 15,000 15,000 0 0 0
Asset Register 15,000 15,000 15,197 197
Legal & Democratic
Local Land Charges 6,000 6,000 5,500 -500
Legal/Democratic IT Investment 15,000 15,000 0 0 0
Chief Executive
Intranet 0 0 0 5,000 5000
Corporate Core Total 101,000 0 65,000 15,000 21,000 25,697 4,697
Grand Total 15,649,558 634,504 10,336,502 66,280 5,981,280 5,831,758  -149,522

Page 179




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



/ Jo | abed

‘aoueuajuiew Auadoud ypm Ajaanosye Buiyopn

‘obeis Buiuueld 109loud 18 UOKEISPISUOD JUSWBbeUBW

pajs|dwon
10BJUOD puE SJojedIpul aouewlouad AaY JO UOBISPISUOD BJOWOId e
‘goueInsul R Ja)sibal 1osse ‘eoueusiuliew
Auoydsja) ‘Auadoud oy papiroad Ajjnjssesong pajajdwon 'sj08(oud Aay Joy Buiuiesy Bunm uoneoiyioads apincld e
‘Kousiolye 'S1S09 |esodsip pue juswabeuew ‘Bunesado 1s0o aseyoind
Jajem g ABisua ‘J9j10q SSewolq — Juswysiqiniay peyeidwon [eiul ayy Buipnjoul ‘Buisod a4l 8j0YM JO UOIBINDJBD By} Ul SI9oIo Ulel| e
9SNOH p|O 8021pog uo paljdde Ajjnyjssaoong
"uonelapIsuoo anp uaAIb ale ao1d uey] Jaylo BLIBIIO
‘PaAes 000023 JOA0 UlIM 81Udd NS usai9 pajo|dwon uonenjeAs ainsua 0} buiuueld joaloid ojul sones Ajjenb/aoud aonpoJju| e
POOAA Joj seb % Aj1ou108|e yum AjaAioaya pasn
"S|dM Juswalnoold Bunasw 1o} saAjoalqo
"Bujuesjo sous|UBAUOD 2ljgnd UO 199l01d Buiplooal quswasuswwod 1938loid 1B sasiolaxs Juswainoo.d
panes Oyy'gL3 ‘B0 — sedlnies auluol) Bunosye pajo|dwon [le 4o} asn Jiay) Bulinsus ‘Aejy pua AQ salieuuonsanb Japjoyayess Jo
INOY}IM SJOBJJUOD WOJ) SIS00 BulAOowS) UO SNO0H awdojanap Jayuny eia ssaoold esieidde suondo uswainoold aaocidw| e
‘suoidwieyd usalb s,1ounoY 8y} Jo Jey) yim "90IAI8S AQ suoidwiey) Juswaind0.d JO UOBUIWON ©
PauIquiod aq 0} i 8j0J suoldwieyD JUaWaINd0.d Juswabeuew 10BJJUOD pue Siojedlpul sduewlouad Aey  ©
Bunum uoneoyoadg o
:sab1eyo yueq uo Gz1 13 R LLL'€EF SAINIeS S1S00 awnay| ||ns Bunenojes pue suonelapisuod Aljigeule}sng o
aoueJnsuUl U0 //1'¢€F Bulnes eoueulq e BLIS1LIO Uolen|eAs pue soljes Ajljenb/aolld  ©
‘swojiun pue juswdinba aAosj0.d jeuosiad sjesiesdde suopdp  ©
Uo 00G63 Bulres — SPOIAISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT e :UO SN20} YUM (1 0Z Joaquuada pue J18gqojo usamiaq
YO ul sdn-moj|0} Yyum 010z aunr pud Aq sdOYSHIOM MBIAIBAO 831U} PIOH e
ul sewooino aAlsod aJow ul Buninsal Buluresy :Buluiel; 108loud uo pue sdoysyiom eia aping
109loud sy} uo 0} sdoyssiom wolj Aeme SAON paje|dwo)n JUBWSIN2014 8Y} YIM uonounfuos ul ABajels Juswaindold a8y} INojjoy
ssaiboid uo aAieLieN snjejs uonoy

[I2UNO) By} SSOI2. pappaqud pue poojsiapun ale saAdalqo Aay ay) jey) Bulinsua ABajes3s Juswaindolud s, [19UNo) 8y} JaAleq |2

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 181



/ J0 z abed

"S]0BJJU0D
M3U [|E 10} BINWLIOY |dD MO[3] % | 0} dn Bulubis
SJOJOBJJUOD MBU || %€ SI J8}Jo abeiane — Jopus)

‘ssalboud uo sajepdn Ajyiuow-ig yim sjoeqiuod pue bunsixa
uo aJin)puadxa |eUOIIPPE 10} SJUNOISIP BAI}0ads0J}a] pue SJUNooSIp
wawAed jdwoud se yons saibajels sbuiaes jeuonippe dojoasp Jayun4

yoea yum pajsanbal sjunoasip juswAied jdwold pajo|dwon .
"umopyealq e Joj ¢ xipuaddy 0} Jajoy e "L 1/0L0Z 10} 000‘GZZ3 J0 10616} sbBuines s|geyse)
612°0.3 :sbuines s|geyseo-uou [eJo] e ‘'sBuines |enjoe pue pajedionue o) paulejuiew SpJodal YIM wnuue

000°GZZ3 Jo 10bue) B J1suiebe Jad 000‘013F UBY) SJOW JO BN|EA 10BJUOD BWIIBYI| B YUMm saliobajeo
LL1‘9LEF Jo sBuines Jeak ul 9|qeyseo [e]J0] e paje|dwon [|le Joj Juswainoold aonoeld 1sag ypm pajeloosse sbuines NJA JOAIIeQ e
ssaiboid uo aAneLeN snhje}s uonoy

Kauow 10j anjeA paroiduwil ajesysuowap pue Aouaidiys Jajealb anaiIydy £

‘|leiny pue uegin se yons

— smalAal NI pue dnolg Buuoyuoly swwelbold
[exuden | 9| ay; se yons sdnoub uo bBunus

pue a2IAI8g JO speaH yym sbuiyeaw Jejnbal
Buiney Jabeuejy JuswWaINd01d Y} YIM SIseq
100loud Aq 109l04d € UO palojiuow Buieq sI SIy |

"JapeaT wes) S|0Ju0)
Aq pa| Buiaq si 109loud siy]| "siaplo sseyoind
JO asn ay} ajowo.d 0} Aemiapun s| YIOAA

L LOZ ul Aaauenb paonpold aq |im slojeolpu|

pajs|dwon

pJemio) paie)

pJemio) paie)

pJemio) pale)

pajs|dwon

‘Aj@1eIpawiwl palyiioal sajeasawl) 9A3IYoe 0} ain|ie}
pue wea) j09loud ayy Agq Auenbas paisojiuow aq pjnoys ueld 109loid e
yong 'S82In0sal JO UOIBIIIIUSPI pue Sajedsawl} ‘sauolsajiw ‘syabiey 1no
pie| Alleso pue pauljino Aleajo sanijigisuodsas yym ‘uejd 108loid 1snqgou
e Buisn pabeuew og pjnoys juswabeuew joequod pue Buuspus) Auy

‘gouel|dwod
UOU 0} PaJapISuod ag pP|NOYS SUOI}OUBS 9SIN0O anp ul pue pabelnoosip
8Q p|NOYS apew Uda(g Sey JUaWWWod ay) Ja)e pasiel asoy) 9’1 SIaplO
aseyoind aAljoadsoljay "paniwwod si )i 810joq paroidde si ainypuadxa
e Agaseym peasodoisd siI Aojjod Aeqd ON JepiO @8seydind ON, V

‘0102z Jaqwiadeq Aq aoe|d
ul wisiueyoasw Buipliooal paalbe ue yym siojedipul Juswainooid JOJUON

‘ABajens dnoig Buliesys
Juswialndold ayj Jo ajol Juswdojaasp Aoljod pue Aunnios ayj aoueyul

*a|1} 108loud 8y} ul uonualal Joy Isioayo e buipinoid Ag suonejnbal
Aiojniels pue sa|ny ainpadold 10BJjuo) S, |1ouno) syl yym salidwod
Ayanoe juswabeuew 10e1ju0d pue uswalnoold jeuonelado |je ainsuj

ssalboid uo aAneLeN

snjejg

uonoy

aoueldwod pue 82uUBUIBAOD) 2/

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 182



/ 10 ¢ abed

‘ssa00.4d
uole|Ndjed }S00 awWldyl| [N} 8Y) JO LUed se SaAljeuls)je se SadIAIas/spooh

"S]0BJIU0D
Alsuone)s pue Buiues|o mopuim Joy palddy pajs|dwon a|qeJsyald AjjejuswuolIAUS JO SHBUS] pUE S}SOD BY} JBPISUOD
V'L
paje|dwo)n Jad se — s)09(oid ||e uo N0 paLLIBD SUOIIBIND|BD }S00 SWINdY| [N} 8INSUT e
's109(oid uo pue sdoysyiom 'sdoysyJom apino
ul pa1aAod Ajljiqeureisns Jo souepodwl ay | paje|dwon Juswainoold 8y} ein ABajel}S Juswaindold a|qeuleisng ay) paquy e
a)ep o} ssaibo.id snje}s uonoy

Ayjjiqeureysng g/

‘Lioc
ul dnoub Burieals Aq paonpoud Buiaq sajejdwa |

‘Seale 90IAI8S 8] SsoJoe sdoysyiom

pJemlioj pale) | g |enuew Jasn e JO 1nojjol ein abpajmouy Juswabeuew 10esjuod anoldw| e
"L 10¢ ul plemioj paAaow 8q 01 "0L0¢ 48903100 ‘Buliojluow aAI08Ye 10} palinbal
JO pud 8y} Je | ND 0} pajussald podas buidoog pajojdwon | $82JN0Sal 8y} pue [1DUN0Y BY) o) 8j0J Juswabeuew 10.U0D By} Ajuel) e
‘Aousaledsuel) asealoul ‘Buoely syyouaq pue sbuines Buipnjoul ‘Ajaioe pue
0} |[BHO4 SSauisng jse Yynos ayj uo pajsoy aouewIopad uswainooid Joyuow pue (M0 L3 J8A0) Ssjoesjuod uedyiubis
MOU S| pue pasliobajed-ai usaq sey Jajsibay ay | pajejdwon [|e 10} sjuawaaibe/sjoeiluod e Jo J8)SIBal apIM |IDUN0)) B UlBjUIB)\ e
ssalboid uo aAneLieN snjejs uonoy

ao1joeud 3saq ajowoud pue ssaso.d ayj auljweal)s
0} sAem Aji3uapi pue [19UNo0) ay} Jo sjuawadinbal Juswabeuew joei3uod ayj puejsiapun 'L

"yoeo
Joy Joiddns @je10di02 BUO 0} Seale adoueusjuiew
Apadoud unoy 1oy sieliddns ajdiynw Jo uoionpay

"wiea} sloyipaln
JO ssauaA}oaye Buiziseydws sieak sauy)
1SE| Ul paJanoosip JuawAed ayeoldnp auo AjluQ

pJemio) paie)

‘poyo|dwo)

‘sJaliddns panoidde
-uou yym puads jo uoljeuiwid pue uonesijeuolel Jaiiddns anunuod

's9o1d AJpowwiod Jamo| BuiApuspl ein
sanjiunpoddo uononpal 1509 Ajjuapl pue siaiiddns 0} sjuswAed ajeoldnp
Jan02a1 198foud e ul uonedioned eia sisAjeue puads dojaasp Jayun4

ssalboid uo aAneLeN

snjejg

uonoy

Aauow 10} anjeA paroidwi ajesysuowdp pue Aouaidiyd 1d)ealb analyosy ¢/

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 183



. j0  abed

‘lenowal yjesb pue wnb ‘Buiues|o
mopuim ‘Alsuole}s ‘suiq al@aym jo Alddns

)se3 ynos ay)

‘Buisues|o 92UsBIUBAUOD 21|gNnd J0j usyelspuUN pajs|dwon Ul sefjloyIne Jsyjo jsuiebe sjoeiuo JualInd Jo Buyjiewyousq aAljosy] e
ssalboid uo aAijeLIeN snjejg uonoy
juswaAoidwi snonuiuo) 2/
‘(apimAJuno)) yeis Aousby e
‘(sanuoyine
aliysuoydweyuon) sjeualely buiues|n e (3s3)) 1s€3 Yinos Aouaiol3 pue JuswaAoldw| JO WIe JUsWaINd0ld e
(1seM pue sjeA ‘yinos ‘Alo (40MIN) diysisuped
PJOJXO ‘AJUN0D B4IYSPIOIX() UOIOD||00 Yse) e JuswalInNo0ld aJiysweybuiong pue allysplojxQ ‘Soukay] UOIN o
(Ayunon aaysplaoxQ) Buippalys [eiuspiuo) e (0ddS) a41ysploxQ Joy diysiaulled Juswalindold oibajens e
(19 pue ajep gNH JUBWaINd0.id dIIYSPIOXO o
‘UIN0g) saousluBAU0? dl|gnd jo Buisuea|n e
11 1/010z Ul @2e|d ul Ind sjosfoid Buimol|oy ay) :sBuines |euonippe
YIM SJUBYUON ¥ aJiysweybupong ‘@aiysploixQ pajajdwon | ases|al pue S}s0o uolelisiuiwpe pue uoljedldnp aonpal ‘@onoeud }saq aleys
ssoJoe sawwelboud yiom aleys o} Buinuiuo) 0} sJauped Juswalnooid Buimojjoy ayy yim syui oibajelis Jayuny dojaasg
ssalboid uo aAijeLIeN snje}g uonoy
uonjeloqge|jod 92
‘uonje|elsul |aued oiejjonojoyd pue jerowal wnb
‘Nyelb ‘mopuim ‘siepusy) Jepnuul g aily ‘Buljood B pajejdwon ‘gjeldoidde aleym Ayoedeo ssudisjuz [e100g
Bunesy ‘Buisuesao 19103 o1ignd ypm payuswajduw) pue JNS yoew o} sjoeljuod Jabie| umop yealiq o} sieAng abeinoouy e
‘Jeak 'S9S1019X8 Juswabebus Joxiew Jepusy-aid eia
83U} JOAO S8SI0J9X8 Japus)-aid XIS Je paAIsoal |9\ pajejdwon aoe|d j1ox)iewW ay} yum ABajelS JuswaInNd0id d|geule}sng ay) ajowold e
"(1o)l0q ssewoiq ‘uone|nsul Japaq ‘bunybl| pauoz ‘sjonpoud aAneula)e Ajpuslily AjjejuswiuoliAuS
‘saoInap Buines Jajem) Juswiysiginol 9snoH aJow jdope pue abesn aonpal ‘sadinles pue spoob Jo uondwnsuod
PIO 81001pog 8y} yum pajuawaldwi Ajinjssaosong paje|dwon JI8yY} malnal 0} s1aAng abeinoous pue ulel} ‘ssausieme 9)J0Wold e
a)ep o0} ssaiboid snjejs uonoy

Ajjiqeureysng g/

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 184



. 0 G abed

"90IAJOS Japul4 S}OBJJUOD) JUBWUIBSAOD [esjuad 9
|[elod ssauisng 1se3 yinog ay) elA saliunuoddo
0} suo|e abieyo Jo 984} JoAO Jenoljed

— JuswdolaAa 21WOoU09] Yym uosiel| Jejnbay

"JoB1JU0D A11IND8S 9IGOJN BY])
YlIM Se — S JIN'S |B00] 824N0S O} 1oL SNOIDOSU0D
e S| 8J8y) 8s10Jaxa aj0nb 0] UONBUAUI Yoes 1o

"‘@oueUB)UIBW Japnaiul X ali} ‘Buljood ¥ Bunesy
‘Buisuea|d asualuaAuod 2ljgnd ‘6 — ajelidoidde
aloym s]0| OJul umop uaxoiq Buleq ale syoaloid

‘weisAg Bupjoog

pue sa|eg ajetodio) auljuo ayj pue j0afoid
uonejeisuj Ad @yi1 se yons - syoafoid jueasjal jje
yum sdoysyom Jaiiddns Buusyo ‘siseq 109loud Aq
109(0.4d e uo Jusweabebua alow 0) parow aABH

pJemio} pale)

"JOUISIP 8y} Ulyum sasudiajua [e1oos Jo) uoddns
Jayyny apinoad 0y wes) JuawdojaAs( dIWouod] 8y} Yyim Jauped ©
:$10)09G
Ajunwwo) pue Azejunjop 8y} yum syjuswabuelre Bupjiom
|euoneiado pue oibajens 1osojo Buidojpaap am moy asojdxg o
{sjuane JaAng ay) 199\ Jayuny Bunsoy pue ul Bunedioiueq ©
‘sy09lo.d
JueAdjal [|e Joj sdoysylom [1ouno?) ay) 0y buljjeg Buuspisuo) ©
‘sasIoJaxa ajonb 0} uoneyAul uo SIS [Bo0| Bulpnjpu]  ©
‘ojelidoidde
alaym s}o| ojul syoafoud jo umop Buiyealq buibeinooug ©
:Aq sesudiajus |e1oos pue swuly |jlews ‘sdnosb
J0)28s Allunwiwod pue Alejunjoa ‘sassauisng Ajliouiw Buipnpoul sielddns
1o abuel aAledwod pue asiaAIp e wody Buinoold o)y suondo asiwIxey e

ssaiboid uo aAneseN

snjejs

uonoy

Awouoo3 paxipy 872

‘LLoc Ul
saJleuuonsanb uonoejsnes Jawoisno Buonpouul

‘ABojopoyiaw uoneneAs ay) uo Ajeroadss
—10e41U02 sjuswAed palsoy ay) Buipnjoul
SJapua) Auew 1o} paAIaal Yoeqpas) aAIlISOd

pJemioy paiie)

pajs|dwon

"papn|oul Ajaunnods ale SABAINS UOIORISIIES JSWO0ISNO PUR JUSWSAJOAUI
Japjoyayels Bulnsus ‘siasn pus 0] SadIAI8s JO AlaAljep ay) Moddng e

g/ lad se — sassao04d Bunoesyuod Jno saoidwl
ued aM MOY U0 Yoeqpas) ¥aas pue sialiddns |eoo] yym abebus Ajpanoy e

ssaiboid uo aAnjeseN

snjejs

uonoy

juswaAoidwi snonuiuo) 2/

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 185



/ 10 9 abed

‘sy00lo4d ||e yum papinoid Buiaq si Buluiedy
Juswabeuew joeljuod pue |esieidde suondo

"ZL/11L0Z ulypm payilenb SdIOIN
a( 0} pajnNpayds wes) ay) Jo slaquisw aaJy) ||y

‘sBunesw Wes) Je 8duBpuS)IE pue 8oIAIeS

pajs|dwon

pJemioy pale)

"Juswdojana( |eu0ISS8j01d SNONUUO)
ybnouyy ayep-03-dn siyjs Jisyy Buidasy pue suoneoiienb a100 Buiuieyqo
ul geys juswalinooud |euoissejold Bunioddns pue Buiuiesy Buipinoud
‘owwesboid Buiuiesy juswainooid e Jo AlBAIBp pue juswdoaasq e

‘sysod pajejal-juswainoold ||e
ul Jels Juswainooud ajqeded Jo Juswdo|oASp pue UOIUS)}a] ‘JUBWHNIDSY e

"SJop|oyaYels [eulalxa YlM pue Ajjeulsiul

JO speaH yum sajepdn Aq dn pamoj|o} SAoysHIOA pale|dwo) | Ylog ‘SjuswsAsiyoe S} pue 82IAI9S Juswaindold 8y} Jo a|ijoid sy} asiey e
ssaiboud uo aAneLeN shje)}s uonoy
$991N0S3Y JudWAIN20.1d djesodiod) OL°.
wie)sAs BULBPUS}-8 S [1DUN0Y ‘saljloyine Jayjo yum uoneloqe|oo ui Auejnoied
AND paoyx0 Buisn uexepepun Japus) yels Aousby paje|dwon ‘Buispua)-a/6ul0Inos-a 10} suoljdo s|ge|ieAe JojluowW O} SNUIUOD e
1oB1U0D ‘sainpado.d Bulsplo Bululjweal)s
Bulaq si Ayjeuonouny abpajmouy pue Busoe. | paja|dwon Sjoesjuo9 a)es0diod Joy uonedlyoads ayy ul apnjoul ‘ejeudosdde usypy e

‘suonnjos buiAng
Aq papinoid asoyy uo 1dey Buiaq jouqg Buiyojepn

'ssa00.d uoneoiyienb-aid ay) abeuew pue

pJemioy pale)

‘sBuines anuanal JaAljap 0} enjuajod a8y} aAeY 8say) 8Jaym ‘suolone

-9 Sk |yons ‘saAljeniul Juswainoold-s Joj sswwelboud |eydes ainyny

ur ed %0z3 JO spIq apnjou| "saljlIoyIne 3§ JapIm Jo aIIYsSpIoXQ Jayjo
Upm uoneloge||oo ul ‘ejeidoidde JoAaIayM SUOIJONE-B JO 8SN 8y} 8J0|dXT e

"SJSApE pue

asiaApe ‘Jg)sibal sjoenuod 1soy o) [euod Buisn pajo|dwo) sue|d pJemio} jo Buipeo BIA [eHOd ssauisng jse Yinosg Jo uojjejiojdxy e
"JuswsaAul ayy Ajsnl jou op sjBuaq 3S09 ay} "saljlJoyIne alyspIoxQ Jay1o yym diysisuped ul walsAs Buliepus)
Juasaud je jey) paulwalap sey [esieisdde suondo pajo|dwo) 9 Ue JO Sjjouaq }S09 8y} sulwalep o} |esiesdde suondo ue ayeuspun e

ssalboid uo aAneLeN snje}s uonoy

92JaWWod-3 6°/

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 186



. jo / abed

"80UBUI{ PUB [eiNyY puUe UBqin
‘S8IlIUNWWOY Jajes ‘s1oeljuod a)elodiod
uo sasnoo} ol Buiseyoind ajelodio)

‘seje)sg
® uonessusbay pue S92IAIS8S |BJUSLLIUOIIAUT
Uo PasN0} SI J8oIYO S1oejuo) ajeiodio)

‘s100foud Jueoijiubis uo sejelo}oalIp

;Juasaud 1e ealy ao1AI8g AQ auop Bulaq si siy | pajo|dwon Jenoied Joy poddns epinoid 0} siequiaw wes) juswalnoold 9)edo|y e
"Juswedap adueul4 8y} UIYIM wody ybnos
Buiaq sI @2inosal Joddns jeuonippe mou 1o} pue anH
106png Z1L/L L0Z 8U) JO Jed se pamalnal Sem SIy | paje|dwo) | 8NYspIojXO 8y} Jo Jed se Jsoujo juswalnoold sonuaidde, ue Jepisuo) e
"SMBIABI pue
Juswabeuew joesu0d B Yyons s|ielap 108loid
Jopim Buipinoud — sue|d MIom [enplAIpu] e
‘ue|d uonoe Abajens ay) Jopun sanljiqisuodsal
Buipnjoul — ueid piemioy |eyjuswiiedeq e
:aJow Jo 19| S}OBJIUOD |[B Ul ABUO\ JO) dnjeA
3OL3F JO anjeA e yum sjoafoud juswainooud |e ¥oos 0} sjoaloud oywads uo spuswyedsp Joy sassedosd juswainooud
— ue(d pJemio] Juswalinoolid [enuue |oAS] YBIH e pajojdwo) | (I} Bunjenspun 0} souepinb pue 82IApPE WOJ) ‘S9JIAISS JO obuel
:00e|d Ul aJe Buiuodal Jo sialy valy | e apinoid 0] wea | juswalndold aielodio) ay) JO ash SA08Yd ainsug e
ssalboid uo aAneLeN snje}s uonoy

$924N0Say JUswWaindoid ajesodio) o2

L10Z Y2Je L€ 3B SB L L0Z O3 0102 40 1eak ayj 10} ueld UOKIY JUsWaIND0.d djeiodio) ay} 1oy ssaiboid Jo pi10oay - € xipuaddy

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 188



Appendix 4 -Procurement Cashable and Non-Cashable Savings Achieved for Financial Year 2010 to 2011 as at

31 March 2011

Cashable
Service Area Contract Description with budget| Non-cashable| Capital
reduction
Use of Purchasing Cards (reducing processing
Various costs) £55,426
Community Safety CCTV Maintenance £8,225
Environmental Services Supply of Wheelie Bins £7,500
Environmental Services Cleansing of Public Conveniences £18,400
Regeneration and Estates Supply of Mobile Security Service £12,153
Regeneration and Estates Out of Hours Telephone Answering Service £10,000
ICT & Customer Services Mobile Solutions (phones & blackberries) £8,000
Cattle Market Car Park Extension - interest rate
Engineering for cashable saving worked out as 1.5% £1,090 £100,000
Glass Recycling - fixed price for 2nd year - CPI
Environmental Services saving of 2.4% £2,100
Vehicle Spare Parts - price increase 1% below
Environmental Services CPI -i.e. 1.4% & 2.5% prompt payment discount £2,730
PAT Testing - fixed price for 2nd year - CPI
Regeneration and Estates saving of 2.4% £100
Water machines fixed price for 2nd year - CPI
Regeneration and Estates saving of 2.4% £100
Furniture - additional expenditure savings from
Regeneration and Estates 09/10 (£2500) + price increase 1% below CPI £2,780
Eco Town Consultants - rates kept at 2009 level -
i.e. CPI saving of 2.4% on £10,000 £240
50/50 - Finance and Urban & [Cash Collection - 6 month extension agreed
Rural at existing prices £1,127
Various Prompt payment discount exercise £331
Environmental Services Dry Recyclables £33,000
Leisure Banbury Football consultancy £250
Regeneration and Estates Cleaning materials £290
Regeneration and Estates Confidential Shredding £9,958
Regeneration and Estates Heating £8,321
Regeneration and Estates Cooling £3,137
ICT & Customer Services ICT Hardware and Software via Buying Solutions £10,000
Finance Treasury Management £5,000
Regeneration and Estates Thorpe Lane Phases 3 & 4 £883 £81,000
Regeneration and Estates Bodicote Old House Refurbishment £2,575 £236,268
Regeneration and Estates Coffee Machine supplies £100
Regeneration and Estates Washrooms (Museum/TIC) £527
Regeneration and Estates Fire Systems £2,554
Regeneration and Estates Intruder and CCTV £3,541
Leisure Electricity savings Woodgreen L C £20,000
Leisure Gas savings Woodgree L C £890
Voice and Data £60,857
Sale of Print Room Equipment (Guillotine, Punch
ICT and Customer Services & Folder) £2,000
ICT and Customer Services  |Presentation equipment servicing (Reflex) £2,800
50/50 - Finance and Urban &
Rural Cash Collection - New Contract £7,472
Communications Printed Media Advertising £4,100
Finance Hosted Payments Solution £5,199
Customer Services Self Service Payment Kiosks £9,594
Urban and Rural Bedding Plants £9,070
ICT and Customer Services | Telephony Maintenance £4,351
Finance Bank Charges (Jan - March) £1,125
Regeneration and Estates Washroom services - Bodicote House £2,339
Regeneration and Estates Window Cleaning services £3,870
Finance Insurance Services £33,177
Environmental Services Graffiti Removal £525
Environmental Services Gum Removal £985
Environmental Services PPE/Uniforms £9,500
Refurbishment of North Oxfordshire Academy
Leisure Athletics Track £39 £3,550
Total: £316,111 £70,219( £422,818
Notes

1) P Cards - Savings are calculated as £50(CIPFA average) per transaction

2) Cashable savings from capital projects - calculated as a saving of 1.09% to

reflect the interest earned per annum.

3) Prompt Payment Discounts - 15 companies have signed up to date. Savings
shown are for discounts received against the glass recycling contract.

4) Further £12,000 electricity savings for Woodgreen to be recorded for next year.

P:39¢,189




Appendix 4 -Procurement Cashable and Non-Cashable Savings Achieved for Financial Year 2010 to 2011 as at
31 March 2011

Cashable
Service Area Contract Description with budget| Non-cashable| Capital
reduction

5) Further £2,000 gas savings for Woodgreen for next year

Pagg, 190



APPENDIX 5
LOCAL GOVERNMENT RESOURCE REVIEW: TERMS OF REFERENCE
Phase 1

The first phase of the Review will consider the way in which local authorities are funded, with
a view to giving local authorities greater financial autonomy and strengthening the incentives
to support growth in the private sector and regeneration of local economies.

It will look at ways to reduce the reliance of local government on central government funding,
increase local accountability and ensure that the benefits of economic growth are reflected in
the resources authorities have.

The review will include consideration of changes to the business rates system, and focus in
particular on:

a) the optimum model for incentivising local authorities to promote growth by retaining
business rates, whilst ensuring that all authorities have adequate resources to meet
the needs of their communities and to deliver the commitments set out in the Spending
Review;

b) the extent to which these proposals can set local authorities free from dependency on
central funding;

c) considering how to fund authorities where locally raised funding would be insufficient to
meet budget requirements and control council tax levels, as well as councils who do
not collect business rates, such as upper tier authorities, recognising that some parts
of the country are currently more dependent on government funding;

d) reviewing the scope for greater transparency and localisation of the equalisation
process;

e) the position of councils whose business rate yield would be significantly higher than
their current spending;

f) how to ensure appropriate protections are in place for business, within a framework of
devolving power to the lowest level possible;

g) how to deliver Tax Increment Financing proposals against a context of greater
retention of business rate revenues;

h)  how various aspects of the business rate system, including business rate revaluation
and reliefs, should be treated;

i) examining the scope for further financial freedoms for local authorities, while standing
up for and protecting the interests of local taxpayers, and

Page 191



i) the wider implications of rates retention for related policies, including the work of the
Commission on the Funding of Care and Support and the Government’s other
incentive schemes (the New Homes Bonus and the commitment to allow communities
to keep the business rates for renewable energy projects).

The Review will take account of the responses made to the questions in "Local growth:
realising every place’s potential". It will also conduct extensive engagement with interested
parties, including businesses of all sizes, to ensure that all views and perspectives are taken
into account.

Following the announcements at the Spending Review and through introduction of the
Welfare Reform Bill that Government will localise Council Tax Benefit, the Review will also
consider the design of the new scheme (to be launched in 2013-14) and what flexibilities
local authorities should have to help keep overall council tax levels down.

The first phase of the Review will conclude by July 2011, followed by the necessary steps to
implement the concluded reforms.

Phase 2

The second phase of the Local Government Resource Review will commence in April 2011
and will focus on Community Budgets. It will be taken forward in parallel with the continued
roll out of these Budgets. Detailed Terms of Reference will be published shortly.

Page 192



Agenda ltem 11

Executive

Performance Management Framework
2010/2011 End Of Year Performance Report

4 July 2011

Report of Chief Executive and
Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report covers the Council’s performance in 2010/2011, as measured through the
Corporate Performance Management Framework.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To note that, despite tough performance targets and a challenging economic
environment, the Council has met or made satisfactory progress on 97% of
the performance targets in the Corporate Scorecard (the basket of priority
measures) and met or made satisfactory progress on 95% of the performance
targets in the Corporate Plan which sets out activities and targets under each
of the Council’s four strategic priorities.

(2) To note that the Council has delivered a challenging programme of
improvement projects and value for money reviews. Of the 22 projects and
reviews scheduled for 2010/11 21 were completed with good or satisfactory
outcomes and only 1 delayed due a changing government policy. The
improvement programme has directly contributed to the delivery of savings
and efficiencies to balance the Council’s budget.

(3) To note the progress in delivering the Council’s strategic objectives and the
many achievements referred to in paragraphs 1.4 and 1.5

(4) To request an update on the issues highlighted in paragraph 1.6 in the first
quarter report of 2011/12.

Page 193



Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4

Introduction

This is a report of the Council’s performance in 2010/11 as measured through
the Performance Management Framework. Central to this is the Council’s
Corporate Performance Scorecard, which is made up of the Council’s priority
performance targets. The Corporate Scorecard covers seven areas of
performance. These are performance against the Local Area Agreement and
the Community Strategy, the Corporate Plan promises, National Indicators,
priority service indicators, finance, human resource, and customer satisfaction
targets. More detailed supporting information is attached in the appendices
showing performance on delivering the entire Corporate Plan and all other
corporate performance frameworks.

During 2010/11 there have been a series of national policy changes that have
had an impact on the way in which local authorities are required to report
performance. These include the ending of the national inspection and
assessment regime including the national indicators and the comprehensive
area assessment (CAA). Cherwell District Council has a strong track record of
performance management and has worked to remain focused on service
delivery whilst reducing the costs and bureaucracy associated with
performance reporting. During 2010/11 the Council reduced its expenditure in
this area by approximately £35,000. This report provides a summary of the
Council’'s performance in terms of its local priorities and the national
performance reporting requirements that were in place during 2010/11.

To measure performance a ‘traffic light' system is used. Where performance
is rated green 100% of the target has been met or the target has been
exceeded, rated amber and performance is at 90% or above. A red rating
indicates performance at below 90% of the target.

It should be noted that although this is primarily a report of corporate
performance it also includes monitoring at service level against service plans.
The maijority of performance issues are dealt with at service and directorate
level. However, significant service successes and issues are reported
upwards and where appropriate included in this report.

Proposals

In the report we ask the Executive to note the significant progress made in
delivering the Council’s strategic and improvement objectives. Of particular
note has been the ongoing response made to impact of the economic climate
on local residents and businesses and in particular vulnerable groups within
the community. This is in a context of increased demand for Council services
and the impact on the Council’s finances. Furthermore the Council has
adapted to the impact of reduced public expenditure in terms of its service
delivery in 2010/11 and its financial planning for 2011/12.

We have continued to set and meet challenging performance targets:
e The Council has met or made satisfactory progress on 92% of all the

performance targets set out in the Corporate Performance Management
Framework. With regards to the Corporate Scorecard 97% of targets have

Page 194



1.5

been met or made satisfactory progress, and in relation to the Corporate
Plan, 95% of the performance targets met or made satisfactory progress.

The Council has delivered its challenging corporate improvement and
value for money programme. This has meant the pledge to reduce costs
by £800,000 has been exceeded helping to balance the budget for
2011/12 and meet significant savings targets.

In the Council Tax Leaflet (published in February 2010) the Council
outlined its performance promises for 2010/11. Of the 16 promises all
have been met with strong performance in some areas and minor issues
arising in two. A full summary is given at paragraph 2.5.

Performance Highlights

We continue to improve the performance of the Council against each of our
four strategic priorities and have much success to celebrate. This section
provides a short summary of key achievements in 2010/11:

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity

Contributing to the creation of new opportunities in the district: In
spite of challenging economic circumstances the Council has focused on
supporting local residents and businesses through its activities. The
successful job club partnership has continued with targeted events to
improve access and an apprenticeship scheme targeted at young people
not in education, employment or training has been continued. The
Council’s work in this area has been recognised as national good practice
and its approach cited by the Centre for Local Economic Strategies.

Local Housing: The Council has delivered 370 new homes, 126
affordable houses, including 40 extra care units, maintained the low
number of residents in temporary accommodation at 29, and invested
£950,000 in better quality housing for vulnerable people including warm
front top up grants, and emergency repairs.

Regeneration and Growth: The Council has secured funding to make
progress on the Eco Town demonstration projects, worked with
developers to begin the Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment
Programme, and made progress on Local Development Framework Core
Strategy in spite of significant national policy change and reduced
resources. High profile projects such as the Miller Road Self-Build scheme
are supporting local people to develop new skills and employment
opportunities whilst providing affordable housing and work has started on
the South West Bicester development.

A Cleaner, Greener Cherwell

Waste and Recycling: The Council has implemented a food waste
recycling scheme and exceeded its recycling target. Recycling in Cherwell
is now at over 57%.

Page 195



Clean Streets: The Council has met all its targets for dealing with litter,
graffiti, and fly posting, improved enforcement and continued to undertake
local environmental ‘blitzes’ reducing even further the low level of
environmental crime. Residents’ satisfaction with green spaces in
Cherwell has also improved.

Climate Change: The Council has improved its environment credentials
by rolling out a new scheme at its depot. This includes greatly improved
insulation, low energy lighting and energy saving controls, photovoltaic
solar panels, a biomass boiler for heating, a water recycling vehicle wash
to save water, together with a much improved fuel installation. This
initiative has been short listed for the Environment and Energy Awards for
the Best Energy-Efficient Project 2011.

The Cherwell Climate Partnership has undertaken communications
activities to inform local people about the impacts of climate change and
further reductions in the Council’s Co2 emissions from its fleet and offices
have been made.

A Safe and Healthy Cherwell

Sports and Leisure: During 2010/11 there were over 1.2 million visits to
Cherwell leisure centres and nearly 700 new participants in activities for
older people. The ‘Play Well’ project has been completed and assessed
as outstanding, the ‘Get Oxfordshire Active’ project (aimed at increasing
adult participation in sport) has seen 1840 participants and high levels of
satisfaction with the programme. Usage of the Council supported sports
sites at the North Oxfordshire Academy and Cooper School have also
increased during the year with over 75,000 visits recorded.

Reducing Crime and the Fear of Crime: The Cherwell Community
Safety Partnership continues its focus on tackling crime, anti-social
behaviour and working to combat fear of crime. Crime figures for 2010/11
show a 20% reduction in serious acquisitive crime and 30% reduction in
serious violent crime (in comparison with 2009/10). In relation to fear of
crime the residents’ survey shows that 88% of residents feel safe in their
community and at home up from 82% in 2009/10. In terms of Anti-Social
behaviour Thames Valley Police have recorded a 15% drop in incidents
when comparing 2009/10 and 2010/11. This has been achieved through
effective enforcement and a strong partnership between the local policing
team and the Council.

Health and Wellbeing: The Council has continued to work closely with
partners to press for the best possible services for the district. A variety of
health improvement activities have been delivered including, health
trainers working to address health inequalities issues in higher risk wards,
the health bus providing a one-stop shop services, increased visits to
sports centres and an accessible range of activities such as women only
swimming sessions.

Page 196



An Accessible, Value for Money Council

Improving access: the Council continues to focus on improving access
for customers, especially the most vulnerable. During 2010/11 over 60
community groups have been visited by outreach specialists to help
improve access. 22 Parish Councils have been supported to develop
websites helping to improve local information and the Council has also
improved its online access to services with over 100 services now
available along with a specialist youth website.

The Council has also continued to improve its engagement with harder to
reach groups, supporting the establishment of a Cherwell Faith Forum
with local partners and community representatives, embedding the
equalities panel and running a ‘Knowing our Community’ programme for
staff and partners, increasing the number of consultations available on the
consultation portal and using consultation techniques to ensure the
Council hears the views of vulnerable groups, including older and younger
people and people from minority ethnic backgrounds. Innovative
examples of consultation this year include developing a greater
understanding of fear of crime issues in urban and rural areas, public
budget consultation and the Connecting Communities programme in
Banbury.

Delivering Value for Money: the Council has delivered its programme of
Value for Money reviews, meeting the challenge of significantly reducing
the Council’s budget whilst minimising the impact on frontline services. As
a result the Council has exceeded its public pledge to reduce costs by
£800,000.

The Council’s innovative “invest to save” approach of creating a corporate
procurement team with annual targets ensuring the operation is both self-
funding and provides additional returns has secured cashable savings of
£0.9m against a target of £625,000 from April 2008 to March 2011 with
£306,000 achieved in year against a target of £225,000. Further non-
cashable savings of more than £160,000 and capital savings of some
£720,000 have been achieved over the same period. The cumulative total
for contracts let for more than a year from April 2008 to March 2011 is
£1.5m. The 2011/12 Procurement Strategy and Action Plan further
develops the Council’'s approach to long-term planning and collaboration —
particularly with South Northamptonshire Council — allowing the team to
continue to be self funded and guarantee year on year savings.

In 2010/11 the Council adopted two additional cross cutting priorities
reflecting the importance of the Eco Bicester project and a pilot programme of
work which aims to tackle deprivation and disadvantage in Banbury.

Eco Bicester: The Eco Bicester Project is the Council's initiative to
develop the town as a housing and employment growth location with
improved infrastructure and facilities and a special environmental
awareness and protection objective. It encompasses the national Eco
Town initiative, with a new Eco Town development proposed at North
West Bicester and a number of demonstration schemes around the town.
The work is already having an impact in "putting Bicester on the map",
with both national level and international interest. It is fair to say that

Page 197



1.6

Bicester appears to be at the most advanced stage of planning amongst
the four nationally designated Eco Towns.

Over the course of the year the project has continued to make strong
progress. Highlights are: approval by all three councils involved in the
Strategic Delivery Board of "Eco Bicester - One Shared Vision"; Cooper
School, the Garth Eco House, Catholic Church Community Hall
demonstration projects approaching completion; award of an additional
£3.3M of government pump priming money; the commitment of the
Homes and Community Agency additional capital funding to make the
early social housing happen; submission of the 400 home exemplar
planning application.

There have also been a number of successful consultation and
community involvement events including the Eco Bicester Day, the aim of
which was to let people know more about the Eco Bicester concept. The
event took place in Sheep Street, and outlined some of the things people
can do to be more eco-friendly. There was consultation over bus and
cycle routes, and more than 200 people completed Love Food Hate
Waste pledges.

Breaking the Cycle of Deprivation: during 2010/11 the focus of the
Brighter Futures in Banbury programme has been supporting families,
children and young people, particularly those not in employment,
education or training, referred to as “NEETs”. The Council continues to
lead the Brighter Futures in Banbury Steering Group, a multi-agency
partnership targeting issues of need and health inequalities in Banbury.

The programme is based on a significant review and analysis of the
issues facing local communities the group has secured additional funding
to increase access to the family intervention project working directly to
support the most vulnerable families, to develop a programme to prevent
young people dropping out of college or employment, increased
community engagement and access to services, public health campaigns
and steps to address issues such as anti-social behaviour.

The programme is piloting improved multi-agency working and learning
points will be rolled out across the rest of the district in the coming year. A
full annual review of this programme has been undertaken was reported
to Executive at its meeting on 23 May 2011.

The Performance Management Framework allows Councillors and officers to
monitor the progress made in delivering our objectives and to take action
when performance is not satisfactory or new issues arise. There are a
number of issues identified in this report where performance should be
monitored and reviewed to ensure we understand why performance targets
are not being met and that appropriate action is being taken. These are:

Delivery of the Rural Strategy: A small number of activities programmed
for 2010/11 have slipped and will be picked up in 2011/12. This area will
be kept under review and a progress report given in the next quarterly
briefing.

Page 198



1.7

1.8

e Reduce the amount of waste being sent to landfill: At year end this
measure is reporting amber. The target of reducing the amount of waste
sent to landfill by 4000 tonnes is slightly off track with a reduction of 3700
tonnes. Reducing waste and increasing recycling remain strong priorities
for the Council and continued focus will be given to meeting targets during
2011/12. It is worth noting that the national trend for the amount of
tonnage is reducing and that Cherwell continues to set challenging targets
for waste reduction and recycling.

o NI 187 (a & b) - Tackling Fuel Poverty: Both parts of this indicator are
reporting red at year end this is not unexpected due to the rising costs of
energy and benefits dependency. The housing team have undertaken a
survey to increase understanding of the issue and is currently developing
a series of anti-fuel poverty actions that will be included in the new
housing strategy. Measures such as the £99 insulation deal have also
been put in place to help support local residents.

During the year the Performance Scrutiny Working Group continued
reviewing the quarterly performance reports. They invited officers from
across the council’s services to discuss performance on a number of issues:

e The use of contractors and consultants

e The Councils value for money programme
e Sickness and absentee management

e Food waste processing

The Performance Scrutiny Working Group continues to provide a good
opportunity for Councillors to be involved in both reviewing performance
information and working in more detail on performance related matters where
required.

Conclusion

In this report we show that the Council continues to make excellent progress
on delivering its ambitious programme to meet its strategic objectives,
improve services delivered to the public and in particular to vulnerable groups,
deliver a major programme of capital projects and improve the efficiency and
internal workings of the Council. Where performance has not met the target
set or new issues have emerged then the performance management
framework has proved effective in identifying these issues and in ensuring
that corrective action is taken and progress subsequently monitored.

Page 199



Background Information

2.1

2.2

Introduction

Section two of this report provides a more detailed overview of the Council’s
performance in 2010/11 and presents a summary of the information that
underpins the finance, performance and risk review for the year.

Paragraph 2.2 reviews progress against performance risks and issues
identified during 2010/11. The remainder of section two reviews the Council‘s
performance position at year end.

Full details of the data used in each of the paragraphs in this section can be
found in the appendices.

Table 1: Summary of Performance, Finance and Risk Information used
in this report

Paragraph Performance Framework Appendix No.
2.4-.2.8 Corporate Scorecard 1
2.4 Local Area Agreement 2
2.9 Corporate Plan 3
2.10 Priority Service Indicators 4
2.1 Strategic Service Projects 5
2.12 Corporate Improvement Plan 6
2.13 Significant Partnerships 7
2.14 Strategic Risks 8

Progress on Performance Risks and Issues Raised — Annual Review

During 2010/11 the Executive requested progress reports on a number of
issues where performance targets were at risk of not being met, progress was
off track or there were other issues or risks identified. A summary of the end
of year position against all matters raised during the year is below.

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity

During 2010/11 performance risks were identified and addressed through the
corporate performance management framework in relation to the strategic
priority.

e In quarter one it was noted that the target to achieve 300 new homes was
off track. At year end performance has picked up and the target has been
exceed with a result of 370 new homes delivered.

e Throughout the year Executive Reports have highlighted issues with
regards to the Local Development Framework (LDF - Core Strategy). The
development of the LDF has been subject to delays due to changing
national policy requirements and the impact of the localism bill. During the
fourth quarter of 2010/11 the Executive received a report on the Draft
Core Strategy and work was progressed with regards to population and
demographic projections. At their meeting on 23" May 2011 the Executive
agreed a development strategy based on the new household and
population projections.

Page 200



2.3

In quarter two the report highlighted issues with the target to help support
job creation in the District with the announcement from Vodaphone that it
would close its Banbury Office significant redundancies expected. The
Council provided support to Vodaphone including hosting an onsite Job
Club for employees.

The percentage of planning appeals allowed against a refusal decision.
This indicator has been kept under review during the course of 2010/11
including a full review of all planning appeals decisions commissioned by
the Corporate Management Team. No single underlying cause was found
and it is acknowledged that this is an indicator that can be easily affected
by adverse outcomes measured against a low number of appeal cases.

A Cleaner, Greener Cherwell

No significant performance risks or issues were identified in relation to this
strategic priority during 2010/11.

A Safe and Healthy Cherwell

No significant performance risks or issues were identified in relation to this
strategic priority during 2010/11.

An Accessible Value for Money Cherwell

In quarter 1 it was noted that the ambition to publish an additional edition
of the Council’s magazine Cherwell Link would not be met. This was due
to budgetary constraints. At year end this position remains and no
additional editions of Cherwell Link are planned for 2011/12.

In quarter 2 issues around partnership working where highlighted. This
included the impact national policy changes on partnerships and the
challenging funding decisions being made that were likely to affect
partnership programmes. Many of the implications have been felt first at
the County level and changes in the role of the Health and Well Being
Partnership, the Public Service Board and the Economic Partnership have
been noted. Cherwell District Council has decided to retain its partnership
register and continue monitoring performance against its core
partnerships, highlighting changes in performance reports where
appropriate. Partnership risks have also been updated in the risk register.
For Cherwell specific partnerships many continue as they continue to key
strategic objectives.

Strategic Risks: given the significant changes facing the Council in terms
of reducing budgets and shared management the Extended Management
Team undertook a full review of the strategic risks facing the Council in
quarter four of 2010/11. The updated risk register has also been reviewed
by the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee.

Overview of Performance

During 2010/11 the Council has continued to focus on its strategic priorities,
delivering continuous service improvement and value for money. The Council

Page 201



24

has responded to the ongoing impact of the recession on vulnerable groups
by working in partnership and ensuring resources and capacity have been re-
allocated to meet the changing needs of the local community, within the
context of increased demand for Council services and reducing public
expenditure.

Table 3 below provides a summary of performance against targets for all
corporate performance frameworks. This shows that across the corporate
plan, improvement priorities, service performance and partnerships the
Council has delivered ongoing improvements. Where targets have not been
met or are off track corrective actions have been identified. For detailed
information see appendices 1-8.

Table 2: Overview of Corporate Performance Framework

Performance Review at Year End
% targets met by No. of
Green Amber Red targets set
Corporate Scorecard 90% 7% 3% 28
Local Area Agreement* 67% 8% 25% 12
Corporate Plan ** 83% 12% 5% 94
Priority Service Indicators*** 66% 14% 20% 35
Strategic Service Projects 72% 14% 14% 7
Corporate Improvement Plan 91% 4.5% 4.5% 22
Significant Partnerships 79% 16% 5% 19
Total targets by | 173 (80%) | 25 (12%) 19 (8%) 217 (100%)
Green/Amber/Red status
number (%)

* 3 targets in the Local Area Agreement do not have data as the place survey on
which they are based is no longer a requirement. They have been excluded from the
figures in this table. 1 target relies on data from central government that has not yet
been provided.

** 2 national indicators that were part of the corporate plan have been discontinued in
year. They have been excluded from the figures in this table.

*** 3 Priority service indicators have data that we are awaiting from third parties (e.g.

police) or data that is not yet available. They have been excluded from the figures in
this table.

Corporate Scorecard — Working in Partnership

Local Area Agreement

During 2010/11 the Government revoked the requirement to undertake a
Local Area Agreement. Cherwell District Council continued to monitor its LAA

targets as they were embedded in the Council’s corporate plan and reflected
local priorities particularly in relation to housing and the environment.

Page 202



Successes

e The cleaner, greener targets around improving street cleanliness in terms
of litter, detritus and fly tipping have all been met.

e NI 156 — the number of households living in temporary accommodation.
The Cherwell temporary accommodation strategy is fully operational and
has successfully reduced the number of households living in temporary
accommodation to 29 against a target of 33.

Issues

e Several of the indictors in the LAA (measured by the national place
survey) have been dropped during 2010/11 and no data will be published.
These are clearly marked in appendix 2.

The Cherwell Sustainable Community Strategy

2010/11 has been the Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership’s first full year.
The Board has focused on its role as a community leader by establishing two
major consultative forums for local residents. These are the disability forum
and the faith forum. Both provide a good opportunity for local partners to work
with community representatives to help improve public services and provide
opportunities for improved engagement.

The Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership has also continued to work with the
Brighter Futures in Banbury group (with the Council providing the
Chairmanship) to lead the local delivery of the Oxfordshire ‘breaking the cycle
of deprivation programme’. Key achievements include:

Successes

e Opening of ‘The Hill’ Youth Centre including funding for a youth worker
to support young people and their families and work in schools to help
prevent youth homelessness

e The first Prince’s Trust Programme for Banbury, offering intensive
supporting and transforming the lives of a group of Banbury’s NEET
young people

e Funding for two Transition Workers from September, so far supporting
75 young Banbury people from dropping out and becoming NEET from
college or employment, with a long term estimated saving of over £12m
in average lifetime cost to the public purse

¢ An increasing spotlight on volunteering, successfully enrolling young
volunteers at a Making a Difference Volunteering Day at the local
college (OCVC)

e A new family learning course for parents and carers in four Banbury
Children’s Centres

¢ Intensive support programme for 20 families in Banbury to help them
help themselves and reduce the cost and impact of their problems on
the community and service providers (estimated at £55,000 per family
per year)

Page 203



2.5

Issues

e Looking forward 2011/12 will be a critical year for the Cherwell Local
Strategic Partnership. In a context of increasing financial constraint the
partnership will need to focus on its priorities and ensure that it focuses on
areas of most need. It is likely that there will be some new members of the
LSP Board and they will need support to develop their roles.

Corporate Scorecard — Corporate Plan Performance Pledges

In 2010/11 the Council made 16 performance pledges which were publicly
highlighted in the council tax leaflet which was sent to every household in
Cherwell. These promises reflect local priorities, are grounded within our
strategic objectives and reflect the results of our corporate consultation
programme.

Of the 16 promises 14 were met in full with issues arising in two. Full details
are in appendix one.

Successes

e Contribute to the creation of 200 new jobs in the district during
2010/11 the Council has met its target of contributing to the creation of
200 new jobs in the district. However, economic conditions remain
challenging for residents and local businesses with some jobs lost. The
economic development team continue to support local businesses through
advisory services.

e Help another 1000 local people at the Bicester and Banbury Job
Clubs. The Council has worked with partners to support the job clubs. In
the past year they have been successful with 1,568 visits by job seekers.
The model has also been adopted by other authorities recognised as a
national good practice.

e Deliver 100 affordable homes 123 new affordable homes have been
delivered in 2010/11. This includes 40 extra care units in Banbury
completed in March 2011.

e Launch a new programme of work to tackle disadvantage in
Banbury. The programme has commenced with successful projects to
support apprenticeships and training for young people not in education,
employment or training, to improve health and access to local services.

o Make significant progress on the Eco Bicester demonstration
projects. All of the demonstration projects are underway and on track for
completion.

o Work with partners to deliver another year of reduction in crime and
anti-social behaviour. Anti-social behaviour in Cherwell is down by 15%,
criminal damage down by 9.4% and serious acquisitive crime is down by
20%.CCTV which is owned by the Council and operated in conjunction
with Thames Valley Police was responsible for 466 arrests with nearly a
third directly attributable to the operators witnessing a crime.

Page 204



2.6

o Continue to support the provision of the best possible services at
the Horton Hospital. The Council has continued its role as a community
champion for retaining services at the Horton. Progress has been made
during 2010/11 with regards to paediatrics and anaesthetic services.

e Attract an extra 100,000 visits to new and refurbished leisure centres
and Woodgreen Pool. During 2010/11 more than 1.2 million visits were
recorded significantly exceeding the target.

¢ Increase satisfaction with street and environmental cleanliness form
67% to 69% of residents satisfied. In our annual survey 72% of
respondents said they were satisfied or very satisfied with street and
environmental cleanliness.

¢ Increase household recycling rates to 55%. A rate of 57.3% has been
achieved.

e Deliver a further year of reduced Co2 emissions. Both the Council’s
buildings and vehicles are showing good reductions. Sports centres
emissions are up slightly, however this reflects increased usage and
capacity following the development programme.

e Reduce our costs by a further £800,000. This has been achieved
through the Council’s programme of value for money reviews.

e Deliver a below inflation Council Tax increase for 2011/12. The
Council has taken advantage of the national council tax freeze and the
budget for 2011/12 has been prepared with a 0% increase in council tax.

¢ Double the number of Council services that can be booked, paid or
applied for online. More than 100 Council services are now available
online.

Issues

o Work with partners to make significant progress on the Bicester
Town Centre Development. Good progress has been made on the
infrastructure works but there are some delays relating the outstanding
land acquisition. These will be resolved through a Planning Inquiry.

o Continue to support new and improved health services for Bicester
and the surrounding areas. The Council continues to work with
Oxfordshire NHS to improve health services. Some delays to the
programme mean that the proposed procurement process will now start in
2011.

Corporate Scorecard — Financial Performance
There are two finance targets in the corporate scorecard (revenue and capital
variance against projected budget) and both are rated green.

Page 205



2.7

2.8

Successes

e 2010/11 has been a challenging year with some cuts to the budget
required as a result of the national economic position. In spite of these
challenges the Council is forecasting a budget outturn within its 2%
tolerances. In 2010/11 the Council also reviewed its medium term
financial strategy, in the light of reducing grant allocations for the
forthcoming years and has produced a balanced budget for 2011/12 whilst
minimising the impact on frontline services.

Corporate Scorecard — Human Resources Performance

Three Human Resources indicators are monitored: staff turnover, days lost
through sickness, and workforce capacity. These targets are included in the
scorecard as they provide an indication of organisational capacity and
resource.

All are green having met targets at year end.

Successes

e Positive and proactive management of staff sickness has meant that this
year staff sickness has reduced and targets have been met at all quarters
during the year. The average day’s sickness per full time employee in
2010/11 was 7.15 in comparison to 7.29 in 2009/10

Corporate Scorecard — Customer Feedback

There are four customer satisfaction targets included in the Corporate
Scorecard covering: satisfaction with customer service when contacting the
Council, the results of a mystery shoppers survey, feeling safe and feeling
well informed about council services.

Successes
o We set a target of 90% of customers feeling satisfied with our services
when asked, and we measure this on a monthly basis. Targets have
been consistently met and exceeded throughout the year.

e Increased press coverage and the Council’'s quarterly newsletter,
focused on our services and strategic priorities have resulted in 69%
of residents feeling well informed about the services the Council
offers. An improvement on performance in 2009/10 which was 65%.

Issues
e Mystery Shoppers: The telephone mystery shopping survey that the
Council usually undertakes has been delayed. This decision was
undertaken in order to measure the impact of planned improvements
in the service and the survey will be undertaken in 2011/12. Face to
face mystery shopping was completed and results show an
improvement in performance in comparison with 2009/10.

Page 206



2.9

2.10

Corporate Plan Performance

The Corporate Plan is the Council’s five year action plan to address its four
strategic priorities. Each year the Corporate Plan is refreshed on the basis of
robust public consultation and reviewed in response to changing external
circumstances such as the economic climate or new government policy.

For each of the four Strategic Priorities the Council sets a number of targets.

The table below provides an overview of our Corporate Plan Performance.

Table 3: Summary of Corporate Plan Performance against Strategic
Priorities

In total 77 of the Council Plan targets were met in full, 12 reported Amber
(being within 10% of target) and 5 as having missed the target.

A District of A safe and A cleaner, An accessible Total
Opportunity healthy greener value for money
Cherwell Cherwell council
e ol 30 20 20 24 94
targets
Green 23 18 16 20 77
Amber 5 2 3 2 12
Red 2 0 1 2 5

In 2010/11 two cross cutting priorities were added to the corporate plan.
These were to support the delivery of Eco Bicester and to establish a
programme of work aimed at breaking the cycle of deprivation. Table 4
provides a summary of the Council’s performance against these two priorities.

Table 4: Summary of Corporate Plan Performance against Cross Cutting
Priorities

Eco Bicester Breaking the Cycle of Deprivation Total
No. of targets 5 3 8
Green 4 3 7
Amber 1 0 1
Red 0 0 0

Full details are in appendix three.

Priority Service Indicators Performance

Our priority service indicators are a mixture of locally determined measures
and performance indicators that have previously been measured at a national
level. There are 35 targets within this framework of which 3 rely on data from
third parties which is not yet available. In 2010/11 we made satisfactory
progress against 28 of the indicators and missed 7 of our targets.

Full details are in appendix four.

Successes

Page 207



2.11

NI 181 Time taken to process benefits claims: Progress has been made in
2010/11 in all areas of benefits processing. This has been due to the
bedding-in of the contract with Capita and the continued focus of
performance improvement.

Number of repeat homelessness cases, in 2010/11 our performance was
better than target, recording one repeat case against a target of five.

Percentage of invoices paid within 30 days: performance for 2010/11 was
at 98.6% against a target of 98%. This follows a series of actions to
improve performance including discussions at scrutiny committee and
guidance for managers.

The percentage of the Council’s buildings accessible to people with a
disability has remained at 100% and will be subject to an ongoing
programme of accessibility audits. The Council has also established a
disabled person’s forum to improve consultation around access and
mobility issues.

Number of pupils visiting Banbury Museum, this year the museum has
achieved an excellent record of school visits both in terms of numbers and
feedback from visitors.

Issues

Collection of Council Tax and NNDR: our performance is slightly off track
against target. However NNDR collection rates are up on 2009/10 and at
98.6% against a target of 99%. The Council is continuing to work with
Capita to improve its performance and meet its challenging targets.

NI 182 - Satisfaction of business with local authority regulation services:
Although satisfaction remains high performance is slightly off track. Steps
are being taken to improve performance and response rates to
satisfaction surveys.

NI 157a - Processing of major applications within 13 weeks: A continued
low level of major applications coupled with a number of key applications
requiring additional negotiations beyond 13 weeks means that this target
has not been met. The Council has reviewed performance during 2010/11
in terms of planning and has not identified any additional causes
underlying this issue.

Strategic Service Projects

There are seven strategic projects highlighted in the corporate performance
framework that, although service-based, are of corporate significance
because of the resources involved, their impact on the Council’s reputation or
their contribution to delivering the Council’'s corporate priorities. Five of the
projects are reported as green, one amber and one red. Full details are in
appendix five.

Successes

Eco Bicester: the demonstration projects are progressing well. The Garth
demonstration house opened in May, funding for Bryan House has been

Page 208



212

secured and the Cooper School Sixth form is due to complete in
September 2011.

e Flood Alleviation Project: construction has now started on site and
completion is expected in early 2012.

e South West Bicester Development: housing development is now
underway

Issues

e Banbury Cultural Quarter: the project has been deferred as a result of
County Council funding decisions.

e Bicester town centre redevelopment: the main infrastructure works have
been completed but the need to make a compulsory purchase order has
slowed progress on the rest of the project. It is hoped that the scheme will
proceed later in 2011.

Corporate Improvement Plan

Executive agreed the 2010/11 Corporate Improvement Plan and Value for
Money review programme at the end of 2009/10. The priorities of the plan
were aimed at ensuring the Council meets it's objectives by focusing on the
strategic challenges facing Cherwell. These include services for younger and
older people, improving community cohesion, improving data quality and
customer information, promoting equality and managing assets. The wider
context of reducing public expenditure required a proactive approach to
finding efficiencies and a challenging programme of 10 value for money
reviews was set.

Full details are in appendix six.
Successes

e Eight Value for Money (VFM) reviews were completed during 2010/11 and
two are on track to be completed in the first quarter of 2011/12. The
reviews have exceeded targets and the savings have helped contribute to
meeting the Council budget targets in 2011/12.

e The Council has appointed a shared Chief Executive with South
Northamptonshire Council, the first step in a shared management
programme that will deliver significant cost reduction for both authorities.
During the year several shared service opportunities have also been
achieved, including a joint building control service.

e Equalities: the Council continues to make good progress on its equalities
action plan. A full programme of impact assessments have been
undertaken, the consultation equalities and access panel continue to meet
regularly and contribute to improving customer service and access. During
2010/11 an equalities inspection was planned. However, it was decided
that the Council would not commission this inspection and takes the costs
associated as an efficiency saving (in the order of £5000). A full self
assessment was undertaken instead, using the national standards, and
areas of strength were identified along with areas for improvement. These

Page 209



213

have been included in the corporate equalities plan for 2011/12. The
equalities self assessment is available as a background paper to this
report.

Issues

¢ Community Cohesion: as the year progressed it has become clear that a
wider scope for this project was required. The removal of the community
cohesion grant and the emerging Big Society policy agenda means that
this project has been broadened to address community development
fundamentally and forms part of he 2011/12 improvement programme.

e Services for Young People: as the County Council is changing the way
services for young people will be delivered Cherwell District Council will
need to review its work in the light of these changes.

Significant Partnerships Performance

The Council has identified 19 partnerships as significant due to the level of
resources involved or the impact on the Council’s strategic priorities. Of these
nine are partnerships at the county- wide level. Many of the most significant
and challenging issues we face, tackling crime, the environment, economic
development, can only be addressed by local agencies working together.

To support this work there is time in the annual internal audit programme to
review partnerships and training is made available for Members involved in
partnerships and outside bodies. During 2011/12 the role of partnerships will
continue to evolve as national policy guidance changes, partnership working
will continue to be a focus of the performance management framework.

Successes

e Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership

During 2010/11 the partnership has established a faith forum for Cherwell,
supported by the Council and led by the LSP faith representative. The
partnership has been given a clean bill of health in its audit and has also
coordinated local consultation responses to the Local Transport Plan, the
County Council proposals for new children and young people services
hubs. The Board is also keeping a watching brief on the implications of
funding reductions locally and the impact of these on the local voluntary
sector.

¢ North West Bicester Strategic Delivery Board
The Board has met four times and continues to oversee the delivery of
Eco Bicester. Work has been undertaken to develop a single shred vision
for the programme, demonstration projects are well underway as are
proposals for the eco development.

¢ Kidlington Village Centre Management Board
This year the Partnership has contributed to the development of major
projects such as the pedestrianisation scheme, Watts Way parking and
market operations.

Page 210



2.14

e The M40 Investment Partnership
The Partnership has continued to deal with day to day commercial
property enquiries and input into major business investments at the pre-
planning application stage.

o Cherwell Homelessness Strategy Partnership
The Partnership continues to work to tackle homelessness and the current
focus is on outreach work to support victims of domestic violence.

Issues and Opportunities

e County wide partnerships

Given the significant amount of national policy change in relation to
partnerships and associated requirements many county wide partnerships
are in a state of flux. The public service board has been put on hold and
the spatial and infrastructure partnership is now working with the
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) on matters relating to
Economic and Infrastructure development. The Health and Wellbeing
Board will be reviewing its terms of reference to taken into consideration
the impact of NHS changes. As such, a close watching brief of
partnerships is ongoing and an update will be provided in the next
quarterly Executive performance report.

It is also worth noting that Cherwell is a member of both the Oxfordshire
LEP and the South Midlands LEP, the rationale for this is to maximise the
opportunities generated by our geographic location on the border of both
areas. Future quarterly reports will provide an update on progress in
relation to both LEPs.

Strategic Risk Review

During 2010/11 the Council’'s risk and performance management and
monitoring framework were fully integrated with shared data management
software and a monthly reporting cycle for all strategic, corporate and
partnership risks. This approach has proved successful with reports received
by Executive and the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee. In the last quarter
the Council’s extended management team (EMT) met and undertook a full
review of all strategic, corporate and partnership risks and updated the
register for 2011/12.

The Council has 19 strategic risks identified on its risk register that are
reviewed as part of an integrated performance and risk management
framework on a quarterly basis. During 2010/11 two additional risks were
identified and added to the register, these were the strategic risk of the
shared management programme and the corporate risk of fraud. Operational
risks are reviewed at the service level. All strategic risks have been reviewed
this quarter and there are no significant additional issues arising. (See
appendix 8).

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

41

The report shows the Council’'s performance against the Corporate Scorecard
and Performance Management Framework in 2010/2011. From this
information the Executive can make a judgement about the progress the

Page 211



Council is making in meeting its objectives, identify the achievements it
wishes to celebrate and the areas where action is required to improve

performance.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward

Option One

Option Two

Consultations

To review current performance levels and consider any
actions arising.

To approve or reject the recommendations above.

Not Applicable

Implications

Financial:

Legal:

Risk Management:

Financial Effects — The resources required to operate the
Performance Management Framework is contained within
existing budgets. However the information presented may
lead to decisions that have financial implications. These
will be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan &
Financial Strategy and the annual Service & Financial
Planning process

Efficiency Savings — There are none arising directly from
this report. The Performance Management Framework is
designed to improve performance and financial
management, including the avoidance of overspending
and under spend, and the achievement of efficiencies. We
monitor the progress against the Council’s targets for
annual efficiency savings and report performance through
the Performance Management Framework. .

Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate System
Account, 01295 221559

Maintaining National Indicators is no longer a legal
requirement.

Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Team Leader -
Planning and Litigation / Interim Monitoring Officer, 01295
221687

The Performance and Risk Management Framework is
designed to assist the Council in managing and
monitoring delivery of its strategic objectives. Managers
are required to maintain their sections of the risk register,
and update their risks no less frequently than quarterly,
strategic risks are updated monthly. The service manager
should address the risks associated with performance
issues. The framework may show that performance is not
achieving desired levels. Managers can address this by

Page 212



Data Quality

Wards Affected

re-assessing the level of performance required, the
priority it should attract, and the level of resource
available.

The author of this report is responsible for the
performance and risk management framework, Claire
Taylor, Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager,
01295 221563.

Data for performance against all indicators has been
collected and calculated using agreed methodologies and
in accordance with Performance Indicator Definition
Records (PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The
council’s performance management software has been
used to gather and report performance data in line with
performance reporting procedures. A set of performance
measures is audited each year as part of the internal audit
programme to spot check data quality issues.

Comments checked by Ros Holloway, interim officer for
data quality, 01295 221751

All

Corporate Plan Themes

The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Corporate Plan

Themes

Executive Portfolio

Councillor Nigel Morris

Portfolio Holder for

Performance Management and Improvement

Document Information

Appendix No Title
Appendix 1 Corporate Scorecard 2009/2010
Appendix 2 Local Area Agreement

Appendix 3 Corporate Plan

Appendix 4 Priority Service Indicators
Appendix 5 Strategic Service Projects
Appendix 6 Corporate Improvement Plan
Appendix 7 Significant Partnerships

Appendix 8 Strategic Risks

Background Papers

Cherwell District Council — Consultation Strategy Review 2010/11
Cherwell District Council — Equalities Self Assessment
Cherwell District Council — Brighter Futures in Banbury Annual Report

Report Author Claire Taylor, Corporate Strategy and Performance Manager
Contact 01295 221563 claire.taylor@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
Information

Page 213




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



€ Jo | abedq

096°8/0°} J0 [ej0} 106} Jsulebe | |0z YoJely e paplooal a1am SYSIA G6/ 9L )L JOAD Alypuopy HeaH * UonEsIosY |00d U9aI6POOAA PUB SBIUSD BINSI9|
paysiqinal ® mau 0} SHSIA 000'00 | BJiXe Ue Joeipy
"1 L0z Buunp ssacoud EmeSooLM |ewJoy e 0} paaooud M« ase) ssauisng N.Mmmgw e Burpoddns Auuon Seale BUIPUNOLINS PUE JB1SB0Ig 10} SBOINISS
pJeog | Dd 4IYSpJojXQ 8y} Ul papnjouod sey yoiym | |0z Ales woly uaxeuspun bunss) jesuew oS “Aejap jJuswaindold y)[eaH @ uonealoay uNeay penoidwl pue mou poddns o) anuRLoS
‘passaibouid Buieq
suondo aAeulsye pue ybnos Buiaq Aje|D "[apow 891AI8s ainjny paaibe sy Jo Jed [e)uassa Ue ale YdIym [9AS] [euoljeu Auuon [eNdSOH UOLIOH 8y} Je seo1AI8s B|gissod
e je sabueyo wouy Buisie sajos Buluiel; Jo sso| JaA0 Ajuieaoun 0} anp Ajuisjew JNOge ulaouoy “sjapowl AISAIIBp 80IAI8S yjjeaH 1 uoneaioay 1599 8y} 4o uoisiroid sy} Joddns o} snulUOD
Mau Joj 3)9|dwo9 jsowe uonejuawa|dwi pue ssa001d Jusw)inioal aI1aym soldysaeue pue soujeipaed uo ssaiboid poos
11/0102 Apuo $90IM9S [BINY S90USYO gSY *® SWLD Ul UoIONpal
pue 01/600Z U9amjaq uoionpal %0z e Buimoys swio aAlsinboe SNoLas yym UoioNPal SWILID JO pual} panuluo) 1o ® UBQIN ‘SaiuNWWo) Jajes J3yjoue }aA JaAlep 0} siauped Yim Yo
1I1emIay9 AyyjeaH pue ajes v
uswdojaAs( oIWOU0D!
‘ssaiboud Jueoyiubis Bunjew ate sosfoid uonesuOWap UMO) 099 au} I Ajupuopy ¥ 18"sq o! 3 sjosfo.d uonesjsuoWwsp UMo} 008
% Aoljod Buiuuelq
19189219 9y} ||e uo ssaiboud jueoyiubis ayep
‘PO8U Ul JSOW 9SOY) UO $89IN0Sal S0y 0) Ainqueg Joj pasodoid £
JUNWWOYD @ JUSWUOIIAUT
qny saljiwey pue ajdoad BunoA ‘uaip|iyo mepN ‘s82Inosal J0joas dliqnd aininy paonpas wouy Buinsas abueyd pue jo Ayuopy - Joanq aba1en Jlomuay) ul
yoedwi ay} Buipsebas uieouo) ‘padojansp Bulaq AjAloe SUOKEDIIUNWIWOD Jayun4 ‘suopjoe Aouabe inw uo ssaiboid poos = S uofjeAldap ajyoe) 0} 3om jo swwelboid mau youne
11L0Z AB /| uo @2uswwod |Im Asinbul jeyy pue ‘piay
uaaq sey Aunbuj 21/gnd e [un PaWULUOD 8 JOUUED JBPIQ BYL "PAASIYDE SI SIU} 8INSud 0} JaplQ aseyoind Alosindwod Ayuopy sajejs3 % uonessuabay Juawdo|aAap 813USD UMO} J8}sa9lg JO uonajdwod uo
B apewW sey [19uno) ay} pue ‘pajejdwos Bulaq suonisinboe puej [euly ay) uo spuadap UOIONISUOD S)IS-UO 8y | ssauboud yueoyiubis axew o} sisuped Yim Yo\ b
*sjlun 9z 03 GZT Jo abues ayy ulyam pajdadxa Ajjuadind si ZT/TT0Z 40 AJaAlp ./_
J1eaA Bujwod ayy 03 pdebad Yip "€ZT e puels suoa|dwod |e3ol ‘TT0Z Y24elW Ag o|npayds uo Buisnoy Aypuopy seomeg BUISNOH BUISROY JORAG JO POBU LI SS0L JO) SSWIOY MAU 001 JOMIST
9Je) eJ)x3 Jo sjuUN Ot Jo uona|dwod ayy Buimojjo4 "sanunuod Buisnoy a|gep.oyse Jo AIDAIIRP |NJSSEIINS (]
‘pajeroaidde Aenoiued s| palayo poddns juswdojarsp a
s pue Buiyoeod ayy ‘qnjy gor yoes je siakojdwa aaey o} jou pajuloddesip a.le s1eyaas qof awos IS|IYA\ "S1exaas _UI
qol Jay}o 0} sqn|) oI puUSWIWODaI PINOM G|, pue sqof punoy pey || ‘Aeans uonoejsies e Buns|dwoo sisxass qol g JO Ao juswdojaaa o1Wouod] sqnp qof
"1 10Z YOIB JO pua a3y} 0} sypuow g| ay} Joj sqnj) qor Apjaam ay 0} apew alem siaxaas qol Aq s)isin 89| g Aoljod Buiuueld funqueg pue Ja1seoig Ino Je 8idoad [200] 0001 JOUIOUE n_or
J19)s901g Ul O¢ ‘[e10ads
I1eyes e Buipnour * Ainqueg ul gg  1L10Z YoJe|N Ul padjay siexeas dor gLl LL-010g Bulnp siaxeas qol Aq sysia 89g°L
'suieb /g8 ;m._\M/_ 80| £/9¢ pue ummc_mm a1om sqol 095€ :morom ul o JuswdojeAs( o1LOU0oT
|}oauIp sassauisng Bupjoejuod ao1A1eg juswdojanag ILJUoN 19 Aonjod Buiuuelg sqol MU (0Z JO UOIESIO BU} O} BNGLIUOD
21Wou09g s|avuay ybnouyy payuapl aiam sqol €g ‘7 Japenb U] }so| alem /G| pue pauleB aiam sqol g ‘yosely Buung
Aunyioddo o jouysia v
sabpa|d ue|d djesodio)
‘sepuabe
sdiysiauped 1 9oUBWLIOUS
Aoljod mau jo ybi| ayy ul Ajjeroadsas ‘ABajesys Ajunwwo) sjqeuleisng ayj ul suonelidse ay} Jo AJSAIBp 8y} ainsus Auspenp .c «.L>mnm_w~wh«m Qm‘_o&om ABajens Ajunwwo) s|qeureisng [|emiIayd
0} papaau 3}I0M Jayuny Ing poob si ssaibold “palojiuow aq 0} senuiuod ABajens Ajunwwo) ajqeureisng ay) uo AlaaleQg
‘ssaiboud
sdiysiauped 1 souewlopad
v v J0}lUOW 0} BNUIUOD S|IPUNOYD JOLISIQ SIIYSPIOIXO JaY)0 B} pue ||amiay ‘saiold [edo) Joajal ) Ulyim sioyeslpul|  Apsuenp “ABarens oreiodion Juswaalby ealy [0
9y} SB ‘JOAOMOH pJIeog S82IAISS 2llqNd a41YsPIojXQ 8y} Aq paisojiuow Bureq Jebuoj ou si Juswealby ealy [B007 8y
diysiauyed ui Bunpiop
nod saluL fouenbaiy 991AJ19S 3|qisuodsa; uoniuyag ainsea
JopEnD JopEnD 3)ep 0} 92UBWLIOHS UO JUdBWWoH Bunoday IAISS 3|q! 2] nuysqg N
0 0 (V/N) V1vd ON
) ) L10Z Y24e - 0102 UdyY
[4 S ANV
5z 2z 1102Z/010C pl1ed3102§ dje.

| Xipuaddy




€ Jo z abedq

(yeys Aousbe pue |enseo ‘Aiesodwsy Buipnjoxa)

rage £10

yobue} ulyIm [jam - ybiy surewsau Ayoeded ayesodiod Auapenp Juawanoidwi @ 8|doad faoedeo s0I0pHo
“Jeak }se| uo uononpal ||eJano JYBIIS ‘wis) Buoj %El PUE WIS) LOYS % /G Se UMOp Ud)oiq si ssauxdlg|  Auapenp juswanoidw g 8|doad SsaudIS YBnoJy} 1so| sAep Jo JequinN
A Auspen uawanoidw| % a|dos (s1ones) Areyunion)
9]EWI|D OIWLIOUODS JUSLIND 0} 8NP MO| AJSA JaAouIN) JjeiS [iepenp ] | @ 8|do8d 1eAOUIN el
$821N0Sdy uewny
‘paiinbai aq Aew jey) abeddi|s [euonippe Aue pue uonisod pus Jeak [enjoe sy} apiAoid ||Im aunp Ul SANOSX] Auuon souBUL sloud 1810 (%SG-/%c+) alyo.d suiebe ainypuadxa
0} 06 0} Joday wINPNO 8y "aAnNdax3 je abeddis panoisdde Ajsnoiaaid Junosoe ojul Buiie) pus JeaA je 1abie} up i 196pnq |ejdeo uo aoueLeA abejusdied
5 dd Ao soueUl (%S-/%2+) elyoud jsuiebe ainypuadxa
SBOUEIS|0} 19DPNQ PaACIAdE UILNM ] [IM LUnING IO 4 196pnq anuanai uo aoueleA abejusdled
aouew.oad |eloueuly
A d A o Alypuo sdiysiouped g SouBLLIOLSd S10}e2IpU| 92IAI9S AJLIOLd JO J9Xseq ay) Jsulefe aouewIous
Jaquiy JO UsaIS) a1am pus Jeak je papodal siojedlpu| 891A18S AJlIold JO %08 I43UON ‘ABejens sjelodion 1edlpu| S0IAISS AJlION JO 193seq ay} jsul Had
sJiojedipuj adIAIaS AjLioLid
swuwesboud Juswanoidwi 991AI8S JaWO0ISND ay} Jo Jed se padojensp aq ||Im sadiales pajelBajul Ajjny atow g|/11.0Z Buung
¥.€ :Bulepio uig
GZS 1geq 10841Q Xe [ |1Duno) £ SWaysAS uonewlou| .
. Jyluo 001 O} 0G wouy suljuo Joy palidde Jo 1oy pied ‘pasjooq ag ued
10/ : |[eadde aonou abieyo ssaoxa buiyied @ S9OIAISS JawoIsn) JeUs SSOIAISS [I0UNOD 4O JSGUINU 343 S|GNOQ
098 : uiq passiw e Jodey
€0 © U0ID9||00 JEPUSIED UIg
-:ale Jeak | 1/010g 10} S9OIAISS BUIUO dAl O "8}ISqaM INO UO S|ge|IeAB MOU JE S8DIAISS SUIUO (| UBL) IO
"Xe] [Iouno) Ul aseaidul %0 Alpuon souBUL _
e ynm pasedaid usaq sey g|/1 1.0g 10} 196png sy} pue Juels) 8zaal4 Xe] [IoUno) ay} Jo abejueApe usye) sey [IDunog ay | : Uoljejjul MOJag SI UdIYM Z1/| |0Z Ul 9SESIOUI XE) [IOUN0D B JaAlleQ
‘panalyoe usaq sey Y0083 Jo asiwoud oljgnd Ayuopy aoueul

0000083 Joyuny e Aq s}s00 JN0 80Npay

119uno) ABuoy\ 10} BNJeA ‘9|qISSaIY Uy

Ae piw j3un Apeal jou ejep |je ybnoyye pajoadxa

. Ayuop S9JIAIBS |BjuBWIUOIIAUTY |1oUN02 8y} WO} suononpal
S| uoiponpal |jews AJaA e ||eldA0 - dn suoissiwe a1ud) spodg ‘suoissiwa ul uoonpal poob Buimoys }es)) pue sbuipjing
SUOISSIWBS ZOD JO Jeak Jayuny e JoAlleg
paAsIyoe %" /G JO ajel Bulphoay Ayuopy S9OIAISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT 1102 Yolew Lg
Aq %GG 03 a)es BuljpAoal pjoyasnoy asealou|
KaAINs UONOEBJSHHES JOWO}SND [ENUUE UI %2/ UONOB)SIIES JaWoisn) Ayuopy S9OIAISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT %69 0} % /9 WO} SSOUI|UES|O [EJUBUUOIIAUS
9 J98l)S U)IM uoljoejsies asealou|
[19MIBYD Jdud3ls) ‘Udues|) v
inoj salyL LeEntERy 921AI9g d|qisuodsa uopiuyaQ ainses
JopEnD JopEnD 3)ep 0} 92UBWLIOHS UO JUdBWWoH Bunoday IAISS 3|q! 2] nuysqg N
0 0 (V/N) V1vd ON
) ) L10Z Y24e - 0102 UdyY
[4 S e\
5z 2z 1102Z/010C pl1ed3102§ dje.

| Xipuaddy




€ Jo ¢ abedq

%€L=0102

%19 = 6002 "
%.9 = 8002 sdiysiouped @ aouewiopad

%59 = 2002 ‘ABajens sjesodion

%09 = 9002
:uonoejshes [[eloAQ Juswaoidwl Jo pual) [eJauss) "pajajdwoo Aeains uonoeysies Jenuuy
Kouanbai4
Bunaoday

(Ajuo sasodind uonewJoyur 10j) ASAINS UONOEBJSNIES JBWO0)SND

9OUBWIOWA UO JUBWIWOY 991AI9g d|qisuodsay

1JoQ ainseapy

sAkanung 19y10

Page 217

(21098 9y ou) Ajuo uoljewsoyul 10} pajosd||0D)

swa)sAs uonew.ou|

Aanuns siaddoys A1sysAw aaizesedwos Ajjeuoneu
3 S9OIAIBS JaWo}sn)

e ul souewlopad abesaAe sA0ge dASIYOY

v v “awwelBoid Juswanoidwl 801AISS JBLIOISNO BY} S04 B|EISBWI) dU} Y)m ublje 0} piemioy pajjos usaq sey jebuey siyy|  Alyuon

swaj)sAs uonew.ou| j1oUN0Y Y} BuoeUd
3 S8OIAIDG JoWOo)SN) USYM SDIAISS JOWO)SND INO YJIM palsles aie
SISWO)SND INO JO %G6 ISED| e Jey) ainsug

uonoBJSIIES %G6 JOA0 paulewal Ajus)sisuod sey siyy|  Alyiuow

"%69 SEM | 1/010Z 40} 24nBly ay L

Alypuo uswanoidw] B ajdos 10UNOY 9y} INOGE PAWLIOUI [[OM |99} PaXSE
‘Way} 0} S8DIAJSS INO JO8)Je Jey) SUOISIOBP JO PaWLIOUI SIaW0)snd jdey sey JouIsIp ay) ssoloe abesanod ssaid pesealou) 1UIion } '8 81dosd _. O Su}Inoge p AL IIBA 199 P

USYM SIBWO)SND INO JO %99 Jey} ainsug

SOOINIBS [BINY

ajes 99} SjUBpISal JO %88 Moys synsal keaing|  AjLpuopy 8 UEQIN 'SENIUNLILICS JOJES

ANunNwiWwod 8y} Ul puB SWOY Je Jjes |93}
Koy Aes sjuapisal Jo %zg isesd| je ainsugy

}oe(qpPaa Jawoisny

ino4 {aiyy Kouanbai4
9)Jep 0} 9OUBWLIONA UO JUBWWOD

991AI9g d|qisuodsay yaq ainses|y

S e Bunioday
0 0 (V/N) V1vVd ON
, , L10Z Y21BI - 010 IUdy
z ] [ y3awv |
hid (49 1102/010Z pie23ioas ajesodio)

| xipuaddy



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



Z 40 | sbed

"%6°/G Sem joble} sy "|ooyds jJo apISINo }npe ue Aq pa| AlAloe
dnoub ul ped usye) ‘syeam { snoiaaid sy} Ul ‘pey aAIYSpIOXO Ul sjuspnis Q| Jeak
10 %G €9 smoys a|doad BunoA 1o} SBIIAIIOY SAIISO4 @INSeaw 0} 0.0Z AON/PO . . e/ (%) samanoe ansod
ul usyeuapun ASAINS Ydld 9y "duljaseq Jualind sy} suiwis}ap o} (Ydld) §8L Los d VN VIN ul uonedioued s,a/doad BUnoA 0L LIN
Aanins mau e uayeuapun mou sey 90 ‘Ajjusnbasqng -ABojopoyjaw pameyy
UNM djeindoeul palejoap uaad sey ,sM |19.1., AoAIns uonoa||oo ejep snoinaid ay |
‘panunUOISIp usaq sey AsAIng ade|d - anp Ejep O e/u eullio pue 8sv g
panun Ip usaq sey S 8%e|d p ejep oN /! V/N VIN 1noge suJeouod [eo0] ynm Buliesd LZOIN v
"eale JousIp pue AJunod yoes ssoioe L
pue|bu3 podg Aq ussepspun si yoiym ASAINS |euoneu e S| siyl ‘¢ Sdy Wouy . . e/ (%) uonealoas aaoe
abueyo jueoyiubis Ajleansiels e paIapisuod jou s Jamo| ybnoyye yoium % 0z cre v'0c / VIN VN pue pods ul uonedonied Jnpy 00IN
sem (0} 190 - 60 190) ¥ Aonuns 1oy ) nsal (SdY) AeAing ajdoad aAndY |lomiay) q
l1emIay9 AyjjesH pue ajeg v
‘uolepowwoooe Aseiodwa} dAISUadxa JO S|9AS| uonepowwodoe Aresjodws}
abesn mo| A||ealio)sIy ulejulew 0} panuiluod sey saolAIas Buisnoy Jo yom ay ] €e 6c €e ve | BuiAl| spjoyasnoy Jo JaquinN 9GLIN
‘00l Jo (sso.b) pataniep
106.e) ay) Buipasoxa ‘gg| payoeal | L/010Z 104 A1aaljap Buisnoy ajgeploye ay | 00k %t 8¢ 8y Sawoy d|qepJoye Jo JaquinN GSLIN
‘so)is oioads wouy Alddns Jo s}sedalo) ul papnjoul
JOU BJe YdIYM Sa}IS [[BjpUIM paliiuapIun |jews Ag apew uoinguuod ay} pue
‘uojule\ ‘peoy uojbuisse) je Buisnoy jo Aiaaiiep ay} ul ssaiboid pajoadxs ueyy 181 0.€ o€l G61 papinoid sswoy [euolippe 19N S LIN
J9)se} ale siy} Joj suoseal ulew ay| ‘sbBuljjemp 681 Ag L8| 10 1seoal0) Hoday
Bunojuop [enuuy 600Z U3 SPESIXa suona|dwod Jau /¢ o ainbly Jeak jo pug
Ajunpioddo jo 3o13sia v :l1emiayy
LW aouew.load jobie) lenjoy aouewlIopad 1obie] |enjoy
E 0 Ino4 Jayuend | Jno4 Jsyenp | ano4 Japenp | 9aiy] Japenp | saly) Japenp | esiy] Jepend

1102 ydJel - 0102 IdY

110Z/010Z }uswaaiby ealy €20

Z Xipuaddy



Z o z abey

(3) Jeak [eroueuly 60/800Z SU}

0L0z . . . . 10 UE)S 8y} douls pajoedwi aaey ey} suieb
J1aquwianopN Aq Ajnysseaons panaiyoe sem sBuInes 40083 Jo 1obue) asiwoud 21ignd 00°000008 00°000008 00°000009 00°000008 Aauow Joy anjea Buises|al-yseo Buiobuo
uo anjeA jau [e}o} - Asuow Joj anjep 6/ LIN
‘panuiUOIsIp usaq sey ASAING dde|d - 8np ejep oN e/u e/u e/u e/u V/IN V/IN S90IAJIBS [B00] AQ Juswieal] Jieq O LIN
"PanuURUODSIp Usaq sey AeAIng 9de|d - anp ejep o e/u e/u e/u e/u ©a.€ 1800
panuy P q sey S Id p ejep oN / / / / VIN VIN UM UonoBjSIes [e18Usb/|[eIan0 SO0IN
[19uno) A3uoly 10} anjeA ‘9|qISSa29Y UY :|[oMIdayD
9100 1834B1Y Bu) Y - 0JE| oJe oJe oJe Buiddn Ay - ssaulues|o
uofjoe Juawadlojud Buiseaoul pue sdiy Al Buljje} suesw a109s |, 8y ‘|9A8| poob Lioe c W L1oe c W 0L0c c W | 0l0e c W IUBLILGIIALS DUE 1951 m.w o_u_>an Huesy
e Je ||}S suoloe Juswadlojuy ‘||e} |lews e Buimoys sdij Al Jo Jaquinu ||BJSAQ 00k 00°L 00°t 00k 1y : PuEje8AS P 1 96LIN
eale [ednJ e ul sduewlopad poob . . (AON) (AON) (%) (snyyep) ssauljues|d
e S| S|y} - pJepue)s Mo|aq S[9AS| Shjl}ep aAeY pajoadsul SESUE B JO %8 punoly 00'6 008 006 009 |ejuswWUOolIAUS puUE }aalis panociduwl| qS6LIN
. . (roN) (roN) (%) (1) ssauuesjo CP
own AUE Je Ues[o S1991S ||E JO %86 PUNoIY 00y 00c 00'Y 002 |ejuBWUOIIAUS pue }aalis paroidul| BGELIN mf_
A
suoljejoadxa mojaq Aybi|s syluow may JSe| auj 1o} djel . . . . Bunsodwoo pue Buiokosl ‘esnal joj @)
BuljoAoal Ing pajoadxe 9,85 Jo ayes Bulpkoal - 01/6002 Ul %L S Uo asu Jueoyiubis 0095 EvLS 0085 Le6s 1uss a)sem pjoyassnoy Jo abejusalad Z6LIN )
©
a-
‘pPUS €O JE SE }084100Ul SB papuswe
Biel - d A d . . . . (6%) ployesnoy
ejep joble| ‘psejosdxe uey) sse| Sem SYjuow 8alyj Jse| sy ul Alejnoied ||ypuel 00°G6€ 8C'GlYy G2'96¢ €0°00¢€ 1ad o
ISEM ployssnoy [enpissy L6LIN
0} @)Sem Ul uoljonpal ay) Ing payoune| Anyjssaoons sem Buijokoal pooy ay |
uoneoldwi anuanal
e pey aABY PINOM |[e Way} }J9aW 0} Jnd }oW Usad dARY ¢ [9AS] Jo} sjuswalinbal
ay} Jo Auew pue abueyd ajewl[o 0} pajdepe aney saoIAIas Aljetauab JanemoH 00 00z 0L0Z YoselN | 010z udien abueyn
In220 4abuo| ou M sIY} - (Vd430) 00'¢c 00C aew|D o} }depy o} Buluueld ggLIN
slleyy |einy @ poo4 ‘Juawuoliaug Joj Juswpedsq Ag paylien Buiag )1 pue eus)Lo
awos Bunaaw o} sajejal 8109s ay] “paddelds usaq sey Joyedlpu| [euolenN Siyl
‘a|ge|ieAe 194 jou eje eju : suopelado
IGBIBAE 39RJou E18a 4 00y VN VN Ayioyiny (2007 wouy uokoNPal OO G8LIN
l12Miay) Jauaalg ‘1aues|) Y
UowO aouew.load jabie) lenjoy aouewWIONad 1obie] |enjoy
E 0 ino4 iayenp | Jno4 Jayenp | Jno4 Japeny | eauy] Japend [esuy) Jepenp | eaiyl Japenp

1102 ydJel - 0102 IdY

110Z/010Z }uswaaiby ealy €20

Z Xipuaddy



Ll Jo | abed

‘[leMIBYD Jo }sal 8y} ssoude Jno pajjos Bulaq si aonoeud
poob ay} ‘syuapisal [[amiay) ajgelaujna yoddns 0} saiAnoe Jo swwelbold e Buieasiano si Ainqueg ul sainin4 Jayybug

Ainqueg ul sienpiaipul pabejueapesip Joj yoddns
Buisnoy 1 JuswdojaAsp 2ILIOUOIS SNJ0S

's9sIn09 Bululel) 8snoy ul puajpe o) a|ge aq |Im DaD Aq pakojdwa 1siym pue s|iNS

A8y} pue ajeolia) |e21UYdS ] By} Yyim Buoje uonelsiulupy pue ssauisng ul Z [9A8] DAN JI8y) panaiyoe |je aney Aay
'suonos|d [e20] Buiwos ayy 1o} SHI8ID ||od

awoo3aq 0} Aunpoddo ay) uaAlb usaq aney saoijuaidde ay] “synpe Bupjiom ajqeded BunoA o) passalboid aney pue
aouaadxa yiom s AIaA yim s1aAes| jooyos se L0z Yolel\ Asuinol Jiayy papels Asy) 3ipalo iyl o] DA e buiaq
2ouls juswdo|anap pue s||)s JO UofjO8|al B S| SIY} Jaquiadas [Jun papusa)xa SjoeJjuod Jiay} pey aAey saofuaidde ay|

awayos JuswdolaAsp [|1¥s %@ Uonealo qol [eoo] JoaIp sjeniu]

*,90110e.4d 188q, Bulaqg se saiba)elS d1Wouod] |BD20T J0) 813Ud) dy) Aq pasiubooal

1M | 1-010g Buunp pue swweiboid gnjD) YIOAN [EUONHEU B JO SISeq 8y} papiaoid aaey sqn|D qor J8ysaolg pue Ainqueg
‘s1ay@as qof 0} pyoddns paoueyus Joj sallelql| Jo asn Buiseasou] pue sjuas [e1oads je Buoo| ‘ZL-110Z

1noybnouy aoialas ay) dojanap 0} paalbe ‘diN 8yl Aq paliey) ‘Bunesw mainal yy “paulejuiew usaq sey diysiauped ay |
“Jaypny sqn|o gor dojaasp 0} sealbe mainay

J918901g pue
Ainqueg ui sqnjo qol Buuaalep diysisuped ayy uiejuiey

"aAlINoax3 Ae\ ayj 0} Jybnolq aq ||im Hodas Jaypny
e ey} padoy si JI pue ‘eAndaxg youey sy} Ag panoidde sem podal v ABajesis 8109 yeaq ayy ul ABajelis Juswdojanap
8y} JO Juswssasse-aJ 8y} uidiapun [jim jey) suonosfoud olydesbowsp pue uoieindod ay) uo Buissaiboud si IO

S8)IS SS8UISNg Mau Jofew
om] Jses| je 1o} sjesodo.d apnjoul 0} Yeup 4Q7

‘Loz Re
ul paulwialep aq 0} pajoadxe pue papiwgns juswdolaAasp asn paxiw pa| Buisnoy oy uonesidde Buiuueld pugAH “z10z
1O ul Bupuswwod suonaidwod yum syueosldde ayy Agq pasedaid usaq sey Ja}sadlg AN 40} Jaug uonejuswajdwi uy

wswdojeAsp Jeyseolg 003 Uo ssalboid uoonysuod Jueoubis

"ddS 8y} uo Yiom a)eAnjoeal [jim siy) pue Apusuiwwi (y3) Aousby Juswiuodiaug 8y} wolj payoadxs [opo
‘sjgpow AiaAljap uo (YOH) Aousby saniunwiwo) pue SSWOoH 8y} WOJ) PaAISdal S| 83IAPE Jayun) pue eale ay} 0} Ysi
Buipooys 8y} ssasse 0} SUOp SI JIOM B|Iym pajey uaaq sey (QdsS) Juawnooq buluueld Arejuswaiddng ay) uo ssalboid

Ainqueg apisjeue) Joy aoe(d ui Abajesns

Buissaiboud 109foid Jnoineyag |oAel |
‘1102 Jequwiaydag ul 819|dwod 0} anp w04 YIS [ooyds 1adoo) -108foid asnoH uehig uoy painoss Buipuny Aouabe
sanunwwo) pue sawoH "1 10z Ae ul uado 0} anp yues ayj je Buipjing uonensuowsaq “Aemiapun sjosfoid aus Ho ||V

sjoefold uonelisuowa( Jeyseolg 003 UE)S

‘aAlINoax3 Ae\ ayj 0} Jybnouq aq ||im Hodas Jaypny
e jey} padoy si JI pue ‘eAndaxg youey ay) Ag panoidde sem podal v ABajesis 8109 yeaq ayy ul ABajelis Juswdojanap \' A"
8y} JO Juswssasse-aJ 8y} uidiapun [jim jey) suonosfoud olydesbowsp pue uoieindod ay) uo Buissaiboud si IO

ABsjeng 8100 4Q7 Hwang

Ajunpoddo jo 3o13sIa V :lIPmIByd

ino4 291y

jusuiwion 19yend Japen)

LLOZ Ud4eN - 0102 I4dY

uejd uondy L10zZ/0L02
ue|d ajesodio)

eg¢ xipuaddy

Page 221



L1 Jo g abed

*M8IA8) Juswaoloyug Bupiled |IA1D J0 swooino Buipuad pjoy ug

awsyog Bupyed syuspisay Ainqueg e uo apioaq

"Z1L/1 102 Ul Jaye| uoiisod malnsy "Sysi pue s31sod 0} anp pauueld uonoe Jayuny oN

juswadioyug Buied |1A1D 10} sueld uonejuswsa|dwi dojaaaq

‘palinba.

Apuaing uonoe oN "sJaped; [ea0] yum sjesodoud iy} Buimaiaal ale (DDQ) [1ouno) AJUNoD allYspIoXQ ajIyMmuesiy
"}sallies ayy je £1.0g Aea ul ‘uofels snq Aiesodwas) e se eale ay) Buisn pasesd sey Juswdojaasp a4jusd UMO}

2y} Jaye [iun syuom Aue juswaidwi 0} 8qissod aq jou [jim ) ‘uodn pajnsuod pue paledaid usaq aney sueid ybnoyyy

J19)s901g Ul 81enbg Jo)Je JO JUSWSOUBYUS 10} SWBYIS Lejs

pauue|d se Buipaasoud si siy} jo uoneledaid ay

aI)Us) UMO |
Ainqueg jo ainjny ay} Joy AbBajells auipno ay} aledaid

110Z/S/1Z 8)IS UO pape}s 1oeljuo) Aouaby juswuolianug

awaYog uoneIAs|ly pool4 Ainqueg ueis

(syueub dn-doy Juoly wiem )G L3 pue s9 4 Areuonalosip 33 ‘sjuelb Jiedas Aouabiaws 3801 F ‘siuelb Juswanoidwi
awoy spJojpue| 3Lz 3 o dn apew) juads usaq sey a|doad a|qeiauina 1o} sjuelb Aleuonalosip Jo 30/23 Jeyuny v
uads Ajny usaq sey 1o6png sjuei Ayjioe4 pejgesiq 0563 Syl

90UBIBYIP [BSJ B 83eW 0} SBNUIJUOD JUBWISAAU|

a|doad s|geJaujna
1o} Buisnoy Ayjenb sapaq ul Bunsaaul uo 000‘0Zy3 puads

Juswdojanap asnoH uehig ay)
ypm uonounfuod uj J81sa91g e sjun g jo Alddns panosdwi ue aq |im a1ay} ‘palinbai si uoijepowwodoe Ateiodwa)y aI8ypn
"6 :uonepowwodoe Aleiodws} Jo asn [aAs] Mo| e Bulujejuiew ale sadiaeg BuisnoH jo spoys aAijoe-oud ay |

paAalyoe sawodino Abajells uoepowwoddy Asesodwa |

Aemsapun sabueyo |euoljeu jo abuel ||n} 8y} JO }x8jU0D

8y} ul saoIAIeg BuisnoH Joy sanuolud s,[1ounod 8y} IN0 S18s Uejd UOIOY 8ew|D JIWOou0dg pue [[omiay) 8y} Wuajul
BU) Ul PUB Z10Z Ul 8A08Y8 awo2aq aq ||Im ABajesys BuisnoHq mau " | 10 Alenuep ul 8Ainoax3 [1ouno) ayy Aq paaibe
asam ABajens BuisnoH jjemiay) e piemioy bulg 0} sueld pasinay -ade(d ul S8INseaw WLIB)U| "8SIN0D UO dJe sue|d

uoISS8081
ay) o0} buipuodsal Absjens BuisnoH ||lomiay) asinay

JoW a8q 0} anunuod suonesldde Buisnoy Buissasolid 1oy spiepuels saoineg BuisnoH

awayog
Bume] peseg 8010y YIM UOIOBJSIIES JISWO0ISND %G8

'sjun 9¢Z 0} Gz Jo abuel ayy uiyIm pajoadxe Ajjusiino
S Z1/110Z 4o} Alanijop Jeak Buiwos ayy 0} prebal YA “€Z1 Je puels suona|dwod [0} ‘| 10z Yote Agq 8|npayos
uo Buisnoy aJe) ex3 Jo sHUN O Jo uonajdwod sy} Buimojio4 ‘senuiuod Buisnoy s|geploye Jo AlaAljep |nysseoong

sewioy ajgeploye 00| JeAleq

'sa)is oyioads woly A|ddns Jo s}sedaI0) Ul papn|oul JoU 1. YdIYM SIS [[Bjpulm

payiuapiun jlews Ag apew uoiNgUIU0d 8y} pue ‘uojule ‘peoy uolbuisse) je Buisnoy jo A1anlep ayi ul ssaiboid
pajoadxa uey) Jajse} aJe siy} Joj suoseal ulew ay] ‘sbuljjemp gl Aq L8| Jo }seoalo) poday Buliojuop [enuuy
6002 92U} Spaaoxa pue pajoadxa uey) Jayaq s suona|dwod Jau /¢ 10 ainbly Jeak jo pus ay] "Jeak ay) Jo 8SIN09 8y}
190 8102 DY Bulayip ul pajosyal usaq aaey yolym suola|dwod Buisnoy uj suoiienion|y apim usas sey Jeak siyl

S8WOY MBU 00E 9A8IYOY

‘pasedaid aq 0} Jeak Buunp paasiyoe suoiebiqo Buiuueld uo podal N4 “(uoissiwiad piojhaH Jaddn) paraiyoy
1102 Y2 - 0102 IdY

ue|d uoidy L10z/01L02

ue|d ajesodio)

eg¢ xipuaddy

suonnquiuod Jadojaasp ybnoayy
ainjonuselul Wodsuedy Joy Buipuny 000“00€3 JeAlleg

Page 222



L1 Jo ¢ abed

%00°00L %6S°C6 abejusoied
e G2z Jaquly/ pue udals) JaquinN
siojealpu| jeuoneN suoljoy ue|d ajelodio)
‘uoljepowwodoe Alelodwa} aaisuadxs . . . . uolepowwoody Aresodwa |
10 s|9Ag| abesn moj A|[eoLI0ISIY UlBjulew 0} PaNURUOD SeY SadIAIas Buisnoy Jo ylom ay | ooee 00'6c ooee 00°ve ul Buiall spjoyasnoy jo JaquinN 9SLIN
) . . . . . (ss0.b) pasaniep
001 Jo 10b.e) 8y} Buipaaoxa ‘9z payodeal | 1/010gZ 104 Aloalap Buisnoy sjgepJloye sy 00001 009¢L 00°'8¢ 00°8¥ SOLIOY B|qBPIOYE JO JOQUINN SSLIN
‘so)Is oi10ads woly
Alddns o s}se0al0} Ul papn|oul Jou aJe YdIym Sa)IS [[ejpulm pauapiun |jews Aq sapew
UONNQIU0D BU} pue ‘UojuIBA ‘PEOY UOlBUIssED Je Buisnoy jo Aiealjep sy ul ssaiboud 00°L8L 00°0L€ 009¢L 00's6L papiroid sawoy [BUOHIPPE 18N #SGLIN
pajoadxa uey) Jejsey aJe sy} 10} suoseas ulew ay] sbuljjemp 681 Aq L8| JO 1SED8I0)
yoday Bunojuop [enuuy 600z @Yl Spaadxa suona|dwod jau /¢ 1o ainby Jeak jo pug
aJuew.Iopad jobae] lenjoy aouewlopad [ 1ebiel |enjoy
juswwo) ino4 ino4 ino4 QaIyl QaIyl QaIyl
Jauend Jauend Jauend Jsuenp Jsuend Jauend

siojesipuj jeuoneN : AyunyoddQ jo jo13SsIq Vv

*Ajunwiwiod ayy ui (sjualjo uyy yum Buioeidal
ale am a1aym) sOd juepunpal jo asn Bupjew je Buoo| aq |im pue swwelboid auljuQ aoey ayy 0} dn paubis aney apn

a|doad pabejueapesip 1 ajdoad Jap|o 1o} ssadoe
191 paaoidwi Bunusws|dwi ul saiuNwwod |eins yoddng

"Z1L/110Z Ol pJemioy pallied aq ||Im pue pa}a|duwiod usag Jou aAeY Jeak sy} Joy pawwelBboid suoloe Jo Jaquinu [[Bws v

ue|d Aianlleg ABajess |edny 8y} ul suonoe Juswa|dw|

aWwaYos 8y Jo Jed e aq 0} Juem AUnoD 8y} SS0Ioe sauNWWoD abe||ia g “Aepy Joy pauueld 8sBOMOYS BWBYIS

s|00y2s |einl pue sjjey abejiA ul Jayo
aAleaId ay) anosdwi sisuped sue yym Buisdopn

‘Aem ajgeule)sns e ul Buisnoy ajqepioye |edns Joddns 0} sem wie ay| "ysJep ul uopbuiyole|g
pue Asuo)g uoje|ppIn Je sbuneaw |1ouno) yslied papusie ‘uoneioosse Buisnoy [eoo] e pue ‘[osjuo)) juswdojaraq
10 aAlelUasaldal e yym Buoje wes) BuisnoH 2168)el)S 8y} Jo Jequisw Y “Sanuiuod Buiyiom diysisuped pljos

pappaquwa ueld uonioe Buisnoy s|geploye [einy

"aAiInNoaxg Aepy ay) o} Jybnolq aq |jim Hodas Jaypny
e jey) padoy si )l pue ‘@AiIndax3 yole ayy Aq panoidde sem podas yy ABajels 8109 jelq ay) ul Absjesss Juswdojaasp
8y} Jo Juswissasse-al ay} uidiapun [jim ey} suonosfoid olydesbowsap pue uoieindod ayy uo Buissaiboid s| IO

paysiignd 4@ ybnouyy sabejia 10} yiomawely Aoijod Bujuueld

paje|dwo)

uonelado joxiey Ainqueg mau e Juswa|dw|

"1 1L0Z Mdy | woly IO [|oJ BWsyos mau yym pajejdwo)

LLOZ Ud4eN - 0102 I4dY

uejd uondy L10zZ/0L02
ue|d ajesodio)

eg¢ xipuaddy

awayog Bunpled sjuspisay Jojseolg pasiral Jusws|dw|

Page 223



L1 0  ebed

“Jeak ay} Buunp pajedioiied
b/, 2 € JO osealoul ue Bunuasaidai s1ayem mau Qg JO [BJ0} Y 010z Joquiaydag Aq panaiyoe sem Jobie} 9%0) 8yl

pappe os|e sabed Z| 0z pue peys!|qe)se Uoioas Sjuang

100Gz j0 1obue3 Jsuiebe 0yGzy [e10) pus Jesk | /0L |00yos J8doo)
¥8%'GZ 40 1061e} Jsutebe zy | ‘cg [e10) pud Jesk | /0] Awepeoy aayspIoXQO YHON

*ZL/1 L0Z 10} SI0)B2IpUI [BD0] }SNQOI 810w Buidojaasp
aq M [[emisy) uonedionded ul paAjOAUI 8SOY) Ul 8SBaI0UI UB 1s8BBNs syjem yjjeay pue sa)is spods ‘saljuso
spods Jo 8sn pasealoul Se yons sainsesw (00| ‘JaramoH “ebBueyd jueoyiubis ou ssjeoipul AeAIns [euoneN

Paau Ul }SOW 9SOY) U0 $891n0Sal snooj 0} Ainqueg Joj pasodoid gny saljiwey) pue
a|doad BunoA ‘uaip|iyo ma "s82Inosal 10}99s d1|gnd ainny paonpas wouy Bunnsa. abueyd pue jo joedwi ay}
Buipiebal uisouo) "padojanap Bulaq AjAOE SUOIBOIUNWWOD Jayun4 ‘suopoe Aouabe jjinw uo ssaiboid pooo

*S9OIAISS PUE UOIBWIOJUI
0} ssadoe anoidwi 0} sng yyeaH ayy Buisn ao1nias doys-dojs-auo onjejediuad pue aijua) ainsia ||eqaodids
1e uoissas Bulwwims Ajuo uswom ‘siauiel] yyesH Aq spiem Ainqueg Aay ul yiom juswanroidwi yyesy payebie |

"1 10Z Buunp
ssa00.d Juswainoold [ew.oy e 0} paaoold 0} ase) ssauisng g abejs e Buioddns pieog isni) aied Aewid
QJIYSPJOJXQO S} Ul PapN[OUOD Sey YoIym | |0z Ales wouy usyeuspun Bunss) josew Jog "Aejop Juswainooid

‘passaiboud Buleq suondo aaijeuss)e pue ybnos

Bulaq Ajue|D ‘|opow ao1AI9s ainyny paaibe ayj Jo Hed [Bijuassa Ue ale YdIym [9A3] [euoljeu e je sabueyd woly
Buisue sajol Buiutes) Jo sSO| JoAO Ajulepaoun 0} anp Ajuisjew Jnoge uiaouoy "s|opow AISAIIBp 99IAI9S MaU o}
p1ojdwoo jsowle uonejuswaldwi pue ss820id Juaw}inioal a1aym soljdyjsaeue pue soljeipaed uo ssaiboid poos

"ABayens uyesH aland
JUIOf 8Y} Y)IM 9oUBpIOdDE Ul JeaA 8y} JoAo pajuswaldwl usaq aAey SaAljenRiul Juswaaoidwi yjeay Jo Jaquinu y

$S900NS B sem Ainqueg ul Jusas aoe|d Joxley Apeuenb pjay sbunssw dnols) uonoy pooysnoqybieN

‘Bujuies| aseys pue Buipuejsiapun aroidwi 0} }@aw 0} anuluod dnois) yoeay o} pJeH pue dnosb
uolsayo) ‘siauped pue yeys DD wolj aouepusye poob yum |nisseoons swwesboid saunwwod ino Buimouy

uoIONPa BWILID JO PUBI) PANURUOYD

uoioNpal %g@| Je eouewlopad 1S8}e| YiM SWO Ul UOIONPaI PaNURU0D

l19miay AyjjesH pue ajes v

%01 Aq syjem yiesy
|eoo| ui Bunedionied siayjem mau JO Jaquinu 8y} 8sealou|

WO0D"8JIYSPIOJXOYLIOUHSIA"MMM JO UOIJOBS SJUBAS 8Y} 8}0WO0Id

%6z Aq sa)is spods asn julof je awooul asealou|

%1 AQ uopessoal aAioe ul uoedionled aseslou)

10L3SIp 9y} Ul uoneadap pue
saljienbaul yyeay ssalppe 0} (10d) Isnil ale) Alewld 8y} YIm 3O

JOLISIP By} SSOJ0B SBANenIUl JUBWaACIdWI Yyieay mau ¢ JaAeq

s921MI9s |ejdsoH Ja)saolg
panoidwi pue mau Buidojaasp ul (10d) isnil aled Alewd ayj oddng

|eldsoH |eJauss) UOLIOH 1e
seoInes Buidojeaep ul Jojoss yyesy |eoo| ay) poddng

1013810 8y} Ul seienbaul yyesy ssaippe 0} swwesboid sy} JoAleq

Page 22

sBunesw
(9W¥N) dnoig uonoy pooyinoqybiaN 10 wnwiuiw e 0} olignd ayj ajIAu|

sdnoJb Ajlouiw pue sainynd ‘yip
usam}aq ssaualeme pue Buipuejsiapun s|qeu]

$80UBYO INOIABYS( [BIOOSIIUE PUE SWILID Ul
uoioNpal Jayjoue o4 JaAliep 0} sieuped Yim 3o

SJUBPIOUI/SBOUBYO 00Z AJ INOIABYS( [BI00S-ljue
pue awo 8oNpaJ 0} siauped UM YIOAL

ino4

juswwo) 18pEND

281y
Jopenp

LLOZ UdJel - 0L0Z IUdy

ue|d uoljdy L 102/0L0C
ue|d 9jesodio)

q¢ xipuaddy



L1 Jo G ebed

usal9
%00°001

L
sJojeslpu| [euoneN

"11/010Z pue 01/6002 usamyeq doip

%912 B moys (Ainful yum) uosiad ay) jsuiebe aous|oIA 10} SaINBI BWIID J0} Blep
dAL "iojedipu) jeuoieN siy; jsuiebe ao1j0d As|le) sewey] Aq 1es sjebie) oN
slaquinu awuo [enjoe Joajjal 0} pajsnipe usag Mou aAey sainbl

Alyiuow 8y} o swos ‘awl) Buipioosy Joj s8Ny BuuNo) 8210 SWOH 8y}
yum aoueldwod ainsus 0} MalAal Jejnbai o) 1oalgns Bulaq eyep swo 8y} 0} anQg

11/0L0Z PUB Q1/600Z U9aM}aq UOIIONPaI %Z 0E B MOYS SWLID JUS|OIA SNOLISS
10} sainbly JAL JarnemoH (dAL) @d110d As|leA sawey] Aq jes sjebie) oN

jabie )
ino4
Japenp

@oueWIONDd
ino4
Jsuenp

|en}oy
ino4
Jsuenp

souewIoNad

LI
Jepend

juswwo)

usaln
%00°001

6l
suoay ueld ajeso0dio)

LS 6v'v

|enjoy
LI LI
Japenp Jepend

snjejs
abejusolad
Jaquiy pue usalo) JaquinN

ajel swuo Anfur ypm ynessy 0Z0IN

nisinboe snouss 910IN

8}eJ BWILID JUB|OIA SNOLBS GLOIN

Page 225

s103eo1pU] [BUOREN : [[oMIBYD AUj|esH B ojes v

‘pejeoo||e ssluow juelh
|le pue 1o} papinoid AjoAiloaye a1em 8say) Jo |je pue apew aiam suoneoldde y| AluQ “AieAllep ypm senssi oN

Buipuny pie yuelb ybnoayy

sanuaA uoljealoal Ajunwwod g| aroidwi pue yoddng

"spsemo} Bunnguuoo
aq [|IM Y)|eaH pue uopealoay yolym Jawwns siyy padojensp Bureq ABsjelis Japeolq e jo ped aq 0} mou si Siy L

KBajesis suosiad J8p|O mau e juswajdwi pue dojpaeq

H yolaig dn Buiybi pue Aued umo] p|O 8y} pebeuew aaey am Ainqueg ul pue Sjusna
J1oUN0) umo] ui sjedioied o} ajdoad BunoA pauoddns aAey am J8)sadig Ul "PaIaAIBP SJUBAS Jo awwelbold

$8JJUSD UBQIN N0 Ul SBI}IAII0B/SIUBAS JO sawwelBold JoAlsp pue dojeasq

"S8IJIAIJOB BARISOd Ul PBAJOAUL
asoy) Ul aseasoul ue }sabbns sainseaw |e20| Janamoy pame)} Buiaq se pasiubodal mou si Asains s (191

%1 Aq saniaijoe aaiisod ul aidoad BunoA Aq uonedioed asealou|

"869 - YOI\ JO pUS 0} S18SN MaU |10 |

005 Aq sanianoe dnoib

ul Buizedioed ajdoad Japjo Mau Jo siequinu asealou|

995'8.0°1 40 [ej0} Jobue) Jsurebe | 1.0g YOIE|\ Je papIooal 819M SHSIA G6.'9EL | JOAQ

LLOZ UdJel - 0L0Z IUdy

ue|d uoljdy L 102/0L0C
ue|d 9jesodio)

q¢ xipuaddy

|00d USBIBPOOAA PUB SB1JUSD BINSIY|

paysigJnial pue mau 0} SHSIA 000'00 ) BAIXS Ue JoRINY




L1 Jo g ebed

"ul 8Wo9 suoneoljdde yuswdojaasp mau se Buiobuo pue Jesk ayy Joj pajajdwo)

%1/ 1B UONOBJSIIES payijuapl s)nsal ASAINS UOOBSeS [|omIayD

payoune|
abueyo ajew|o uo jeles)| diysieuped Bujuueld AUNWWOD [[MIBYD MBN : UOBULIOJU] SJUSpISaY

3Iom eauy 18ble] uoneAlasuo) shajie/ UIByuoN ey} jo Jed
Se ueyeuspun pue Z1/110g Ojul pJemio} paLied aq o} Buipueisino yim aoe(d uexe) eAey SHSIA Wiey G

pajo|dwo)

|l4pUB| WO} POLIBAIP 8)SEM JO SBUUO) 00.E PUNOIY

paaaiyoe Buiddy Al jo uononpal 9,6

plepuejs Jey| 8|qejdadoe ue je si pajoadsul pue| Jo %86

3oeu} uo s| [lenowal Buiddy A4

[19MIay ) Jdudals) ‘Isues|) v

sjuswaaibe 9oL S
ybnouy) syuswdojansp uj seoeds uaaib Jueoyubis ajenobaN

seale ol|qnd pue
sooeds Usalb Y)im UOIOBSHES JUBPISal %¢/ 1SB9| Je aABIYOY

SUOISSIWS UOGJed 8oNpal 0} MOY SJUBpISal ||e Wiou|

S}ISIA AIOSIAPE Wi} 9 UOISSILIWO)D

| Jeak yuswa|dwi pue
ue|d AlaAljag pue juswalels Ajslanlpolg e 8onpold

110z yose Lg Aq seuuoy 0001
AQ [[I3pUB| 0} JUSS B}SEM JO JUNOWE BY} BONPaY

S19A9] 01/6002 UO %G Aq Buiddn Al jo Junowe ay) sonpay

‘pJepuels
19} 9|qeIdeooe ue je pajoadsul pue| JO %G6 SABIYOY

Bunodau jo sinoy g uiyum Buiddn Al Jo %z6 aAoway

ino4

juswwo) J19peND

981y
Japenp

L1L0Z Yd24ely - 0102 IHdy

uejd uoldy L102/0L02
ue|d 9jesodio)

o9¢ xipuaddy

Page 226



L1 jo 2 ebed

%16°06
ol
siojealpu| [euoneN

"9109s }saybiy ay} s)l - uoljoe Juswasiojus Buiseasou) pue sdiy Al
I]|e} sueaw 8109s , |, 8Y] ‘|9A3| poob e e ||} SUOolOe JusWadloju] 00°L 00°L
‘|ley [lews e Buimoys sdiy Al Jo Jaquuinu |jesanQ
saJjua) ainsia] o} anp Ajable| asu lews 00°¢ €61
saJua) ainsia] o} anp Ajable| asu lews 00962 1202
jow joblie| 00°€ [S{0R
Jow jobue) 00'S¥801 2Z'6£80L
T aouewopad jobue ] lenjoy aouewIopad
Loz Loz Loz JesA jo pu3g
000 000
000 000
eaJe [ednJ e ul souewlopad poob e si siy} . .
- piepuels mojaq S|9Ad| snilep aAey pajoadsul seale || JO %8 punoly 006 00'8
awi} Aue Je Ues|d S}9als ||e JO %86 PUnoIy 00V 002
T aouewopad jabue ] |enjoy aouewIopad
yoiep yaJep yoiep J9QWIBAON
suopejoadxa mojaq Apybiis syjuow may ise| ay} Joy ajes Bulpohosas jng . .
pajoadxa %8G jo ajel BulpAdal - 01/600Z Ul %L Uo asu juesyiubis 0099 VLS
‘pus €O 1B SE J08.1100Ul Se papuswe ejep jabie] -pajoadxs
Uey} SS9| SEM Syjuow da1y} }se| sy} ul Apejnoied jjipue| o} sjsem A/ 00'G6€ 8C'GlYy
ul uononpal 8y} Ing payoune| Ajnyssaoons sem BuljoAoas pooy ay |
ERIEITE | jobie] [en}dy ERIVENOEN]
Juswwo) ino4 ino4 ino4 2aly]
Jajend Japend Jayuend Jspenp

%00°001

6

suoljoy ue|d ajesodiod

abejussiad
Jaquiy pue usals) JaquinN

Buiddy Aj4 - ssauljueS|O [eIUSIUOIIAUS

00°t 00k pue }9a1is parosdw| 961N
00'S ce6l suoIssIWS QLINd Ul uoionpal % Aly6LIN
00°6S€ 12'G0€ OLINd 0 suoissiw3z lIy6LIN
00°S 0091 SUOISSIWS XON Ul uononpal % lIiy6LIN
00'v¥92l Sy 08LLL XON J0 suoissiwg 6 LIN
jobie |enjoy T
0L0C 0lL0c
. . (Bunsod Al) ssauljues|O [EJUBWIUOIIAUD
000 000 pue 19a1s parosdw| pG6LIN
. . (njelb) ssauljues|o |BjuUSWUOIIAUD
000 000 pue }9a11s parosdw| 9661 IN
. . (snjjep) ssauljuea|D [BJUSWIUOIIAUS
00’6 009 ’® 199418 panoidw| 956 LIN
. . (4931]) ssaUIlUES|D |BJUBSWUOIIAUS
00v 00°c pue 19a1s parosdw| GG LIN
1obie] |enjoy 0102 19qWdAON :3n( IXaN
J9QUWIBAON J9QWISAON Ayyuop ¢
Bunsodwod pue
00'8S 12°6S BulpAdal ‘@snal 1o} Juss s)sem
ployasnoy jo abejuasiad Z61LIN
. . ployasnoy Jad
seoee £0'00¢ 9)SEM pjoyasnoy [enpisay LGLIN
jobie] 1enjoy
921y T Kayuenp
Jspenp Jspenp

S10}e2IpuU| [BUOHEN : [[PMIBYD JBUIIID) 4dURd|D W

o9¢ xipuaddy

LLOZ Yd24eiy - 0102 [HUdy

uejd uoldy L102/0L02
ue|d 9jesodio)

Page 227



L1 Jo g ebed

o9¢ xipuaddy

Jaquiy
LL0Z Uyd1el - 0102 IMdy
uejd uoldy L102/0L02

ue|d 9jesodio)

uaain

snjejs

Page 228



L1 Jo g abed

a)9|dwo)

307 | 1SEs) 1e 10} ¢ JO 81008
8IN08S pue JUBISSASSY YO Ul € JO 8100S INO UlBJUIBI\

‘papinoid aq [im podas umopyealq (N4
"yoJe|\ Ul paAladal sjule[dwod uewspngquio oN

uewspnquiQ 8y} 0} 8aJy] abels wol) pajeleass syuiejdwod oN

yoJde|\ Ul paAieoal g abejs |

paAjosal ale
om] abejg 0} pajeleass ale jey; sjule|dwod |je Jo %Ge

| ebejs zz
*yoJel\ Ul paAiaoal sjule|dwod £z

auQ abe)g UIy)IM PaAjosal ale paAlaoal sjule|dwod Jo %06

‘sdnoJb gNg pue
‘sdnoub Ayjigesip ‘sdnolb s,ajdoad BunoA ‘sdnoub ,sioluas Buipnjoul ‘JeaA siyy (sba uo sjulogyui)
s)sijeroads yoealjno Jno Aq payisIA uaaq aAey saljiAloe pue sdnolb AJunwwod 09 ueyy aIo

$90IAISS N0 Jo dn 9.} pue sseooe
anoudwi o} ueid uonoe ,yoeal o} 1sepiey, e dojpasq

‘paynuep! sepiunyoddo jJuswdojeasp pue yibusus Jo sealy ‘Juswalinbal
sBuiaes se USYeHapUN JOU JUSWISSISSE [BUISIXS ‘SUOP JUBWUSSISSE §[8S paja|dwod yse |

Ayenba yaCy
swua) ul 8ouewlopad no jo mainal Jead e exeuspur)

pauleloy

(¢
8}ISqeMm Jno 1o} Yiep [eIshi) ey} uleiay (l

8l

‘awwelbo.d yuswanoidwi ao1Ales Jawo)sno oy} Jo Jed se uswsidwi |Im am yoiym ueld

uonoe ue papinoid sey juswssasse ay] Juswaroidwi Buibeinoous anuuod 0} palslje usaq aAey
BLISIIO JUBWaINSEaW 8U) Sk ‘1eak JSe| Uey) JOMO] JB)S SUO SEM JUSLUSSISSE SIY} S|IoUN09 Jaylo jsow
ypm Buoly “Aenins ,pajosuuo) Japeg, [euoneu ayy Ag siejs g Buiney se passasse uaaq sey ais InQ

Kjpuauy Jasn si )l ainsus 0} Bunss} alsgam jno Aued

'0}@ YnoA |jamuay) 6o pajealo uasg aAey ey} sajisgom Jsijeroads Jayjo
10 abuel B BpNjoUl Jou SB0p Jaquinu siy] “Jeak siy) padojoasp a)Isgem e pey aAeY s|Iouno) ysiled gz

a)isgam e aAey 0} sdnoib
Ajlunwwoo pue saysied Joj yoddng

swelewr swwelboid
JusWaA0IdW SOIAISS JBUIOISND BY} Y)M 8Ul| Ul €1/Z10Z O} pJemio} pajjos usaq sey 1abiey siyl

v v

pJeme 80Us||80X8 89IAISS JBUIOISNO -
80IAJ8S JaWO)SND 10} UoNEe)Ipalooe %o8s

|19MIay9 Aauoyy 1o} anjep ‘a|qissaddy uy

ino4 2aly|

juswiog Jsyenp Jspenp

LLOZ Y2y - 0102 Idy

uejd uoijdy L102/0102
ue|d 9jesodio)

pe xipuaddy



L1 o 0l ebed

pajajdwo)

S92IAISS INO JO
saouaIadxa Jiay} Yoeq pas} 0} SI8Wo)snd Joj sapiunJoddo pusix3

‘passalppe usaq sey aosuaipne JabunoA

e yym BuiBebus jou Jo sjuswale aAlebau sy} pue paAlgdal ||lom Sem )i pajesjsuowap suoleolignd ayy
oju| yoleasay -uoleoo| oiydeiboab pue sanijiqe [eoisAyd ‘uspusb ‘ebe ‘Buipnioul ‘siojeoipul jo abuel
e ss0JoB A)ISISAIP So)elisuowap anss| yoeg ‘syjuow z| ised ay) Jano padojaasp sey yul [jemisy)

3uI jlemiay Jo diysiepeal sy} asealou]

Jeak
yoes panss| saujzebew yuiT [|omisy) Jo Jagquinu 8y} Ul asesloul ue jusasid suonolysal Alejebpng

paonpoud syuI [[eMIayD JO Jaquinu 8y} Ul 8sealoul 8]qISsod

Ateniga4 ul paysiignd 0s|e sem pue }auidjul 8y} UO 9|ge|IEA. S| UO[JEWIOjU|
‘paygjdwo)

10|[10UN0D B 8W098(q 0} MOy jnoge
a)jdoad |e20] 0} uolEWIOJUI BIOW SPIACIH

sjuswalinbal asay) paxoAal [|ig Wsi[eo0T 8y} pue suoniad
-9 pue suonad uo souepinb Alojnjels 8y} UMBIPYNIM Sey JusWwulaAob ay) Jey) pajou aq pinoys
} ‘JOABMOH "Jaquiadeq Ul 8Al] Jusm suoniad-a pue Jaulsiul 8y} UO a|ge|ieA. S| aWayos suoiied

]1oUN09 8y} 0} suonad Jwgns 0y
o1ignd auyj Jo siequiaw Joj ainpado.d e ysijgeis3

‘suoseal |euonjelado Joy uoibuliply] je pasesd aAey Ing Ainqueg pue Je)saolg woly Buielsdo aie
sda)g xeN "uojbulpry wouy Bunelsado aie gy "18)sadlg wouy Bupesado aie J\Q  owoy je wiay)
JISIA 0} [elOlBUS( 8I0W }I PUNO) ABY) SJUBUS) }98W 0} S8O1I0 N0 8sn ||i}s Ajleuoisesdo Asy) ybnouyyy

"WiaY} 10} SAIJ08Y 10U Sem [apow ul-dolp 8y} punoy Aay) awi} e Joj sjulodyul pasn JapeyD IS|IUM

sjujod S$S829€ |10UN0Y
ybnouyy sisuped Ino Aq papiroid seoIAIes 0} sseooe puedx]

P

220

laTalal
uyu [~ @AV

‘ueld uonoe ssjdoad BunoA pue sualpjiy) 8y} uiyim suonoe jo Ao Aq sjos buuoddng

uaIp|IyD Jole pasooT] o)
salioe) Buiods pue [einynd 0} SS800e 8j0Wold

‘N0 Buiwoo Apeadje aie seouejswnol s,9|doad 0) abueyd |eal jo sejdwex3 "yiom jo swwelboid
anIsuayaidwod e Buidojansp ale pue 010z Ae\ pus Aq pajuiodde atem sBa| UO sjUIONUIT BY L

90InI8s sBaj-uo-sjuiod yui|, e
Buuaalep Ag sa21A18S INO 0} SS800E aAoIdw|

pajajdwo)

0L0Z dunp ul 8dueUl pue
souewJopad Jo Jodal [enuue pauiquiod e 8onpold

110Z Ae ysaljai ABajens [eloueulq wid] WNIpay

Loe W - 0102 Iudy

uejd uoijdy L102/0102
ue|d 9jesodio)

pe xipuaddy

ainypuadxa |1ouno) sonpail IM yoiym ued uonoe Jesjo
e Buidojanap Aq (S41IN) ABdjess [eoueuld wis] WNIPa) 8y} SS8IpPY




LLjo | ebed

Jaquy snje)s
%00°001 %16°06 abejusolad
0c Jaquiyy pue usalg) JaquinN

sJiojealpuj [euoljeN

suonoy ue|d ajelodio)

Jealk |eioueuly JuUsLIND By}
"010Z 49quanoN Aq . . . . 10} suieb Buisesjai-yseo Asuow oy (
AlInjssaoons panaiyoe sem sbuines Y0083 Jo 19bie] asiwoid olgng 0007008 0007008 0007009 000008 an|eA 1au :ABUO| IO} BNjeA 6/ :7D
JBWO)SNO 8y} 0} 8NjeA OU/MO JO SI 1ey)
%Z.L’L = 6001 ©|9eploAE ‘G90E| SIOEJU0D |E}O} 0sclL SL'. 0sclL 89 10BjUOO JaWO}SNd Jo uoiiodoud
8} }0BjUOD SIqEPIOAY #7LOIN
aouewlIopad jobie] |enjoy souewlopad 1obie] |enjoy
Juswwo) ino4 ino4 ino4 Qalyl Qalyl Qalyl Ausuenp
Japenp Japenp Japenp Jspend Jspend Jsuenp

S10}e2Ipu| [BUOHEN : [[oMIBYD ABUOI 10} BN|BA ‘B]qISS82Y Uy

pajejdwon

‘plemioy Buiaow 891AI8S Jawo}sno aaoldwi pue aouabi|isul

JBWO}SND JO asn 8y} anoidwl 0} ueld uawanoldw) ajelodio) ayj jo ued se Z1/L L0z Ul palaAlep aq
swwelboud oyoads e pepuswiwosal sey siyl “(INdA) ASUO Joy anjEA S82IAISS JBWOISNYD B} Yjm
Buoje aAnoax3 o} pauodal mou sey j08foid Aiaaijeq ao1A18S anoidw] 0} 8ouabijjeiu] Jswoysn) Buisn

pe xipuaddy

LLOZ Y2y - 0102 Idy

uejd uoljdoy L10z/01L0C

ue|d 9jesodio)

sjuapisal ||e 0}

a|qe|ieAe AoAINS UOIOBJSHES [eNUUE JNO 8)e\

S9JIAIBS N0

anoldwi pue dojoAsp 0} UOKELLIOJU] JBWIOISND SN 8M 8Insu]




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 232



G Jo | abed

suois1oap Ajenb Jood 0} pualy Jo uonesipul

uols|oap |esnyal Jsuiebe pamoje

ON ’SUOISIOap JO JaquInU |[BJOAO MO| JsuleBe Sawoon0 9SISAPE [BIaASS 00°0¢ /162 00°0¢ 68°8¢
Aq pajoaye usaq sey aouewlopad ‘Buirnoidwi mou si aouewlopad IS|IYAA sieadde Buluueid % 100 ANOQ
sawayos . . . . syoam g uiyum suoneoldde
Jofew uo sainssald yJom Buimosb audsap aouewsopad Buouys Apuslsisuo) 00°08 gl'a6 00°08 o6 1830 jo Buissao0id 9/GLIN
sawayos . . . . syoam g ulyum suoneoldde
Jofew uo sainssaud yJom Buimosb audsap aouewsopad Buouys Apuslsisuo) 00°59 gces 00°59 6’68 Joujw jo Buissaooid q/GLIN
10b.e} yoam ¢| ay) uco\.»mg Buipuajxa suonenobau aiinbas . . . . Syoom £1, UM SuonEoydde
suopedljdde juepodwi Jo Jaquinu v Jebie) siy) jsutebe juswansiyoe o} 00°09 178474 v 00°09 1.8
Jolew jo Buissaooid B/GLIN
yoeoudde onewbeld sajeyssaosau suonesijdde Jofew Jo [9AS] MO| panURUOD)
e aouewJopad jobie] lenjoy aouewlIoNad jobie] lenjoy Apapeny
ino4 Japenp | Jno4 Jeyenp | Jno- Jayend | eaiy) Jeuenp |esiy] Jepenp |esiy) Jepenp o
™
QAl
. . . . suonoe % sjoafoud jo uoien|ed ®
00c 00c 00°c 00c Aisnijep Jybisiono eAnoeLEIP)
o=
U
‘ue|d UOISaY0D aJIYSPIOIXO dy} Se [|om se sjosaloud Ajajes Alunwiwo) 001 001 001 001 ‘ue|d uonoe WSIWaJIXd JUS|OIA mc:r@ma
uo a21j0d A3||eA SaWeY] YlM payJom sey [1ounod) 1oulsiq [lemiayd paseqg-ysu e jo juswdojanaq (9)
pue wnuo} yyie} e dn jas sey diysiauped di6ajens [eooT auy) L L/0L0g Buung )
00'r 00" 00'r 00" ‘WS|WBJIXS JUSJOIA JO SBSNED puUB SISALIP By}
‘soIAno. o Buipuejsiapun pue abpaimouy) (q)
uole}Nsuod pue juswabebus jo swwelboid s} panuiuUod sey |1PUNo) 8y | SaIIUNWIWIOD WIISNIA ‘YHM
. . . . wawabebua B ‘Jo Buipueisiapun ()
00'e 00'e 00'v 0o¢ WISIWaIIXe
jusjolA o} douslisal buipling G¢ IN
JueWWon aouewWIONdd jobue) |enjoy aouewlIopad 1obie] |enjoy jenuuy
Loz Loz 1102 1esA 10 puz 0L0¢ 010¢
aouewliopad @ Abajens ajesodion
$S9208 JO piepuels poob aney sbBuip|in : : : : Aungesip e yym sjdosd oy
0 pJepuess p y pINg I 00°00L 00°00L 00°00L 00°00L a|qIssa0oe sBUIPIING JO % 900 SI09
asuewIopad jobie) |enjoy souewIopead 10b1e) |enjoy
JUSLUEIOO ino4 Japenp | uno4 Jaueny | 1no4 Jayuenp [ eaiy) Jspenp |esiy) Jspeny |esiyl Jeueny Apspenp

s991A19g Buliesuibuz @ jonuo) Buipjing

1L0Z Y21l - 0102 Idy

1102/0102Z si03edipu| ad1A1ag Apiond

¢ xipuaddy




G Jo z abed

Jeak mau 8y} Joj ||om sepoq siy] "1oble) Jo peaye |jom si souewlopad
Uy} papn|oxa a1e asay) Jl UBAS ‘SsajeyuanaN ‘(sebueyo ajel Jyeuaq

#00HOX3 : s@oueIsSWNoU Ul 8Bueyo

pue saseaJoul Jual) Jeak ayy Jo awi siy} e passasoid shemje sabueyo 00°€l 00°¢ 00°€l el ssao0.d 0] swi} abelany qg8/0Ag
aoueApE JO Jaquinu 8y} AQ pa}sooq usaq sey souewlouad payodeay
"JeaA mau
8} OJuUl 8NUUOD [|IM SouewIoLad SIY) Jey) onsiwido g Ued Sp\ "9DIAISS 0}

uondnusip [ewiuiw pasnes sey Bulig [BnuUy S8WO2ISA0 USaq SABY SYJUOW 0002 09'¥1L 0002 vi'gl o o1 S meﬂwxw Stuep

Maj 181} 8y} Ul swisjqold Buiyies) pue Jeah snoiraid ay) woly pajsyul 810/8H 3 ouh V €8L0Nd
swa|qoid "eyde)d yim Joeliuod ayy Jo Jeak isii 8y} 0} pus JUd||9oXd Uy
j0eU09 B)Ide) 8y} Jo Jeah ||n} )sll) 8Y) SEeM SIY} Joe)

U} PUE UOKENYS JILIOUODD [e18UBB By} UBAIB HOYS JuB|[90XS UE Sjussaidal v 00'66 €9'86 oL'v. 16°98 Z¢00HOX3 : p8309]100 HANN % 0LOAE
yolym asuewlopad Jeak }se| uo asealoul Uy :UONJ0a||09 sajey ssauisng
JInsal

poob A1eA e sI 0s Joeljuod eyde) auj Jo Jeak |y jsiy du} s 3| "souewloped v 01,6 6€°86 00'v. 6998 LOOHOX3 : p8109||00 XB] [Iun0) % 600Ad
sleak jse| uo Juawanoidwi ue sjuasaldal %,EE'86 :UONDD|09 Xe] |IoUN0D
Jeak mau ay} ojul premioy buiob aouewlopad Jnoge oisiwido aq ued

oM "sebueyo asay} Joj Buimoje uaas Jabie) Jo peaye [|iis sI souewlopad sjuane abueyo pue swieo mau Jiyeuag

‘Jeak Jo awi} sy} 1e passasold (sebueyo ajel Jyouaq ‘sasealoul 00°LL 298¢ 00°LL €12l Xe] |1ouno)euag buisnoy

al) sabueyo soueApe Jo Jaquinu abie| sy} Aq peisooq uasq sey Yole ul ssao0.d 0) usyel swi] L8LIN

oouewlopad ay) ybnouyy ‘|lom ul pappag mou sey ejideD Yyim 1oeijuod ayl -
aouewIodd jobue] |lenjoy souewIoped 10b1e) [enjoy ™
JUSLUEIOO ino4 Japeny | uno4 Jaueny | 1no4 Jayuenp [ eaiy) Jspenp |esiy) Jspeny |esiyl Jeueny Apspenp Al
aoueuly m

uow Jad G punoJe 0} Uajje} paAOWL pue payl| SBIOIYSA JO Jagquin : : : : snoy yg Ullpim parsKs.

ui Sp } usjie) p pue payl| S80IYSA JO JBqUINN 00'88 8L'16 00'88 0€'96 SO[OIYA PAUOPUEGE JO o\ommw.mm_

s9011d deios poob 0} anp moj Ajie} SS[JIYSA PBUOPUBGE JO S|9AS : : : : $4N0Y 7 Ul pojebisaul

! p } 8NP MO| Alile) S8|0IL8A paUOpUBQE JO S[8A8T 00'86 00°00} 00'86 00°00} SO[DILSA POUOPUBGE JO % 100 ST

aouewIodd jobie) |enjoy souewIoped 1061 [enjoy
JUSLUEIOO ino4 Japeny | uno4 saueny | 1no4 Jayuenp [ eaiy) Jspenp |esiy) speny |esiyl Jeueny Apspenp

uoneoldwi anuanal e pey
aABY PINOM |[B W8y} Josw 0} JNg 1oW Usaq aABY € |9A3] 10} sjuswalinbal sy}

o Auew pue abueyo ajewi|o 0} paydepe aAey sa2IAISS Aj[eiausb Janamo : : : : (81005) sbueyo

I . p yo sjewl|o o} psydep y ! I H 00’e 00¢C 00¢C 00¢C a1ewip o) jdepe o} Buiuueld ggl IN
1N200 Jabuo| ou |Im siy} - eaq Aq pauliaA Buleq ) pue eLs)LIO swos
Buneaw o} saje|al 2109s ay] ‘paddelos usag sey Jojedipu| jeuoneN SiyL

. ) eale ] 8y} Ul SUOISSIWS ZOD

JuBWUIBA0D) |enua) Aq papiroid ag o) asn eleq| ejeq ON 002 189S BUON 00 U1 UONONPS) ENdES 454 981 IN

Ae|\ piw |nun ajge|ieAe jou eje ejeq o : : (%) suoneisdo Aoupne

1 10C AN piw | |qey! } 1ed jed oN 00'v 00'v |800] WO} SUORONPSI 20D S8 IN

JueWWon aouewWIONdd jobue) |enjoy aouewlIopad 1obie] lenjoy jenuuy
Loz Loz 1102 1esA 10 puz 0L0¢ 0102

S92IAISS [BJUSWILOIIAUT

¢ xipuaddy




G jo ¢ abed

‘|[eSp uohe|nsul 673 18)s891g 8y} pue |esp Uuohe|nsul 663 [1I9MIBYD

ay) se yons pajuswaldwi uaaq aAey sainseaw Jofew pue ‘Abajess Buisnoy
ay} Jo ued se ueld Auaaod |any e Buidojanap ul pabebus Ajusaing si wea |
BuisnoH 10308S ajeAld 8yl -Aouspuadap jiouaq pue s}sod [any Buisi usaib
pajoadxaun jou s| ajdwes Asains ay} Buowe Auanod |any Ul esealoul 8y
‘Apanod |any jo Buipuejsiapun sOAD djdy 0} usyeuapun usaq sey Asnins

‘|[esp uone|nsul 63 18)se0lg 8} pue [esp uohe|nsul 663 [IeMIBYD

8y} se yons pajuswa|dwi usag aAey sainsesw Jofew pue ‘ABojess Buisnoy
ay} jo ped se ueld Apanod |ony e Buidojansp ul pabebus Apjusind s| wes |
BuisnoH 10108g 8jeAld 8yl “Aouspuadep jieuaq pue s}sod |any Buisl usalb
pajoadxaun jou s aidwes Aanins ay) Buowe Apanod |ony ul asealoul ay |
‘Auanod |any Jo Buipueysiepun sOD djay 0} usyeuspun usag sey AsAIns v

aouewLIopad

uswuwo
} g 1102

‘suoijeoldde 9gge mou - Buisi
os|e sI syjueoldde Jaysibay Buisnoy ayj uiol o} buifldde siequnu ay]  “L0Z
Judy - uep usamiaq $G¢ pue 0L0g Udy - UB[ WO} SPEOOSED MaU (| 9Jom

alayl ‘way) 0} a|gejieAe suondo Jayjo ul obebus oy Buljjim siow os pue
suopdo Jiay} Jnoge ansijeas aiow bBureq Buiyoeoidde asouyy Joy a|qisuodsal

sl uoijejoadxas sjueoldde sbeuew 0} AjiiIge SWes) 8y UOHREPOWWOdDE
pajual ajeaud aindss 0} (STvd) Hsodap jual Jo 8sn pue jjeuag

BuIsnoH Yum syull paaoidull ‘Sjueus) UO 991}0U JOPISU0D-a1 0} SpJojpue|

yum uonenobau se yons suoido Buisnoy aAijeuId} e JO SN pUB SIOYIOMISED
ay Jo yoeosdde pasnooy UoOHN|OS BY} 0} 8NP MO| AISA paulewal aAey sainbi

adueuwoliad

juswiwiod ino4 Jjauenp

00'Lv 10°L¢
0’8 16°L1
jobie] |enjoy
110z 110z
00's 00’}
jobue) |enjoy

ino4 Japenp

souBWIONad
JBBA JO pug

aduewlolsd

Bunes Aousioiye ABiaua ybiy e yum

Love Loy paidnaoo sbuljjemp abejusaiad (q)
‘Buneu Aousioiys ABisus moj e
yum paidnooo sbuljjemp abejuasiad (e)
/86 29’8 :Bunel Aousioie ABisus mo| e ypm sawoy
ul Buiall sliyauaq paseq awooul Buialeoal
s|doad - Auanod jany Buipoe] /8L IN
10b1e ] lenjoy
enuu
0loc 0L0¢ ! v g
)
Al
()
(@)
. . S9sed ssaussa|g¥oy
00y 00} 1eadal :ao1Ape Buisnoy | H
1obie] lenjoy

ino4 Japenp | esiy] Jepenp [esiy) Jepenp

881y Jepend

Ajayenp

"2/ 10T 10} 18yBiy 3 39S 0} dsijeasun aq
pinom 1 yo61ey ybiy A1en e Apealje si siy} sy "L 1/010g 10} panaiyoe jablie|

"9WOOU| SS8| 9S0| 810j8J49Y} pue 0} pajoipald alom am
UBy) SS9 JJO-8)0JM BM SUBBW }I SB SMau poob Jo.y Ul SI SIY] %€ payoeal
aM pue %G sem Joble) ay) Se paAsiyoe-lapun sem Ji 4 Se syoo| Jobley siy |

cLoc

10} }8S 99 0} spaau }obie) buiyoians aiow Jaybiy e | pue mo| 00} sem
11/010Z 10} 1061e) 8Y) 4l 8sAleue mou |Im wes| Alonooay 1gaq 8ieiodio)
8y} pue papasdxa sem }abie} sy} uo Jeah ay) Joj souewlopad sy

‘palojdxe Buleq a.e eale siy} Ul A1eAodal 1qap Jo sAem
mau pue umop Apybiis si ease siy} ul eouewlopad ay) Jey asiubooal wes |
A1on0oay jgoQ 8jesodio) ay] "yyuow snoirald ayy wody Apybis dn ybnen

s991A198 BuisnoH
0086 6586
00°S 10°€
00°G€ €9°0Y
00'8. 12'V.

p xipuaddy

00'86 6£°86 shep 0g ulynm pred seoloAu| % LOO NI

) . L00HOX3 HO USHUM

ooy L6¢ :Aed,0 gGH % S0'196.0A9

. ) 900HOX3 Buipuejsino Buipnjoul

0022 oce 'p219A003Y GH % GO'IA6LOASD
uswAedian

008, 9249 GOOHOX3 } o}

‘Palan0d9y gH % G0'196.0Ad




G Jo ¢ abed

‘ue|d YJ0M JNO UM SOUBPIOIJE Ul SUOP 8I9M 9S8U} JBy} SINSud O} d|qe aJom
pue ‘Buneda.d suejd yuswabeuew papaau s|esieldde eale UOI}BAIBSUOD
Buiwooypio} yoiym payuapl am 0 L/6002 4O HEIS dU} I “pamalral / pasedaid
aJe sue|d Juswabeuew ‘sies|eidde eale UOJEAISSUOD 93EHSpPUN M

se Jonamoy ‘sue|d Juswabeuew aAey Ajusind Seale UOIIBAISSUOD B JON

‘LL/oLoc

ojul paddis maiaai siy} Jo uona|dwod Jey) Jueaw yoiym (uoybull|opy)
uoneubisap YO MaU [EISISA0AUOD Alenoied auo uo uopeynsuod algnd
[euonippe 1o Aued o} Juswaiinbai (g) pue ‘sod siy} eoe|dal 0} Jou UoISioap
[IDUNOD puUE EOOZ JOGWAAON Ul (S92IN0SaI YYE)S [[BI9AO JO 9%07) }sod

8U0 40 ss0]| (1) 0} @np uasle sey 01/600Z 10} swwelboid uj abedd)|s swog

"01.0Z @UNf U/ UO 9AlNDeX3 au) Aq

paJspISU0D 8q 0} S| UoJBUI||O|A JO} BSIE UOIBAIBSUOD MBU 8Y) pue pa}e|dwod
Usaq MOU SBY YIOM SIY] "Juswssasse ay} Jo uons|dwod ayy pakejop

SIy] "padinbai 8q pjnom UOIBYNSUOD Jayuny Jey) paljuap! Sem Ji ‘uoibull|on
Ul JNO paLIed [IOUNOD 8U} Jey} Uone}NSuUoD oljgnd pue JusLSSasse

[ed1uyo8] 8U} JO0 80UBNbasuod e sy "UuoIBUI||O|A 18 01 0Z YOI JO pus ayy
210Joq pa)eoo||e 8q PINOM BaJe UOBAISSUOD MaU e Jey) pajedionue sem }|

Aoyiny

Buiuueld sjelauipy se [1ounod) AJuno) ayy Aq paousnjjul aie uoidiys se yons
sa)is ‘JanemoH ‘asn ajeudoidde ojul sa)is Jo1[@19p pue JuedeA Bullq o) 1saq
MOY JOpISUOD |IM 47 8YL "uJnjad ay} seouanjul Ajlaeay pue sa}is asay)
10 auo sI Auenp ||lamiay)-uo-uoidiys ay] 'sieak G uey} aiow Joj Jolj81ep
10 JUBOEBA paulewal MOU aABY 9S8y} JO awos pue dN N O} peppe aiom
sa)is maN ‘padojansp Apnig [enusjod BuisnoH ueqin mau e uo }Ilom se pue
paysinal alom (QNIN) @segeleq oS pueT [euoieN ay} 0} suinjal oLIo}sIy
Se 9|ge|leAe awedaq pue| Jo1|948p pue JUBJBA UO UOIBWIOMI MBU GOOZ U|

‘Alddns 0} 8)nqLju0d Jey) pJeMIO) BWIEBD S8)IS JoYl0
pue Ajddns Buisealoul Jo sysaiaiul 8y} ul Buisnoy 4o} pajuelb sem uoissiwiad
Buiuue|d L0z Buunp ‘sajis a|qelaaljep Jo Ailddns ayj Ul |je} e Jo }nsal e sy

JuUsWIWOD

aouewoudd
Loz

€516

16'L.

deg
9,28

ydeg
928

sue|d Juaswabeuely paysiignd yym
Sealy UoheAIssuoD JO % €00 dHVd

c0'l9

9L'Gy

0069

0069

¥0°0

€Le

00°00}

90°LLL

v

deg
£6'GS

ydeg
o' Ly

s|esiesddy Jajoeley) ajep 0} dn yym
sealy UOHeAIssuU0) % ¢00 dHVd

deg
65

ydeg
65

sealy uoljeAlssuo) Jo ON L00 dHVd

236

¥0°0

¥0°0

()]

(@]

]
sleak G uey) aiow Joj Jo1j818p 0 Emombbmn
sey jey) pue| padojaasp Ajsnoinald 02 LIN

00°00}

§9°06

soys
Buisnoy dojanap 0} Apeal jo Alddng 6SLIN

jobue)
Loz

1enjoy
(32114

aouewlopad
JeaA Jo puj

19618
0Log

[eny
0lL0c

lenuuy

Jeah jse| uo uononpal ybiis
e sISIyl "wis) Buo| % puB Wis) LOYS % /G SB UMOP USY0Iq S| SSBUNDIS

juswwod

aouewIouad
ino4 Japenp

sajejs3y g Aol

|od Buluueld

008

SL'L

jobue)
ino4 Japenp

1enjoy

souewIoped
ino4 Japenp | esiy] Jepenp [esiy) Jepenp

€09

8C'G

SSBUXDIS 0} Nnp 10| SAEP YO Z10 HH

1obie]

lenyoy
saiy] Jspend

Ajsyenp

juswanoidwyj @ ajdoad

¢ xipuaddy




G Jo G abed

pay snjejg |[eldAQ
%00°08 abejusolad
8z Jagquy pue usali9) JaquinN
‘sojel . . . . $90IAI8S UoneINBal ] YIm
asuodsal anoidwi 0} pasinbal poye panuiuo) "ybiy sulewsal uoioesies v 0026 ¢s'i6 v 0026 ¢L06 ssauisnq jo uonoejsies zgLIN
aouewlIodd jobuie) |enjoy souewIopad 10b1e) [enjoy
WOWUIOD oy Jauenp | Jno4 seyenp | ano seyenp | esiy) Jeuenp (es8iy] Japenp |es8iy) Japend Apspenp
J0jedipuj 3d1AI3S-SS01D)
IN 3y} jo uomuyap| - oo 90US|OIA Ol}SBWOp
ay} 0} anJj eyep ainjdeo Jou op 991j0d Ad||eA SBwey] ‘d|ge|ieAe ejep oN 1eqd ON Jo sjuapioul Jeaday EEOIN
00
S92IAIDS [BdNYy B UegIN ¢ SAIHUNWWOY J3jes Z
‘90UEldLIoD SjUBLISIqelse 00°28 00°€6 00°G8 8G°€6 Em__aEAoM\oWA_\MM_QmM M_W»“%HM%B
pOO} JOJUOW 0} SBNUIBUOD [[aMIBYD ‘UMBIPUNIM Udaq sey [N SIUl ybnoyly oy :_ SUBLLYSIEISE Uoo.u_ % IN
95970 ale oym papiodal Jyblem pue uﬂo:
(%8Sl UOXO) %191 J0 8inby sieak . . ) Unm 9 JES A U1 UBIPIIYD JO 8bejusoled (1)
1se| Jsuiebe Ajgeinoney sasedwod (%Gl UOXQ) %6 7L JO |enjoe sieak siy| 06’7l 0oel 196123 ou ov'olL 9 JBa A Ul uaip|iyo abe
jooyos Arewd Buowe AjsaqQ 9G IN
JuSLIWoD aouewIodd jobie) |enjoy aouewlIoLad 19b1e | lenjoy T
Loe Loe Loe 1es\ Jo pu3 oLoc 0L0cC
"SJOSN WO} ¥0Bqpas) pue ‘WnnoLINog
8y} Jo sjuswalinbal ay} ‘spaau [00yds 0} paun) ‘sswwelbold jo ubisapal (uonejndod
pue uBisep |nyo1ed sy pue ‘Bupesiew poob o} panqUiE 89 Ued SS800NS 00°0Sle 00°€Lre v 00°05¢¢ 00'9¢le 0001 Jod) wnasny Ainqueg
JNQ "SHSIA |00YDS Ul UOI}ONPal B paoualiadxa aAeY SWNasNW JayjQ “Jeak Bunisia sjidnd jo JaquinN 200 HY
JInoip e InoyBnouy} [nysseoons Ao usaq sey awwelbold uoneonpg JnQ
"Jaqwiada Ul Jayjeam Jood 8y} pue ainsojo Aepung ‘Ajjigissadoe paonpal
0} anp AjaJius si abesn wnasnpy Ul UoONPal }S8poW 8y 'S}S00 8onpal (uonendod pooL
0} paoNpoJjUl BINSEaW B ‘ainsojo Aepung jo Jeak 9)9|dwod 1s4iy 8y} SI Syl v 26°0%1L vl vyl v Z6°€2LL 16°8601 Jad) uosiad ul wnasnpy
'SJ8SN JUI0d YUl Sepnjoxe ainbly siy] "SI0YSIA 000 00Z Isowe Buiwoojom Ainqueg o} SYISIA Jo JaquinN LO0 HY
‘1eak |njssaoons e pey sey wnasnpy ay) ‘1abuey ayy Buissiw isnf aydsag
aouewIodd jobie) |enjoy souewIoped 10b1e) [enjoy
WOWLIOD oy Jauenp | Jno4 seyenp | ano seyenp | esiy) Jepenp (es8iy] Japenp |es8iy) Japend Apspenp

yj|esH g uoiesday

¢ xipuaddy




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 238



| Jo | abed

'Z10Z LD Ul pajoadxa a)is J81sa0lg MN Uo suonajdwoo
18414 "uejdisysew Buiuoddns yum papiwgns 108foid uonelisuowap a)is uo Joj sjesodoud ‘Buissaiboud syosfoid uonessuowaq

‘ARemuapun mou juswdojaasp BuisnoH

Juswaalbe Buiuueld 0} 108lgns papiwiad uoieoldde ueld Jaisew pasinay

*2102Z Ales ul 8)e|dwoo 0} anp pue 8)is Uo paje)s sey
uononIsuo) IaplQ aseyoind Aiosindwo) sy} pauLiuoo sey (Yy43Q) Sieyy [einy pue poo4 ‘Juswiuoliaug jo juswpedaq ayl

“Jeak sy} Ul aje| paaoold ||Im swayos
ay Ajingadoy pue ‘Aepy ui play aq |im Alinbuj OdD 8y) ‘JensmoH ‘padoy 1Sl UBY) SHIOM Ulew 8y} Jo AJSAI[Sp JoMOJS Ul pa)nsal
sey JoplO aseyoind Alosindwo) e ayew 0} paau a8yl | 10gZ [UdY JO Yoem Jsii 8y} Ul paja|dLiod alom SHIOM ainjonJjseljul uiew ayl

sapnoiyip Buipuny j1oUNo AJUNOY B1IYSPIOIXO O} NP pallajep 1oafoid

"8|gissod se uoos se juswa|dwl 0} Us8Y SISUMOPUE| UJIM SUOISSNISIP
usaq aAey 88y} ajiymues|y Aousby JUSWIUOIIAUT U} UM S POOJ} 8} UO 3Iom Jayuny Buipuad pakejep useq sey ssaiboid

19)s901g 003

o)
wawdojaraq Jaysaolg %

(]
pJojheH Jaddn u_@
N

| ==

uoneIs|ly pood

wawdojprapay aus) UMO] 19)saolg

Japenp [einyn) Ainqueg

apisjeue) Ainqueg

uswiwo)

Jno4
Japenp

a1y
Japenp

L1L0Z Yd4e 03 0102 |1Hdy

1102/010Z syoaloid ad1A1ag d16ajesls

G xipuaddy




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 240



Z jo | abed

‘sdnoub |eoo| Jayjo pue 1ouno) Auno) aulyspioxQ yum sdiysisuned ybnolyy ssaiboid 0y buinunuo)

109(o.d ueld s|doad BunoA 1oy sedinias Buinosdw

‘ueld sanijenb3 uo ssaiboid poos Aemuspun s| swwelbo.d Juswssassy joedw| Ayjenbg
‘paja|dwoo 108loid

108(oud ueld Ausianig pue Ayjenb3 sjowoud

SUOI})IPUOD DJWOU02S pue suolonpal Juelb Japisuod o} unbaqg sey 1ebpng §1/Z] U0 YIOA

109(oud suoisoep
JuelS) ] %9 UOISSB0a1 0} 8suodsal ul AjjIqIxa|4

Z1/11.0Z u1 108(oid ue|d Juswanoidw| 8jeiodioD MU B JO SISeq SU} MOU pue SANDSXT 0} papodal Ajjnjssaoong

109(o.d ueld Juswanoidw] aAuq 0} sousbijjsiul Jswolsnd

*Z1L/110Z o} swwelBoid yipne sy} jo Jed wioy
0} SNURUOD S}pNE D "SBRIWWOD YSIY PUB HPNY ‘SJUN0DY BY} AQ POMBIASI S}IPNE ‘PBUOIIO. pue palusp! Sanss] Jouly "paja|dwod sypny

108(oud uejd Ayjenp ereq anoidw
~—
o~

‘pajo|dwod yse] ‘pajepdn usaq sey ueld uswabeueyy 19ssy oy |

N
jo8foid ue|d sjessy jo Juswabeuey o_mwug

(<))

asjwoid
sbBuines wg'03F ajes0diod ayy jo Led se jes sjabie) sbuines papasoxa sey sawwesboid 8yl “Z1/110Z 4O LO ulyum (Juswdojansq 2lwouod]
pue wsuno] ) a}o|dwod 0} om} pue Jeak [eroueul sy} ulyum Bunejdwos smainal Jybie yum pauueld se Ajabie| passaiboid sey swwesboid

|
awwelbold mairay Asuoly Joy m:p

Kepy ul 8Apnosex3 je enp ssaiboid uo podey

100l0id ue|d S80IN0SBY |RINJEN JO BSN

-ue|d Juswanoidwi 81e10diod g1/} 10Z Y} o Med swioy pue Z|/| 10z Buunp padojaasp aq 0} si
yoiym Abajes)s juswdojonap AJUNwWod mau sy ojul pajesbajul aq [|Im sanss| uolsayo) “Jeak ul 8doos jJo abueyd o} anp paja|dwod jou Josfoid

jo0f0id ueld sBIUNWIWOYD BAISBY0D

'Z10Z UoJep ul pajoadxae s uoiaidwod "dn jas usaq sey Ainqueq ||leH 86plque)s Joy pauueld Buisnoy
aleD eJjxJ Jo syun o/ Joy dnoig 109foid dyl 1 10Z YoJe Ul Aingqueg ui spial4 pieyolQ e paje|dwod siam Buisnoy aied eax3 Jo sHun Oy

109(oid ueld uonejndod Buiebe ue jo spasu Buibuey)

"paau Ul }SOW 8Soy} Uo
$92Jn0sa4 snooy 0} Ainqueg Joy pasodoud qny saljiwe; pue ajdoad BunoA ‘uaip|iyd MaN "$82Jn0sai J0}0as dlignd aininy paonpas wouy bunnsas
abueyo pue jo joedw ayy BuipseBbal useouo) ‘padojerap Bulag AjAlOE SUOHEDIUNWWOD JayHn4 "suoljoe Aousabe inw uo ssaiboid poon

108(oud ueld (sanienbaur yyesy Buipnjour) uoneaudsqg

*InolAeYag [BID0S-IUY 8]30.} 0} SIomod JO }1y |00} PasIA 109foud ueld yuswanoidwi
a1 8y} 0} paebas ypm Apenoiued ‘eoueping Aoljod uonijeo) Bunieme |3S ‘Jow aq 0} sanoud 8|qeus ||Im YdIYm JEaA }xau J0) pawuod Buipuny v v InoiAeyag [e1oos Uy pue swly Jo Jea buonpay
ue|d juawanoidwy) ajesodio)

T ano4 23y
Japenp J8pEend

1102 UdJel - 0102 [Hdy

110Z/010Z (IW4A) dwwelboud Asuopy 104 anjep B ue|d Juswaroidw] ajesodion

9 xipuaddy




Z Jo z abed

1aquiy

%S1'S6
(x4

snjels

abejuaoiad
Jaquy pue usalg) JaquinN

000°G/13 Jo 1o6ue) € Jsuiebe $68°g0Z 0 sBuines payiuapl pue 010z Joquiadaq Ul papodas MaIAsL 8y |

MBINSY WA Hodg g uonealoay

1102 [MdY ¢ pajoadxe 8oUEpING JUSWUISAOD

MaIADY sjuswdolanaq Jofepy 3 [04juo) Juswdoeaaqg

‘uonejuawaldwi ybnouyy pasi|eal usaq aney asay} JO |[e Jou ‘UaA8MOH "960°0E .3 Jo 1obue) e jsulebe (yg8°/z1 3 suolonpal
196pnq pue 0579193 sbuines jo dn apew) 185 1,3 Buljiejo} sbuines jenuajod paynuapl pue L0z Joquadsq ul papodas mainal ay |

MBIABI NHA [eIny pue ueqin

SH1IN Jo Wed se paiinbai uonesapIsuod JayUnL “smalAal N4/ [ENPIAIPUL SNoIABId 0} anp palinbal Jou Sa1AIas Poddns Jo MalAal [Ny

MaIAaI N4/ sebieyosy seoinies toa@

000°2913 j0 Jueis Asenijeg Buisnoy
pue Bujuue|d 8y} JO SSO| 8y} YBNOIY} SWODUI JO UOHONPSI By} JOSHO O} SUBSW Payiuapl pue 00z JoqUISAON Ul papodas maiaal ayepdn ay |

251

N
Mmalnal N4 Adljod m:_c:é

(@),

Z1/1102Z 10 1O ul yodal 0} pajoadxa pue |jom Buissaiboid s| mainey

©

MBIABI WA WSHNo pue juswidojoasq olwougdl

90IAIBS B} 10} 291 /623 J0 1001e) sBuines Jeak-om} e }as pue | |0Z YoJely ul papodal mainsl ay |

MBIABI [N4/\ SSDIAISS JBWOISND

000‘7E1 3 J0 106.e) B Jsuiebe sbuires Aouaiole Ul 0gL‘S8L3 Pauuspl pue | Loz Alenuer u papodal mainsl 8y |

MaIABI N/ SBejIsH pue ainyn)

sBulnes Ul £20°€223 JO (€10} PaUIQUIOD B Palyuap! }| "0} 0Z 4oquiada( Ul SAINISX
0} papodal pue (Juswabeuep Ainseal| pue souewlopad @ Absjens 91es0dio) ‘SaoIAISS D1IBIO0WS() S)USWSIS 931y} PasSUAWOD MIASI Y]

MBIABI N4/ 210D dljeloowaq pue djesodio)

malnal oy Jo ped se paynuspl aiem sBuines Aousioye 0013 JoUuN} VY "PaINPayds se aAlNoaxg o} papodal pue paja|dwod mainal N4/ arepdn

malnal N4/ Buisnoy

awwelBoid malnay Aauoly 1oy anjep

ino4 281y

jusluuey 19)iend Jauenp

1102 UdJel - 0102 [Hdy

110Z/010Z (IW4A) dwwelboud Asuopy 104 anjep B ue|d Juswaroidw] ajesodion

9 xipuaddy



Z jo | abey

'910J SIY} UaYe) 8AeY sS4 “diysisuped ssauisng/y e Jebuo] ou 430

"SpJEMUO Z10Z [Mdy Wody
sjuswabuelie pasiAal JO 1X8JU0d 8y} Ul payelp Buleq Apualino ale siojoses Ajunwiwod pue AiejunjoA ayy yum Buiiom Joy sueld pesodold ainyny sy

sdnoig uonoy 8y 0} uoiNqgLiuoo pue sbunesw diysiauped ay) je souepusiy

"Jno palles Bulaq salj|io.) JO UoISIACId UO UOIIe)NSU0D B pue payipow
Bulaq sjesodoud [1ouno) AJuno) Buimoljoy pasea aney sasua) Bulpkoay aisep) ployasnoH ay) 0} sabueyd Buipiebal asole yoiym suoisua |

"suonouny
Aloynjels mau 0} 8np ainjny 8y} Ul 84njonU)s pue diysiaquisl ‘8ouslalel Jo swis) Jo abueyo 4oy pesN “AJAIOE AJUnod ssouo Uo ssalboid pooo)

‘Joddns 499130 JUBAB|BI UM (SBwes
1]1D) pieog ealy 1S9\ pue YHON 8y} pue (spjoukay J||D) pieoq utew ay} uo Buiaias Buipnjoul 1sni] ayj JO YI0M 8y} 0} 8)nNgUIU0D 0} SSNURU0D DAD

"passasse aq 0} [[IS
sjuswabuelie mau Jo ssausApoay 3 diysiaupued asudiajug |eoo uoibay Al aliyspioixQ yim diysiasuped Ajioyiny |eoo7 se Bunesado mou d4idS

‘pajnpayos sbussw Jayuny Aue aAey 3,US80p )l papuegsip Ajjew.o) usag LUsey }l 3s|iym pue pjoy uo jnd usag mou sey pieog SeoIAI8S 2liqnd 8yl

‘Buiyiom diysisuped Jisy) yym Asuow
10} anjeA wnwpdo apinosd Asy} jey) ainsus 0} )i 0} Buuodal sdiysiaupnied onewsay) swos Jo malAal Jayuny e unbaq sey diysisuped aaysploixo

sdiysiauped apim-ailyspioyxo

diysisupied 21LWOU0DT BIYSPIOIXO

souel||y seiunwwo) Jebuonsg

diysiauped Ayjunwwod Jajes allyspioxO

diysiauped 81SEA\ PUE JUSWIUOIIAUT

pleog diysiauped Buieg ||op\ pue yjesH

Page 243

1SNIL S,UBIpIYD

(dids) diysisupey
ainjonyseunu| g Buluue|d leneds

pJeog seoiA18S 2ljlqnd

pJeog diysiouped a4ysplojxQ

Juswwo)

ano4
Jsyenp

29Iyl
Jspenp

110Z Yd4el - 0102 |dY

1102/0102Z sdiysiaupied jueosyiubls

. xipuaddy



Z 1o z abey

juswdojeasp 008 Js)saoig MN 8u}
1oy sjesodo.d pue sjoefoid uonelisuowap ayj Jo AISAIISP ‘UOISIA PaIeyS auQ J8)seolg 003 ay} Jo uoneluswaldwi sy ybnoly) Jejsaeolg 003 Jo
KlaNijap 8y} 89SJ9A0 0} senuuod 3| |10z Aej Ul Bunesw sy 0} pajussald aq |m ssaibold sy Buimeinel Jodal B pue sawl ¢ 18w sey pleog 8yl

pJeog Aiealjaq oibsiens Joyseoig MN

EEIREIG)
|eoo| buiioddns pue jousIq [[emIay) ay} ul Bupiom Asenjoues Joy Ajuoud pawliuod e ainsua 0} Alenjoues yum Bupjiom ale siao1jo pue sIaquisiy
1102 18| Judy wouy dnois BuisnoH Azenyoues Apoq jualed s )i 0} sjuswabebus Jo Jajsuel) e ybnouy) pailajsuel) aiam sanjiqisuodsal s}l pue | 1L0g

1s1¢ yoley uo Bunelado pasesd BuisnoH Ajunwwod Jepey) "abueyo [euonesiueBlo Jo aoe) 8y} Ul SSNUIBUOD BaJe |[oAMIBYD) SY} O} JUSWHWWO)D

dnoug BuisnoH
Aienjoueg g diysiauped ISy [[BWIBYD

‘asnqe onsawop
JO SWIIOIA 10} SBOIAIBS YOBSIINO S| SN0 JUSLIND BU) pue ‘M8l 1oy dn s ABs)eljS SSaussasWoH S,|[eMmIay) “wul sulewsal diysiauped sy

diysiauped Absjens ssausss|owoH

‘suonelado 1aylew ay) pue Buppied Aepp siiepn punolde
SUOISSNOSIP ‘8WaYds UoNeSIUBLISapad ay} uaag aney sjoafoid uiely "sbunssw pieog je souepusyie pue spodal zejnbal ybnoiyy uonnguiuod

pJeog uswabeuely anua) abejji uoibulpry

‘pouad

Jaypny e 1o} anuijuod ued jsod ay) jeyy Juswabeinoous aAlb 0) poddns |ejoueuly 10308s 21ignd pue ajeAld Buos)s si 81ay) Jeaamoy | L0z AB Ul pud
UEe 0] SBWO0D YoIym Joe1juod Jeak aaiy) e se padojoaap Ajjeuibuio sem jsod siy] "SUOHEDIUNWIWOD pue uosiel| AJUNWWOD SE [[om Se jJuswabeuew
a11usd umo} spoddns ajol Jebeuew diysisuped ay] “18)sadlg ul siakojdws Jofew yum syui buosys dojaasp 0} Ajlunpoddo poob e 1ouno) ay)
uanib sey diysieuped ay) pue ‘10308s ajeAld 8y} Wwoly sawod mou Buipuny 8y} J0 9%,0G uey} 810 “[[om ob o} senunuod diysiauped Siy) UIYIM IO

UoIsIA Jejseolg

sanssi diysiauped uo ssaiboid pue sbuipesw diysisuped Auspuenb ay) je aouepuspyy

diysisuped anua) umo] Ainqueg

‘abes
uonjeoidde Buiuueld-aid je sjuswisaaul ssauisng Jolew oy Jndul pue sauinbua Auadoud |eloiswwos Aep-03-Aep yyum |esp 0} panuniuod diysiauped

diysiauped yuswisaau| OpiA [l@MIBYD

age 244

'dSD 8y} Jo aj01 By} Sasealoul
pue sabiswa juswulanoh |esjuad wouy Aoljod mau se anupuod |Im epusbe Jo Buisnooy ay ‘|aAs| 186png paonpal 4oy aoeld ul ind Bupas Ayoud
pue mainal 196png ‘paAalyoe Buisndojal SWOS pue uayeuapun mainal OyN ‘sbunssw Auspenb ybnoiyy sisuped ayy yum juswabebus panunuo)

diysiauped Ajunwiwod Jejes [emiayd

‘paau ul
1SOW 9SOy} U0 $824n0sal snooy 0} Ainqueg Joj pasodoid gny saijiwe) pue ajdoad BunoA ‘usip|iydo mapN "S821nosal 10J0as dljgnd ainjn} paonpal Wwouj
Buninsas abueyd pue jo yoedwi ay) Buipiebas uisouo) ‘padojaasp Buiag AJAOE suolEDIUNWWOD Jayun4 ‘suonoe Aouabe ijinw uo ssaiboid poos

dnoug Buueslg Ainqueg ui sainin4 Jayybug

swinJoy snoueA ay) ybnoiyy

8)NQIUOD 0} PBNUIUOD SBY AJUNWWOY [[8MIBYD JOPIM 8yl ‘ABsjess JuswdojaAas O1LIOU0DT MaU BUj} JO JuswdojaAsp 8y} pes| 0} SeNUUOd
pleog syl ‘Mainal | Dd oy} wo.y uoneaidwi aigissod ay) pue wsieoo| ‘A1e100g Big, syl Buipsebes aoe|d usye) aABY SUOISSNISIP pue Yoiessay
"0€£0Z 41YSPIOIXO Ulypm saiuoud sousip ayy Buimairss AjuaLing S| pue SUoie}NSU0D apim AJUNOD SNOLIBA Ul PAAJOAUI USS] 8ABY pleog 8y

diysseuped oibsiels |00 [loMIBYD

sdiysiauped oyioads-jjamiayy

ano4 29Iyl

JusuIwLiog Jauenp | Jeuenp

110Z Yd4e| - 0102 11dY

1102/0102Z sdiysiaupied jueosyiubls

. xipuaddy



¢ o | abed

Buloyiuow 326pnqg - paeoqyseq (p

Buiuueld a210p140M (2

sisAjeue AjiAlIsuas pue Abajesis |epueuly wnipap (q
T1/010z 396png (e

*SWJD) B3 Ul %87 JO UORINPaJ B ‘siedd € ise| ay)
19A0 WTF AQ S3500 Moddns pasnpad aAeY M "SMIIADL

*SaWAYdS
Ajunwwod a1njny puny o3 [e3ided Jo ¥oe| pue Xe) [IPuNod
0) S9SB2JOUI UONR|JUI DAOGE ‘SUOIINPAI ADIAIDS ‘||ejioys
Ale32Bpng Ul 3INsad [ImM JaY3IS Op 03 BIN|Ied "SIUBWISIAUL

Page 245

= 1 W4/ 01 103[qNs u2aq aARY 31|e SIDIAIDS dUIjjUOL) pue - z1 24nJPNJIseljul 31N3N puny 0} 3INGaJ 39 0} PAdU ||IM S)aSSe $924N0saY
101 pasedaid Buie Lw;uu,:mh_ w_r\whh%nWMLOWO__"RON,_MEMM%_ \UMZ ' : wnipap 9T ybiH 53500 Joddns “aw} Jo spolad papualxa JIAO [Ny Ul ) wnipap 97T ybiH| |e3ded pue @anpaa osje 3snw ainjipuadxa anuaaal poddns .h___w“_‘\__mu |lepueuly
4 P 19q S41IW N “Alel ! 2 1Juod v ybiH sbuiaes payiuapl JaAlRp 03 Ajljige ano buinoad ‘sieah v ybiH 03 352493ul U0 Aduapuadap Jno s2dnpaJ |eIded WoJdy SWodul A 80.LVYLS
€ 15€| BY) JBAO W/"EF JO SUONINPaI 150D pajelauab S,11DUN0D dY3 SY "SAJIAIDS UO PUBWISP paseatdul aonpold 03
Sey SMaIA31 WA Jo dwwedlboad Buljjos unQ “a4mny pUd) 0S[E SUOIIIPUOD DIWIOUDID J00d Sa1IIoLd 91e40d.0d S
3y3 Ul saniold JNo 193W 03 SNURUOD 0 J|GR dJe aM J3AI[3P 03 S3DIN0S3J 3] SARY J0U [|IM [IUNOD BY) WD
Buunsua Buo.ls sulewas uonisod [eIPURUY S,[1DUNOD |eIDUBUL PUB DIWIOU0DS UILI3dUN UR Ul Jey) S %SI YL
3Y3 ‘UINJUMOP DIWIOU0D3 Y JO }Nsal e se pajuasaid
sabuaj|eyd ay3 91eWIISS JBPUN 3,UOP M IS|IYM
v E:_ﬂwz 9T ybIH " N Ww“cm_az.toan_:m MI pue 263 _mu:\_m.uxm_ 9T ybiH 97T ybiH| jeuonesiuebio uo sswwesboid abueyd Jofew jo Joedwi ayy EEIN Buibeuep
. soeid ur sapijod Juswabeuew a6uey) abeuew Aj3enbape jou S20p [1PUNOD 3Y3 1BY] SI 4SI YL -auuy £L0LVYLS
*sjulidiooy
ST sdnoib APAIP JueA3IY (2 ST u0QJed 113y} 9ONPaJ SISSBUISN] PUR SJUBPISAI S IO1ISI juaWUOIAUg
t v 60 wnipa Je3p> AB3jess [ejuauuoiaug v 6 wnipa|  SH JO Jey3 pue suoljesado UMO S} SINSUD 0} ‘JUSWILISA0D| J49130d P einjeN ayL
wnipa P ay3 4oy sueld Asaalap 10y Ajjiqisuodsay (q wnipap P i i p y . P: ! u
’ ybIH y | ’ YbiH |euonieN Ag 33s se ‘uonebi|qo sy 323w 03 suoie 90LVYdLS
jew|d buibueyd e uoj Abajesys |ejuswuoliAug (e Alessadau By} 3] 10U S0P |IPUNG BU 38U} S1 S UYL
*UOJIOH dY3 Wody
uevoduwI S1 141 181 Al[e0] SNSUBSUOD BUILIESD (5 UOIONPaJ 3DIAISS B Ul 3NS3J PIN0D pue uoisiAoid 3dIAIS
e Iststu aeaa Allesol e Jua.und asipledoal ||IM JBY3IS JO dJnjied "SI14391Sqo pue I_.
6 219UM>3S[2 SIIAIDS PaJDAIDP 6 |e)dsoH uoo
t v 9T YbIH v 9T ybiH| SoujeIpaed J0) [9POW BDIAIDS PAIBAIISP JUBINSUOD PasiAal| saineq uel
wnipap JuB)NSU0D JO AY[IGRIDAIIDP JO 22UBPIAS Bulpinold (q wnipajy © 10 ANIGEPIOLE pUB ANIGEISAISP SU1 B8 UOISIAOLd S01VY1SY
siesodo.d LHYO BuiBualieyd ul 15d 31 03 1oddns (e yijeay [e20] Joj suonedidse Ajunwwiod mumw.E. 1ey) n
Ayioey e se [e3idsoH UOMOH ay) Bululejulew 03 SySI dyL|
‘S9Nss| |ed0| 0} Uconmm._ 0} saniAnRoe diysiaued *Spasu [enpiAlpul pue Ajlunwwod jo buipuejsiapun sabue
stauped / DA Jo Ajljige uo peduwi |im julesysas bBuipuads 10309s i paje|as pue Abajesis juswdoj@aag dlwouod3 (2 i z1 Jeapd e AQ uaalp sadiAIas Ajljenb doy jo Japinoad m_uuu
21[gnd "Suol3Ipuod dlwouods buibueyds 03 sasuodsal sa3edipul t 9T ybiH Abajens Ajjunwwo) ajqeureisns (q wnipap 9T ybiH B pue Japes| AJUNwWWOod B Se 3|04 S} [J|Nj J0U P|NOM| PROH uyor u_Ew_.._oum
Abajenys '110Z Aew paysiignd aq o3 Abajesys |eul4 ‘ssadboud v ssa20.4d Buluueld |eidueuly pue IAISS (B v ybiy jInsaJ e se pue sabueyd |eDOS pue JIWou0dd [etauab 03 B2
POLVYL
Ul dS7 eIA ABajesis Juswdo|aAag JIWOU0DT JO MIIASI (310N awWes ay3 UlewWal SaINseaw [043U0D puodsas pue AJ;uspl Jou S0P [1PUNOD BY3 J_Y3 SI HSH dYL|
1500 ybiy
18 3OM SiedA € 0) Z Jeadal 03 dARY PINOM [1DUNOD dY3 IRy}
*uUMou| S| aJow uaym pasiApe 29 ||! ueaw pjnom ue|d punosun uy ‘sjeadde 6ujuued bunssjuod Slomawely
t i 61 pue Ajng buninp pajedipijue si Sos ay3 woly i E:mﬁm 51 ul |19Uno) ay3 Joj asuadxa 10 / pue sjuswdo|aAsp Jofew e juswdolaasg
v 0z UbH 9DIAPE WIBIU]T *S13IIOYINE |BD0| J3Y30 pue 3S0D v 61 W 0z UbtH 9|qeuisspun ‘suoneoiidde buiuueld aanejndads wody Buisue dijiyd |e207
yim anbojelp asopd ybno.yy pabeuew aq SU SIyL UoH SYSLI J2YMNY Ul NSDI PINOM SIUIOINO YONS *UOIRUIWLEXD £0LV¥LS
11gnd 3e punosun punoy si 4o ‘awy ul ‘Aj93enbape pasedaud
30U S| 3JoMaWERIS JUSWdO[PASQ [B207 SY3 JRY3 e SYSU dYL]|
109(04d 2Y3 J40j UOIDBIP SINSUD 0} PAPIAU S| UOISIA pateys el sfoud nmummu\"wmm_;mﬂ “Buinil 31qeuteisns Jo SuL) Ul 3U3IIIX3 40 313U ©
- N : o t dojaaap 03 Ayunyioddo ue se umo]-023 ay3 ojdxa Ajny 03
3U0 - ,1935921g-023, pue Abajelis 810D 4@ ul Jusawdolaasp o 8 o7 UbIH 103095 21|qnd pue a3eaud yum buppom diysisuped o 8 T UBIH| 118y ABW [1DUNOD BU3 3INSaJ © S *UMO ] -033 1o15301G MN 543 peoH uuor umo] 023
Adjjod [e207 juswa|ddns Sdd S,umo03}-023 buipnjoul ‘suomawe.y wnipajy uol paiejad pue ue|d 309(o1d umo] I23s91g 003 (g wnipap ub! k_n.v mcmEnn_u._oZu w;w_ u\_wnn:m 03 93enbapeu; oq \s.mmnt:omw\_ P 4 20LV¥1S
Ad1j0d Bujuueld [euoineu MajAd 0] SI JUSIUI JUSWUISA0D o207 o EmEm%mﬁﬂﬁ»ﬂﬂ%w%mﬁ%ﬂ pue 1oddns A1jod [e30] pUB [eUONEU JoU) 3.2 SSH BUL
$924N0SaJ4 JuaLINd JusWa|ddns ‘uoneAldap a|dijnw Jo SIIPUI S,JUDWILISA0D)
03 sjuedb JUSWUIBA0D Wouy Buipuny [euor ay) Aq painseaw se uoneALdap Jo [9A3] ybiy e si auayy
_ 71 saAda(qo ) 21 aJaym Ainqueg uj spiem Aingswiio pue 330dsny ‘dolylienN sanyenbs
6 i UOWIWIOD Pue B3> YHIM uonde Aduabe piniy 6 i 3y) se yons seade uj 3nde Alejnopied sisu 3yl “Iayns -
v wnipa P Py ! q v wnipap u u 1€l o U t saineq ue| g uoneaudsg
wnipaW| v 61 siseq sy} uo passaippe wnipa| ¢ 61 JIIM [12UN0D dY3 Jo uoieINdas 3y JNsal e se pue paAosduwi| AN
ubH 9q AJuo ued panss| Auew Se Sa13IUNWWOD pue YbIH 9q 10U [|Im pasau 3sa3ealb a3 ul syuapisal Jo saiiunpoddo Tolvils
a|doad |e20| 03 oddns uoy yoeosdde wua) Huoq (e 941l 9Y3 31843 SI 1D1ISIQ 2Y3 SSoudoe sainljenbaul buissalppe
apnjoul sjesodoud pue uoneaudap Jo 3242 ayy Buiyealq Jou ul st YL
s)siy o16ajens
Guney Guney buney buney
OVH 1N [ isny an_xu Asry Ovy 1N | isiy mwww sty
JaMenb siy3 syuswwo) [eneslL jo 1N ssoin $]0.3u0D) BN ssoi9 uondudsag JoUM| BuipeaH siy
! vopaena nd. 0 I !

TTOZ Y24en : ¥d

TTOZ Yo1ew - 0102 Idy

1102/0T0Z Juswabeuep sy

070Z 49qwi23q : €0

8 xipuaddy



€ Jo g ebed

Page 246

‘ssaualieme Jajealb 03 anp swiep Aed |enbs
awayds J4e) Auedwo) jo [erowy (1
- F4s - z1 ansind 03 yje3s 26eIN0dUS ARW UOIIEN|RAT GO[ 3By} XS € SI 1005
1 10afoud uonenieaz qor (g 9 1 uonen|eAs qog
MO wnipa v wnipajy| 249y3 0S|y “Jejnoned Ul S91N0SaY URWNH pUe (1DUN0D ay3 suep
v Jipne Aed |enb3 (g wnipap v S0d4¥0D
ybiH ybIH |40 S921N0S3L BY3 UO DWIYDS UOIIRN|RAT GOf dY3 wody Buisue -auuy
saAnejuasaldal aaAojdwa yiim uoneynsuo) (T
sjeadde jo Jaqunu juedyiubis e jo pedwi ayy sI }su Sy L |
ue|d suonediunwwod pue dnoib buleals sanienby (4
*bujuueld a01A48s Jo Jed se aoe(d a 1 st 0TOZ 40} pauue|d JuaLussasse J53d vaAI (3 a ST ‘uone|siba| sanienba ym jueldwod jou si 3 Y1 uoneindal Jojhe uonelsib
ude) SYIJ JO MIIASY 'PAseaLdul ||13S SYIT UM PaIeId0OSSe YSiy t S v WINIPAW| - dINd (P 4BNO.L pa.o3Iuow duewwoyiad SPRIENDI (3] I |wnipai NP3 40 sso| pue uoneb| 03 uado 3g Aew [12UNOD dY3 SI ASH YL aled sanijenb3
’ ’ : ’ ubiH ubiH bujured) seniienb3 Alorepuen (q UbIH UbIH ’ ’ . $0440D
awayos sanlenby (e
sdojipne
|eusaixa Aq sainpadoad uonesado jo Bunsay [enuue 2UN0D 3Y3 03 SIS0
939|dwod si sue adioyl je ybnoJys 10042 OSI YIm wu:m__anu |lenuuy (qz Jeuonndaoxa asned pue AJBAIRP IAISS uo Joedw) aAebau
JoM 3y3 Jaye oy pauueld S13593 INJ ¥ “UIUOW SIY3 N0 PaLLIEd Q b Mo 0z YbIN !sJoypne [eulaxe v 8 0z YbIH juediubls e aAey pinom jey) swaisAs D1 Jo ssoq (z| uosdwis Swa3sAS 101
2 b - y N : Aq paunsse Ajjenb s| syoafoud Ay Jo uonejuswa|dwi wnipap : jed £0d40D
SeM SUOI393|3 4O 3SeNDbal 33 32 UORI0AUI 353] |NYSS30NS pue swajsAs Jo yoeoidde |einypanydly (B2 ‘ue|d AYNuRUO) ssaulsng ay3 Ag painbai
*3|NPayds Ajyuow g e uo siojelisiuiwpe Se SaDIAIDS AI9A02Y J3isesiq apiaoid 03 ajgeun 11 (T
wa3sAs Aq pa1sa) aq 0] ue|d AJoA0daY J3isesiq (BT
s3s17 Ajaedaajuno) (1
Abajenys juswabeuely Aunseau] |enuuy (Y
Burioyiuow 326pnqg - paeoqyseq (b
Abajens juswabeuely 39ssy (3
Abajesys |epueuly waa) wnipay (@
11/0T0Z 396pNng (p
*T10Z AW Ul YSa1jod SHLIN Ul paJapIsuod 6 Biny| 75238 Aouednad0 JNo M3IARJ [[IM BM DJBWI[D DIWOUO0ID i 5 upny mucwEMmngﬂ
9 ||IM pPUB M3IASJ JSPUN SUIBLWIS] SWOdUI JUSWISDAUI JO IS wnipap 9T UPIH siy3 up ‘seiadoad ,A1dwa, Jo Jaquinu a3 asiwuiw| g 9T UPIH uatey| e UA
03 s3e3s3 Jo peaH ay) Aq pabeuew pue Ajyjuow €04¥0D
paJojiuow si sbuIp|ing WwoJj awodul [ejual |1y (2 A
9p0d Y4dID YIm sa1jdwiod
1ey) ABajeJ]s JUBWISaAUI [enUUR UR 0) dJaype aM (q
*suonnAsul pajed Buons ul Bunsaaur yai
03 slosiape Juswabeuew Ainseas) Jo uonesi|r
saunpadoad uononpur piepuels Jo ped n
se panss| aJe sajou ad130e.d BuIOM djes JURASIRY (O
*[19UN0) ay3 Jsulebe
i ot >HOM |enueul i 0t uonebiy| pue swiep pue aduasqe ssauddls ybiy ‘yieap pue|  noLuen| A3ases g yyesH
t wnipap 0z YbIH| BupjeapUN Ye)s JueAdjal ||e 03 udAIb si Bululel) (q wnipa oz ubH| - : e :
v uBIH uenu| ¥ UBIH saunful 0} pes| pinod sampijod pue uone|siBa| aiejjam pue piaeq 104402
S,|I2UN0D 3Y3 UO IN0 33s se ade(d uj sainpadold Aya4es pue yyjeay yium Aldwod 03 anjiey e 3ey st skl 3yl
pue saijod Ayajes g yijeaH Jo abuel spim (e
sysiy ajesodio)
sve1d U SWWeIB0.d SI0M 15T UG0S * *SuoIeBI}IW pue S|0JIUOD ‘XL JO S|IBISP UIRIUOD
pue ased ssaulsng ayj 4o 9 xipuaddy ui pa|ieIap e sayy
paaube pue padojaAap ased ssauisng He0SY o
pue ased ssauisng juswabeuew paieys ay3 Jo Juawdo|aASp
2oe|d ul sBulyaLIg SUOREDIUNWWOD JE0SY ©
SY3 Ul PaysI|qeIsa SySI JO 31| SAISUYIdWOD e SI dUaY L
pajulodde S$904N0S9Y
day SJUR)INSUOD JUBWIYINIDAI [RUOISSDJOId 960SY Juswabeuew paieys JpUNO)
Ho ; : 104 pajelbaul A[9AIIDRYS 9q 0} WSISAS 1D JO dunjied o -
Isdid 91 "M3IARJ Japun sl deay pue PISIQ SIUBRYLION
9 souew.oyiad jeuonesiuebio ul aulpPaq e
pappe wnios wnipa| syiodad Jejnbad apinoad [im dnoto BuliaRlS PEOSY © SBusIeUs 1o6o «| SOVAEA UeT 4Inos yum
Pt 'PoW ybiH suojjesiuebio Yyjoq wody siebeuew pue siaquisw Ileyd [eba7 Juswabeuew
uoneindas [euonesiuebio Jo sso7 e
MaN Pa123J3 Jojuds sapnjoul dnolb HulES 260SY * pateys
Sjesow Buulpap pue yeis Ay Jo sso
90IApE YH pue |e63) .5 . 601VYLS
:9pNjoul S10944e IsIaAPE |erudlod JaylQ *s1ebpng
|euoissajoid yum payoddns dnoab bulieels qe0Sy e
201A19s BuINd Jayuny Yam 396png sy aouejeq o3 Ajjige
JuawasJbe €TTS YlM Uil Ul 3dUaJ3aJ Jo
d 5 5 pue uonisod |epueuy s,[1DUN0D ayy uodn pedw Ajpsiaape
SuLle} pue dnolo DulIeals UBUIBOUELY JUIor B605Y IM pue pajuswa|dwi pue pabeuew A[SAIDRYS 3G
03 |1ey suswbue.LIR JUSWSBRURW PaJeys SY3 3By 3SU SYL
Guney Guney buney buney
OVH 1N [ isny mwu‘_z Asry Ovy 1N | isiy 2 sty
|oARIL JO o ssoi9
JaMenb siy3 syuswwo) B N ssoin $]013u0) BN sso19 uonduosag 13UMO BuipesH sy

TTOZ Y24en : ¥d

TTOZ Yo1ew - 0102 Idy

1102/0T0Z Juswabeuep sy

070Z 49qwi23q : €0

8 xipuaddy



€ Jo ¢ ebed

SIUy} 03 paiedwod Japenb 3seq
(paseauoul Buijel Xsu) pauljdap sdurWIOMSd
pauasiom Buned ysiy

R

SIUy} 03 paiedwod Japenb 3seq
(pasea.dap bujed >sii) paseadul SdURWI0MSd
panoadwi buned ysry

sy} 03 pasedwod Japenb 3seq
awes ayj paiels buned ysiy

&=

*pabueyd 10U 9ARY SUORIPUOD JBL] B4NSUD 0} AlJa1eNb pamalAal 3q pInoys snjes ayl Ing ‘suoipoe BunebnRiw Jaylny a4inbal 03 Aj@X1UN SIS SIYL Mo
Ajjeoipoliad mainay
*su a3 ul abueyd Aue Ajuspl 03 J0JiUO ‘1enbape aq pinoys mo| sulewsal 3edwl ay) 1ey) ainsus 03 buideasasnoy poob Ing ‘(A[9A1309449 150 SUOP Bq UBD 31 JI) POOYI[9¥1| 8Y) 32NpaJ 03 uoiebiiw XS1 [euoIppe awos alinbal Aew su iyl wnipaj
paJinbay buliojiuop
‘spJemdn 23e|eds3 ‘a|ijoid ay3 woly uoneIAsp Aue 30939p 03 swsiueydaw Bujuiem Apues yum tsyiasboy ‘pasinbal s) uejd Aousbupuod 3snqou v wnipay ybiH

paJinbay sue|d Aduabunuo)

‘spJemdn 2je|edS3 ‘|9Ad| 9|qeidadde ue je ainsodxa ayj ulejulew pue umop sbeuew 03 Juswabeuew aARoe salinbad Xsu siyy :AjjIgeqold ybiH / 3pedwi ybiH

juawabeuely anOYy saldinbay

pabeuew aq pInoys s 3yl MoH

Aq pajesipur

Page 247

*saiiunioddo uoisinoad
(3ueJ piemay Vvl aJnpnuiselyul pue juswdojaAap 3ojdxa Ajiny 03 anjiey pue diysiauried
t 8 i E:N_ﬁw J0 3sn) >Jom diysiauned Joj uoisinoid 321n0say (q 8 i E:N_ﬁm eaJe [e20] Y3 40y Buipuny padnpads aJe saduaNbasuod ayL o uyop| 2AMPnAasesur 8
“SU SIY} JO UOISIASI B)e)issadau Ajjenjuana v wnipaW| v m__u W ueld piemiod / swwelbold diom diysiaupied (e v wnipai| v mﬂ_. W "JUSWIUISA0D [BUOIIEN UYJIM SUOIB2] Ul pue Aj|edo] Apoq PEOH uyor Bujuueld |eneds
Aew siy] “sdiysisuped osudisjuz [€007 JO S0UBBIBWS PUE JUSWILOIIAUS 4BHH "aWes 9y UleLWJ S3INSes| [043U0D) 4o SAII09J9 UE Se J|9s)l Ys1|qe)sa 0] diysiaulied S4nionisedjur $01dvd
‘diysisuped mau Jo Jybi| ut maias Japun Apua.ind ueid }iom/s|01 didS pue buluueld [eneds ayy Jo aJnjie) 9Y3 SI NSH YL
‘sbupesw diysiauiied d1bajesys Alsajienb ayy
0jul spodad Yoiym (JSpUBWILIOD [BI0] dAL PUE DDIAIDS n_cm\_mcﬁmnﬁ
cr i cr J0 peay D@D) wes) juswsbeuew sduewlopiad a i a *3WLID JO 1B3) DY) PUB WD Ul UOINPAJ SNONURUOD|  [|]9MYI0Y JSEIELS .
v |wnipap wnipsi ¥ |wnipai wnipsi
t v s,diyssauited ayy Aq Ajyjuow-1q palojiuow v B JaAII9p 03 diysiaupned Ajajes Ajlunwwo) ayj Jo ainjieq i[Vie) Ajunwwo),
ubIH ubIH . UbIH UbIH ((
sI siyL diyssaupied ay3 Jo sanwold ay) JaAIIRp 03 £01dvd
sueyd uonoe [enuue adnpoid sdnoJH UoldY INoj BYL
‘sawibaJ uooadsul
Souewopad JO JUSWISSISSE J|3s [enuuy (O
. - 43 |euoneu ul pajoayyas buraq siyy pue sapuabe |edo| diyssaunied
pajesayiad usaqg sey diysiauped i 6 SUOISPBP dST 6 6 y J0jAe
wnipaW| W v v 13430 yum uoneIndal s,|1PUN0) Y3 ‘o1ignd ayy 03 AIsAIISp 16911 (2207
03 Juswiwwo) ‘sabueyd Adijod uo Jawuqg buiysjem suieiad ds ' v wnipad| Jo uonejusws|dwi poddns 03 dnoub Juswabeuel (q wnipap wnipap aJlle|n
ybiH 90IA13s uo pedwi saanebau e Huiaey saAdS[qo S JBAIRP 2014V
pajuswa|dwi malAal ddueusanob diysiauiied (e
03 diysiauied 21693415 2207 DY3 JO DIN|1Ry BY) SI XSI YL
9ouewJoyad Jojiuow 03 dnoub Juswabeuew 4s7 (p -sounBaJ uopaadsuy
“sjusuRbue.LE JuBWaBEUEW SouBWO0}Rd euoneU Ul padajyas bulaq siy) pue sanLoyYINe [e30] Jaylo uaWaalb!
*193s1624 2y3 6 i cr VY1 S1PHISIP UOXQ [[B JO uoneulpiood Dad (2 3 i a leuon ! PeRl °a UE p tANe 1230] 15U} JojAeL } v
' wnipap v wnipa| yum uoneindal s,j1UNo) ay3 ‘a11gnd 3yl 03 AIBAIIDP SDIAIDS ealy |e207]
W0} POAOWSI 34 [[IM MSIY "PUS JBSA 1B 1SIXS 0] 9Se3D ||IM VY] t wnipa| v uonenobau wnipsp| y aJie|d
ybiH ybiH uo oedwi aanebau e buiaey Juswaalby ealy 207 By} TOLY¥Vd
ZYV1 Ul Juswabebua 1143sIa JO [9A3] YbIH (q
Jnd (e JO SJUBWIBI3 S,|IPUNOD B JBAIIDP 03 34N|IR) Y] SI XYSH dYL
sysiy diysiauypied
I3 yieay Axjenb elep 4o saLiss e N”‘__M_u_m% nc_”“ -9jelidosddeur @q 03 IN0 uIN} ABW SUOISIDAP BSOY)
2ouewdoyiad 4oy swwesboud jipne mc\_w c,u@ ‘aen32eul 10 9391dwodul ‘18P 40 IN0 S| e1ep JI ILISIP
i a i 42 g g apne | ul ct i ct 2y} Jo aunjeu ayj pue uoize|ndod ay3 Inoge uoneW.IoU| JojAeL Ajend ejeqg
wnipap wnipap UOIIBLUIOJUI UMO JNO Joj siseqd ayy| ¢ |wnipajy wnipajy
t v v v JO SISeq 2y UO SpeW e SuoIsidag "Suoisidap Jood Buiyew ale|d £0d4¥0D
ybiH ybiH SE 224N0s e3ep d[gel24 pue pajsni) [eulaixa asn (q ybiH ybiH
JO »su 3e [1puno) ay3 bunand Bupjew Adijod pue uoisiap
SSEIE 03 SIALU UOISHIP oddns 0} pasn aJe $321N0s elep 3|qel24un 1ey s %si Yyl
||e J0J 3|qejieAe 224nos ejep pajsnd) 3j6uls (e H ; s
*9j04/sa1np buiuueld Adusabiswa
11943 Aj2A1303449 93e1apun 0] Way) 3|qeud 0] Jels
jueAa|al 03 Auessadau se papiaoad ose si bujuied
‘uonesueljiwey ueid 1oy pue uejd ayj Jo ssaUISNQoL
i o1 i ST 3y3 3593 03 Ajlenuue N0 paliled ale saspJaxe doy i S i ST uoIsem Aouabiawg JIAL
wnipap wnipap wnipajy -uojstep
t v v a|qel "a|npayds buisiosaxa pue Hunsa) [enuue ue sey| y  |wnipaW| w 904400
ybiH ybiH ) ybIH Ined
ue|d ayj ‘asowsayung "siseq Jejnbas e uo pajepdn
SI yoiym ueld Aouabiawz ue ujejuiew pue asedasd
03 AInp e sey [1puno) auy3 ‘400z PV sapuabunuo)
ay3 Japun Japuodsay T Atobajed e sy
Guney Guney buney buney
OVH 1N [ isny vy Asry Ovy 1N | isiy 2 sty
|9Ae4] JO ssoun SS049
JaMenb siy3 syuswwo) B N ssoin $]013u0) BN sso19 uonduosag 13UMO BuipesH sy

TTOZ Y24en : ¥d

TTOZ Yo1ew - 0102 Idy

1102/0T0Z Juswabeuep sy

070Z 49qwi23q : €0

8 xipuaddy



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 248



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 249



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 256



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 257



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 276



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Response to Department for Transport Consultation on High Speed Rail
	Appendix 1 - Consultation summary document
	Appendix 2 - Non-technical summary of Appraisal of Sustainability
	Appendix 3 - Extract from HS2 Route Engineering Report
	Appendix 4 - Summary of ﬁ51Mﬂ submission to Transport Select Committee
	Appendix 5 - Route plans
	Appendix 6 - Overview of potential impacts
	Appendix 7 - Mitigation section of AOS

	7 Armed Forces Community Covenant
	8 Horton General Hospital and Health Sector Changes
	Appendix 1 Diagram summarising coalition government proposals for the main health organisations
	Appendix 2 NHS white paper July 2010 Œ summary of key changes

	9 Value for Money Review of Economic Development
	10 2010/2011 End of Year Finance and Medium Term Financial Strategy Update Report
	Appendix 1 Revenue Overview1
	Appendix 2a Capital Overview 2010-11
	Appendix 2b Capital Detail 2010-11
	Appendix 3 -  Progress against the Procurement Action Plan as at 31 March 2011
	Appendix 4 - Procurement Savings Achieved 2010 to 2011 as at 31st March 2011
	Appendix 5 Local Government Resource Review Terms of Reference

	11 Performance Management Framework 2010/2011 End of Year Performance Report
	Appendix 1 Corporate Scorecard March 2011
	Appendix 2 Local Area Agreement March 2011
	Appendix 3 Corporate Plan March 2011
	Appendix 4 Priority Service Indicators March 2011
	Appendix 5 Strategic Service Projects March 2011
	Appendix 6 Corporate Improvement Plan March 2011
	Appendix 7 Significant Partnerships March 2011
	Appendix 8 Risk Management December March 2011

	14 Value for Money Review of Tourism
	Appendix 1 Tourism Value for Money Review v8 21Jun11


